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1

P R O C E E D I N G S
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

Good afternoon.

We are on

3

the record.

4

Allen.

5

Commission.

6

Chapter 138A-15(e) of the North Carolina State

7

Government Ethics Act, I remind all members of the

8

Commission of their duty to avoid conflicts of

9

interest under Chapter 138A.

Today is July 19, 2017.

I am Charlton

I’m Chairman at the North Carolina Industrial
In compliance with the requirements of

I also inquire as to

10

whether there is any known conflict of interest to the

11

matter coming before the Commission at this time.

12

Hearing none, we will proceed.

13

Carolina Industrial Commission public hearing on

14

proposed rulemaking.

15

to receive comments from the public regarding the

16

amendments to 04 NCAC 10J .0103 proposed for permanent

17

rulemaking by the Commission and published in the

18

North Carolina Register on June 15, 2017.

19

received only one written comment from the public thus

20

far, but the record will be held open to receive

21

written comments from the public through the close of

22

business on August 14, 2017.

23

like to introduce the other Commissioners.

24

right is Vice-Chairman Yolanda Stith, Commissioner

25

Tammy Nance and Commissioner Philip Baddour, and to my

This is a North

The purpose of this hearing is

We have

At this time, I would
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1

left, Commissioner Linda Cheatham and Commissioner

2

Christopher Loutit.

3

this hearing must sign-up to do so with Kendall

4

Bourdon so that we have the correct spelling of your

5

name and can call you in order to speak.

6

would like to speak and has not yet signed up, please

7

do so now.

8

program, the first speaker will be Kendall Bourdon,

9

the rulemaking coordinator, followed by members of the

Anyone who wishes to speak at

If anybody

Once we resume the speaking part of the

10

public in the order that they signed up.

11

would you please raise your hand so people know who to

12

sign-up with?

13

couple of minutes if anyone wishes to add their name

14

to the list of folks to sign-up.

15

proceed.

All right.

16
17

Ms. Bourdon,

We will stand at ease for a

Seeing none, we will

KENDALL BOURDON
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Good afternoon, Ms. Bourdon.

18

Will you please state your name, position and whom you

19

work for?

20

MS. BOURDON:

My name is Kendall Bourdon, and I am

21

the rulemaking coordinator for the North Carolina

22

Industrial Commission.

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And do you have prepared exhibits

24

that you would like to place into the record at these

25

proceedings?
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MS. BOURDON:

Yes.

3

I have Exhibit 1, which is a

2

copy of the proposed rule as published in the North

3

Carolina Register on June 15, 2017.

4

Exhibit 2, which is a copy of the Fiscal Note

5

analyzing the regulatory impact of this proposed rule,

6

as marked Exhibit 2.

7

marked, which is a copy of the temporary rule as

8

approved by the Rules Review Commission and published

9

in the North Carolina Register on January 17, 2017.

Next, I have

I also submit Exhibit 3 as so

10

Additionally, I have Exhibit 4, which is the complete

11

transcript of the Industrial Commission’s public

12

hearing held on November 18, 2016, including the

13

complete record of the public comment meeting

14

voluntarily held by the Commission on October 3rd,

15

2016, marked Exhibit 4.

16

submit Exhibit 5, which is the collection of written

17

public comments received between October 18th, 2016

18

through November 29, 2016.

19
20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Finally, I would like to

Okay.

We’ll receive those

exhibits.

21

(Exhibit Numbers 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5

22

are identified and admitted into

23

the record.)

24
25

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Would you briefly give us some

background and list the rule that would be affected by
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4

the proposed rule change?

2

MS. BOURDON:

Yes.

We have one rule for

3

amendment.

4

Administrative Code, Subchapter 10J.

5

amend Rule .0103, which is titled “Fees for

6

Institutional Services.”

7

is October 1, 2017.

8

1.

9

provisions of Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103 for several

This rule is found in Title 04 of the
We propose to

The proposed effective date

It is submitted to you as Exhibit

The Industrial Commission proposes to amend the

10

reasons.

11

clarification regarding the qualifications for

12

reimbursement under paragraphs (c), (d) and (f).

13

Next, there are two primary reasons for the proposed

14

amendments to the provisions related to fees for

15

ambulatory surgical centers:

16

First, this rule has been the subject of litigation

17

that is ongoing at the time of filing.

18

of the rule as adopted on April 1st, 2015, that relate

19

to fees for ambulatory surgical centers, specifically

20

paragraphs (g) and (h) and the reference to paragraph

21

or – excuse me – the reference to (h) and paragraph

22

(i), were held to be invalid by Wake County Superior

23

Court Judge Paul Ridgeway in an August 9, 2016

24

Decision.

25

belief that those provisions of the rule were not

The proposed amendment to paragraph (a) is a

Paragraphs (g) and (h).

The provisions

The Decision was predicated on the Court’s
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1

adopted in compliance with the Administrative

2

Procedure Act because no Fiscal Note was prepared.

3

The Industrial Commission has appealed that ruling and

4

the matter is pending before the North Carolina Court

5

of Appeals.

6

Judge Ridgeway by Order dated September 2nd, 2016.

7

While the Industrial Commission maintains its position

8

that it was not required to complete a Fiscal Note to

9

adopt and/or amend the challenged provisions, the

The August 9, 2016 Decision was stayed by

10

Industrial Commission has now completed a Fiscal

11

Note - see Exhibit 2 – which has been approved by OSVM

12

and seeks to amend the ambulatory surgical center fee

13

provisions of Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103.

14

outcome of litigation, the amendments are sought to

15

restore certainty and balance to the fee schedule for

16

stakeholders, including payers and medical providers,

17

as to future medical expenses.

18

Industrial Commission is statutorily obligated to

19

periodically review the schedule of maximum fees

20

charged for medical treatment in workers’ compensation

21

cases and make revisions, if necessary.

22

amendments to Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103 incorporate

23

feedback from various stakeholders that the addition

24

of a provision setting maximum fees for ambulatory

25

surgical centers for additional procedures covered by

Pending the

Moreover, the
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1

the Medicare Outpatient Prospective Payment System

2

would be beneficial to payers, providers and injured

3

workers.

4

services provided by ambulatory surgical centers

5

covered by the Medicare ambulatory surgical center

6

payment system will be two hundred percent in keeping

7

with the rate for 2017 and beyond and the rule as

8

adopted on April 1st, 2015.

9

reimbursement rate for additional procedures provided

The fee schedule reimbursement rate for

The fee schedule

10

by an ambulatory surgical center that are covered by

11

the Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment

12

System will be one hundred and thirty-five percent.

13

The rates were calculated to fall in the estimated

14

median range of workers’ compensation fee schedules

15

nationally, as well as within the range of workers’

16

compensation fee schedules and states that base

17

payment to ambulatory surgical centers on a percentage

18

of the Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective

19

Payment System and/or the Medicare ambulatory surgical

20

center payment systems.

21

changes are the North Carolina – are North Carolina

22

General Statutes 97-25, 97-26, 97-80 and Session Law

23

2013-410.

24

in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC, versus North

25

Carolina Industrial Commission led the Commission to

The statutory bases for these

The effects of the August 9, 2016 Decision
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1

engage in temporary rulemaking to put a rule in place

2

as soon as possible; thus, limiting the period of

3

time, subject to a potential retroactive invalidation

4

of the ambulatory surgery center fee schedule

5

provisions, in providing certainty regarding medical

6

costs for 2017 and beyond.

7

submitted to you as Exhibit 3.

8

temporary rule, the Industrial Commission voluntarily

9

held a non-mandatory public comment meeting on October

10

3rd, 2016, and accepted written comments from September

11

2nd, 2016 through October 10th, 2016, in order to allow

12

any person or entity the opportunity to present

13

comments and proposals regarding potential rulemaking

14

options to address the effects of the August 9, 2016

15

Court Decision.

16

temporary rule and, in accordance with the temporary

17

rulemaking procedures of North Carolina General

18

Statute 150B, held a public hearing on November 11th,

19

2016; the record of which is submitted to you as

20

Exhibit 4.

21

written comments from October 18, 2016 through

22

November 29th, 2016, submitted herein as Exhibit 5.

23

Although the temporary rule is also the subject of

24

ongoing litigation currently pending at this time, the

25

Commission is now engaged in permanent rulemaking as a

The temporary rule is
Prior to proposing the

The Commission then proposed a

Additionally, the Commission accepted
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1

follow-up to the temporary rule.

2

permanent rule is proposed to be effective at the time

3

the temporary rule would have expired.

4

has followed the permanent rulemaking procedures of

5

the Administrative Procedure Act in proposing these

6

rules.

7

following:

8

a Notice of Text to the Office of Administrative

9

Hearings on May 24th, 2017; they were then published in

Therefore, the

The Commission

The relevant dates involved include the
The proposed rule amendment was filed with

10

the June 15, 2017 issue of the North Carolina

11

Register.

12

Commission published a notice of these rules and a

13

link to the Fiscal Note on the Commission’s website,

14

as required, and also emailed notice with a link to

15

this proposed rule and Fiscal Note to the Industrial

16

Commission’s Listserv.

17

person’s Listserv that we are required to maintain for

18

rulemaking purposes.

19

Note were also provided to the North Carolina League

20

of Municipalities and the North Carolina Association

21

of County Commissioners, as required by statute.

22

And on the same date – June 15th – the

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

The Listserv is an interested

Copies of the rule and Fiscal

Okay.

Ms. Bourdon, the rule in

23

question is found in Title 04, but it is subject to be

24

transferred to Title 11 due to the Commission’s

25

transfer to the Department of Insurance, together with
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1

all other Industrial Commission rules, at some date to

2

be determined.

3

Is that correct?

MS. BOURDON:

Yes, that is correct.

Any transfer

4

in the code of the Industrial Commission rules will be

5

subsequent to any currently pending rulemaking.

6

the Industrial Commission was organized under the

7

Department of Commerce when this rulemaking was

8

proposed and published in the North Carolina Register,

9

it will be adopted as 04 NCAC 10J .0103.

10

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Do any members of the Commission

11

have additional questions for Ms. Bourdon?

12

Thank you, Ms. Bourdon.

13
14

As

All right.

You may return to your seat.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We will proceed to the next

15

speaker.

16

Mr. David Orskey.

17

podium, the names I have on my list are Mr. Orskey,

18

Kelli Collins, Renee Montgomery, Stephanie Gay, Stacey

19

Smith, Bruce Clarke and Ronnie Cook.

20

else who wishes to speak?

21
22

The first person I have on my list is
And as you are approaching the

Is there anyone

DAVID WILLIAM ORSKEY
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Mr. Orskey, would you please

23

state your name, tell us who you represent, if any

24

particular organization?

25

MR. ORSKEY:

David William Orskey and I represent
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1

Holly Springs Surgery Center, as well as Compass

2

Surgical Partners.

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And you wish to speak in

4

regards to the rule that’s up for possible amendment,

5

is that correct, sir?

6

MR. ORSKEY:

7

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

8
9

Yes, sir.
Okay.

All right.

We’ll be happy

to hear from you.
MR. ORSKEY:

Okay.

Good afternoon, Commissioners.

10

My name is David Orskey, and I’m here today

11

representing the North Carolina Ambulatory Surgical

12

Center Association and its members.

13

by Compass Surgical Partners as administrator of Holly

14

Springs Surgery Center located in Holly Springs, North

15

Carolina.

16

ambulatory surgery centers, or ASCs, throughout North

17

Carolina.

18

North Carolina Ambulatory Surgical Association.

19

Ambulatory surgery centers, or ASCs, add green value

20

to North Carolina’s delivery system.

21

the same types of surgical procedures that are

22

provided in hospital outpatient departments and some

23

procedures that are currently being provided to

24

patients within hospitals.

25

founded in 2016.

I’m also employed

Compass Surgical Partners operates

Compass is also a founding member of the

ASCs can perform

The Association was

Since its inception, the Association
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1

has taken a very active role in commenting upon, even

2

challenging certain actions that have been taken by

3

the Commission’s connection with the ASC fee schedule

4

for workers’ compensation cases.

5

one of the plaintiffs in the legal action filed

6

earlier this year that resulted in the Wake County

7

Superior Court declaring the Commission’s temporary

8

rule invalid.

9

considered by the Commission, the Association voiced

The Association is

When the temporary rule was being

10

its serious concerns directly and through its members.

11

Unfortunately, the proposed permanent rule is

12

identical to the temporary rule.

13

its members are united in the desire to have the

14

Commission adopt a reasonable, comprehensive fee

15

schedule for ambulatory surgical centers that would

16

provide adequate reimbursement in workers’

17

compensation cases.

18

containing medical costs because ambulatory surgery

19

centers are the most cost efficient – effective in an

20

efficient setting for many of the surgical procedures

21

needed by injured workers.

22

reimbursement results in less access for injured

23

workers.

24

surgical fee schedule was slashed by sixty percent,

25

there was a significant decline in the percentage of

The Association and

This will result in better

The lack of adequate

In 2015, which was the first year ambulatory
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1

surgeries for injured workers and that were performed

2

in ambulatory surgery centers.

3

injured workers receiving their surgeries at a higher

4

cost within a hospital setting.

5

adopted by the Commission should provide sufficient

6

reimbursement to ambulatory surgical centers so that

7

access to the most cost-effective setting is

8

encouraged.

9

procedures that can be performed within an ambulatory

This resulted in these

The fee schedule

The fee schedule should also cover all

10

surgery center.

11

Unfortunately, the fee schedule being proposed by the

12

Commission does not accomplish either of these goals;

13

instead, the Commission is basing the workers’

14

compensation fee schedule on the Medicare fee

15

schedule.

16

Medicare patient population and workers’ compensation

17

population.

18

procedures in ASCs only when discharge would be

19

appropriate before the midnight following the

20

procedure.

21

Carolina, ASCs are permitted to keep patients for up

22

to twenty-four hours.

23

patient can stay in the facility overnight provided

24

they are released within a specific timeframe.

25

ability to keep workers’ compensation and commercial

This will also increase access.

There are significant differences between

The - Medicare permits surgical

For non-Medicare patients in North

This means a non-Medicare
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1

patients in an ASC overnight broadens the list of

2

procedures that can be performed safely and effective

3

in an ambulatory surgery center.

4

proposed rule ignores all these factors and instead

5

treats injured workers like Medicare patients.

6

result, injured workers will be denied access to

7

ambulatory surgery centers, causing delays in services

8

and higher inpatient costs and co-pays for certain

9

procedures.

The Commission’s

As a

The Association also has serious

10

objections to the approach taken and the assumption

11

made by the Fiscal Note.

12

actually analyzed the change for the – to the fee

13

schedule that is being proposed.

14

not take into account the major reduction in – the

15

reduction being proposed to ASCs from the valid fee

16

schedule; instead, it is using the April 2015 fee

17

schedule, which is – which a Superior Court has

18

already invalidated.

19

address the dynamic effects that such reduction will

20

have, and already has had, on injured workers and the

21

cost to the system.

22

permanent rule is nearly identical to the prior

23

permanent rule and identical to a temporary rule; both

24

of which were invalidated by the courts.

25

courts did not have the opportunity to review the

The Commission has not

The Fiscal Note does

The Fiscal Note also does not

The Commission’s proposed
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1

substance of the rules, these prior failed – on

2

rulemaking efforts gave the Commission the opportunity

3

to reconsider its approach to ASC fee schedule and

4

construct a fee schedule that took into account

5

stakeholders’ feedback and that accomplished the

6

statutory requirements.

7

rule, the Commission has squandered these

8

opportunities.

9

process, the Commission has the opportunity to adopt a

With this proposed permanent

Through this permanent rulemaking

10

fee schedule that actually gives access to injured

11

workers and saves the system money.

12

Association – the Association recommends that the

13

Commission adopt a rule consistent with the proposal

14

made by one of the Association’s members last fall –

15

Surgical Care Associates [sic].

16

also conduct a proper fiscal analysis.

17

your time.

18
19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

To do so, the

The Commission should
Thank you for

Do the Commissioners have any

questions?

20

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

No.

Mr. Orskey, I have a few

22

questions.

23

proposed rule treats injured workers like Medicare

24

patients.

25

considering the proposed rule in large measure has a

You indicated that the Commission’s

Help me to understand your logic in that
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1

reimbursement rate that’s two hundred percent of the

2

Medicare rate.

3

MR. ORSKEY:

Well, so to the injured workers,

4

depending on what they’re being seen for, the rate for

5

that Medicare still may not pay for that facility to

6

be able to see that patient.

7

the type of injuries the patient is being seen for,

8

the cost that we put forth to see that patient and

9

some of the delays in getting approval for surgery

10
11

The rates - depending on

increase the costs.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And do you have any

12

studies, reports, documentation or anything of the

13

sort that you can submit to the Commission for its

14

review before the end of the written response period?

15
16
17
18

MR. ORSKEY:

I’d like to refer that to our legal

team.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

22

Any further

questions?

19

21

All right.

I have one.

Commissioner Cheatham, you’re

recognized.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Okay.

Just to tag off, I

23

guess, one of yours, can you give me an example?

24

mean you referenced in response to Chair Allen’s

25

question about – you know, your comment that this
GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
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1

treats injured workers like Medicare patients.

2

you give me an example of some type of surgery that

3

you – or procedure that you think would be applicable

4

to that?

5

MR. ORSKEY:

Can

More – let’s – for example, an

6

orthopedic procedure or, let’s say, a spine

7

procedure – the expense of that for Medicare patients

8

may not be cost-effective to – at the rates.

9

example, if there’s implants involved which are –

For

10

Medicare does not pay for, or which may be very

11

expensive and the center may have to – may not be

12

covered in that - the cost or the expense of the

13

procedure.

14

implants may cost more than the reimbursement that we

15

get from Medicare.

16

So having, for example, high-dollar

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So the thrust of your

17

concern would be surgeries that involve implants, is

18

that correct?

19

MR. ORSKEY:

That’s just – that’s just an example

20

of some of the expenses that---

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

But, for example, if you

22

were going to go in and have an ACL redone and you –

23

sorry.

24

MR. ORSKEY:

25

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

That’s all right.
I lost my train of thought
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1

here.

2

hundred percent of the Medicare rate.

3

recipient goes to an ASC and has the same procedure

4

done, they would be reimbursed at a hundred percent,

5

correct?

And you go to an ASC, and you’re reimbursed two

6

MR. ORSKEY:

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

8
9

If a Medicare

That’s true, but at--And you’re not turning

away the Medicare people, is that correct?
MR. ORSKEY:

It depends on, you know, the cost of

10

surgery.

11

explain earlier, is that we may not – we may not be

12

able to cover the expense of that because of the

13

reimbursement rates, and some of it’s just not – it’s

14

not doable because of the low rate.

15
16
17

If it’s a Medicare patient – like I tried to

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So you would see yourself

moving out of the Medicare market?
MR. ORSKEY:

No, I think you have to not –

18

definitely not move out of Medicare market because not

19

all things fall into that category.

20

multi-specialty facility, so we see people for

21

multiple specialties, whether it be in orthopedics or

22

urology or ophthalmology.

23

service is, you know, you have different rates of

24

payment for that particular ICD (phonetic) code.

25

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

We see – we’re a

Depending on what the

Mr.---
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CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

2

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

18

Mr. Orskey.
Mr. Orskey, would you please

3

tell me, in the situation where you have implants that

4

may not be covered, how do you handle those now?

5

they turned away?

6

and forced to go somewhere else for the surgery?

7

do you make up the difference in costs?

8
9

MR. ORSKEY:

Are

Are those individuals turned away
How

It just depends on – depends on the

situation we have.

If we have a patient who comes in

10

for a procedure and our reimbursement is for the – now

11

when I speak about reimbursement, I’m only speaking

12

about reimbursement fee for the facility, not the

13

professional fee or anesthesia fee.

14

implantees (phonetic) are – for the actual implant

15

itself may be more than we would get paid by the – by

16

the payer, so you – it’s almost having to pay the

17

patient to go somewhere else because you can’t do the

18

case and cover your expenses for the amount of implant

19

and what the payer may pay if they don’t cover

20

implants.

21
22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

The – some of the

So if you have someone who

needs an implant, you say, go to the hospital?

23

MR. ORSKEY:

24

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

25

MR. ORSKEY:

No.
No?

No, it just depends on what the---
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1

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

2

MR. ORSKEY:

3

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

4

MR. ORSKEY:

5
6

You say, come on in and---

It depends on-----we’ll take less?

---the – it depends on what the fee

rate is for that payer.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Okay.

Let’s suppose you

7

need an implant and you can’t make any money on it.

8

Do you send them someplace else?

9
10

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:
MR. ORSKEY:

Yeah.

If we’re – I don’t send them anywhere

11

else.

12

we will do the case for a breakeven because the

13

patient usually – the patient is there and we can do

14

the case, but that’s not, you know---

It just depends on if it’s – you know, often,

15

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

16

patient more to make up for---?

17

MR. ORSKEY:

18

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

19

MR. ORSKEY:

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

No, we don’t.

We don’t.

No?

No.
So if it’s a – if you’re

not making money, you’re losing money on the case---

22

MR. ORSKEY:

23

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

24

MR. ORSKEY:

25

So do you charge the

Uh-huh.
---you still perform it?

Depends – it depends on the – you

know, we don’t want – we’re not in the business to
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20

lose money---

2

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

3

MR. ORSKEY:

Right.

I understand.

---so we are – we are a for-profit

4

facility, but if it – if we’re going to lose hundreds

5

of thousands of dollars, it may be best to – the

6

patient to go somewhere else.

7

depends.

8

money, and that’s what I think the thrust of this is,

9

is that the fee schedule we think should be higher to

You know, it just

And if - you can’t stay in business and lose

10

cover the costs of patients’ needs.

11

cost saver or very efficient as opposed to hospitals.

12

Our infection rates are much lower.

13

efficient way of services to all of our beneficiaries.

14
15

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

ASCs are a great

We provide an

Mr. Orskey, does your group –

your particular group have facilities in other states?

16

MR. ORSKEY:

17

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Yes, sir, they do.
Okay.

Do you understand that the

18

rule that has been proposed in North Carolina that’s

19

before this Commission now is substantially higher

20

than the national average in workers’ compensation

21

cases for ASCs?

22

MR. ORSKEY:

23

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

I’m not aware of that, sir.
I just have---

Commissioner Baddour.
---one follow-up on what
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1

you’ve been asked.

2

number of Medicare or Medicaid cases that you turn

3

away because you think you’re going to lose on them

4

because the reimbursement is not enough for the

5

particular procedure?

6

MR. ORSKEY:

7
8
9
10

Do you have any stats on the

I do – personally, sir, I do not.

The--COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

Would anyone have the stats

on that?
MR. ORSKEY:

The Association might.

Stats on

11

Medicare patients that maybe we turned away because of

12

Medicare costs or fee schedules?

13
14

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

And if someone else can

address it later, that’s fine, but did---

15

MR. ORSKEY:

16

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

17

MR. ORSKEY:

18

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I do not, sir.
---someone have stats?

I do not personally, sir.
All right.

If someone can address that

20

later, that’s fine.

21

stats, data, anything you wish this Commission to

22

consider---

23

MR. ORSKEY:

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

And as I said earlier, any other

Yes, sir.
---please submit it to us.

We’ve

down this road before, and, quite frankly, the data
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1

that has been presented has been scant.

2

very helpful for us to understand your position to

3

have some documentation to back it up.

4

MR. ORSKEY:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Yes, sir.

6

the speakers today.

7

Thank you---

8

MR. ORSKEY:

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10
11
12
13

MR. ORSKEY:

Any other questions?

All right.

Thank you.
---Mr. Orskey.

Yeah.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Next will be Kelli Collins.

Ms. Collins, please approach.
KELLI COLLINS

15

MS. COLLINS:

16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

17

MS. COLLINS:

19

And that goes – that goes for all

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

14

18

It would be

Good afternoon.
Good afternoon.

Again, would---?

Chairman Allen, and Commissioners –

I’m sorry.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I’m sorry.

I don’t want to

20

interrupt, but if you would please state your name,

21

tell us whom you represent, if any particular

22

organization, and, of course, I take it you’re here on

23

the rule that’s before us.

24

MS. COLLINS:

25

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

That’s correct.
Okay.
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MS. COLLINS:

23

My name is Kelli Collins, and I’m a

2

regional vice-president of operations for Surgical

3

Care Affiliates, and I’m here representing that

4

organization today and the seven ambulatory surgery

5

centers that we have in the state.

6

convenient access to high-quality, cost-effective

7

surgical care, and we have several representatives

8

from our facilities here with us today.

9

the proposed permanent rule for the four following

We offer

SCA opposes

10

reasons:

11

does not meet statutory requirements; the proposed

12

rule fails to take into account the significant

13

feedback that has been provided by stakeholders; the

14

Fiscal Note fails to consider the dynamic impacts of

15

reducing reimbursement for procedures in ambulatory

16

surgery centers and shifting costs to more

17

cost-expensive settings; the proposed rule would hurt

18

injured workers by denying or delaying access to more

19

cost-effective services.

20

reasons in more detail, I want to provide a summary of

21

the Commission’s prior versions of the ASC fee

22

schedule and the legal actions and developments that

23

have occurred to date.

24

has established separate fee schedules for physicians,

25

hospitals, ambulatory surgery centers and other

The proposed rule is not cost-effective and

Before discussing the

Historically, the Commission
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1

healthcare providers.

2

centers represent less than six percent of workers’

3

compensation medical payments.

4

Assembly enacted a provision authorizing the

5

Commission to base the fee schedules for physicians

6

and hospitals on the Medicare methodology and

7

permitted the Commission to bypass the usual

8

requirement of obtaining a Fiscal Note to analyze the

9

financial impact of these changes.

Payments to ambulatory surgery

In 2013, the General

The Commission

10

tasked a group of stakeholders to develop and

11

recommend the fee schedules.

12

in that process.

13

rules that changed the fee schedules for physicians

14

and hospitals, as authorized by the General Assembly,

15

but also changed the fee schedules for ambulatory

16

surgery centers.

17

down the changes to the ASC fee schedule because the

18

Commission was not authorized to ignore the

19

requirement of a Fiscal Note.

20

appealed to the Court of Appeals.

21

Decision has been stayed pending the appeal.

22

Court appeals - affirms a Superior Court Decision, the

23

valid fee schedule that was in place prior to April of

24

2015 will be the reimbursement that would be applied

25

retroactively to all workers’ compensation procedures

ASCs were not included

In 2015, the Commission adopted

In 2016, a Superior Court struck

The Commission has
The Superior Court
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1

performed in ambulatory surgery centers.

2

Commission acknowledges in its Fiscal Note, ASCs will

3

be entitled to collect underpayments for services

4

provided since April of 2015.

5

will require insurance carriers and self-insured

6

employees to pay ambulatory surgery centers over

7

seventy-five million dollars.

8

numerous efforts with other stakeholders to negotiate

9

a fair fee schedule moving forward and a resolution to

As the

Conservatively, this

SCA has engaged in

10

the substantial underpayment caused by the

11

Commission’s invalid fee schedule.

12

time today to describe all these efforts to reach a

13

compromise.

14

communications have occurred.

15

flexibility that SCA now has to compromise on the

16

substantial underpayments that will be owed to

17

ambulatory surgery centers would end once the Court of

18

Appeals rules in favor of the SCA.

19

background, I now turn to SCA’s first reason for

20

opposing the proposed rule.

21

cost-effective and does not meet the statutory

22

requirements.

23

schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to

24

ensure that, number one, injured workers are provided

25

access to care and, number two, that providers are

There’s not enough

Countless meetings and other
Frankly, the

With this

The proposed rule is not

North Carolina law requires that fee
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1

reimbursed reasonable fees for providing those

2

services and, number three, that medical costs are

3

controlled.

4

does not meet any of those requirements.

5

Commission’s proposed permanent rule limits access to

6

care for injured workers.

7

permanent rule does not set a fee schedule for all

8

procedures that can be performed in an ambulatory

9

surgery center.

The Commission’s proposed permanent rule
First, the

The Commission’s proposed

By crafting a fee schedule that uses

10

only Medicare fee schedules as its foundation, the

11

proposed rule does not recognize that a wide variety

12

of procedures can be performed safely and

13

cost-effectively on the working age population that

14

are not on the Medicare-approved list.

15

compensation population is typically younger and

16

healthier than the Medicare population, meaning that

17

there are additional procedures that can be performed

18

safely and effectively with a shorter stay.

19

example, a working age patient with a spinal injury is

20

commonly treated in an ambulatory surgery setting.

21

The proposed rule will prevent injured workers from

22

accessing these procedures in an ambulatory surgery

23

center because of several of these spinal codes not on

24

the Medicare ASC or HOPD fee schedules.

25

total joint replacements are paid by Medicare only in
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1

the inpatient setting today.

2

adopted a rule that set a reasonable fee schedule for

3

these procedures, these cases could be performed on

4

injured workers in the ambulatory surgery setting.

5

The Commission should be proposing a fee schedule that

6

provides having these procedures performed in the

7

ambulatory surgery center instead of a more costly

8

inpatient setting.

9

schedule does not offer a reasonable reimbursement to

If the Commission

Second, the proposed ASC fee

10

ambulatory surgery providers.

11

reimbursement discourages ambulatory surgery centers

12

treating as many injured workers.

13

after the change, there was an eight percent decline

14

in the number of workers’ compensation cases done by

15

an ASC.

16

ASCs eliminates the third failing of the proposed

17

rule.

18

injured worker treated in a hospital instead of an

19

ambulatory surgery center, a business or carrier can

20

pay double, triple, or even more sometimes for that

21

medical care.

22

capture these direct or indirect costs.

23

the proposed rule ignores the significant input

24

provided by stakeholders.

25

should sound familiar to the Commissioners who have

Inadequate

In 2015 alone,

This shift away from ASC – I’m sorry – from

It does not control medical costs.

For every

The Fiscal Note makes no attempt to
Number two,

All of these concerns
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1

served on the Commission for some length of time.

2

has raised these concerns at prior public hearings.

3

In the proposed rule, the Commission is not just

4

ignoring the concerns raised by SCA and other

5

ambulatory surgery centers; the Commission is ignoring

6

its own advice.

7

out in favor of parity between ASCs and the hospital

8

outpatient department, or HOPDs.

9

ensure injured workers access to high-quality,

SCA

The Commission has previously spoken

The only way to

10

effective care is to create parity between the ASC and

11

the HOPD medical fee schedules.

12

continues to make misleading comparisons to other

13

states.

14

to the trend of states recognizing the importance and

15

cost savings of ASCs in their workers’ compensation

16

systems.

17

settings.

18

If the Commission has further questions regarding the

19

national trends in workers’ compensation, Stacey Smith

20

with Liberty Partners is present and available to

21

answer any of those questions.

Number three, the

22

Fiscal Note is fatally flawed.

The Fiscal Note

23

ignores the fact that April 2015 ASC fee schedule was

24

invalidated because it failed to include a Fiscal

25

Note.

The Commission

In doing so, the Commission is moving counter

These states are creating parity across
North Carolina is just widening the gap.

Contrary to the Superior Court’s ruling, the
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1

Commission continues to fail to conduct a fiscal

2

analysis between the valid fee schedule, which is the

3

one in effect prior to April of 2015, and the proposed

4

fee schedule.

5

dramatic cut to reimbursement for ASCs and the

6

negative impact on injured workers’ access to care.

7

In fact, the Fiscal Note acknowledges that it fails to

8

consider the behavioral changes to the system of

9

reducing ambulatory surgery reimbursement.

In doing so, the Commission downplays

The Fiscal

10

Note only considers alternatives using April 2015 as

11

the baseline and also inappropriately relies on 2015

12

data, which includes claims under the invalid fee

13

schedule with the valid fee schedule.

14

provide a more detailed critique to the Fiscal Note in

15

its written comments.

16

over two years to produce a Fiscal Note, and then

17

produced a document that fails to even discuss the

18

fiscal impact or changes to the ASC reimbursement when

19

treating injured workers.

20

rulemaking requirements under the Administrative

21

Procedure Act.

22

harm injured workers.

23

workers is not speculative.

24

Data collected by WCRI demonstrated that common

25

outpatient surgeries occurred in North Carolina ASCs

SCA intends to

In sum, the Commission waited

This violates the

Number four, the proposed rule would
The negative impact to injured
It is already occurring.
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1

less frequently than in other states.

2

injured workers in North Carolina reported that they

3

had big problems getting the primary provider they

4

wanted.

5

problems for injured workers since the Commission

6

unlawfully changed the ASC fee schedule.

7

proposed rule, injured workers will be denied access

8

to care in the ambulatory surgery setting and will be

9

forced to receive treatment in more expensive,

Additionally,

The proposed rule only exacerbates these real

Under the

10

inpatient settings where scheduling services often

11

takes longer and results in delays in care.

12

recommends that the Commission revise its permanent

13

rule consistent with the recommendation in SCA’s

14

September 2016 proposal, which is consistent with the

15

statutory requirements; accounts for all procedures

16

that can be performed in an ambulatory surgery center

17

and as would have been demonstrated if a more thorough

18

and appropriate Fiscal Note had been done; results in

19

substantial savings to the workers’ compensation

20

system in North Carolina.

21

Commission conduct a fiscal analysis that actually

22

looks at the impact of the proposed rule as compared

23

to the valid pre-April 2015 fee schedule instead of

24

using an invalid rule as the baseline.

25

the opportunity to speak to you today.

SCA

SCA also insists that the
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1

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

2

with some questions.

3

the Fiscal Note was approved by OSVM, correct?

4

MS. COLLINS:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

6

I will start

Ms. Collins, you realize that

Okay.

And you mentioned that

there are misleading comparisons to other states.
MS. COLLINS:

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10

Okay.

I do.

7

9

Questions?

Yes.
Could you help explain what you

contend is misleading in those comparisons?
MS. COLLINS:

I think that we believe that when

11

you compare – and I’ll just say South Carolina to

12

North Carolina, it’s a different economy; it’s a

13

different environment.

14

of folks employed, different number of folks needing

15

certain services versus others, so it’s really not an

16

apples to apples comparison, so can tend to be

17

misleading.

18

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

There are a different number

So it’s your position that any

19

comparison would be misleading, or is there a better

20

state to compare North Carolina to?

21
22
23

MS. COLLINS:

I don’t think you can evaluate

workers’ compensation across state lines.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Would it be valid to compare

24

North Carolina to the national average in Medicare

25

reimbursement rates for ASCs in workers’ comp?
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MS. COLLINS:

2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

3

MS. COLLINS:

32

To Medicare reimbursement rates?
In workers’ compensation.

I mean I think – I think you’re

4

asking the same question in a different way.

5

think the environments are entirely different,

6

depending on the state and the requirements and the

7

population.

8
9
10
11
12
13

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I just

I’m not talking about a

particular state, but comparison to the national
average – would that be appropriate?
MS. COLLINS:

I would defer to Stacey on that

question, actually.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And the national average I

14

think is a hundred and forty-seven percent, and our

15

rate is two hundred percent, so that’s where I think

16

there’s a disconnect when you say that, you know, it’s

17

hard to make a comparison.

18

MS. COLLINS:

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

20
21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
Montgomery.

23

approach.

25

Thank you.
Thank you, Ms. Collins.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

22

24

Any other questions?

Next will be Ms. Renee

Ms. Montgomery, if you would please

RENEE MONTGOMERY
MS. MONTGOMERY:

Now when - I don’t wish to make

GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD - SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103
336/768-1152

Full Commission Public Hearing, July 19, 2017

1

comments.

2

questions.

3

33

I put my name on there in case there were

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

If you would speak up for the

4

benefit of the court reporter.

5

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

6

MS. MONTGOMERY:

7

To the mike, yeah.

Okay.

Then I don’t wish to be

heard.

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Yeah - to the microphone, please.

9

MS. MONTGOMERY:

Excuse me?

10

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

To the microphone.

11

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

12

MS. MONTGOMERY:

To the microphone.

Okay.

Sure.

Yes.

I am Renee

13

Montgomery, and I represent Surgical Care Affiliates,

14

and I indicated on the list that if I needed to answer

15

any questions, particularly as it pertained to the

16

litigation, that I would be available and happy to do

17

that.

18

Commissioners, I don’t – I don’t plan to offer any

19

additional comments.

20

would just ask to be called back if---

So, unless there are any questions from the

If something comes up later, I

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Very well.

22

MS. MONTGOMERY:

---that’s all right.

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Any questions?

24

you, Ms. Montgomery.

25

All right.

You may be seated.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
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CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

2

34

Next will be Stephanie Gay.

STEPHANIE GAY

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And, Ms. Gay, as you approach, if

4

you would, please state your name, tell us whom you

5

represent, and I’m going to take a leap of faith that

6

you’re here on – in respect to the rule that is under

7

consideration for amendment.

8
9

MS. GAY:
Gay.

That is correct.

My name is Stephanie

I am with Aegis Administrative Services, which

10

is a third-party administrator, handling workers’

11

compensation claims.

12

very long list of the business community that I am

13

here to represent.

14

Industries, Incorporated, the North Carolina

15

Association of County Commissioners, the North

16

Carolina Association of Self-Insurers, the North

17

Carolina Automobile Dealers Association, the North

18

Carolina Chamber, the North Carolina Farm Bureau and

19

affiliated companies, the North Carolina Forestry

20

Association, the North Carolina Home Builders

21

Association, the North Carolina League of

22

Municipalities, the North Carolina Manufacturers

23

Alliance, the North Carolina Retail Merchants

24

Association, the American Insurance Association,

25

Property Casualty Insurers of America Association,

If you will indulge me, I have a

That would be Capital Associated
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1

Builders Mutual Insurance Company, Dealers Choice

2

Mutual Insurance Company, First Benefits Insurance

3

Mutual, Forestry Mutual, the North Carolina Farm

4

Bureau, The Employers Association, the Employers

5

Coalition of North Carolina and WCI, Incorporated.

6

We’re a very large group, obviously, in the builders’

7

community – or in the employment community.

8

we probably have more claims with this contingency

9

than anybody you will hear from today.

I daresay

Let me just

10

give you a little history, if you will allow me to do

11

so.

12

negotiations for a medical fee schedule dating back to

13

2013.

14

negotiated with the North Carolina Medical Society,

15

the Hospital Association and members of the business

16

community.

17

am surg folks were present.

18

present, but hospitals and physicians owning

19

ambulatory surgical centers were represented at this

20

meeting.

21

reasonable.

22

reasonable for doctors.

23

hospital side, particularly with the implants and the

24

surgeries that were not fair to employers.

25

was to reach a median level.

I, among several people, were involved in the

It was about a two and a half year process.

We

I will take issue as to whether or not the
SCA may not have been

Our goal all along was to be fair and
We had many costs that were not
We had many costs on the

The goal

We didn’t want to be the
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1

lowest state; we did not want to be the highest state.

2

I believe we accomplished that, and that resulted in

3

the 2015 fee schedule that was adopted.

4

listened to the comments from the speakers before me,

5

I would just say I disagree with a few – a few of the

6

comments.

7

incredibly important.

8

prevent access to medical care.

9

surgeries.

As I’ve

I understand that access to medical care is
I do not believe that this will
People are having

They’re having them at hospitals.

They

10

are having them at ambulatory surgical centers.

11

daresay that the decline of – I heard six percent by

12

one speaker, eight percent by another in surgeries is

13

the direct result of the fact that the WCRI recognized

14

that North Carolina had more surgeries for backs than

15

almost any other state that they look at.

16

decrease is the direct result of the fact that we no

17

longer incentivize doctors to do those kinds of

18

surgeries.

19

used for those types of procedures in the past.

20

wonderful thing about this new rule is that that is

21

going to allow that to happen, provided we as

22

employers who get to direct the medical treatment

23

decide that is a facility that we’d like to have that

24

patient undergo that procedure.

25

whole idea of controlling costs is great.

I

I think the

Ambulatory surgical centers have not been
The

I think that the
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1

been involved in negotiating, as this was mentioned,

2

with SCA about doing a new proposed fee schedule.

3

have not come to an agreement yet.

4

is a result of a lack of effort or a lack of certainly

5

folks trying.

6

come up along the way, such as the Wilkes case that

7

has maybe sidetracked us a bit, but I will tell you

8

that it became very apparent to me in my discussions

9

directly with SCA and their contingencies that what

10

they really wanted was the ability to be able to do

11

those said procedures that the Medicare ambulatory fee

12

schedule would not allow them to do.

13

would quote them to say it would be a win-win if they

14

were able to do that because it would give them more

15

procedures that they weren’t allowed to do, which

16

obviously generates revenue, and it would also provide

17

us all a cost-saving factor for those of us on the

18

employer side because we could have our patients have

19

those procedures there.

20

procedures that we’re talking about.

21

about lumbar/cervical fusions.

22

total joint replacements, whether it’s knee, elbow or

23

shoulder.

24

historically have not been done in ambulatory surgical

25

centers in the State of North Carolina.

We

I don’t think that

There have been a few issues that have

And, in fact, I

Let’s be clear about the
We’re talking

We’re talking about

We’re talking about major procedures that
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1

is a new arena for all of us.

2

is a place where they can be done and they can truly

3

do things like prevent infections, MRSA, where we tend

4

to have those in hospital settings, I absolutely would

5

love to have it done in those facilities.

6

this gives us that opportunity.

7

a fee schedule that honors the – I think the spirit

8

with which we negotiated on for two and a half years

9

trying to get to a median level.

And, obviously, if this

I think

You have come up with

And now, we are

10

opening the door for them to do these procedures that

11

previously they would not have been reimbursed for and

12

they were sending to the hospitals.

13

you, and I thank you, and I – and we, obviously,

14

support that rule.

15

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

16

you, Ms. Gay.

17

MS. GAY:

18
19

Sure.

All right.

Thank

Thank you.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

20
21

Any questions?

I congratulate

Next, Stacey Smith.

STACEY SMITH
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And, if you would, state your

22

name, tell us whom you represent, if any particular

23

organization.

24

here in respect to the proposed amendment to the rule.

25

And, of course, I’m assuming you’re

MS. SMITH:

I hope so because I’ve been sitting
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1

through a lot of information I wouldn’t necessarily

2

want to hear if I wasn’t, so good afternoon.

3

Smith with Liberty Partners Group; I’m here on behalf

4

of Surgical Care Affiliates.

5

name down to speak.

6

testimony, but I thought maybe to answer some

7

questions or add some clarifications for the record

8

for the previous speakers from both the Association

9

and some of the – a clarification on some of the

I’m sorry.

Stacey

I had put my

I don’t have any kind of prepared

10

questions to Ms. Kelli Collins from SCA.

11

to begin with just to your – the last point that you

12

made to Kelli, Chairman Allen, regarding the

13

Department of Labor national fee schedule for DOL

14

cases on workers’ comp, and you asked if that

15

average – where that was versus what you would be

16

proposing in North Carolina.

17

rate is for the DOL, but I do have the – what it does

18

pay for, and I think that the main difference when you

19

look at the DOL fee schedule at the national level

20

versus what you are proposing is that it does not

21

cover implants.

22

schedule rule.

23

it says, what does the facility payment pay for?

24

it gives a list of items which mirror the ASC fee

25

schedule under Medicare, with a caveat that it gives

I would like

I don’t know what the

It is very specific in the fee
DOL’s website – you can go to it, and
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1

the same payments – what they don’t pay for, and then

2

they don’t pay for implants.

3

So I think the delta and the difference between a

4

hundred – I think he said a hundred and forty-seven

5

percent of Medicare versus what a two hundred percent

6

of ASC – you know, one of the things you can look at

7

is what an implant cost would be, and that can make a

8

very big difference in what the actual payment to the

9

facility when you add that implant, so I would say

That’s paid separately.

10

that that would be the biggest difference between

11

comparing the DOL schedule to what you are proposing.

12

It is apples to oranges, especially when you take into

13

consideration the implant costs.

14

to bring up is talking about what Stephanie had just

15

brought up about spine and certain procedures that

16

have been done.

17

record, their total joints, spine codes have been done

18

in North Carolina since 2011.

19

safe, and they are to be done in an outpatient setting

20

in ambulatory surgery centers, and commercial payers

21

have been doing so in this market since 2011,

22

especially North Carolina allows for stays in ASCs up

23

to twenty-three hours and fifty-nine minutes, which is

24

allowed under the Medicare rules under Section 416.2

25

for ASCs.

The second item just

I think it’s – to just correct the

These procedures are

So commercial payers, because they want to
GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD - SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103
336/768-1152

Full Commission Public Hearing, July 19, 2017

41

1

bring their – you know, their patients out of an

2

inpatient setting, into an outpatient setting, allowed

3

ASCs to do these procedures.

4

that has been done in these markets since ’11.

5

then just regarding – there was the discussion on

6

Medicare and implants, so I think what’s really

7

important to remember on the Medicare fee schedule,

8

you know, you have the inpatient fee schedule,

9

hospital outpatient – HOPD, as it’s referred to in the

So spine, total joint –
And

10

ASC.

11

they’ll take codes off of the inpatient schedule and

12

they’ll put them – you know, they’ll say, we’re moving

13

these codes to be done in an outpatient setting, and

14

they will either move them onto the HOPD schedule or

15

both the HOPD and ASC.

16

move those codes onto those schedules without any

17

value, without any payment in dollars.

18

spine codes right now that CMS, HHS has said, these

19

are, you know, safe to do in an outpatient setting,

20

but we’re not going to put any value on them.

21

then they may go in and reexamine them and put a

22

valuation to them, but they will put them on the

23

approved list.

24

Carolina, just looking at an ASC fee schedule, is

25

there are codes since – you know, that there are

Every year, CMS goes through the rulemaking, and

And quite often, they will

There are

And

And the risk you run in North
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1

procedures that have been being done since 2011 in

2

ASCs that are not on the ASC fee schedule, that may

3

not even be on the HOPD fee schedule, and are being

4

done safely in the ASC setting.

5

schedule, you are immediately limiting access to

6

injured workers to those facilities.

7

there will be no associated payment to those – to

8

those codes.

9

those codes, there’s only – if it’s not on the HOPD

By moving to that fee

And if – because

If you have no associated payment to

10

schedule and you’re only on an ASC, you are

11

immediately driving a cost to the system because that

12

they will move into that inpatient setting and the

13

rates are much, much higher because now while you’re

14

paying for the procedure, you are paying for days in

15

the hospital, and you are running the risk of all the

16

things that are associated with staying in the

17

hospital for an extended stay.

18

mentioned MRSA and all the other infections that can

19

come along with surgery.

20

that it’s not – you know, it’s not this easy, magical

21

thing just to take an ASC and put it on an ASC fee

22

schedule on Medicare.

23

address is the discussion on the WCRI.

24

lot of talk about the – you know, the thirty-three

25

state median average, you know, in North Carolina of

I think Ms. Gay

So that’s just one example

The last item I just want to
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1

where they want to come, where they’re not the low or

2

the high, but, you know, where do we want to sit in

3

this median average?

4

be beneficial because we talk about WCRI a lot for,

5

you know, your staff to pull up the WCRI reports that

6

are cited all the time and maybe pull out the section,

7

you know, of data methods and limitations of the

8

report and where WCRI specifically mentions that they

9

look at these thirty-three states.

Well, I think it probably would

And these are –

10

this is data from 2013.

11

from 2013.

12

states that they asterisk, you know, when you look at

13

the – you know, the median average charts, right, but

14

then you have to read the footnotes of what’s included

15

in here, and they have caveats of what states have

16

made changes to their fee schedules.

17

brought down.

18

Connecticut is an example.

19

hundred and ninety percent of HOPD.

20

states move their rates up.

21

important to me – those footnotes.

22

footnote in here are there are five or six states

23

where they say one of the largest payers in the

24

system - or the largest workers’ comp carrier payers

25

did not submit their data files.

Their most recent report is

That data says from 2013.

They have

Some have

They had, you know, just bill charges.
They moved to – ACSs to a
They had some

So that’s really
And the biggest

They could not put
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1

that data into the knee and shoulder.

2

actually said, this may lead to possible under and

3

overstatements in the results.

4

national averages and, you know, regression analysis

5

is all very important, it’s also important to know

6

what the caveats are to that data and the limitations,

7

and WCRI does disclose those limitations, but I think

8

it’s important for you all to be informed that there

9

are limitations on this.

And they

So while medians and

Just lastly on the averages,

10

you could set your fee schedule at the median or you

11

could go lower.

12

workers are going to be treated there, and so, you

13

know, by believing that you’re going to bring savings

14

to the system by having maybe a little bit lower than

15

these averages or a little - that doesn’t

16

necessarily – that may not actually end up within the

17

real world.

18

those facilities, where do you think those payments

19

are going to materialize because it’s not a static

20

market?

21

needs a spine procedure.

22

of site of service that that injured worker could go

23

to; there are three.

24

is not able to see that because that code is not on

25

their fee schedule or it’s being reimbursed at such

That doesn’t necessarily mean injured

If those cases are not being seen in

There is an injured worker who has a – who
There’s not just one place

And so if you have an ASC that
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1

level that it’s not in their – and that they can’t do

2

it, it’s not a viable procedure, there are two other

3

sites of service that that injured worker could go to

4

that are considerably higher in cost even if you take

5

an ASC fee schedule for here and discount it to HOPD.

6

It’s not a static marketplace.

7

site of service, that would be probably a correct

8

analysis, but you have three different sites of

9

service that can treat the same injured worker.

If you just had one

10

That’s the point.

11

things on the implant issue is Medicare.

12

were having the dialogue on if you have a Medicare

13

patient that has an ACL tear or a shoulder, and then

14

you have an injured worker.

15

of the Medicare fee schedule on the Medicare system is

16

to treat seniors – older citizens over the age of

17

sixty-five with a different standard.

18

duties under workers’ comp is to have injured workers

19

have the best care available to them to get them back

20

to work and get them back to work at the – at their

21

ability of which they were pre-injury because it costs

22

this system so much more if they’re on any kind of

23

disability and they are not returned, and so when you

24

look at doing a procedure like a shoulder, you may put

25

maybe – there may be an implant for someone who’s

And then just one of the last
When you

So the point – the goal
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1

seventy-five.

2

not, but if it is a forty-five-year-old construction

3

worker who needs that shoulder to work, there may be

4

additional implants that are put in to make sure he

5

or – he is able to recover faster and would gain the

6

mobility and the ability that he had prior to his

7

injury because that’s the goal, I mean, paying into

8

the workers’ comp system for the employers, and that’s

9

what the workers would expect if they are injured on

They may put in an implant, or they may

10

the job.

11

difference between a fee schedule that is based for

12

the citizens – you know, people over sixty-five, and

13

then, you know, for an able working population, so I

14

just wanted to add that clarification.

15

happy to answer any questions you might have.

16
17

So that’s a little bit of the caveat

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

MS. SMITH:

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

20

MS. SMITH:

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

22
23
24
25

Ms. Smith, you indicated you’re

with, I think, Liberty Partners.

18

So I’ll be

Did I---

Yeah.
---hear that correctly?

It’s a consulting firm.
It’s a consulting firm.

Is it a

lobbying firm?
MS. SMITH:

We do lobbying, and we do government

relations, advocacy--CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.
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MS. SMITH:

2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

47

---all types of consulting.

3

North Carolina?

4

MS. SMITH:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Are y’all registered here in

Not lobbying on behalf of SCA.
Okay.

All right.

Do you have

6

any data or anything to substantiate what you have

7

articulated before us today that you’re going to want

8

to present?

9

MS. SMITH:

Yeah, absolutely.

And thank you for

10

giving us that opportunity.

11

data with our final proposal on – in the August

12

submission.

13

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We’ll be providing our

And one of the things I think

14

Ms. Collins indicated that in terms of reimbursement

15

if we go back to the prior fee schedule would be along

16

the lines of seventy-five million dollars.

17

the analysis I’ve seen indicates that, you know, if we

18

were to adopt various, you know, ideas or proposals

19

that would be more in line with what SCA or the ASCs

20

are requesting, it would be tens of millions of

21

dollars, and, yet, it seems like you’re indicating

22

that there would be cost savings.

23

documentation you can provide that would show what

24

those cost savings are?

25

MS. SMITH:

A lot of

Is there any

I’m not – I think I understand your
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1

question, but just to clarify so that I know that I’m

2

answering it properly, so you stated that Kelli had

3

said sixty to seventy million dollars and that there

4

would be tens of – what are you referring to – on the

5

tens of millions of dollars?

6

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Tens of millions of dollars if we

7

were to adopt, for instance, a fee schedule that

8

reimbursed ASCs at the outpatient rate on parity with

9

the hospital outpatient rates.

10
11

MS. SMITH:

And that tens of millions – is that

that would be savings?

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

13

MS. SMITH:

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

15

MS. SMITH:

16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Costs, not savings.

I’m not sure--And yet, you indicated---

---where that cost is-----that there would be a savings.

17

I would be particularly interested in seeing what

18

documentation supports that savings so we can fairly

19

consider all that information.

20

MS. SMITH:

Sure.

I’m not – I can’t – I don’t

21

know if I can answer the question on the tens of – the

22

tens of millions savings [sic] because I don’t know

23

what’s being compared, but I can answer the questions

24

on savings.

25

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Right.
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49

So I can do that.

So let’s go

2

back to, you know, 2015 – well, 2015, and I think the

3

point that was made – that Kelli made in her testimony

4

on the Fiscal Note is really critical for you all to

5

consider.

6

analysis is all being based upon the invalid fee

7

schedule, which I think is two hundred and ten of ASC

8

this year - which is two hundred and ten percent of

9

ASC with no payment to implants.

The Fiscal Note and the subsequent NCCI

If the court case is

10

upheld and the appeal – if SCA wins the appeal -

11

upheld - and the stay is lifted, the fee schedule goes

12

back to the valid – you know, it is the valid fee

13

schedule, but now that will have to be paid at those

14

rates, right, so I think it was sixty-seven percent of

15

bill charges.

16

having with this is that any comparison to what SCA

17

has proposed as a discount to what the hospitals are -

18

so if the hospitals are at - you know, I think the

19

proposal is a – be a ten or twenty percent discount of

20

HOPD – off of the hospitals - that comparison is all

21

being done off of the invalid fee schedule of two

22

hundred and ten percent of ASC.

23

today and you did the Fiscal Note analysis tomorrow,

24

you would have – you would have to base it off the

25

valid fee schedule at sixty-seven percent of bill

So the major issue I think we all are

If the Court ruled
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1

charges.

2

ninety percent of HOPD for ASCs, you would still have

3

a thirty to forty percent savings off of that old fee

4

schedule because that old fee schedule – the cut from

5

the old fee schedule to where you are right now was

6

around sixty percent.

7

this ASC fee schedule, which we shouldn’t be.

8

up here, and if we go back to percent of charges, and

9

then we want to go to this discount of HOPD to make

If you went to, let’s say, a hundred and

And so when you’re – we’re at
We are

10

sure we are giving workers access to all the

11

procedures that are available to them, that’s still a

12

reduction.

13

used is improper.

14

with every proposal that SCA has put forward.

15

flaw has been with using the invalid fee schedule as

16

the measure towards the savings.

17

It’s just where the baseline that’s being
There’s a savings to the system

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

The

So if I understand your answer

18

correctly – and please correct if I’m wrong – if I

19

understand your position, you do not believe it’s

20

valid to compare for cost-saving purposes the proposed

21

rule versus the rule that was adopted in 2015.

22

want to compare it to the prior 2015 rule, correct?

23

MS. SMITH:

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

You

Say it one more time.
You do not believe it is valid to

compare the proposed rule to the rule that was enacted
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1

in 2015.

2

have a valid comparison to the percent of charges

3

rule.

4

You want to go a step back further and only

MS. SMITH:

That would be the most – that would be

5

the most accurate, right?

6

Correct.

7

is comparing to the invalid fee schedule, what – you

8

know, the 2015 implementation.

9

no real difference.

That’s the most accurate.

Right, because right now, the proposed rule

There’s no – there’s

There’s a little bit of a bump

10

because of how you treat some codes, so you get within

11

like a million dollars, so it’s kind of neutral, but

12

if you compared this proposed rule to the valid fee

13

schedule percent charges, it would show a tremendous –

14

you know, some would say savings; some would say cut.

15

So I think – I think that’s a critical factor.

16

think the goal of – I think even the providers’ goal,

17

you all’s goal, the carriers, the business community

18

is to provide savings into the system that breeds –

19

you know, that brings efficiencies, but at some point

20

those savings of what you are proposing actually mean

21

cuts, and that will then deter and push those patients

22

somewhere else.

23

we’ve provided these examples in our other

24

submissions – what you think of as savings actually

25

increases costs because if you have a worker who

I

So where you see a savings – and
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1

cannot have that procedure done in an ASC setting and

2

goes to an outpatient – or goes to a hospital, it can

3

be thirty, forty, fifty percent higher, so all the

4

savings that you think you’re bringing into the system

5

by putting in this fee schedule – you’re really just

6

cutting it for a provider group because you are then

7

increasing your costs in another group of the medical

8

spend.

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Have y’all had an opportunity, or

10

sought an opportunity, to talk to the Rate Bureau or

11

any other entity such as that to see what the impact

12

would be of any particular proposal that y’all have to

13

the rates in this state?

14

MS. SMITH:

15

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

No.

I don’t think that’s really--Because if we’re going to look at

16

costs and savings and use those terms interchangeably

17

or whatnot, it would be helpful to know what the

18

impact would be on rates because if it results in

19

ultimately costs going up, that money is going to come

20

from somewhere, isn’t it?

21

MS. SMITH:

Right.

And I understand.

This point

22

has been made, and this is what makes it difficult.

23

If the case is upheld – I think this is really

24

critical – the assumptions on whatever workers’ comp

25

rates would have been were made under the wrong
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We’re ready---

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Of course, the opposite is true

if the case is not upheld.

4

MS. SMITH:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

How is---?

I don’t understand.

Well, if the case is not upheld –

6

the first case – there are two cases – the first case,

7

if Judge Ridgeway’s Order is overturned, then the

8

prior rule would be for all intents and purposes

9

validated, saving except for the fact that this

10

Commission is undertaking new permanent rulemaking

11

here today.

12

MS. SMITH:

13

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Sure.
And, of course, this would

14

supersede that, and I think it would supersede it in a

15

way that’s actually beneficial to the ASC community.

16

I think that’s gotten kind of lost in translation, but

17

I think it would be a benefit to the ASC community.

18

So, ultimately, the issue is, what impact does any

19

proposal that’s offered by the ASC community have on

20

insurance rates in this state?

21

MS. SMITH:

I think you cannot answer that without

22

understanding that if the valid fee schedule – if

23

the – if the rates have to incorporate the valid fee

24

schedule, any proposal coming off the valid fee

25

schedule would be savings to the system.
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1

you can’t – if the Court – if the Court upholds the

2

Decision, you can’t ignore the Decision just because

3

it’s an inconvenience.

4

law says and what the court order is.

5

understand.

6

can’t ignore that---

7

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

8

MS. SMITH:

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10
11

MS. SMITH:
rates so---

MS. SMITH:

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

18

Ma’am, I can assure you---

Oh, I know you won’t-----on behalf of this

Commission--MS. SMITH:

---but I’m just saying that’s where I

think I’m a little confused.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

19

clear.

20

the courts.

21

I’m sorry.

---adjustments that need to be done in

13

17

And, ma’am, I can---

---because there may be some---

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

16

And I

I mean it’s – it could – it – but you

12

15

You have to abide by what the

Well, let me make this perfectly

We have no intention to ignore any Decision of

MS. SMITH:

Right.

I totally understand that, but

22

I would just think it also should be made clear that

23

SCA came to this Commission, came to Chairman Heath in

24

2015 – in December of 2015 with this issue and tried

25

to resolve this first through a declaratory ruling.
GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD - SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103
336/768-1152

Full Commission Public Hearing, July 19, 2017

55

1

Then Chairman Heath asked us to put a proposal

2

forward, which we did.

3

SCA has tried to bring this to this, you know,

4

attention years ago, and it’s just now, you know,

5

stacked up these costs, so I think there’s been

6

outreach on multiple occasions to try to work this

7

out, to resolve this without too much time going by

8

because if the appeal is upheld, there will be a lot

9

of money that is owed back to the carrier, to the

And then Chairman Heath left.

10

providers, and that is a disruptor on the system, and

11

SCA has tried to avoid that.

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

13

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

14

MS. SMITH:

15

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Any further questions?
I have one---

Sure.
---quick question.

You

16

mentioned that spine surgery has been done at ASCs

17

since 2011, correct?

18

MS. SMITH:

19

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

20

Yes, ma’am.

surgery – how are you reimbursed for that?

21

MS. SMITH:

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

23

MS. SMITH:

24
25

How is that spine

Well, I think--What fee schedule?

Well, yeah, I would all defer to Kelli

but - I mean, they’re commercial payers, right?
MS. COLLINS:

Yeah, our commercial payers
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reimburse for those procedures in our (inaudible).
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

MS. COLLINS:

5

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

6

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10

(Inaudible).

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

15

MS. SMITH:

That – I---

---seeking from the audience so

They don’t get to have a head shake.

So commercial payers, yes; workers’ comp---

17

MS. SMITH:

20

In just some work comp.

Commercial payers are reimbursing for

spinal procedures in some workers’ comp.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

MS. SMITH:

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

24
25

Some workers’ comp spine

surgeries are being done in ASCs, correct---

21

23

---is that correct?

it’s transcribed.

MS. COLLINS:

19

It would be very---

I’m sorry, Commissioner Cheatham.

Okay.

16

18

All right.

a bare minimum you repeat the answer you were--MS. SMITH:

14

---spine surgeries---

It would be very helpful for the court reporter if at

11

13

So you have no workers’

comp---

4

9

56

Correct.
---since 2011?

And how

are you being reimbursed for that?
MS. SMITH:

How are you being reimbursed if
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If it’s a workers’ comp

patient---

3

MS. SMITH:

4

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

---on the ASC fee schedule?
---and he comes into an

5

ASC and he has spine surgery, what reimbursement do

6

you get---

7

MS. COLLINS:

8

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9

MS. COLLINS:

10

I can’t-----of what fee schedule?

I can’t tell you that.

I can’t

share our contract rates.

11

MS. SMITH:

12

MS. GAY:

13

MS. SMITH:

Yeah.

I mean---

They’re negotiated rates.
Yeah, there are negotiated rates, so

14

the fee schedule is just the standard, but then a

15

carrier can – is it a carrier or a provider?

16

carrier.

17

MS. GAY:

18

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

19

MS. GAY:

20

MS. SMITH:

21

MS. GAY:

Oh,

A workers’ comp carrier or--Okay.

---employer (unintelligible)--Can – yeah.

---has the ability to negotiate any rate

22

of any provider for something that’s not

23

accountable---

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

MS. GAY:

All right.

---on the fee schedule.
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All right.

So that would be how it would be done –

how spine surgery could be done at an – at an ASC.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

All right.

Again,

5

for the purpose of maintaining a clean record, I

6

really need for everybody to speak into the microphone

7

and---

8

MS. SMITH:

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

You want to come up here, Stephanie?
If I understand Ms. Collins’

10

comment correct, she said that she could not share

11

that information because it’s a contract rate.

12

that correct?

13

MS. SMITH:

Right.

Is

So Stephanie Gay had repeated

14

that it can be a payer or someone – a business

15

provider – a business – someone in the business

16

community can go in and independently negotiate a

17

contract for that procedure to be done in an ASC

18

setting even though it’s not on the fee schedule.

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

20

MS. SMITH:

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

Is that right?
At this point in time, I am going

22

to say we’re going to take about a ten-minute recess.

23

We’ve been going well over an hour now.

24

you have any further comments you would like to make,

25

you’ll be more than welcome to do so when we get back
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1

from the recess.

2

more time.

3

this Commission, they may sign-up with Ms. Bourdon,

4

and we’ll add those names to the list, but we’ll

5

take---

6
7

And then I will open the door up one

If anyone wishes to make comments before

MS. SMITH:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

MS. SMITH:

11
12

Thank

you---

8

10

So thank you very much.

---about ten minutes.

---for your time.

I appreciate it.

Thank you.
(OFF THE RECORD)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

We’re back on the

13

record.

14

you approach the microphone again?

I think there may

15

be at least one follow-up question.

And I want to,

16

you know, make it clear, you know, with the – in terms

17

of the Fiscal Note, the baseline was not selected by

18

the Industrial Commission; the baseline was selected

19

by OSVM, and we have to go by what they suggest to us,

20

so I wanted to make that clear, but I also want to ask

21

you about this concern that there are, you know, codes

22

and procedures that ASCs are not being reimbursed for

23

because it is my belief with this proposed rule that’s

24

before us, particularly Subparagraph (2), which states

25

that there shall be - “A maximum […] rate of 135

Ms. Smith, if it’s all right with you, could
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1

percent shall apply to institutional services

2

performed at an ASC that are eligible for payment by

3

CMS if performed at an outpatient hospital facility,

4

but would not be eligible for payment by CMS if

5

performed at an ASC.”

6

codes.

7
8
9
10

We believe that captures those

Help me to understand how I am wrong.

MS. SMITH:

Captures the codes that are on the

HOPD schedule that are not on the ASC schedule?
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
MS. SMITH:

Right.

There are – that would be – yes, that

11

would be correct, but I think it’s – there are codes

12

that – I think we have to be really careful when you

13

look at these fee schedules, and it’s really getting –

14

I mean getting – I am, you know, getting under the

15

hood of the fee schedules, right.

16

is a good segue.

17

on – you had a very good question on spine procedures,

18

what were being done in workers’ comp.

19

level-one spine code that is on the ASC fee schedule

20

that is on the Medicare ASC fee schedule, and it has a

21

dollar amount associated with it.

22

in workers’ comp cases, and it is on the ASC fee

23

schedule.

24

the ASC fee schedule that is – that valuation is zero.

25

So what do you do for those level-twos that prior to,

So this is a – this

And just to add some clarification

So there’s a

That has been done

There is a level-two spine code that is on
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1

you know, going to a Medicare-based fee schedule, you

2

are at a percent of charge, that you could do a level

3

two, you were getting paid for that level-two?

4

you convert to a Medicare-based fee schedule with a

5

valuation of zero, so you - you know, zero percent is

6

zero, so you’re not getting paid for that code.

7

can do the level-one and the level-two, which is kind

8

of an add-on, you know, because you’ll do one, then

9

you don’t have that code, so that---

10

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

11

MS. SMITH:

12

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

13

Then

You

Can I---?

---was a clarification.
Can I you ask a

question---

14

MS. SMITH:

15

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Sure.
---for clarification?

I

16

thought that I heard that you were in fact doing them

17

off a negotiated rate---

18

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

19

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

20

MR. SMITH:

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

22

Right.

Uh-huh.

So--So it really doesn’t have

anything to do with the fee schedule.

23

MS. SMITH:

24

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

25

---with the carriers.

So I--It’s just whatever your

confidential negotiated rate might be.
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So I think on – there may be maybe on

2

a case-by-case basis, which, you know, I – and I don’t

3

know what the centers do.

4

think NCCI has the data.

5

think what Kelli was referring to is prior to the ’15

6

rule.

7

negotiated rates based on percent of charge that they

8

would negotiate on those rates, but if you go to an

9

ASC-based fee schedule, you’re not going to be able

And actually, you know, I
They could look at, but I

There may have – there may have been some

10

to – there’s no dollar associated with that code.

11

What are you going to---?

12

off of nothing if there’s no dollar amount associated

13

with that.

14
15

Well, you can’t negotiate

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Okay.

Then I must have

misunderstood the answer because---

16

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

17

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

are you reimbursed?

19

codes since 2011.

Uh-huh.
---my question was, what

You said you’ve been doing spine

20

MS. SMITH:

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Correct.
And so if you did a spine

22

code today, what would you be reimbursed?

23

thought I heard, no, that comes off the negotiated

24

rate.

25

MS. SMITH:

And then I

So there are multiple different spine
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1

codes, right – level-one, level-two.

2

a level-three – I believe three and four.

3

is on the ASC fee schedule.

4

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

5

MS. SMITH:

6

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

7

MS. SMITH:

8

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9

I’m sure there’s
Level-one

Right.

That was, but--But I think that---

---level-two was not.
But I think what you said

and what I wrote down anyway – I could be wrong – that

10

you were talking about spine codes without

11

reimbursement have been being done since 2011.

12

MS. SMITH:

13

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

14
15

Right.

But then--Would you have then

applied---?
MS. SMITH:

---when the fee schedule – the 2015

16

fee schedule is an ASC-based fee schedule.

17

codes were not on – those codes are no longer on the

18

fee schedule.

19

charge, and so---

Those

Prior to 2015, they were percent of

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

MS. SMITH:

Right.

---they were being – when the 2015 fee

22

schedule went into place, it was an ASC-based fee

23

schedule, and those codes do not have a dollar amount

24

on the ASC fee schedule, so there’s no corresponding

25
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COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

But you’re doing it and

you’re somehow getting paid and you’re getting paid--MS. SMITH:

Doing the – we’re doing the first

4

level, yes, because that is on the – but the first

5

level – but the second level is not on the fee

6

schedule.

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So I wrote down

8

incorrectly when I wrote down spine codes without

9

reimbursement, which to me means codes---

10

MS. SMITH:

11

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Right.
---reimbursed codes, since

12

2011.

13

fact only doing level-ones, which are on the ASC fee

14

schedule, and you were not doing level-twos?

15
16

So I wrote that down incorrectly.

MS. SMITH:

I can’t – I can’t speak to the volume

or what could be done.

17

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

19

MS. SMITH:

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

You are in

No, no.

But---

But I think--I’m asking you what is

being done.

22

MS. SMITH:

23

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

Well, what--Is there someone in the

24

audience that knows; that can speak to what they’re

25

doing?
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1

MS. SMITH:

2

MS. MURPHY:

3

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

5

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

6

Well, I--Yeah.

MS. SMITH:

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

12

That’s all right.

DEBBIE MURPHY
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And, ma’am, if you would, state

your name, whom you represent, if anyone, and--MS. MURPHY:

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

16

Could you please get to the

Yeah, yeah, come up here.

13

15

No.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

10
11

No.

mike?

7

9

Can you hear me?

Okay.
---I assume you’re here about the

ASC proposal.
MS. MURPHY:

Yes.

I’m Debbie Murphy.

I’m the

17

administrator at Greensboro Specialty Surgical Center

18

in Greensboro, and I’m an SCA employee.

19

one-level ACDFs Medicare and pretty much cover your

20

implant costs and have a very thin margin.

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So you can do

I’m going to tell you –

22

and I apologize for this, but you’re going to have

23

to---

24

MS. MURPHY:

25

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Speak up?
No.

You’re going to have
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to speak at a little less technical way for me.

2

MS. SMITH:

Spine.

3

MS. MURPHY:

Yes.

4

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

5

“spine.”

6

MS. SMITH:

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

8

MS. MURPHY:

9

Yeah, use the word

Spine.

Okay.

I got that.

So the issue now is if you

have a Medicare patient come into your facility and

10

they need a two-level spine procedure done, that

11

implant is going to cost more than your reimbursement,

12

so that patient is going to likely be moved to the

13

hospital because, like was mentioned earlier, we don’t

14

like to operate at a loss.

15

two-level spine procedure, ACDF, your margin is going

16

to be thin to none and more than likely based on which

17

vendor you’re using for the spine implant because

18

there’s multiple vendors as well.

19
20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So anything above a

And is that true even if

you are reimbursed at two hundred percent of Medicare?

21

MS. MURPHY:

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

That is true.
Is that true if you are

23

reimbursed at a hundred and thirty-five percent over

24

the HOPD rate?

25

MS. SMITH:

They do not reimburse for implants
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with workers’ comp.

2

procedures.

67

These are implant intensive

3

MS. MURPHY:

4

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

5

And that’s what the issue is.

MS. MURPHY:

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9
10

But today, you – if you

have a level-two spine procedure---

6

8

Yes.

Uh-huh.
---you are being

reimbursed and – you mean, you’re not?
VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:
MS. MURPHY:

No.

We’re being reimbursed for the

11

one-level procedure, not for that second level.

12

the time – when you do a spine procedure, you’re

13

putting in a plate system.

14

more levels you have, the more expensive the implant

15

is, so once you move from a one- to a two-level

16

implant, that implant is going to nearly double.

17

that happens, that puts that procedure out of the ASC

18

environment because you’re going to lose money on that

19

case.

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So by

The larger the plate, the

When

So you have not done

21

anything – any injured worker spine procedures above

22

level-one since 2011?

23

MS. MURPHY:

24

have done a few.

25

third-party vendor that use – if a doctor will use

That’s – most of that is true, but I
There is a vendor that’s a
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1

that vendor, you can perform that procedure and make a

2

slim margin.

3

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

4

MS. MURPHY:

5
6

Okay.

If they use their normal vendor, no,

I cannot do them.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

If we adopt the proposed rule

7

with the provision in it that has a maximum

8

reimbursement rate of one hundred and thirty-five

9

percent of the outpatient procedure Medicare rate,

10
11
12

would that then capture those level-two?
MS. MURPHY:

No, because it still doesn’t capture

the implant.

13

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

14

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

15

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

Oh.

Do you have---?
And how is---?

I’m sorry.

Do you have any

16

documentation that you can present to this Commission

17

before the end of the period that substantiates that?

18

MS. SMITH:

19

MS. MURPHY:

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

21

MS. MURPHY:

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

25

Yes.
Yes.
Please do so.

Okay.

Thank you.
So the---

Commissioner Cheatham.
Sorry.

hospital rate has no implants on it?
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1

what you’re telling me because I don’t understand your

2

answer to his question---

3

MS. MURPHY:

4

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

So there---

5

thirty-five percent?

6

MS. MURPHY:

7

Because I don’t (unintelligible).

I’ll just go out.

8

MS. SMITH:

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10

Yeah, I don’t know how--All right.

Thank you, ma’am.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

11

MS. SMITH:

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

13

MS. SMITH:

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

15
16

---about the hundred and

Yeah, I don’t know how – I mean--Let the record reflect---

---I don’t how-----Ms. Smith is now back in---

STACEY SMITH
MS. SMITH:

Yeah, I’m Ms. Stacey Smith.

I think

17

maybe we could add some – let us add some

18

clarification or some points that are in our proposal

19

to you about outpatient implants are treated.

20

implants, it is – there are – it is – there are – it’s

21

within the code, but as you see for workers’ comp for

22

the Department of Labor, they don’t include the

23

implant.

24

injured workers have a different need than what the –

25

a Medicare patient population is, but there is a whole

For ASC

That’s a separate charge because, again,
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1

section in the rule of Medicare payments of

2

device-intensive procedures, and so that is a

3

separate – there are separate add-on codes for

4

device-intensive procedures.

So, you know, it gets

5

into those kinds of details.

Again, it’s a Medicare

6

population; it’s not a workers’ comp.

7

understandable that Medicare is the most standard fee

8

schedule, maybe, you know, across the board, I think

9

even, you know, WCRI and NCCI have caveats that they

And while it’s

10

understand that there are limitations to using it

11

because of what the population that they are

12

addressing.

13

adjustments to it.

14
15
16
17
18

So I think you just have to make

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
All right.

Any further questions?

Thank you, Ms. Smith.

MS. SMITH:

Thank you.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

19
20

Okay.

Next is Bruce Clark.

BRUCE CLARKE
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And again, if you would, state

21

your name, tell whom you – tell us whom you represent,

22

if any particular organization, and I assume you are

23

here in respect to the proposed amendment to the ASC

24

fee schedule.

25

MR. CLARKE:

Yes.

And I thank you for asking all
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1

your tough questions already.

2

Clarke.

3

Industries here in Raleigh.

4

that list of organizations that Stephanie Gay read out

5

for you earlier that are already in the record.

6

won’t make you listen to that again.

7

Associated Industries and the Employers Coalition of

8

North Carolina, which I’m on the board of – we are

9

employer advocates.

My name is Bruce

I’m president of Capital Associated
I’m here representing

I

Capital

We are employers’ associations,

10

and we advocate for employers on a wide range of

11

workplace matters, including workers’ compensation.

12

And we’ve always believed - and we believe in this

13

process that led to rulemaking before the Commission -

14

that being a good employer means you’re also an

15

advocate of the injured worker.

16

you’re going to see them every day.

17

families.

18

You’re – you want them to get good healthcare.

19

want them to have an optimal outcome.

20

to return to productive work, and there’s a balance in

21

there of costs and that good outcome as well.

22

Industrial Commission, I believe, struck the right

23

balance and has struck the right balance all along in

24

this process.

25

in that mediation.

You’re going to –
You know their

You’re interested in their recovery.
You

You want them

The

Back at that mediation, I was – I was
The Commissioner – Chairman of the
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1

Commission was there.

2

room with us.

3

room.

4

mediator.

5

the state named Andy Little; runs a mediation teaching

6

organization, in fact, and we had a rigorous

7

stakeholder process there, and that was at the end of

8

a two and a half year, very open stakeholder

9

discussion process – very, very, very much known in

10

the legislative and government relations community.

11

We think you did the right thing there by taking the

12

result of that mediated settlement and analyzing it

13

and reviewing it and putting your own eyes on it and

14

doing your own verification of it and producing a fee

15

schedule from that.

16

for the doctors that were there.

17

doctors at that mediated conference, many specialists.

18

We think you did the right thing for facility-based

19

providers.

20

representatives, the Medical Society, as well as the

21

Hospital Association.

22

thing for employees and because I think this fee

23

schedule in its totality increased access to good

24

healthcare, particularly on the physician’s side where

25

there were some access issues.

Drew Heath was there in the

There were about two dozen of us in the

We were there for two days together.

We had a

It was one of the best known mediators in

We think you did the right thing
There were many

Many of them were there and their

We think you did the right

We think you got it
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1

right in the temporary rulemaking process.

2

you’re getting it right again in this permanent

3

rulemaking process and we urge you to stay the course

4

and adopt the final rule as you have proposed.

5

very important part of the balance that was reached

6

both among the stakeholders, as well as at the

7

Commission to this point, and that balance brings

8

access to good healthcare for workers and a degree of

9

affordability to the employers that are paying the

We think

It’s a

10

bill for that care.

11

surgical centers use legal technicalities to knock

12

down some good public policy here the first couple

13

times around, but we thank you for going through this

14

again, knowing this time you will prevail.

15

you for your hard work, and I’m happy to answer a

16

question if I can.

17

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Unfortunately, the ambulatory

All right.

And thank

Sir, do you know if

18

any of your entities that you represent here today

19

have reviewed the ASC proposal and what potential

20

impact it would have on workers’ compensation?

21

MR. CLARKE:

22

of the proposal.

23

research, but, yes, I have looked at them, and there’s

24

a significant cost gap there.

25

the ASCs, through SCA, have requested and have

I have – I have reviewed the reviews
I didn’t author them or do original

If we – if we do what
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1

suggested, it is a significant fiscal impact on

2

employers and on payers.

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

4
5

Okay.

much that impact would be?
MR. CLARKE:

We have submitted that, I believe, to

6

the Commission.

7

again in another submission.

8

with me.

9

Do you have any idea how

We’ll be happy to highlight that

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

I don’t have that handy

And if you do submit

10

anything additional, I would ask that any data, you

11

know, background information, documentation that

12

supports that analysis be submitted as well.

13
14

MR. CLARKE:

Happy to do so by the deadline

stated.

15

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

16

MR. CLARKE:

17
18

Thank you, sir.

Thank you.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

19
20

Okay.

Next, Mr. Ronnie Cook.

RONNIE COOK
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Mr. Cook, if you would, state

21

your name, tell us whom you represent, if any

22

particular organization, and I assume you’re here in

23

regards to the proposed amendment to the ASC fee

24

schedule rules.

25

MR. COOK:

Yes, sir, that is correct.
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1

Chairman Allen, and members of the Industrial

2

Commission for this opportunity to comment and also

3

for all your good work.

4

represent the North Carolina Hospital Association and

5

all its member hospitals and health systems, as well

6

as their affiliated providers and employed physicians.

7

And it’s important to note that hospitals do own and

8

operate freestanding ambulatory surgery centers in the

9

state, and, therefore, we would be subject – our

My name is Ronnie Cook, and I

10

members – some of our members would be subject under

11

this proposed rule and proposed amendment.

12

Carolina Hospital Association supports the proposed

13

amendment as stated.

14

result of a lot of hard work, a lot of compromise.

It

15

maintains incorporate and reimbursement integrity.

It

16

provides much needed predictability for the Industrial

17

Commission.

18

result in savings for employers, payers, as well as

19

insured workers.

20

comments, mainly just to offer our support.

21

talked at the October meeting, shared a lot of

22

information there, and I refer you back to those

23

comments.

24

comments, but there were a number of statements today

25

that we feel like we needed to at least address or at

The North

The proposed amendment is a

It is fair and balanced, and it will

That was really my prepared
I mean we

You know, we’d also provided written
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1

least provide our comments on.

2

access to care – that the proposed amendment could, or

3

probably would, result in limited access to ambulatory

4

surgery centers.

5

understanding that.

6

schedule.

7

that allows the ambulatory surgery centers to not only

8

perform the surgeries that are on the Medicare fee

9

schedule, but there is a significant compromise that

One had to do with

For the life of me, I have trouble
Obviously, there’s a fee

There is a compromise in that fee schedule

10

positively impacts the freestanding ambulatory surgery

11

center by allowing them to perform any procedure

12

that’s on the outpatient fee schedule.

13

that, there is a concept that says if it’s not on the

14

fee schedule that you pay - or you can have an

15

individual case-by-case consideration under a

16

reasonable customary and reasonable type amount.

17

it looks like any possible procedure - a worker would

18

have access to any of the providers under those types

19

of arrangements.

20

about the fee schedule not being enough – or not being

21

high enough or maybe not covering costs, and,

22

therefore, they could refer to a hospital.

23

can tell you that it would be unique and you probably

24

wouldn’t be real happy with me if I told you now that

25

we also can be in situations where two hundred percent

In addition to

So

Now there was a lot of discussion
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1

of Medicare may not cover our costs.

2

we refer to if that was the case?

3

get care if they did not get care in a hospital?

4

Where would they get it?

5

access to care – I can’t fathom that it’s not.

6

may be that there’s a business decision that you

7

decide not to perform that service in your particular

8

facility, but the injured and the employer and the

9

payer has access to care.

And where would

Where would they

So that’s not an option.

So

Now it

There is access to care.

10

We also talked about implants and the cost of

11

implants.

12

and under a lot of fee schedules these days under

13

reimbursement, those implants are rolled up.

14

packaged into the bigger price that people pay, into

15

the fee schedule that they pay, so hospitals have the

16

same implant problem that a particular surgery center

17

might have, so we could also have implants that cost

18

more than the reimbursement.

19

would we do the surgery if we did not do it there?

20

that’s another – you know, that’s an – I mean implants

21

are designed.

22

You know, the question is in the whole scheme of

23

things, do you do well under two hundred percent of

24

Medicare?

25

Obviously, under the Medicare fee schedule

They are

And there again, where
So

They’re there as an averaging concept.

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

Is that because multiple
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1

implants take longer?

2

causes the multiple implants to be more expensive for

3

the center or for the hospital?

4
5
6
7
8
9

MR. COOK:

Is it a time issue?

What

Well, I’m not sure if it’s – well – I

mean what – the implants are expensive.
COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

The product itself, but

you’re talking about the facility costs, right?
MR. COOK:

Correct.

But that’s bundled into the

fee schedule for the facility.

When you pay us our

10

fee schedule – two hundred percent of the rate on

11

Medicare – that implant, or whatever implants are

12

used, are in that cost.

13

carved out.

14

It’s not reimbursed separately.

15

bundled price.

We don’t get – it’s not

It’s not excluded.

16

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

17

MR. COOK:

18
19

It’s not carved out.
It’s part of the

All right.

Well, then---

And so we could have the same problem

that was described by the surgery centers.
COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

But when it’s bundled,

20

then – and excuse my ignorance – then how do you

21

decide how much goes to pay for the device, how much

22

goes to the doctor, how much goes to the – to the

23

facility?

24

MR. COOK:

25

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

It’s all facility.
It’s all facility?
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79

It’s all facility.

3

paying the doctor?

4

MR. COOK:

So you’re – but you’re not

We could, but the doctor gets paid

5

under a separate fee schedule.

6

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

Right.

So you’re – so you

7

got a bundled price for the device and for the

8

facility?

9

MR. COOK:

Yeah.

The technical fee – or the

10

facility fee is going to cover the hospital, the

11

plant, the utilities, the staff, all the equipment,

12

the implants, all the supplies used, the OR time, all

13

the equipment in the OR, all the – anything that’s

14

related to the hospital---

15

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

16

MR. COOK:

I see.

---it’s going to cover that.

And then

17

the doctor’s professional time and whatever we may pay

18

him if we employ him---

19

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

20

MR. COOK:

Right.

---then that cost is offset by them

21

billing under a fee schedule that would be paid under

22

the physician fee schedule.

23
24
25

COMMISSIONER BADDOUR:

All right.

All right.

Thank you.
MR. COOK:

So there’s a – there’s a – there’s
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1

two – there’s two fees that would come from that.

2

then the anesthesiologist may bill also under their

3

fee schedule, so there’s different mechanisms to get

4

paid.

5

there’s access to care.

6

little bit about the fact that the proposed fee

7

schedule or reimbursement rate possibly wasn’t high

8

enough and there was alternative amounts offered,

9

which was to maintain the current percent of charge,

And

So I do not – you know, I do believe that
Another – we’ve talked a

10

which wouldn’t provide any predictability for the

11

Industrial Commission, or, second, to pay up to the

12

Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System, and

13

one of the things I find interesting is that how the

14

surgery centers can ask the Industrial Commission to

15

pay equal to or greater than the hospital fee schedule

16

when in fact they have not been able to achieve that

17

with any other payer that they deal with.

18

with managed care payers.

19

They deal with Aetna and Cigna and United and MedCost.

20

They deal with Medicaid.

21

They deal with other payers, and I can’t – and I would

22

be surprised if they could provide you evidence to

23

show you that they have contracts and reimbursement

24

schedules that are consistently equal to what a

25

hospital is paid.

They deal

They deal with BlueCross.

They deal with Medicare.

And the reason for that is the same
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1

concept of the hierarchy of care that we identified

2

earlier, is that you have physicians and they get paid

3

a lower rate because they don’t always have the

4

overhead.

5

and they get paid a higher rate.

6

They have bricks and mortar and equipment and staff

7

and specialized staff, and they perform a great

8

function.

9

do what they do very well, but they also don’t keep

Then you go to ambulatory surgery centers,

They really do.

They’re a facility.

They’re convenient.

They

10

people beyond twenty-four hours.

11

bad – if there’s a surgery that goes south, where do

12

they go?

13

don’t serve everybody.

14

Hospitals have a lot of different rules, safety rules,

15

other regulations, other requirements.

16

twenty-four/seven.

17

reimbursement is different.

18

are more because we have things to deal with that they

19

don’t, but our costs are more, and that’s why we get

20

reimbursed more, and that’s why there’s a difference

21

in the fee schedules.

22

think that there is significant integrity in the

23

reimbursement between the providers, and we think that

24

there’s a significant compromise that positively

25

impacts the ability of ASCs to perform pretty much any

And if somebody goes

They’re not open twenty-four/seven.

They

They go to the hospital.

We’re open

There’s a reason that the
Unfortunately, our costs

So, in conclusion, we still
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1

and all services, all procedures, and we support –

2

again, we support wholeheartedly the proposed

3

amendment.

4

have.

And I’m open for any questions you might

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

6

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Commissioner Cheatham.
I have one quick question.

7

You mentioned at the opening – at the beginning of

8

your – of your remarks that you represent hospitals

9

which own ASCs in some cases who would be subject to

10

the proposed rule.

11

MR. COOK:

12

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Yes, ma’am.
You may have told us this

13

already, but, as I sit here, I can’t remember.

14

Roughly, how many ASCs are linked to that category?

15

MR. COOK:

16

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

17
18
19

That are freestanding?

into that description.
MR. COOK:
handful.

There’s probably a handful.

There’s a

There’s not – there’s not – I don’t---

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

MR. COOK:

22

Uh-huh – that would fall

Ten - five?

---know the exact number.

It’s

probably less than five.

23

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

MR. COOK:

Thank you.

Any further questions?

But even at – you know, when you’re –
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1

when you’re an Association and you represent all

2

members, even if there’s only one.

3

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

5

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

I do.

Vice--So the question that was

6

posed earlier:

7

member that is a freestanding ACS [sic] handle the

8

level-two, the level-three and level-four?

9

then in turn refer them to a – to a hospital, or would

10
11

How would you handle – how would your

Would they

they provide that level to three or four service?
MR. COOK:

How would they do that?

They’re owned

12

by the hospital.

13

particular I can think of is in close proximity.

14

not sure.

15

fee schedule, they could attempt to negotiate the UCR

16

amount---

The hospital is – the one in
I’m

I mean they – obviously, if it’s not on the

17

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

18

MR. COOK:

Uh-huh.

Uh-huh.

---and probably would if they think –

19

they think that that’s the most appropriate place to

20

do the service---

21

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

22

MR. COOK:

Okay.

---or they may refer it to the hospital

23

if they think that they don’t have the ability to do

24

that.

25

VICE-CHAIRMAN STITH:

Okay.

Thank you.
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You know, we talk a lot about – you

2

know, we’ve talked a lot about the positive attributes

3

of surgery centers, and there’s many.

4

of them.

5

of positive attributes, and we talk about all the

6

different surgeries that they can do there, but, you

7

know, there’s a reason we don’t do all surgeries in

8

certain settings.

9

that, you know, and I think we need to be aware of

There’s a ton

I’m a big supporter of them.

There’s a ton

You know, there’s a reason for

10

that, but there’s a reason that you do a surgery in an

11

inpatient setting versus an outpatient hospital

12

department versus a surgery center versus a

13

physician’s office.

14

and we need to be cognizant of that whether you’re

15

forty-five or sixty-five.

16

I mean you could – I mean you could take their

17

position – the ambulatory surgery position and extend

18

it to physicians because there are physicians doing

19

things in their office that potentially could be done

20

in a surgery center and/or hospital.

21

could be sitting in these seats, arguing the same

22

thing.

23

we accept all the merits of those arguments.

24
25

And the other argument is –

They very well

They very well could, if the argument has – if

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
right.

There’s reasons for those things,

Any further questions?

Great.
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3
4
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Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Cook.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Ms. Bourdon, did anyone else

5

sign-up to speak?

6

a summary of their remarks that they would like to

7

enter into the record, please, before leaving today,

8

present those to the court report, Ms. Dollar, who is

9

to my right with the notebook computer in front of

Okay.

If any of the speakers have

10

her, and those will be entered into the record next in

11

number in sequential order of each speaker’s remarks

12

today.

13

submissions that any of the stakeholders or interested

14

parties wish to make.

15

the public hearing.

16

and other submissions will be held open through the

17

close of business on August 14, 2017, so if you have

18

any further comments or submissions, please send those

19

to Ms. Bourdon as directed in the hearing notice in

20

the North Carolina Register and also on the

21

Commission’s website.

22

submissions and the comments made at the hearing today

23

will be made part of the public record of these

24

proceedings.

25

transcript, with this proceeding, the materials

And the record will remain open for any

Thank you for participating in

That period for written comments

The written comments and

We would like to include in the
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1

submitted by Ms. Bourdon as exhibits.

2

further matters to come before the public hearing?

3

Okay.

4

record.

5

Very well.

Thank you.

Are there any

We’ll go off the

(WHEREUPON, THE HEARING WAS ADJOURNED.)

6

RECORDED BY MACHINE

7

TRANSCRIBED BY:

8

Associates

Lisa D. Dollar, Graham Erlacher and

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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PROPOSED RULES
Note from the Codijier: The notices published in this Section of the NC Register include the text ofproposed rules. The agency
must accept comments on the proposed rule(s) for at least 60 days from the publication date, or until the public hearing, or a later
date if specified in the notice by the agency. If the agency adopts a rule that differs substantially Ji'om a prior published notice,
the agency must publish the text of the proposed different rule and accept comment on the proposed different rule for 60 days.
Statu/my reference: G.S. 150B-21.2.

TITLE 04- DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Notice is hereby given in accordance with G.S. 150B-21.2 that the
NC Industrial Commission intends to amend the rule cited as 04
NCAC JOJ.OJ03.

Link to agency website pursuant to G.S. 150B-19.1(c):
http://www. ic. nc.gov!proposedl OJO 103Notice-61517.pdf
Proposed Effective Date: October 1, 2017
Public Hearing:
Date: July 19, 2017
Time: 2:30p.m.
Location: 2149. 2"d Floor, Dobbs Building, 430 North Salisbwy
Street, Raleigh, NC 27603
Reason for Proposed Action: The Industrial Commission
proposes to amend the provisions ofRule 04 NCAC JOJ.0103 for
several reasons. The proposed amendment to Paragraph (a) is a
clarification regarding the qualifications for reimbursement
under Paragraphs (c), (d), and(/). Next, there are two primary
reasons for the proposed amendments to the provisions related to
fees for ambulaiOI)' surgical centers, Paragraphs (g) and (h).
First, this rule has been the subject of litigation that is ongoing at
the time offiling. The provisions of the rule as adopted on April
1, 2015, that relate to fees for ambulatory surgical centers,
specifically Paragraphs (g) and (h) and the reference to (h) in
Paragraph (i) were held to be invalid by Wake County Superior
Court Judge Paul Ridgeway in an August 9, 2016 Decision. The
decision was predicated on the court's beliefthat those provisions
of the rule were not adopted in compliance with the
Administrative Procedure Act because no fiscal note was
prepared The Industrial Commission has appealed that ruling,
and the matter is pending before the North Carolina Court of
Appeals. The August 9, 2016 Decision was stayed by Judge
While the
Ridgeway by Order dated September 2, 2016.
Industrial Commission maintains its position that it was not
required to complete a fiscal note to adopt and/or amend the
challenged provisions, the Industrial Commission has now
completed a fiscal note and seeks to amend the ambulatmy
surgical centers fee provisions of Rule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103.
Pending the outcome of the litigation, the amendments are sought
to restore certainty and balance to the fee schedule for
stakeholders, including payers and medical providers, as to future
medical expenses. Moreover, the Industrial Commission is
statutorily obligated to periodically review the schedule of
maximum fees charged for medical treatment in workers'
compensation cases and make revisions if necessmy. The
proposed amendments to Rule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103 incorporate
feedback from various stakeholders that the addition of a
provision setting maximum fees for ambulatmy surgical centers

for additional procedures covered by the Medicare Outpatient
Prospective Payment System, would be beneficial to payers,
providers, and injured workers.
The fee schedule reimbursement rate for services provided by
ambulatmy surgical centers covered by the Jvfedicare Ambulatmy
Surgical Center Payment System will be 200%, in keeping with
the rate for 2017 and beyond in the rule as adopted on April 1,
2015. The fee schedule reimbursement rate for additional
procedures provided by ambulat01y surgical centers that are
covered by the Afedicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective
Payment System will be 135%. The rates were calculated to fall
in the estimated median range of workers' compensation fee
schedules nationally, as well as within the range of workers'
compensation fee schedules in states that base payment to
ambulatOJy surgical centers on a percentage of the Medicare
Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System and/or the
Medicare Ambulatmy Surgical Center Payment Systems. The
following studies and data sources were reviewed:
(1) NORTH CAROLINA WORKERS COMPENSATION
INSURANCE: A WHITE PAPER REVIEWING MEDICAL
COSTS AND MEDICAL FEE REGULATIONS, Prepared for the
National Foundation for Unemployment Compensation and
Workers' Compensation; prepared by PhilipS Borba, Ph.D. and
Robert K. Briscoe, WCP, Milliman, Inc.; May 23, 2013.
(2) CompScope TM Medical Benchmarks, 15th Edition, for North
Carolina, published by the Workers' Compensation Research
Institute, August 2014.
(3) North Carolina Hospital Association/Opium Group Health
survey data. June 2013 and July 2014.
(4) Review of states' fee schedule structures, nationally and
regionally.
(5) CompScopeTM Medical Benchmarks for North Carolina, 16th
Edition, published by the Workers' Compensation Research
Institute, October 2015.
(6) CompScopeTM Medical Benchmarks for North Carolina, 17th
Edition, published by the Workers' Compensation Research
Institute, October 2016.
(7) Payments to Ambulatory Surge1y Centers, 2nd Edition,
published by the Workers' Compensation Research Institute, May
2016.
(8) Review of medical fee schedules of states that base
reimbursement to ambulatmy surgical centers on the Afedicare
Ambulatory Surgical Center Payment System.
(9) Analysis of Alternatives to the North Cora/ina Ambulatory
Surgical Center Fee Schedule Proposed to Be Effective October
1, 2017, prepared by the National Council on Compensation
Insurance, May 2, 2017.
(10) Analysis of Alternatives to the North Carolina Ambulatmy
Surgical Center Fee Schedule Proposed to Be Effective Janumy
1, 2017, prepared by the National Council on Compensation
Insurance, September 19, 2016.
lll
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(1 I) Analysis ofProposed Changes to the North Carolina Medical
Schedule, prepared by the National Council on
Compensation Insurance, December 4, 2014.

Fee

Comments may be submitted to: Kendall M Bourdon, 4340
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 26799-4340; phone (919) 8072644; email kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov
Comment period ends: August 14, 2017

Procedure for Subjecting a Proposed Rule to Legislative
Review: If an objection is not resolved prior to the adoption of the
rule, a person may also submit written objections to the Rules
Review Commission after the adoption of the Rule. If the Rules
Review Commission receives written and signed objections after
the adoption of the Rule in accordance with G.S. 150B-21.3(b2)
from 10 or more persons clearly requesting review by the
legislature and the Rules Review Commission approves the rule,
the rule will become effective as provided in G.S. 150B-21.3(bl).
The Commission will receive written objections until 5:00 p.m.
on the day following the day the Commission approves the rule.
The Commission will receive those objections by mail, delivery
service, hand delivery, or facsimile transmission. If you have any
further questions concerning the submission of objections to the
Commission, please call a Commission staff attorney at 919-4313000.

Fiscal impact (check all that apply).
State funds affected
Environmental permitting of DOT affected
D
Analysis submitted to Board of Transportation
Local funds affected
Substantial economic impact (2:$1,000,000)
Approved by OSBM
No fiscal note required by G.S. 1508-21.4

[gj

CHAPTER 10- INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
SUBCHAPTER IOJ- FEES FOR MEDICAL
COMPENSATION
SECTION .0100- FEES FOR MEDICAL
COMPENSATION
04 NCAC IOJ .0103
FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL
SERVICES
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable
amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services shall be
based on the current federal fiscal year's facility-specific
Medicare rate established for each institutional facility by the
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services C'CMS 11 ). 11 Facilityspecific" rate means the all-inclusive amount eligible for payment
by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments. An
institutional facility may only be reimbursed for hospital
outpatient institutional services pursuant to this Paragraph and
Paragraphs (c). (d). and CD of this Rule if it qualifies for payment
by CMS as an outpatient hospital.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital
inpatient institutional services is as follows:

31:24

(I)

Beginning April I, 2015, 190 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 180 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 160 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital
outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015, 220 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016,210 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 200 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule,
maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided
by critical access hospitals ("CAH"), as certified by CMS, are
based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates and outpatient
claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient
institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015, 200 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 190 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 170 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(t) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient
institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(!)
Beginning April I, 2015, 230 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 220 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017,210 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Rule, the
maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided
by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the

Me8ieare ASC reiFABHrseFAent ameHnt 8etermine8 By applying
the mest reeently aaeptea ana effeeth•e Meaieare Ptlc)•ment

System Pelieies fer Serviees FurnisheS in Amlmlatery Surgieal
Centers anB 0Htpatient PrespeetiYe most recently adopted and
effective Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and
Ambulatory Surgical Center Payment System Systems
reimbursement formula and fa.eters. factors. including all Hospital
Outpatient Prospective Payment and Ambulatory Surgical Center
Payment Systems Addenda, as published annually in the Federal
Register
and
on
the
CMS
website
at
https://www.crns.gov/Medicare/Medicare-Fee-for-ServicePayment/HospitalOutpatientPPS/index.html ("the Meaieare A8C
faeility speeilie ameHHt"). ("the OPPS/ASC Medicare rule"). An
ASC's specific Medicare wage index value as set out in the
OPPS/ASC Medicare rule shall be applied in the calculation of
the maximum allowable amount for any institutional service it
provides. ReimbHrsement shall be based en the f•lly implementee

flayFAent ameunt iH: Ae18eH:8HIH AA, FiHal ASC Cevered SHrgieal
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PreeeEl.ures fur CY 2Ql5, aHEl Aelelenelum BB, Final ASC CevereEI
AHeillary Serviees IAtegral te Ce'vere8 SHFgieal Preeeelures fer
2Ql5, as J3HI3lisheEI in the Federal Register, er their sHeeessers.
(h)
The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for
institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical centers is
as follows:
Beginning A~ril I, 2915, 229 ~ereent ef tile
8-1
Meelieare ASC faeility speeifie ameunt.
Beginning Jan"ary I, 2916,219 ~ereent eftile
~4edieare ASC faeility speeifie ameunt.
Beginning Jan""'l' I, 2917, 209 ~ereent eftile
~4e6ieare ASC faeility Sfleeifie ameHHt.
A
maximum reimbursement rate of200 percent
ill
shall apply to institutional services that are
eligible for payment by CMS when performed
at an ASC.
ill
A maximum reimbursement rate of 135 percent
shall apply to institutional services performed
at an ASC that are eligible for payment by CMS
if performed at an outpatient hospital facility.
but would not be eligible for payment by CMS
if performed at an ASC.
(i) If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier
payment, the sum of the facility-specific reimbursement amount
and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by
the applicable percentages set out in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e),(!),
and (h) ofthis Rule.
0) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional
facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee schedules in
Rule .0102 of this Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable
amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG") payment
pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or
managed care organization shall pay no more than the billed
charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and
outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment shall be
determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those
specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient institutional acute
care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
Authority G.S. 97-25, 97-26; 97-SO(a}; S.L. 2013-4IO.

TITLE lOA- DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES

Notice is hereby given in accordance with G.S. I50B-2I.2 and
G.S. I50B-2I.3A(c)(2)g. that the Medical Care Commission
intends to readopt with substantive changes the rules cited as 1OA
NCAC 13J .090I, .1004, .I007, .1107, .1110, .I202, .I402, and
.I502.

Public Hearing:
Date: August 9, 20I7
Time: IO:OO a.m.
Location: Dorothea Dix Park, Brown Building, Room 104, 801
Biggs Drive, Raleigh, NC 27603
Reason for Proposed Action: Pursuant to G.S. I50B-2I.3A,
Periodic Review and Expiration of Existing Rules, all rules are
reviewed at least eve1y 10 years or they shall expire. As a result
of the periodic review of Subchapter I OA NCA C I3J, The
Licensing ofHome Care Agencies, eight rules were determined as
"Necessary With Substantive Public interest," thus necessitating
readopotion. With input from stakeholders, substantial changes
have been proposed to these rules to provide clarity and remove
ambiguity, address objections from the Rules Review Commission
identified in the history notes for jive of the rules, and make
technical changes and formatting changes.
The proposed
changes also include updates to the definitions to refer to North
Carolina General Statutes definitions.
Comments may be submitted to: Nadine Pfeiffer, 270I Mail
NC
27699-270I;
email
Service
Center,
Raleigh,
DHSR.RulesCoordinator@dhhs.nc.gov
Comment period ends: August I4, 2017
Procedure for Subjecting a Proposed Rule to Legislative
Review: If an objection is not resolved prior to the adoption of the
rule, a person may also submit written objections to the Rules
Review Commission after the adoption of the Rule. If the Rules
Review Commission receives written and signed objections after
the adoption of the Rule in accordance with G.S. 150B-21.3(b2)
from 10 or more persons clearly requesting review by the
legislature and the Rules Review Commission approves the rule,
the rule will become effective as provided in G.S. 150B-21.3(bl).
The Commission will receive written objections until 5:00 p.m.
on the day following the day the Commission approves the rule.
The Commission will receive those objections by mail, delivery
service, hand delivery, or facsimile transmission. If you have any
further questions concerning the submission of objections to the
Commission, please call a Commission staff attorney at 919-4313000.
Fiscal impact (check all that apply).
D
State funds affected
Environmental permitting of DOT affected
D
Analysis submitted to Board of Transportation
Local funds affected
D
Substantial economic impact (~$1,000,000)
D
[8J
Approved by OSBM
No fiscal note required by G.S. ISOB-21.4
D
[8J
No fiscal note required by G.S. 150B-21.3A(d)(2)

Link to agency website pursuant to G.S. 150B-19.1(c):
http://www2.ncdhhs.gov/dhsrlruleactions.html
Proposed Effective Date: January I, 20I8

CHAPTER 13- NC MEDICAL CARE COMMISSION
SUBCHAPTER 13J- THE LICENSING OF HOME CARE
AGENCIES
SECTION .0900- GENERAL
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Fiscal Note
Proposed Permanent Rule Amending Fees for Medical Compensation

Basic Information
Agency:

North Carolina Industrial Commission

Agency Contact:

Kendall Bourdon, Rulemaking Coordinator
North Carolina Industrial Commission
4340 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, N.C. 27699-4340
(919) 807-2644
Kendall.Bourdon@ic.nc.gov

Rules Proposed for Amendment:

Rule 04 NCAC IOJ .0103
Fees for Institutional Services
(See proposed rule text in Appendix I)

Statutory Authority:

G.S. §§ 97-25; 97-26; 97-80(a); S.L. 2013-410

Impact Summary
State Government:
Local Government:
Private Sector:
Substantial Economic Impact:

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Description of the Proposed Rule
04 NCAC IOJ .0103 provides a schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for institutional
medical providers participating in the workers' compensation system This rulemaking amends
the rule with respect to the maximum reimbursement rates for ambulatory surgery centers
("ASCs'). The rule sets reimbursement rates at a percentage of the amount the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS') would pay for services. CMS regularly updates and
publishes its fee schedule. The rule, as amended, will provide a maximum reimbursement rate of
200% for institutional services that are eligible for payment by CMS when performed at an ASC.
Additionally, for institutional services performed at an ASC that are eligible for payment by CMS
if performed at an outpatient hospital facility, but are not eligible for payment byCMS if performed
at an ASC, the amended rule sets a maximum reimbursement rate of 135%.
Necessity for the Proposed Rule
The North Carolina Industrial Commission ("the Commission") was directed by Session Law
2013-410to revise its medical fee schedule. Session Law 2013-410 instructed the Commission to
base these revisions on the applicable CMS payment methodologies. Session Law 2013-410
1

~

~

~1U/.

EXHIBIT

)de:-2

5

specifically granted the Commission authority for an expedited mlemaking process. This
exempted the Commission from the North Carolina Administrative Procedure Act's ("the APA")
fiscal note requirement, asset forth in N.C.Gen. Stat.§ 150B-21.4, in developing the fee schedule.
Subsequently, the permanent mle, effective April I, 2015, was challenged on the alleged basis that
the rule was not adopted in conformance with the permanent mlemaking requirements of the APA.
Specifically, the litigation hinges on the lack of a fiscal note and whether the General Assembly's
fiscal note exemption in Session Law 2013-410 applies to fee provisions for services performed at
ASCs. This litigation is currently pending on appeal to the N.C. Court of Appeals.
The Commission is statutorily mandated to adopt by rule a schedule of maximum fees for medical
compensation provided in workers' compensation claims. The fee schedule must be adequate to
ensure (I) the proper standard of care for injured workers, (2) reasonable reimbursement to
providers, and (3) cost containment for payers. See N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26. Due to the pending
litigation, there is uncertainty for payers and providers regarding both past and prospective medical
costs and the potential for imbalance among the three factors underpinning the fee schedule. This
amended mle will provide certainty for all industry stakeholders, including employers, msurers,
and medical providers, regarding medical costs prospectively.
It will also provide balance in the fue schedule by basing reimbursement to ASCs on the CMS fee
schedule, similar to other institutions covered by the mle, at percentage rates that reflect the goals
laid out in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26. If the Commission is unable to adopt this mle, one category
of institutional medical providers-ASCs-would potentially receive reimbursement based on an
old percentage-of-charges method, leading to increased medical costs and/or the routing of
surgeries away from ASCs, and preventing the Commission from fulfilling its statutory obligation
to keep medical costs balanced and affordable.

Adopting this amended mle will ensure that the Commission remains in compliance with the
General Assembly's direction to create Medicare-based compensation systems, while also
addressing feedback from the medical provider community regarding certain procedures not
covered by the current rule.
Introduction and Background:

The North Carolina Industrial Commission is a statutory creation of the General Assembly tasked
with administering the Workers' Compensation Act ("the Act'') and adjudicating all cases arising
thereunder. Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26, the Commission is required to adopt by mle a
schedule of maximum fees for medical compensation resulting from the treatment of workers'
compensation mJuries. In complying with this statutory requirement, the Commission must
consider and balance three competing interests. First, the Commission must ensure that injured
workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the Act. Second, any
promulgated fue schedule must ensure that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. Finally, the Commission must ensure that medical costs are adequately contained.
On July 25, 2013, the North Carolina General Assembly passed Session Law 2013-410. Section
33.(a) of that Session Law directed the Commission to revise its physician and hospital medical
fee schedule. Specifically, with respect to the schedule of maximum fees for physician and
2

6

hospital compensation, the Commission was instructed to adopt a fee schedule based on the
applicable Medicare payment methodologies. In order to expedite this process, the Session Law
also granted the Commission an exemption from the now-repealed cettification requirement and
the fiscal note requirement as required under the AP A.
In order to carry out the General Assembly's mandate set forth in Session Law 2013-410, s. 33.(a),
the Commission engaged in rulemaking to adopt new rules and amend existing rules in accordance
with the APA. On November 17,2014, the Commission gave notice ofits intention to adopt Rules
04 NCAC IOJ .0102 and .0103 and to amend Rules 04 NCAC IOJ .0101 and .0102. This notice
was published in Volume 29, Issue 10 of the North Carolina Register. Based on the Session Law,
specifically with regard to the General Assembly's stated exemptions, the Commission did not
obtain a fiscal note. The Commission held a public hearing on December 17,2014, and accepted
written comments on the proposed rules through January 16, 2015. The proposed rules were
approved by the Rules Review Commission on February 19, 2015, and entered into the North
Carolina Administrative Code on April I and July I, 2015, respectively.
On October I, 2015, six months after the rule went into effect, the Commission received a Request
for Declaratory Ruling challenging the rules' validity based on the lack of a fiscal note as applied
to ambulatory surgery centers. The Commission issued its Declaratory Ruling denying the relief
requested on December 14, 2015. Following a petition for judicial review ofthe declaratory ruling,
Judge Paul Ridgeway of the Wake County Superior Court ruled in fuvor of the petitioner, finding
that the fiscal note exemption in the Session Law did not apply to rulemaking for ASCs, and
therefore, the Commission did not substantially comply with the APA when it amended the fee
schedule provisions for ambulatory surgery centers. The impact of the Superior Court Judge's
ruling is to invalidate the revised fee schedule provisions that apply to ASCs back to the origina I
effective date of April I, 2015.
With the invalidation of the ASC-specific provtstons of 04 NCAC IOJ .0103(g) and (h), the
reimbursement rates for ASCs would revert to the provisions in place prior to the effective date of
April I, 2015.
Upon the Commission's Motion to Stay, the August 9, 2016 decision was stayed by the Wake
County Superior Court allowing the current 04 NCAC IOJ .0103 to remain in effect pending appeal
to the North Carolina Court of Appeals. This stay was granted on September 2, 2016. Litigation
over this rule is currently pending before the North Carolina Court of Appeals. However, even
with the stay, considerable uncertainty remains within the North Carolina workers' compensation
system.
At present, under the April 1, 2015 rule, the fee schedule provtstOns provide a maximum
reimbursement rate, for institutional services provided at an ASC, of200% of the Medicare ASC
facility-specific amount. See Appendix 2, 04 NCAC !OJ .0103(g) and (h). Because these
provisions of the rule are currently in effect by application of the Stay, it is this rule that is evaluated
as the baseline for purposes of this fiscal note.
If the Commission takes no rulemaking action, the outcome of the appellate court case leaves two
possible outcomes. First, a fuvorable decision from the Court of Appeals would leave the April 1,
3

7

2015 rule in place, resuhing in no change from the baseline scenario. The proposed rule
amendment differs from the April I, 2015 permanent rule because it addresses the procedures
CMS will reimbmse if performed at an outpatient hospital but not if performed at an ASC. Because
of the differing demographics for the CMS and workers' compensation populations, the
Commission proposes to include fee provisions in the rule that will guide reimbmsement for
procedmes performed at ASCs for which they would not be reimbursed by CMS.
On the other hand, if the Commission takes no rulemaking action and receives an unfuvorab le
decision upholding the invalidation of the current ASC fee provisions, the rule in effect prior to
April I, 2015, would be reinstated. This older fee schedule, which was in place for charges prior
to April I, 2015, was structured to reimbmse providers at a percentage of the charges billed by the
provider. The former rule language states that ASC services are reimbmsed at 67.15% of the billed
charges. Additionally, implants are paid at no greater than invoice cost plus 28%.
The second scenario would resuh in a very disproportionate reimbmsement model for one type of
institutional provider, cause imbalance in the workers' compensation system, and contradict the
Commission's understanding ofthe General Assembly's intent in its 2013 Session Law, which
directs the Commission to transition to a Medicare-based fee schedule model. The effect of this
resuh would be both retroactive and prospective. ASCs would be able to request payment
adjustments on all bills dating back to April I, 2015. ASCs would also be able to control the rate
of their compensation going forward because it is based on the billed charges that they set, while
all other institutional provider types would continue to be reimbmsed at a percentage of the
schedule based on CMS payment rates.
In order to limit the period of time subject to retroactive payment adjustments in the event of an
invalidation of the current ASC fee provisions and to provide certainty for the insmance
community, providers, and employers going forward, the Commission is engaging in permanent
rulemaking to amend the challenged April I, 2015 ASC fee provisions. The Commission
maintains its position that it is not required to obtain a fiscal note in order to do permanent
rulemaking regarding fees for ASCs. However, this fiscal note has been prepared in light of the
August 9, 2016 decision and the pending appeal before the Court of Appeals.
The proposed amendments to 04 NCAC !OJ .0103 differ from the April I, 2015 permanent rule
because the Commission received input from various stakeholders indicating the need to set
reimbmsement rates for ASCs for procedures CMS will reimburse if performed at an outpatient
hospital but not if performed at an ASC. Because of the demographics of the population served
by CMS, many procedures that could normally be performed in ASCs are required to be performed
in outpatient or inpatient hospitals. Because those demographic considerations do not necessarily
apply to the workers' compensation population, the Commission proposes to add fee provisions in
the rule that will guide reimbmsement for certain procedmes performed at ASCs for which ASCs
would not be reimbmsed by CMS.
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Impact ofthe Proposed New Rule
I. Costs to the State through the Commission:
o

Once adopted, the proposed rule amendments may impose some minima I opportunity
costs on the State through the Commission. Medical providers and payers are not
required to send bills to the Commission for review, but the Commission will assist
parties in detennining the correct reimbursement. The Commission also has a medical
fee dispute resolution procedure. Because the proposed amendments include a change
to the current rule, there may be increased requests for assistance or disputes filed until
the workers' compensation commw1ity becomes familiar with the new rule. However,
the Commission believes that the current staff of two in the Medical Fees Section will
be able to handle the increased temporary workload, though there may be a temporary
Wlquantifiable increase in response time due to increased workload.

o

To the extent that the Commission is an employer, it could experience workers'
compensation claims which would be subject to the new rule. The May 2, 2017 NCCI

Analysis of Alternatives to the North Carolina Ambulatory Surgical Center Fee
Schedule attached as Appendix 3 indicates that the proposed rule amendments would
result in a negligible decrease in costs for services furnished at ASCs.
2. Costs to payers, including self-insured employers:
o

The costs to payers captures both private sector insurance carriers and self- insured
employers. Approximately 24.2% of workers' compensation costs in North Carolina
are paid by self-insured employers, including the State, local government Wlits, and
private employers. 1 All of State government, many local government entities, and a
minority of private sector employers are self-insured, and thus bear the cost of workers'
compensation benefits directly as payers.

o

There could be some initial costs to all payers, including self-insured employers, in
implementing the amended rule because it requires the detennination of reimbursement
for various ASC services using either the CMS ASC fee schedule or the CMS
Outpatient Prospective Payment System ("OPPS'') fee schedule. The baseline rule
does not contain a provision for payment for certain ASC services based on the CMS
0 PPS fue schedule. Therefore, there could be some initial costs to reprogram any
reimbursement-related software and to train employees on the changes in the amended
rule. The Commission reached out to the payer commWlity to get a sample of these
costs. One carrier that processes its medical bills in-house reported that the costs
included 2.5 days for a full-time employee at $65-$75 per hour for the initial analysis
and one day at $85 per hour for the programming. The carrier termed this one-time
cost of approximately $2,000 "not significant." The Commission is also aware that

1 See Workers' Compensation: Benefits, Coverage, and Costs, October 2016, National Academy of Social
Insurance, Table 8, Workers' Compensation Benefits Paid by Type of Coverage, and State, 2014, page 23, at
http://\V\'r'W.nasi.org/s ites/default/files/research/NASI Workers Comp Report 2016.ndf.
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several tnf\ior carriers and third-party administrators use third-party medical bill review
companies to carry out medical bill reimbursement duties. One such bill review
company estimates that it would take 145-150 hours for programming at an hourly rate
of $200. This large nationwide workers' compensation billing review system expects
the cost to be approximately $28,000-$30,000. With such contrasting input, the
Commission is unable to definitively quantify this potential cost uniformly to all payers
with any accuracy or consistency. 2
3. Costs to the State and the private sector as ambulatory surgery centers:
o

The State has limited, indirect exposure through any ASCs owned, controlled, and/or
operated by the University ofNorth Carolina. Because the analysis conducted by NCCI
(Appendix 3) suggests that total losses to ASCs will be negligible and these centers
occupy only a small portion of the ASC market, the proposed rule amendments will
resuh in de minimis losses to the State. It is assumed that the State as an ASC will
share in a small portion of all costs estimated to impact ASCs.

o

In North Carolina, payments for ASC services represent 4.8% of total medical
payments in workers' compensation cases, or $45,700,000, in 2015. See Appendix 3.

o

The proposed rule amendments are projected by NCCI to resuh in an estimated impact
to ASC services of -0.1% when compared to the current baseline rule, which totals $45,700. According to the Division of Heahh Service Regulation's May 2017 facility
listing for ambulatory surgical fucilities licensed by the State, there are 118 licensed
Subtracting the ASCs dedicated to endoscopy,
ASCs in North Carolina. 3
gastroenterology, and OB/GYN services left 43 licensed ASCs likely to provide
services in workers' compensation cases. The projected loss amount of -$45,700 can
be divided by 43 ASCs for an average loss of -$1,063 per ASC from the proposed rule
amendments. 4 It is possible that not all 43 ASCs identified will provide services in
workers' compensation cases.

o

Adoption of the proposed rule amendments may resuh in potential future costs or lost
profits for ASCs if the August 9, 2016 decision is uhimately upheld in the higher courts,
invalidating the current rule. First, the proposed rule amendments, if adopted, would
limit the past ASC bills subject to potential recalculation and readjustment to the old

2 Because the temporary rule in effect from January I, 2017, to March 21, 2017 was exactly the same as the
proposed rule amendments, payers, including self-insured employers, have already made this adjustment once.
Therefore, the cost may be somewhat mitigated as employees have been recently trained and the correct way to
reprogram the software has already been detennined once.
3 The 118 ASCs listed appeared to be primarily free-standing ASCs not associated with hospitals. The Commission
reviewed the Division of Health Service Regulation's May 2017 list ofhospitals licensed by the State of North
Carolina. The hospital list gives a countofoperating rooms, classifYing them as inpatient or ambulatory surgery or
shared, but it was not possible to tell whether the hospitals had actual ambulatory surgery centers on their campus or
attached to the hospital. It appeared that thetenn ambulatory surgery must also mean outpatient surgery because
there were no counts for outpatient surgery operating rooms.
4 See footnote 3. The loss amount per ASC would likely be much smaller if hospital-owned ASCs were included in
the calculation.
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percentage-of-charges fee proviSIOns to those for dates of service between April I,
2015, and the effective date ofthe amended rule. Second, ASC reimbursements for
dates of service on or after the effective date of the proposed rule would not be subject
to the outcome of the pending litigation and would not revert to the percentage-ofcharges UIOdel. See the Uncertainties and Risk Analysis section below for UIOre detail.
4. Costs to Employees and Injured Workers:
o

The proposed amended rule provisions could change the location where injured
workers receive certain medical services. The location of care affects the total cost of
these medical services, and thus affects the costs borne by employees and injured
workers. However, it is not possible to provide an accurate forecast of regulatorydriven changes in patient care settings. In the NCCI Analysis (Appendix 3), NCCI
calculated the impact of the proposed amended rule provisions using bills for ASC
services provided in 2015 (the UIOst current complete year of data available) assuming
no change in the number or type of procedures or the place they were performed under
the proposed new reimbursement rates. The proposed rule differs from the baseline
rule in that it specifies that procedures performed at ASCs for which they could not be
reimbursed by CMS will be reimbursed at 135% of the CMS OPPS rate. If the true
experience has been that patients were in fact getting these procedures done in other
treatment settings in 2015, with this proposed rule amendment to clarifY maximum
reimbursement rates for procedures without a designated CMS ASC rate, it is possible
that there will be a shifting of these procedures to ASCs. Alternatively, if the true
experience is that ASCs were perfonning these procedures but negotiating
reimbursement at UIOre than the 135% of the CMS OPPS rate prior to receiving rule
clarity, it is possible that ASCs will lose revenue for these procedures. In this case, it is
possible that there will be a shifting of these procedures away from ASCs to other care
settings.

o

Certain ASCs could choose to provide fewer services in workers' compensation cases
based on the projected negligible decrease in revenue from the proposed rule
amendments to the baseline rule. The Commission cannot predict this potential
behavior or quantifY its effect with any accuracy.

5. Benefits to the State through the Commission:
o

The Commission is an employer under the umbrella of the State's self-insurance
program Each division of the State pays for its workers' compensation losses from its
division budget. To the extent that the proposed rule amendments result in a decrease
in medical costs and greater certainty regarding ongoing medical costs, the State will
receive these benefits through the Commission.

6. Benefits to payers, including self-insured employers:
o

Based on the NCCIAnalysis (Appendix 3), there would be a decrease in costs for ASC
services as a result of the proposed rule amendments when compared to the April I,
7
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20 15 baseline. Although the decrease is estimated to be negligible, any decrease in
costs is a benefit to payers, including self-insured employers. For payers, this would
translate to reduced costs for medical care, as well as more administrative certainty of
costs going forward.
o

The amended rule will decrease the amount of uncertainty payers, including selfinsured employers, have regarding prospective medical costs due to the pending
litigation. ASC reimbursements for dates of service on or after the effective date of the
proposed rule would not be subject to the outcome of the pending litigation and would
not revert to the percentage of charges model. Better certainty will likely create
efficiencies because they will be able to set reserves for future benefits more accurately
and not have to set aside extra funds for increases in future medical costs in the event
that the litigation regarding the April I, 2015 rule is not resolved in the Commission's
fuvor.

7. Benefits to the State and the private sector as ambulatory surgical centers:
o

The proposed rule amendments would bring ASCs several benefits. First, the proposed
rule addresses stakeholder concerns brought forward by ASCs that there are certain
procedures that can be performed for the workers' compensation population at ASCs
that are not paid under the CMS ASC fue schedule. This has been addressed in the
proposed rule amendments, which provide that ASCs are to be reimbursed at 135
percent of what Medicare would pay for those procedures pursuant to its outpatient
hospital fee schedule.

o

Second, the certainty that a new permanent rule will bring to other stakeholders is also
a benefit to ASCs.

8. Benefits to Employers:
o

For purchasers of workers' compensation insurance policies, these proposed rule
amendments could result in a net reduction in premiums through lower medical costs
and a lower risk of rate hikes to cover larger retrospective payments to ASCs. If the
Commission is not successful on appeal, the ASC reimbursement rates will revert to a
percentage-of-charges basis, increasing future workers' compensation costs for
employers and payers. ASCs will also be eligible for retrospective payments from
employers, at the old percentage of billed charges rate, for procedures performed since
April I, 2015. The potential retrospective payment amount is highly uncertain,
estimated to exceed $1OM.

o

Completing the rulemaking process again in advance of the appeal decision will avoid
the former, much higher ASC reimbursement rates from being reinstated prospectively
and limit the amount of time subject to retrospective payments, should the court
invalidate the current rule provisions. To the extent that costs to insurers are passed on
to employers, employers will benefit from the proposed rule amendments by avoiding
the effects of a substantial increase in future medical costs on their premiums. The
8
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future medical benefits cost increases under a percentage-of-charges model are not
quantifiab !e. See the Uncertainties and Risk Analysis section below for more detail.

Alternatives Analysis
Baseline: The baseline rule used for the fiscal impact analysis is the April I, 20 15 version of 04
NCAC IOA.OI03. See Appendix 2. Pursuant to that rule, the current reimbursement methodology
for services provided by ASCs is 200% of what CMS would pay for the services. As explained
above, this provision of the rule was challenged and invalidated, but the August 9, 2016 decision
invalidating the rule was stayed pending the Commission's appeal of the decision. Therefore, the
rule remains in place at the time of writing.
In considering amending the baseline rule, the Commission requested the analysis of four
ahemative amendments. The NCC!Analysis (Appendix 3) provided a forecast of the fiscal effect
of each ahernative on the workers' compensation system.
o

Ahernative I: This ahernative was chosen for the proposed rule amendments because it has
a very minimal projected impact of -0.1 %on ASC costs, described as a negligible decrease
in overall workers' compensation system costs, and it improves on the baseline rule by
adding certain procedures included under the CMS OPPS fee rule. This ahernative is a good
choice because this rulemaking is an effort to put a new permanent rule in place for the
reasons explained in Necessity section above, not to make significant changes to costs to
payers or providers. This ahernative is similar to the baseline rule in that it would allow
reimbursement of services provided by ASCs at 200% of what CMS would pay for those
services that are deemed payable in the CMS ASC fee schedule. For those services that
CMS does not pay ASCs to perfonn, but does pay outpatient hospitals to perfonn, ASCs
would be reimbursed at 135% of what CMS would pay under its outpatient hospital fee
schedule. This second provision involving the CMS outpatient fee schedule was included
in response to stakeholder feedback received by the Commission in past public comment
proceedings. N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26(c) allows for payment of any procedure not covered
by the fee schedule either by agreement or at the "usual, customary, and reasonable charge"
("UCR'') for the service. Therefore, the payment rules of CMS that relate to the older
population they serve do not restrict what procedures ASCs can perform for workers'
compensation. However, expanding the number of procedures with rees set by the ree
schedule will assist the payer and ASC community by not requiring them to negotiate or
determine a UCR charge for procedures not listed in the CMS ASC fee rule.

o

Ahernative 2: This ahernative reflects a potential decrease from 200% to 175% for services
paid under the CMS ASC ree schedule, but it reflects the addition of a rate of 135% for
those procedures that are performed at an ASC but are paid by CMS under the 0 PPS fee
schedule. Because the Commission was concerned that allowing 135% of the CMS OPPS
fee schedule for certain procedures performed at ASCs might inflate medical costs, the
Commission requested an analysis of a rule ahernative with a slightly lower ASC rate of
175%. This ahemative was not selected for proposal because it resuhed in a projected -$2
million change in workers' compensation costs, which would reflect a benefit for payers,
but a loss for ASCs.
9

13

o

Ahemative 3: This ahemative reflects the request of certain ASCs that all services
performed by ASCs in workers' compensation cases be reimbursed at 200% of the CMS
OPPS fee schedule. This ahemative was not selected for proposal because it reflects a
potential +$12 million increase in costs to the workers' compensation system While this
ahernative would provide a benefit to ASCs, it would be a significant cost to payers. Based
on the Commission's review of states that allow payment to ASCs tmder the CMS OPPS
fee schedule, such a rule would also be significantly above the average reimbursement rate
of 127%.

o

Ahemative 4: This ahemative would allow all services provided at ASCs that are included
for payment in the CMS OPPS and ASC fee rules to be reimbursed at 135% of the CMS
OPPS fee rule. The procedures allowed by CMS to be performed in ASCs are also included
in the CMS OPPS fee rule. The Commission requested an analysis of this rule ahernative
because there are states that use only the CMS OPPS fee rule as their basis for
reimbursement of both ASCs and outpatient hospitals. As stated above, the average rate
applied to the CMS OPPS fee schedule for services provided at ASCs is 127%. The result
of the analysis indicated a negligible decrease in workers' compensation system costs, with
a -1.1% change to ASC-related medical costs. This ahemative was not chosen because the
-1.1% effect on ASC-related costs was larger than the -0.1% change under the proposed rule
amendments, implying a greater loss to ASCs, even if negligible. There are also concerns
that basing the fee provisions for ASCs on the CMS OPPS tee rule for all procedures could
have unintended consequences if the CMS OPPS fee rule is adjusted in the future for reasons
unrelated to ASC services or costs. Such an adjustment could create imbalance in the
reimbursement levels between institutional providers in the Commission's fee schedule.

Uncertainties and Risk Analysis
Data Limitations and Behavioral Assumptions
The proposed rule dift'ers from the baseline rule in that it specifies that procedures performed at
ASCs for which they could not be reimbursed by CMS will be reimbursed at 135% of the CMS
OPPS rate. NCCI's Ana(ysis estimated that the proposed changes would resuh in a -0.1% decline
in ASC reimbursements in the year following rule implementation.

NCCi'sAnalysis (Appendix 3) relies on the observed experience in 2015 as the basis for the impact
estimates in this fiscal note. NCCI calculated the impact of the proposed amended rule provisions
using bills for ASC services provided in 2015 because they are the most current complete year of
data available. However, these data limitations are a source of uncertainty.
NCCI is not able to forecast any changes in the number, type, or location of procedures that may
have occurred between 2015 and the present day. The maximum reimbursement rate of67.15% of
billed charges was in place for 3 months of2015; a maximum reimbursement rate of220% of the
CMS ASC rate was in place for the remaining months. In the Analysis, NCCi first calculated the
expected ASC reimbursements for the procedures completed in 2015, at 200% of the CMS ASC
rate (the current fee schedule in effuct). Then, NCCI estimated how those reimbursements would
change after clarifYing the reimbursement rate for certain procedures not reimbursed by CMS at
10
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ASCs. The Analysis presents the effect of a price change on the observed procedures in 20 15.
However, that estimate does not capture any economic or population-driven changes in procedures
performed at ASCs that may have occurred in the past two years.
Furthermore, because the analysis applies differing payment methodologies to past procedures, it
does not account for any behavioral changes on the part of providers or the insurers and selfinsureds regarding the chosen location of patient care for those procedures not reimbursed by CMS
at the ASC rate. If the true experience has been that patients were in fuel getting these procedures
done in other treatment settings in 2015, with this proposed rule amendment to clarity maximum
reimbursement rates for procedures without a designated CMS ASC rate, it is possible that there
will be a shifting of these procedures to ASCs. Ahematively, if the true experience is that ASCs
were performing these procedures but negotiating reimbursement at more than the 135% of the
CMS OPPS rate prior to receiving rule clarity, it is possible that ASCs will lose revenue for these
procedures. In this case, it is possible that there will be a shifting of these procedures away from
ASCs to other care settings. Without experience data, the Commission is not able to quantity a
potential shift in patient treatment settings with any accuracy.
If the negligible decrease in costs to payers translates to a minor decrease in profits for ASCs,
some ASCs may decide to perform fewer procedures in workers' compensation cases. If more
procedures are performed at outpatient or inpatient hospital facilities, there may be an increase in
medical costs as CMS generally reimburses outpatient and inpatient hospitals at higher rates than
ASCs for the similar services. This difference in CMS payment rates is related to the lower
overhead costs experienced by ASCs. 5
Finally, the Commission cannot predict with confidence this rule's impact on employer behavior
or premiums. As detailed by the NCCI analysis, there is minimal difference in cost to the
workers' compensation system between the April I, 2015 rule and the new proposal. The
Commission thus cannot predict whether this small difference will resuh in changes to wages or
hiring practices. Nor can the Commission predict whether this small change will place any
upward or downward pressure on employer premiums or self-insureds' costs.
Litigation Outcome
Adoption of the new rule does not resolve all uncertainties related to the litigation over the April
I, 2015 rule, which moved the Commission from a percent-of-charges method to a Medicarebased methodology. While the decision of the Wake County Superior Court to stay the August 9,
2016 decision has temporarily preserved the status quo, subsequent litigation may eventually end
this stay. The April I, 2015 rule is in effect until a court ends this stay. If the August 9, 2016
decision is upheld, ASCs may request to be reimbursed under the old percentage of charges
method, requiring insurers and self-insured employers to recalculate and compensate these
providers retroactively for the difference between what they received under the April I, 2015

5

See Medicare Program: Revised Payment System Policiesfor Services Furnished in Ambulato1y Surgical Centers

(ASCs) Beginning inCY 2008,72 FR 42470, 42475, August2, 2007, at
http s :/IVo.'\VW. fed era Ire g is tcr. go vI docu men ts /1007I 08! 02/07- 34 9 0/ mcd icarc -pro gra rn- rev is ed -pay men t-s v s tcmpolicies-for-services-fumished-in-ambulaton'-surg ica!; Medicare: Payment for AmbulatOJy Surgical Centers Should
Be Based on the Hospital Outpatient System, GA0-07-86, November 30, 2006, at
http://www.gao.gov/products/GA0-07-86.
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rule and the fonner method based on percentage-of-charges assessed by the provider. 6
Furthermore, if the court invalidates the current rule, the percentage-of-charges based
reimbursement rates would be reinstated for ASCs for any procedures perfonned from that point
forward, barring the adoption of the proposed rule amendments. The Commission is unlikely to
know the outcome of this litigation prior to the completion ofrulemaking on the proposed rule
amendments.
By adopting this rule, Commission can put a firm boundary on the end of this period of
uncertainty over retrospective bill calculations and prospective repayment.
•

Retrospective reimbursement: By adopting the proposed rules, the Commission will limit
the period of time for which employers would be responsible for retrospective payments
to ASCs in the event that the August 9, 2016 decision is upheld on appeal. The period
under which these charges would have to be recalculated ranges from the adoption of the
April 1, 2015 rule until the date the Commission formally adopts and implements a new
rule.
o

•

NCCI analyses conducted in 2014 and 2016 estimated the impact on ASC
reimbursements ol; first, the change from 67.15% of charges to 220% of the CMS
ASC rate, and then the later change from 220% of the CMS rate to 200% of the
CMS rate (the baseline rule). 7 The ASC reimbursement losses presented in the
NCCI analyses are not an accurate estimate of the total retrospective payments that
employers and payers would be required to make in the event that the August 9,
20 16 decision is upheld on appeal. At the time of the analyses, N CCI did not have
current claims data or certain knowledge of changes to Medicare payment rates.
NCCI is not able to forecast changes in the number or type of claims, or marketdriven shifts in patient treatment settings.
Therefore, these analyses do not
represent the true changes in reimbursements experienced by ASCs. However, they
can provide an estimate of the order of magnitude of the potential retrospective
payments. Based on the NCCI analyses, the Commission makes a conservative
estimate that retrospective payments could exceed $10M in total.

Prospective reimbursement: Because the litigation over the April 1, 2015 rule would only
apply to payments made between the adoption of the April I, 2015 rule and its proposed
replacement, by adopting these proposed rule amendments the Commission will provide
certainty to payers and providers for medical reimbursement rates. This certainty is an
inherent goal of the Commission's schedule of fees for medical compensation. However,
the potential impacts associated with avoiding a reinstatement of the percentage-of.
charges fee schedule cannot be determined due to lack of experience data about future
injuries and costs. Further, NCCI indicated that fee schedules that are strictly based on
charges rather than a fixed maximum provide a maximum reimbursement rate that
changes with inflationary measures that are not subject to regulatory

6

Of course, if the August 9, 2016 decision is reversed on appeal, there will be no period for which providers will
have to make retroactive payments.
7 See Appendix4 for the December 4, 2014 NCCI analysis and go to V.'Ww.ic.nc.gov/NCCINCRI3Analvsis.pdf for
the September 19, 2016 NCCI Analysis.
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action. Consequently, a change in rules reflecting a percentage of charges is not
measurable at a fixed point in time. As such, NCCl would not estimate a price impact for
medical ree schedule changes that are purely based on charges.

Summary of economic impact
Compared to the baseline under the April I, 2015 rule, payers in the North Carolina workers'
compensation system, including both insurers and self-insured employers, stand to benefit from
the proposed rule amendments by reducing uncertainty regarding retroactive and prospective
medical costs based on the ongoing litigation regarding the April I, 2015 rule and minor savings
on medical costs as they can be projected at this time. If the proposed rule is adopted, ASCs will
be limited in the amount of retroactive reimbursement they may receive if the August 9, 2016
decision is upheld. ASCs would also receive a negligible decrease in revenue under the amended
rule from its effective date. However, under the amended rule, ASCs will benefit from clarity
regarding the reimbursement rates for certain procedures.

13

17

APPFNDIX 1

Rule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103 is proposed for amendment as follows:

04 NCAC lOJ .0103

FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES

(a) Except where othervvise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services
shall be based on the current federal fiscal year's facilityRspecific Medicare rate established for each institutional
facility by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS"). "Facility-specific" rate means the all-inclusive

aroount eligible for payment by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments. An institutional facility may
only be reimbursed for hospital outpatient institutional services pursuant to this Paragraph and Paragraphs (c) Cd) and
CD of this Rule if it aualifies for payment by CMS as an outpatient hospital.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)

Beginning April I, 2015, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(2)

Beginning January I, 2016, 180 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(3)

Beginning January I, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)

Beginning April!, 2015, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(2)

Beginning January I. 2016. 210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(3)

Beginning January 1, 2017, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) ofthis Rule, maximum allowable amounts for institutional services
provided by critical access hospitals {"CAH"), as certified by CMS, are based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates
and outpatient claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) Thescheduleofma:ximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(1)

Beginning April I. 2015, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.

(2)

Beginning January I. 2016. 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.

(3)

Beginning January I. 2017. 170 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.

(t) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
Beginning April I, 2015, 230 percent ofthe hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.

(1)

(2)

Beginning January 1. 2016. 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.

(3)

Beginning January 1, 2017. 210 percentofthe hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.

(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (f) ofthis Rule, the maximum allowable amounts for institutional services
provided by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the HsElisa1=e
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Payment Systems Addenda as published annually in the Federal Register and on the CMS website at
https ://www.cms .gov /Medicare/Medicare-Fee-for-Service-Pay men t/Hos pitaiOutpatientPPS/inde x.html
~4eEiieaFe
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A£C fueility sreeif..ie ameHHt"). ("the OPPS/ASC Medicare mle"). An ASC's specific Medicare wage index

value as set out in the OPPS/ASC Medicare mle shall be applied in the calculation of the maximum allowable am:mnt
for any institutional service it provides. Reitfl8HrsemeHt sl:!aiiSe Bas eEl BH tl:!e
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(h) The scheduleofmaximum reimbursement rates for institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
is as follows:
(1)
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A maximum reimbursement rate of200 percent shall apply to institutional services that are eligible
for payment by CMS when perfonned at an ASC.

f2)

A maximum reimbursement rate of 135 percent shall apply to institutional services performed at an
ASC that are eligible for payment by CMS if performed at an outpatient hospital facility but would
not be eligible for payment by CMS if performed at an ASC

(i)

If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier payment, the sum of the facility-specific

reimbursement amount and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages
setout in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e), (f), and (h) ofthis Rule.
G) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee

schedules in Rule .0102 ofthis Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG")

payment pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no
more than the billed charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment

shall be determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient
institutional acute care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.

Histo1y Note:

AuthorityG.S. 97-25; 97-26; 97-SO(a);S.L. 2013-410;
Eff. April I, J.0.1.J,2015;
Amendment Eff October I 2017.
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FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES
04 NCAC !OJ .0103
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services
shall be based on the current federal fiscal year's facility-specific Medicare rate established for each institutional
facility by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (''CMS"). "Facility-specific" rate means the all-inclusive

amount eligible for payment by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April!, 2015, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 180 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April!, 2015, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule, maximum allowable amounts for institutional services
provided by critical access hospitals ("CAH"), as certified by CMS, are based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates
and outpatient claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April!, 2015, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 170 percent ofthe hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
Beginning April!, 20 15, 230 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
( 1)
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016,220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 210 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Rule, the maximum allowable amounts for institutional services
provided by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the Medicare ASC reimbursement amount
determined by applying the most recently adopted and effective Medicare Payment System Policies for Services
Furnished in Ambulatory Surgical Centers and Outpatient Prospective Payment System reimbursement formula and
factors as published annually in the Federal Register ("the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount"). Reimbursement
shall be based on the fully implemented payment amount in Addendum AA, Final ASC Covered Surgical Procedures
for CY 2015, and Addendum BB, Final ASC Covered Ancillary Services Integral to Covered Surgical Procedures for
2015, as published in the Federal Register, or their successors.
(h) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April!, 2015,220 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016,210 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 200 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount.
(i) If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier payment, the sum of the facility-specific
reimbursement amount and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages
set out in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e), (f), and (h) of this Rule.
UJ Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee
schedules in Rule .0102 of this Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG")
payment pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no
more than the billed charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment
shall be determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient
institutional acute care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
History Note:

Authority G.S. 97-25; 97-26; 97-BO(a); SL. 2013-410;
Eff April I, 2015.
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2017

The North Carolina Industrial Commission has requested that NCCI estimate the impact on workers
compensation system costs under four reimbursement alternatives for Ambulatory Surgical Center
(ASC) services. NCCI estimates that the fee schedule alternatives would result in an overall impact
between -0.1% (-$2.0M 1 ) and +0.6% (+$12.0M} on North Carolina workers compensation system costs,
if adopted.
The following table summarizes the alternatives and includes the estimated impacts.

(A)

(B)

Estimated
Impact on
ASC Services

ASC Share
of
Medical
Costs

Maximum
Reimbursement
for ASC

(SY 2015)

(D)

Medical Costs as.% of
Estimated
Overall Workers
Impact On
Compensation Benefit
Medical Costs
Costs
....
(A) x (B)
.
(Eff. 10/1/2017)

.

.

200% of Medicare
ASC Payment Rate
with 135% of
Medicare
Outpatient
Prospective
Payment System
(OPPS)

(E)
Estimated
Impact on
Overall Workers
Compensation
System Costs
(C) X (D)

>

.
Negligible
decrease

-0.1%

..

175% of Medicare
ASC Payment Rate
with 135% of
Medicare OPPS

-5.0%

200% of Medicare
OPPS
135% of Medicare
OPPS

(C)

Negligible
decrease

..

..

I>
I

4.8%

48.5%
-0.2%

-0.1%
(-2.0M)

+27.6%

+1.3%

+0.6%
(+12.0M)

-1.1%

-0.1%

Negligible
decrease

.

.

•

I····

1 The estimated dollar impact is the percentage impact(s) displayed multiplied by 2015 written premium of $1,963M
from NAIC Annual Statement data for North Carolina. This figure includes self-insurance, but not the policyholder

retained portion of deductible policies, or the adjustments for subsequent changes in premium levels. The use of

premium as the basis for the dollar impact assumes that expenses and other premium adjustments will be affected
proportionally to the change in benefit costs. The dollar impact on overall system costs inclusive of self-insurance is
estimated to be between $-2M and $+12M, where data on self-insurance is approximated using the National
Academy of Social Insurance's October 2016 publication "Workers' Compensation: Benefits, Coverages, and Costs,
2014."
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2017

Summary of Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Changes
The North Carolina Industrial Commission has requested that NCCI estimate the impact on workers
compensation system costs from a change to the maximum reimbursement rate of 200% of the 2017
Medicare ASC facility specific amounts as of January 1, 2017. The following fee schedule alternatives for
reimbursement for institutional services provided by ASCs, proposed to be effective October 1, 2017 are
listed below:

1. Maximum reimbursement rate of 200% of the 2017 Medicare ASC facility specific amount and a
maximum reimbursement rate of 135% of the OPPS facility specific amount for institutional
services performed at an ASC that are eligible for payment if performed at an outpatient
hospital facility, but would not be eligible for payment under.Medicare·rules if performed at an
AS C.

2.

Maximum reimbursement rate of 175% of the 2017 Medicare ASC facility specific amount and a
maximum reimbursement rate of 135% of the OPPS facility specific amount for institutional
services performed at an ASC that are eligible for payment if performed at an outpatient
hospital facility, but would not be eligible for payment under Medicare rules if performed at an
AS C.

3.

Maximum reimbursement rate of 200% of the 2017 Medicare Outpatient facility specific
amount

4.

Maximum reimbursement rate of 135% of the 2017 Medicare Outpatient facility specific
amount

Actuarial Analysis of Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Changes
NCCI's methodology to evaluate the impact of medical fee schedule changes includes three major steps:

1.

Calculate the percentage change in maximum reimbursements
a. Compare the prior and proposed maximum reimbursements by procedure code and
det~rmine the percentage change by procedure code.
b. Calculate the weighted-average percentage change in maximum reimbursements for
the fee schedule using observed payments by procedure code as weights.

2.

Estimate the price level change as a result of the proposed fee schedule
a. NCCI research by Frank Schmid and Nathan Lord (2013), "The Impact of Physician Fee
Schedule Changes in Workers Compensation: Evidence from 31 States", suggests that a
portion of a change in maximum reimbursements is realized on payments impacted by
the change.
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2017

i.

In response to a fee schedule decrease. NCCI's research indicates that payments
decline by approximately 50% of the fee schedule change.
ii. In response to a fee schedule increase, NCCI's research indicates that payments
increase by approximately 80% of the fee schedule change and the magnitude
of the response depends on the relative difference between actual payments
and fee schedule maximums (i.e. the price departure).
The formula used to determine the percent realized for fee schedule increases is
80% x (1.10 + 1.20 x (price departure)).

3.

Estimate the share of costs that are subject to the fee schedule
a. The share is based on a combination of fields, such as procedure code, provider type,
and place of service, as reported on the NCCI Medical Data Call, to categorize payments
that are subject to the fee schedule.

In this analysis, NCCI relies primarily on two data sources:
•

Detailed medical data underlying the calculations in this analysis are based on NCCI's Medical
Data Call for North Carolina for Service Year 2015.

•

The share of benefit costs attributed to medical benefits is based on NCCI's Financial Call data
for North Carolina from the latest two policy years projected to the effective date of the benefit
changes.

Ambulatory Surgical Center Fee Schedule
In North Carolina, payments for ASCservices represent 4.8% of total medical payments. NCCI calculated
the percentage change in maximums and the percentage change in reimbursements for ASC services to
estimate impacts due to the proposed fee schedule changes. The estimated impacts for the alternatives
are calculated as follows:
Alternatives 1 & 2
To calculate the percentage change in maximums for ASC services, NCCI calculates the percentage
change in maximum illlowable reimbursement (MAR) for each procedure code listed on the fee
schedule. For these alternatives, 2017 Medicare OPPS rates are to be utilized only when an applicable
outpatient procedure is performed that is not included in the 2017 Medicare ASC fee schedule. The
overall change in maximums for ASC services is a weighted average of the percentage change in MAR
(proposed MAR I prior MAR) by procedure code weighted by the observed payments by procedure code
as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year 2015. The prior and
proposed maximums are calculated as follows:
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2017

Prior MAR
Prior MAR= [Multiplier x 2017 Medicare Adjusted Base Rate for North Carolina x 2017 Medicare
ASC Payment Weight- Multiple Procedure Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 200%

Proposed MAR- ASC or Hospital Outpatient-Based
Proposed MAR= [Multiplier x 2017 Medicare Adjusted Base Rate for North Carolina x 2017
Medicare ASC Payment Weight- Multiple Procedure Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 200% or 175% in the two distinct scenarios or
Proposed MAR= [Multiplier x 2017 Medicare Adjusted Base Rate for North Carolina x 2017
Medicare OPPS Relative Weight- Multiple Procedure Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 135% in the two distinct scenarios
The overall weighted-average percentage change in maximums for each scenario for ASC services is
multiplied by the price realization factor' to arrive at the estimated impact on ASC costs. The estimated
impact on ASC costs is then multiplied by the percentage of medical costs attributed to ASC payments
(4.8%) to arrive at the estimated impact on medical costs. The estimated impact on medical costs is then
multiplied by the North Carolina percentage of benefit costs attributed to medical benefits (48.5%) to
arrive at the estimated irJ1pact on,overall workers compensation costs in North Carolina. The estimated
impact on ASC services for each alternative is shown in the chart below.
·.
.

.

Alternative

Proposed
ASC
Medicare
Multiplier

Proposed
OPPS
Medicare
Multiplier

Percentage
Change in MAR

Price
Realization
Factor

Estimated
Impact on
ASC Service
Costs

200%

135%

-0.2%

50%

-0.1%

175%

135%

-9.9%

SO%

-5.0%

..
',

1
2

.

2 The price realization factor from a fee schedule increase is estimated according to the formula 80% x (1.10 + 1.20 x
(price departure)). Due to the volatility observed in the price departure for ASC services in North Carolina, a reliable
price departure could not be determined. In such a situation, the price realization factor for a fee schedule increase is

assumed to be 80%. The price realization factor for a fee schedule decrease is expected to be 50%.
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2017

Alternative 3 & 4
To calculate the percentage change in maximums for ASC services, NCCI calculates the percentage change
in MAR for each procedure code listed on the fee schedule. The overall change in maximums for ASC
services is a weighted average of the percentage change in MAR (proposed MAR I prior MAR) by
procedure code weighted by the observed payments by procedure code as reported on NCCI's Medical
Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year 2015. The prior and proposed maximums are calculated as
follows:
Prior MAR
Prior MAR = [Multiplier x 2017 Medicare Adjusted Base Rate for North Carolina x 2017 Medicare ASC
Payment Weight- Multiple Procedure Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 200%
Proposed MAR- Hospital Outpatient-Based
Proposed MAR= [Multiplier x 2017 Medicare Adjusted Base Rate for North Carolina x 2017 Medicare OPPS
Relative Weight- Multiple Procedure Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 200% and 135% in the two distinct scenarios
The overall weighted-average Percentage change in maximums for each scenario for ASC services is then
multiplied by the price realizatio~ factor to arrive at the estimated impact on ASC costs. The estimated
impact on ASC costs .is then multiplied by the percentage of medical costs attributed to ASC payments
(4.8%) to arrive at the estimated impact on medical costs. The estimated impact on medical costs is then
multiplied by the North Carolina percentage of benefit costs attributed to medical benefits (48.5%) to
arrive at the estimated impact on overall workers compensation costs in North Carolina. The estimated
impact on ASC services for each a.lternative is shown in the chart below .
.

.. ·.

Alternative

Proposed
OPPS
Medicare
Multiplier

Percentage Change
in Reimbursement

Price Realization
Factor

Estimated
Impact on ASC
Service Costs

3

200%

+34.5%

80%

+27.6%

4

135%

-2.2%

50%

-1.1%

• •
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ANALYSI~. OF P~OPQSi:;O CHANGES
TO THE NORTH CARPLINA MEiDICAL FEE St;HEDULE
NCCI estimates that the proposal to adopt a Medicare pased fqe schedule, effective
41112.016, for Hospital Inpatient, Hospltai Outpatlent,andAmliulatoryStirgl~al center
()\SC) $erylcea would result In an Impact of .2;9% (·$39.0M 1) on North-Carolina workers
cqmpeJ1Sallon system costs.
·
·
.
·
.·
·.
NQCI estimates that the-proposed ch~nges to the fee scliedule for professional services,
effectl_ve 7/1/2015, would resun In an Impact of +1.4% (+19.0M1) on North carolina
workers c<;>mPI!ns"atlon system costs,
NCCi estimates the comblnedJmpact of the proposetl2015 changes on North Carolina
workers compensation system costs to be ·1,5% (-$20.0M).
·
Note that the actual rules and fee schedules .are not currently available. NCCI will review
actual nileswhen they be"corne avallabh}, which may result In a diffore'nt cost iinJiitct:.ln
partlc.uhir, the 2015 MMicare phvslclan foe schedule was notavalll!ble"at-the tline of this
amilvsls,.
.
.
. .'
.
.
Summary of Proposed Changes
· The medical fee schedule changes proposed by the Norlh Carolina lndu&rial Commission are
summarized below.
Hospital Outpatient Services
The provisions underlying lhe proposed outpatient fee schedule, proposed to be
effective 4/1/2015, are as follows:
o Services pe1formed In acute care 'hospitals will be based upon 220% of
Mecticare's hospital outpatient payment rates. Currenlly, these services are
reimbursed at67. 15% of charges.
.
o Services performed ln. critical access hospllals-will be based upon 230% of.
Medicare's hospilal outpatient paymenl rates. Curtenlly, these services are
reimbursed at 73.95% of charges.
·

1
Overall sySiem costs are based on NAIC Annual Statement data. The estimated dol_lar !Qlpact is the percon!age
impaql displayed multiplied by 2013 wrillen premium of $1 .3561ylfrom NAIC Annual olaleinenl dala for North
carolina. This figure does nollncl~de self"nsurance, !he policyholder retalnQd portion of"de.duclible poHcles, or
·adjustments for sub~~quent chang&s In ·premium }ev_els._·The lis~ ofpremlum as fhe .basi_~ fOr !he dollar lhlpa~l
assume·$ that expenses and other premium adJl!stments.will be affeoted proporl!onally to t~e change In b~nafi1 Costs.
The dollar J_inpacf on overall syslem cosls inclusive of self-Insurance is ostlmf!ted to be $~52M for fee schedule
cha~es effective 4/f/2016 and $+26M 1orfee schedule changes effective 71112.015.
· .
The' data on self-Insurance!$ approximated lisl.ng the National Acad~II"!Y Ot S_Oclalln~mrance's Augus.t 2014
publication Workers' Compensat!on: Benefits, Coverages, and CoS;ts, 2012."'
.
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B.

ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE
Hospitallnpalient Services
Currently, hospital Inpatient services are reimbursed as a discount of charges and
Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) maximum reimbursements. The provisions underl~ng
the proposed inpatient fee schedule, proposed to be effective 4/1/2015, are as follows:
o Services performed In acute care hospitals will be based upon 190% of the
Medlcares hosplt~llnpatlent payment rate's
o

•

Services performed In critical acoess hospitals will be based upon 200% of the
Medicares hospital Inpatient base rates

ASC Services
Currently, ASC services are reimbursed at 67.15% of charges. The proposed maximums
for ASC services will be based on 190% of Medicare's ASC payment rates.

•

Physician Services
The maximum reimbursements underl~ng the current physician fee schedule are
established by the North Carolina Industrial Commission. The provisions undenying the
proposed physician fee schedule, proposed to be effective 7/1/2015, are as follows:
o Update the maximum allowable reimbursements (MARs) to be based on the
current Medicare Resource Based Relative Value System (RBRVS)
o Adopt the following muiUpllers by service category':
Physician Service Category
Evaluation and Management
Physical Medicine
Emeill_encv Medicine
Neurolow
Pain Mana~ement
Radiology
Major Surgery
Clinical Laboratory
Other Professional Services

Percentage of NC Medicare
140%
140%
169%
153%
163%
195%
195%
--160%
150%

, North Carolina Industrial Commission provKJed NCCI n list of approximately 200 physichn services that were classified in the
first seven categories listed in the tllble above. Clinical Labonlol)' grouping was based on Clinical Laboratory (CLAD) Fee
Schedule published by CMS, while tho Stato Specific Codes grouping was based on the Commission Assigned Codes section of
the current physician fee schedule availabl!.' a1 httD:/Iwww.lc.nc.goy/uc/clpagts/feesched.alp, Following the directive from NC
IC 11\1 other physician servlcesw'ith MAR bLJtnot listed in any of Ute aforementioned categories were classified fnlo the OUJcr
· Pr~fessional Services group. To the extent tlut o more detailed practice category taxonomy is provided to NCCI,lhe overall
w'ighted-average percenlage ~ange in MAR may differ.
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ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE

•

Durable Medical Equipment IDME) and Supplies
The maximum reimbursements underlying the current DME and Supplies fee schedule
are established by the No~h Carolina Industrial Commission. Under the proposal, these
services are to be reimbursed at 100% of those rates established for North Carolina in
the Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services' (CMS) burable Medieal Equipment,
Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supplies ("DMEPOS") Fee Schedule.
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ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE
Actuarial Analysis of Proposal
NCCI's melhodology to evaluate the impact of medical fee schedule changes includes three
major steps:
1. Calculate the percentage change in maximum reimbursements
a. Compare the current and proposed maximum reimbursements by procedure
code and determine the peroentage change by procedure code.
b. Calculate the weighted-average percentage change in maximu.m
reimbursements for the fee schedule using observed payments by procedure
code as weights.
2. Estimate the price level change as a result of the proposed lee schedule
a. NCCI research by Frank Schmid and Nathan Lord (2013), "The Impact of
Physician Fee Schedule Changes in Workers Compensation: .Evidence from 31
States", suggests that a portion of a chimge in maximum reimbursements is
realized en payments Impacted by the change.
.
I. In response to a fee schedule decrease, NCCI's research indicates that
payments decline by approximately 50% of the fee schedule change.
ii. In response to a fee schedule Increase, NCCI's research Indicates that
payments increase by approximately 80% of the fee schedule change
and the magnitude of the response depends on the relative difference
between actual payments and fee schedule maximums (i.e. the price
departure).
·
The formula used to determine the percent realized for fee schedule
Increases Is 80% x (1.1 0 + 1.20 x (price depa~ure)),
3. Determine the share of costs that are subject to the fee schedule
a. The share is based on a combination of fields, such as procedure code, provider
type, and place of service, as reported on the NCCI Medical Data Call, to
categorize paymenls that are subject to the fee schedule.
In this analysis, NCCI relies primarily on two data sources:
Delalied medical data underlying the calculations In this analysis are based on NCCI's
Medical Data Call for No~h Carolina for Service Year 2013.
The share of benefil costs attributed to medical benefits Is based on NCCI's Financial
Call data for North Carolina from the latest two policy years projected to the effective
date of the ben'efit changes.
·
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ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES
,TO THE NORTH CAROLINA MEDICAL FE{: SCHEDULE

Analysis of Proposed Fee Schedule Changes effective 4/1/2015
Hospital Outpatient Fee Schedule

In North Carolina, payments for hospital outpatient services represent 19.3% of total medical
payments. To calculate the percentage change In reimbursements for hospital outpatient
services, NCCI calculates the percentage change in current reimbursement to proposed
reimbursement for each procedure. The overall change ln. reimbursements for hospital
outpalient services Is a weighted average of the percentage change in reimbursements by
procedure code weighted by the observed payments by procedure code as reported on NCCI's
Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year 2013. The current and proposed
reimbursements are calculated as follows:
·
Current Reimbursement
For each relevant procedure,
Current Reimbursement" Current Payments x. Trend Factor
The current payments by procedure code are obtained from NCCI's Medical Data Call for North
Carolina for Service Year 2013. These payments are adjusted to reflect changes from past price
levels to the price levels projected to be in Gl'fect on the effective date of the hospital outpatient
fee schedule. The trend factor Is based on the most recent available U.S hospital outpatient ·
component of the medical consumer price index (MCPJ) as shown below:

A trend factor o'f 1.087 is applied b hospital outpatient payments for Service Year 2013 to
determine the projected payments at the 4/1/2015 price level. This trend factor is calculated in
two steps

1.

Estimate the yearly Hospital Outpatient MCPI, for service years 2014 and beyond,
as the arithmetic three-year average of the observed Hospital Outpatient MCPI for
2011·2013. This average is equal to 4.9% ("[5.1% + 5.0% + 4.8%) /3).
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2.

Raise the value above lo the number of years elapsed from the midpoint of
service year 2013 (7/1/2013) to the effective date of the fee schedule (4/1/2015),
which Is 1.75 years.

Therefore, the trend factor from 7/1/2013 to 4/1/2015 is estimated as 1.087 =1.049 '· 75 •
Proposed Reimbursement on or after Aprll1, 2015
For each relevant procedure,
Proposed Reimbursement= IMuHiplier • Medicare Payment Rate+ Outlier Amount (if
applicable)- MuHiple Procedure Discounts (If applicable)] x (1 t Price Departure)
Where Multiplier= 220%. (for acute care hospitals')
Price Departure for hospital outpatient services Is eslimated to be -10%
'Given the relatively small percenlage of workers compensation hospftal costs attributed to
critical access hospitals (these comprise Jess than 1%) the hospital outpatient analysis Is based
on MARs for acute care hospitals.
The Medicare Payment Rate is based on the Calendar Year .2015 version of Medicare's
Hospital Outpatient Prospeclive Payment System (OPPS) publication. To estimate the proposed
reimbursement effective 4/1/2015, NCCI compares trended payments to discounted lee
schedule maximums. In general, NCCI observes that average prices paid are below fee
schedule maximums. Based on acombination of actuarial judgment and observations of price
departure in states that already have a fee schedule, a price departure of ·10% was selected.
The Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System (OPPS) reimbursement rule
also contains an additional provision for outlier payments. Under the Medklare OPPS rule, the
outlier threshold Is met when both of the following rules have been satisfied

1. Trended Charges submitted at the bill level times Cost-to-Charge ratio exceeds 1.75
times the North Carolina Medicare Ambulatory Payment Classification (APC) rate
and
·
·
·
·

2. Trended Charges submitted at the bill level muitiplied by the Cost-to-Charge ratio
exceeds the North CarollnaAPC payment rate plus a $3,100 fixed·dollar threshold.
When this threshold Is met, Medicare provides for an outlier reinbursement that is calculated as
50 percent of the amount by which the cost of furnishing the procedure exceeds 1.75 times
220% of the Medicare APC payment rate.
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The table below displays a hypothetical example of the calculation of the proposed
reimbursement on or after 411/2015 for an APC of 0203 (Level IV Nerve Injections).
(1)

(2)

(3)

=(2)X
Cost-to-Charge
Rallo
220% of
2016 NC

Medicare
APC
Payment
Rate

$2,992

Total
Trendod
. Charge
Subml«ed
at tha bill

Total Cosls for

OPPS

level

procedure

$ 40,000

$10,510

(4)

(5)

(6)

(i) 175% X(1)
01) (1) + $3,100

•2.2X 0.5 X[{3) ·1.75 X
(1))

•(1)t(5)

Proposed Oulller
Threshold

Proposed Ou111er
Payment

Proposed

Threshold (1): $5,236
Throshold (if): $6,o92

$5,284

$8,276

Total
MAR

The Cost to Charge ratio (CCR) Is obtained from Medicare and is calculated as the simple
average of the North Carolina Sialev.ide Urban and Rural CCRs (0.263 =0.5 x (0.246 + 0.280)).
The calculation for the proposed reimbursements also considers muHipla procedure discounls.
Under the Medicare OPPS reimbursement rule, mulliple procedure discounts are allowed R:>r
multiple surgical procedures performed during the same operative session. Primary procedures
(the procedure with the highest payment rate) would be reimbursed at 100% of the fee schedule
amount, and secondary surgical procedures would be reimbursed al60% of the fee schedule
amount.
The overall weighted-average p.ercentage change in reimbursements forhospital outpatient
services is -40.7%.
Since the overall reimbursements for hospital outpatient services decreased, NCCI expects that
50% of the deC(ease will be realized oo hospital outpatient price levels. The Impact on hospital
outpatient payments after the 50% offset Is -20.4%.
The above impact on hospital outpallenl payments is then multiplied by the percentage of
medical costs attributed to hospilal outpatient payments In North Carolina (19.3%) to arrive at
the Impact on medical costs of ·3.9%. The resulting Impact on medical costs is then multiplied
by the percentage of benefit cos is attributed to medical costs in North Carolina (49.5%) to arrive
at the estimated impact on overall workers compensation costs in North Carolina of -1.9% ($26M).
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Hospital inpatient
In North Carolina, payments for hospital inpatient services represent (13.2%) of total medical
payments. To calculate the percentage change in reimbursements for hospital inpatient
services, we calculate the percentage change in current reimbursement to proposed
reimbursement for each Inpatient hospital bill that Is reported with a diagnosis related group
(DRG) procedure code. The overall change in reimbursements for hospital inpatient services Is
a weighted average of the percentage change In reimbursements for each bill weighted by the
observed payments 9Y bill as reported on NCGI's Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for
Service Year 2013. The current and proposed' reimbursements are calculated as follows:
Current Reimbursement
For each relevant Inpatient hospital bill,
Current Reimbursement ~Current Payments x Trend Factor
The current payments are obtained from NCCI's Medical Data Call tor North Carolina for
Service Year 2013. These payments are adjusted to reflect changes from past price levels to
the price levels projected to be in effect on the effective date of the hospltalln·patientfee
schedule. The trend factor is based on the most recent available U.S hospital inpatient
component of the medical consumer price Index (MCPI) as shown below:

A trend factor of 1.098 is applied b hospital inpatient payments for Service Year 2013 to
determine the projected payments at the 4/1/2015 price level.
.This trend factor is calculated in two steps
1. Estirnate the yearly Hospital inpatient MCPI, for service years 2014 and beyond, as
the arithmetic three-year average of the observed Hospital Outpatient MCPI for
2011-2013. This average is equal to 5.5% (~[6.8% + 5. 2% + 4.4%)/3)
2. Raise the value above to the number of years elapsed from the midpoint of service
year 2013 (7/1/2013) to the effective date of the fee schedule (4/1/2015), which Is
1.75 years.
Therefore, the trend factor from 7/t/2013 to 411/2015ls estimated as 1.098 "1.055w.
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Proposed Reimbursement on or aHer 4/1/2015
For each relevant inpalient hospilal bill,
Proposed Reimbursement ~ [M uniplier x Medicare Payment Rate + Outlier Amount (if
applicable)] x (1 + Price Departure)
Where Multiplier= 190% (for acute care hospitals')
Price Departure for hospital inpatient services Is eslimaled to be -10%
'Given the relatively small percenlage of workers compensation hosplal costs allribuled lo
critical access hospilals (these comprise less than 1%) the hospital inpalient analysis Is based
on MARs for acute care hospitals.
The Medicare Payment Rate Is based on Calendar Year 2015 version of Medicare Hospital
Inpatient Prospective Payment System (IPPS) publicalion. To estimate the proposed
reimbursement effective 4/1/2015, NCC/ compares trended payments to discounted fee
schedule maximums. in general, NCCI observes that average prices paid are below fee
schedule maximums. Based on a combinallon of actuarial judgment and observations of price
departure In slates that already have a fee schedule, a price departure of -10% was selected.
Similar to the OPPS outlier example shown previously, Medicare's Hospital inpatient
Prospective Payment System (IPPS). reimbursemenl rule also contains an additional provision
for outlier paymenls. Under !he Medicare IPPS rule, the ou11/er threshold Is met when the cost
for a particular case exceeds a fixed-loss threshold whic/1 is comprised of the follov.ing
components:
•

Medicare Severlly Diagnosis Related Group (MS·DRG) payment for that case (both
operallng and capital)
• Any lndirecl Medical Education (IME),Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) and new
technology payments
• A fixed loss amount of $24,758
Once !his threshold is mel, the outlier reimbursement Is made at 80% of the hospital's costs in
excess of the fixed loss threshold for that case.

PageS of 14

Prepared on 12/4/2014
CONTACT: AMY QUINN
Telephone: (803) 356-0851
E·mall: Amy_Qulnn@nccl.com

34

ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE
The table below displays a hypothetical example of the calculation or the proposed
reimbursement on or after 4/1/2015 for a DRG of 459 (Spinal Fusion Except Cervical with Major
Complications and Co morbidities).
(1)

(2)

(3)

(5)

(6)

=(2) X

•1.9X 0.6 X ((3) -((1) + $24,756)}

"(1)+(5)

Total Costs for
IPPS procedure

PropO$Gd OuUiar Payment

Total Proposed
MAR

$68,400

$33,245

$55,015

Cost·to·Charge Rallo

190o/o of 2016
NC MS·DRG
Payment Rate

$21,770

Total Trended
Charge
Submitted at

lhe bill level

$ 190,000

The Cost to Charge ratio (CCR) is obtained from Medicare and is calculated as the simple
average of the North Carolina Statewide Urban and Rural CCRs (0.360 = 0.5 x (0.340 + 0.380))
The overall weighted average percentage change in reimbursements for hospital inpatient
services is -18.2%. Since the overall reimbursements for hospital Inpatient services decreased,
NCCI expects that 50% of the decrease would be realized on hospital inpatient price levels. The
Impact on hospital inpatient payments after the 50% offset Is -9.1 %.
The above impact on hospital Inpatient costs is then multiplied by the percentage of medical
costs atlributed to hospital inpatient payments (13.2%) to arrive at the impacts on medical costs
of -1.2%. The resulting Impact on medical costs is then multiplied by the percentage of North
Caroli~a.bjlnefit costs atlrlbuted to medical costs (49.5%) to arrive atthe impact on North
Carolina's ovenill workers compensation system costs of -0.6% (-$8.0M).
ASC Fee Sche'dule
In North Carolina, payments for ASC services represent 5.7% of total medical payments. To
calculate the percentage change In reimbursements for ASC services, NCCI calculates the
percentage change in current reimbursement to proposed reimbursement for each procedure.
The overall change In reimbursements for ASC services is a weighted average of the
percentage change In reimbursements by procedure code weighted by the observed payments
by procedure code as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year
2013.
The current and proposed reimbursements are calcula.ted In an analogous manner to the
hospital outpatient analysiS, except that Medicare has no outlier provision under the ASC fee
schedule.
The overall weighted average percentage change In reimbursements for ASC setvlces was
estimated to be -29.3%.Since the overall reimbursements for ASC seNices decreased, NCCI
expects that 50% of the decrease will be realized on ASC price levels. The Impact on ASC
payments after the 50% offset is-t4.7%.
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The above Impact on ASC costs Is then multiplied by the percentage of mac leal costs attributed
to ASC payments in North Carolina (5.7%) to arrive at the impact on medical costs of -0,8%.
The resulling impact on medical costs is then multiplied by .the percentage of benefit costs
attributed to medical costs In North Carolina (49.5.%) to arrive at the Impact on overall workers
compensation system costs in North Carolina of -0.4% (-$5,0M).
Summary of Impacts
The impacts from the changes to the North Carolina Medical Fee Schedules effective 4/1/2015
are summarized below:
·
·-~

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

Estimated
Impact on
Type of
Service

Medical Cost
Distribution

Estimated Impact On
Medical Costs

Estimated Impact on
Overall Costs

(A) X (B)

(C) x (2)
-0.6%
-1.9%
-0.4%

13.2%
-9.1%
Hospital Inpatient
19.3%.
-20.4%
Hospital Outpatient
-14.7%
5.7%
ASC
(1) Total impact on North Carolina Medical Costs

-1.2%
-3.9%
-0.8%
-5.9%
(2) Medical Costs as a Percentage of Overall Workers Compensation
Benefit Costs in North Carolina
(3) Total Impact on Overall Workers Compensation System Costs In
North carolina= (1) x {2)
·
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Analysis of Proposed Fee Schedule Changes effective 7/1/2015
Physician Fee Schedule
In North Carolina, payments for physician s~!Vices represent 33.5% of total medical payments.
To calculate the percentage change in maximum reimbursements for physician se!Vices, NCCI
calculates the percentage change in maximum reimbursements for each procedure code. The
overall change In maximum reirrbursements for physician sa !VIces Is a weighted average of the
percentage change In MAR (proposed MAR I current MAR) by procedure code weighted by the
obse!Ved payments by procedure code as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North
Carolina for Se!Vice Year 2013.
The overall weighted-average percentage change in MAR Is +1 0.8%.
The impact by category is shown

nthe table below.

Physician Practice Category

Anesthesia
Maior Suraerv
Pain Management
Radiology
Physical Medicine
Evaluation and Manaaement
Emeraencv Medicine
Clinical Laboratory
State Specific Codes
Olher Professional Services
Physlclon Pavments with no specific MAR
Total

Cost
Distribution

.

Porcentago Change In

MAR

2.9%

+4.1%

9.0%
1.8%
10.0%
22.3%
16.3%
2.1%
1.4%
0.2%
20.4%

·21.7%

13.6%

100.0%

. ~25.1%

·28.1%
~--·

+69.9%

+33.5%
+35.2%
·11.6%
0.0%
·17.6%
0.0%
10.S%

Since the overall average maxJmum reimbursement for physicians increased, the percentage
expected to be realized from the fee schedule Increase is estimated according to the formula
80% x (1.10 + 1.20 x (price departure)). The observed price departure for physician payments in
North Carolina is -9%. The percerlage realized is estimated to be 79% (= 80% x (1.1 0 + 1.20 x
(·0.09)), The Impact on physician payments due to the revised physician fee schedule change Is
+8.5% (= +10.8% X 0.79).
The above impact of +8.5% is then multiplied by the North Carolina percentage of medical costs
atlributed to physician payments (33.5%) to arrive at the Impact on medical costs of +2.8%.
Finally, the above impact of +2.8% Is then multiplied by the percentage or North Carolina benefit
costs attributed to medical benefits (48.1%) to arrive at the estimated Impact on North Carolina
overall workers compensation cofls of +1.3% (+18.0M).
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Durable Medical Equipment (DMEI

In North Carolina, payments for DME represent 2% of total medical payments. DME payments
are based on 2015 North Carolina adjusted Medicare rates
The overall change In maximum reimbursements for DME Is a weighted average of the
percentage change in MAR (proposed MAR I current MAR) by code weighted by the observed
payments by code as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year
2013. The overall weighted average percentage change In MAR Is estimated to be +1 0.4%.
Since the overall average maximum reimbursement for DME services Increased, the
percentage expected to be realized fran the fee schedule Increase Is typically estimated to be
80%. The impact on DME payments due to the revised DME fee schedule chahge is +8.3% (~
+10.4% X 0.80).
The above impact of +8.3% is then multiplied by the North Carolina percentage of medical costs
attributed to DME payments (2.0%) to arrive at the impact on medical costs of +0.2%.
The above impact is then multiplied by the percentage of North Carolina benefit costs atlribuled
to medical benefits (48.1%) to arrive at lhe estimated Impact on North Carolina overall workers
compensation costs of +0.1%(+1.4M).
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summary of Impacts
The Impacts from the changes to the North Carolina Medical Fee Schedules effective 7/1/2015
are summarized below.

Pfmllclan
1

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

Estimated
Impact on
Type of
Service

Medical Cost
Distribution

Estimated Impact
On Medical Costs

Es!lmated Impact on
Overall Costs

(A) X (B)

(C) X (2)
· - - - - - - - - - - ·---

--

+2.8%
+8.5%
33.5%
+0,2%
DME
+8.3%
2.0%
i1l Total Impact on North Carolina Medical Costs
+3.0%
(2) Medical Costs as a Percentage of Overall Workers Compensation Benefit
Costs in North Carolina
(3) Total Estimated Impact on Overall Workers Compensation System
Costs In North Carolina= /1) x 12)

+1.3%
+0.1%

48.1%'
+1.4%

1
The share of benefit costs anributed to mediul benefits is based on NCCI's Financial Call data for Nol1h Carolina from the
latest two policy years projected to theeffecttve date of the benefit changes, after adjusting for the medical fw changes asmmcd
to become effeclive Ap1ill, 20,15.
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(§)

Reeerdl<eeriHg. All leaHs, liHes ef eredit, er
letters ef eredit, the rreeeeds ef whieh will be

used fer a eemffl:ereiel, eerj9erete, 19t-tsiRess,
investmeRt j9FBj9eHy er YeRtl:ue, er agrieHlhue
rHrrese, shall be serarateJy ideHtified iH the
reeenls eftfle eredit uAieR anEl refleFteEI as sueh
iR finaneial and stetistieal repeF1:s reEJ:Hireel By
the AdmiHistrater iA 8ubrart (b)(2)(C)(iY) ef
this RHle er tke RegieAal Direeter ef tke
~tatieRal

Credit UnieR AEimiRistratien.

(a) Commercial lending and member business loans. State
chartered federally insured credit unions shall adhere to the
federal regulations prescribed by the National Credit Union
Administration relating to commercial lending and member
business loan program pursuant to 12 C.F.R. Part 723. and this
Rule.
(b) Written loan policies. The Board of Directors shall give
notification to the Administrator of Credit Unions prior to
initiating a commercial lending and member business loan
program and adopt specific commercial lending and member
business loan policies and review them at least annually. The
Board of Directors shall review its commercial lending and
member business loan policies orior to any material change in the
credit union's commercial lending and member business loan
oro gram or related organizational structure. and in response to any
material change in portfolio performance or change in economic
conditions. Credit unions with an asset size of two hundred fifty
million dollars ($250,000,000) or below shall have commercial
lending and member business loan polices submitted to the
Administrator of Credit Unions 30 days prior to initiating a
commercial lending and member business loan orogram.

History Note:
Authority G.S. 54-109.12; 54-109.21(25); 54109. 78; 12 C.F.R. Part 741.3; 12 C.F.R. Part 723; 12 C.F.R. Part
741.203;
Eff. January I, 1988;
Amended Eff. August I, 1998; March 2, 1992;
Temporary Amendment Eff January I, 2017.

********************
Rule-making Agency: North Carolina Industrial Commission
Rule Citation: 04 NCAC JOJ.0/03
Effective Date: January I, 2017
Date Approved by the Rules Review Commission: December
15,2016
Reason for Action: A recent court order. Surgical Care
Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission, No. 16CVS-00600 (Wake County Superior Court).
The effects of the August 9, 2016 decision in Surgical Care
Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission, No. 16CVS-00600 (Wake County Superior Court) necessitate the
expedited implementation of this temporary rule. This recent
court decision invalidated the Industrial Commission's medical
fee schedule provisions for ambulatory surgery centers which

31:14

had taken effect April I, 2015, based on the court's interpretation
ofSession Lmv 2013-410, Section 33(a), and the application of its
fiscal note exemption language. Due to the court decision, the
medical fee schedule, as applied only to ambulatory surgery
centers, reverts back to the pre-April 1, 2015 provisions which
provided for maximum reimbursement rate of 67. 15% of billed
charges, resulting in a potentially retroactive and prospective
multi-million dollar increase in costs to the workers'
compensation system. Although the August 9, 2016 decision has
been stayed by the Superior Court during the appeal to the North
Carolina Court of Appeals, it is the Industrial Commission's
statutory obligation to adopt a rule as quickly as possible to
restore balance to the workers' compensation system pursuant to
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26 in the event the decision is upheld on
appeal. By putting a temporary rule in place as soon as possible,
the period of time subject to a potential retroactive invalidation
of the ambulatory surgery center fee schedule provisions will be
limited to April/, 2015 to December 31, 2016 providing certainty
regarding medical costs for 2017 and beyond.
CHAPTER I 0 -INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
SUBCHAPTER !OJ- FEES FOR MEDICAL
COMPENSATION
SECTION 0100- FEES FOR MEDICAL
COMPENSATION
04 NCAC !OJ ,0103
FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL
SERVICES
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable
amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services shall be
based on the current federal fiscal year's facility-specific
Medicare rate established for each institutional facility by the
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS"). "Facilityspecific" rate means the all-inclusive amount eligible for payment
by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments. An
institutional facility may only be reimbursed for hospital
outpatient institutional services pursuant to this Paragraph and
Paragraphs (c), (d), and (0 of this Rule if it qualifies for payment
by CMS as an outpatient hospital.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital
inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April 1, 2015, 190 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 180 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 160 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital
outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April 1, 2015, 220 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 210 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017,200 percent of the
hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule,
maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided
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by critical access hospitals ("CAH"), as certified by CMS, are
based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates and outpatient
claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient
institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
( 1)
Beginning April 1, 2015, 200 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 190 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 170 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient
institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(I)
Beginning April 1, 2015, 230 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016, 220 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.

(3)

Beginning January 1, 2017, 210 percent of the
hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.

(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Rule, the
maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided
by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the
Meelieare ASC reimbursemeHt ameHHt 8eterlflineel By applying
the mest reeently aderted and effeetiYe Medieare Payment
SJ·stem Pelieies fer Serviees FurnisheS in AmBHiatery Sur-gieal
Centers enel 0Htpatient Prespeetiye most recently adopted and
effective Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and
Ambulatory Surgical Center Payment System Systems
reimbursement formula and fae.tefs-factors. including all QPP.S
Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and ASG Ambulatory
Surgical Center Payment Systems Addenda, as published
annually er refcreReeEI By wel:lsite in the Federal Register and on
the CMS website at https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/MedicareFee-for-ServicePayment/HospitalOutpatientPPS/index.html(''the Medieare ASC
faeilit;· sreeifie amount"). ("the OPPS/ASC Medicare rule"). An
ASC's specific Medicare wage index value as set out in the
OPPS/ASC Medicare rule shall be applied in the calculation of
the maximum allowable amount for any institutional service it
provides.
Reimeursement shall ee eased en the fully
imfllemeHteEI f3BymeRt emeHHt iH A88en8Hm AA, FiHal AA (Final
ASC Ce\'ered Surgieal Procedures fur CY 291§, 2917) and
Addendum BB, Final BB (Final ASC Co>'ered Aneillat)' Sm•iees
Integral to Co\'ered Surgieal Preeedures fur 291§, 2917) as
pHblisheEI in the Federal Register, er their sueeessers. The
ma3dmum reilfl:burselfl:eHt rate fer iHstit~:~tieHal sepo,·iees previded
by ambulatery suFgieal eeHters is 2QQ pereeHt ef the .Meelieare
ASC fueility speei:He aJHeHHt.
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(h)
The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for
institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical centers is
as follows:
(I)
Beginniog April 1, 291§, 229 pereent of the
Medieere ASC faeility speei:He ameHHt.
(2)
Beginniog January 1, 2916,219 pereent efthe
Medieare ASC faeility speei:He ameHHt.
(3)
Begioning January I, 2917, 299 pereent eftke
M.edieare ASC faeility speei:He atHBHHt.
(1)
A maximum reimbursement rate of200 percent
shall apply to institutional services that are
eligible for payment by CMS when performed
at an ASC.
(2)
A maximum reimbursement rate of 135 percent
shall apply to institutional services performed
at an ASC that are eligible for payment by CMS
if performed at an outpatient hospital facility.
but would not be eligible for payment by CMS
if performed at an ASC.
(h) ~!etwithstanding Paragmph (g) ef this Rule, if surgieal
preee81:1res listed iH AdeleHelUifl: EE (Surgieal Preee8ures
ElEeluded lfem Payment in ASCs fer CY 29 17) te the most
reeently adepted and effeetiYe Hosrital Outpatient Presrecti\'e
Pa,·ment BREi AmBulatefY Surgieal CeHter Paylfl:eHt Systems as
pul:llisheEl iH the Federal Register, er its s1:1eeessers, are prevideel
at ASCs, they shall ee reimbHrseEI with the IHBJEiiHHffi Bffl8\:lftt
SeiHg the usHal, ettstemary, BREI reaseRable eharge fer the serviee
er treatmeHt reHElered.
(i) If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier
payment, the sum of the facility-specific reimbursement amount
and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by
the applicable percentages set out in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e), (f),
and (h) ofthis Rule.
U) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional
facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee schedules in
Rule .0102 ofthis Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable
amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG") payment
pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or
managed care organization shall pay no more than the billed
charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and
outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment shall be
determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those
specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient institutional acute
care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.

History Note:
Authority G.S. 97-25; 97-26; 97-SO(a); S.L.
2013-410;
Eff. April/, 2015;
Temporary Amendment Ell January I, 2017.
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P R 0 C E E D I N G S

1

2

1

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

We are on the record.

3

Good afternoon.

Today is November 18, 2016.

This is

4

a North Carolina Industrial Commission public hearing

5

on proposed rulemaking.

6

of the North Carolina Industrial Commission.

7

compliance with the requirements of Chapter 138A-15(e)

8

of the State Government Ethics Act, I remind all

9

members of the Commission of their duty to avoid

I'm Charlton Allen, Chairman
In

I also inquire as

10

conflicts of interest under 138A.

11

to whether there is any known conflict of interest to

12

any matters coming before the Commission at this time.

13

Hearing none, we will proceed.

14

hearing is to receive comments from the public

15

regarding 04 NCAC 10J .0103 proposed for temporary

16

rulemaking by the Commission and submitted for

17

publication on the Office of Administrative Hearings'

18

website on October 18, 2016.

19

comments - written comments from the public, but the

20

record will be held open to receive written comments

21

from the public through the close of business in - on

22

November 29, 2016.

23

introduce the other Commissioners.

24

Commissioners Bernadine Ballance and Christopher

25

Loutit, and to my left are Commissioners Linda

The purpose of this

We have not yet received

At this time, I would like to
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1

Cheatham and Tammy Nance.

Commissioner Daughtridge

2

could not be with us today.

3

Commission wishes to thank members of the public and

4

the various stakeholders who attended our public

5

comment meeting on October 3rd, 2016, and gave comments

6

or proposals regarding the rulemaking options

7

considered by the Commissioners.

8

much appreciates everyone's time and efforts in that

9

regard.

At this time, the

The Commission very

Anyone who wishes to speak at this hearing

10

must sign up to do so with Kendall Bourdon -

11

Ms. Bourdon, would you please raise your hand - so

12

that we have the correct spelling of your name and can

13

call you in order to speak.

14

speak and has not yet signed up, please do so now.

15

Seeing no movement toward Ms. Bourdon's table, the

16

first speaker will be Kendall Bourdon, the rulemaking

17

coordinator, followed by the members of the public in

18

the order that they have signed up.

21

22

Ms. Bourdon.

KENDALL BOURDON

19
20

If anybody would like to

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Ms. Bourdon, will you please

state your name, position and with whom you work?
MS. BOURDON:

My name is Kendall Bourdon, and I am

23

the rulemaking coordinator for the North Carolina

24

Industrial Commission.

25

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And do you have any prepared
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1

exhibits that you would like to place into the record

2

of these proceedings?

3

MS. BOURDON:

I do.

I have Exhibit 1, which is a

4

copy of the proposed rule amendment as submitted to

5

the North Carolina Office of Administrative Hearings,

6

Rules Division, for publication on its website on

7

October 18'h, 2016.

8

copy of the Superior Court Decision in the case

9

Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC, versus North Carolina

Next, I have Exhibit 2, which is a

10

Industrial Commission, No. 16-CVS-0060, Wake County

11

Superior Court.

12

Exhibit 3, which is a record of the public comment

13

meeting held by the Commission on October 3rd, 2016.

14

(Exhibit Numbers 1, 2 and 3 are

15

identified.)

16

And finally,

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I would like to submit

And would you briefly give us

17

some background and list the rules that would be

18

affected by the proposed rule changes?

19

MS. BOURDON:

Yes.

We have one rule for a

20

temporary rulemaking.

21

of the Administrative Code, Subchapter lOJ.

22

propose to amend Rule .0103, titled Fees for

23

Institutional Services.

24

would be effective January 1, 2017.

25

rule is proposed pursuant to North Carolina General

This rule is found in Title 04
we

This proposed temporary rule
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4

1

Statute 150B-21.1(a) (5).

The effects of the August

2

9th, 2016 Decision in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC,

3

versus North Carolina Industrial Commission, which was

4

submitted as Exhibit 2 in this proceeding, necessitate

5

the expedited implementation of this temporary rule.

6

This recent Court Decision invalidated the Industrial

7

Commission's medical fee schedule provisions for

8

ambulatory surgery centers which had taken effect

9

April 1, 2015, based on the Court's interpretation of

10

Session Law 2013-410, Section 33(a), and the

11

application of its fiscal note exemption language.

12

Due to the Court Decision, the medical fee schedule as

13

applied only to ambulatory surgery centers reverts

14

back to the pre-April 1, 2015 provisions which

15

provided for a maximum reimbursement rate of 67.15

16

percent of billed charges, resulting in an unforeseen

17

retroactive and prospective multi-million dollar

18

increase in costs to the workers' compensation system.

19

Although the August 9, 2016 Decision has been stayed

20

by the Superior Court during the appeal to the North

21

Carolina Court of Appeals, it is the Industrial

22

Commission's statutory obligation to adopt a rule as

23

quickly as possible to restore balance to the workers'

24

compensation system pursuant to North Carolina General

25

Statute 97-26 in the event the Decision is upheld on
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1

appeal.

By putting a temporary rule in place as soon

2

as possible, the period of time subject to a potential

3

retroactive invalidation of the ambulatory surgery

4

center fee schedule provisions will be limited to

5

April 1, 2015 to December 31st, 2016, providing

6

certainty regarding medical costs for 2017 and beyond.

7

Prior to proposing the temporary rule, the Industrial

8

Commission voluntarily held a non-mandatory public

9

comment meeting on October 3rct, 2016, and accepted

10

written comments from September 2nd, 2016 through

11

October lOth, 2016, in order to allow any person or

12

entity the opportunity to present comments and

13

proposals regarding potential rulemaking options to

14

address the effects of the August gth, 2016 Court

15

Decision.

16

proposals and comments received in conjunction with

17

that meeting has been submitted as Exhibit 3 here in

18

this proceeding.

19

consideration to all comments and materials presented

20

in formulating the proposed temporary rule.

21

proposed temporary rule was submitted to the North

22

Carolina Office of Administrative Hearings, Rules

23

Division, on October 18th, 2016.

24

published on their website on October 21st, 2016.

25

Simultaneously, notice of the proposed rule was posted

The record of that meeting and all

The Commission gave thorough

The

The rule was
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1

on the Industrial Commission website as required by

2

statute.

3

rule to the Commission's Rules Listserv.

4

interested person's Listserv that we are required to

5

maintain.

6

Also, notice was emailed with a link to this

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

Do any members of the

7

Commission have questions for Ms. Bourdon?

8

not, you may return to your seat.

9

10

11
12

MS. BOURDON:

This is an

Okay.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Thank you.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

The first speaker will be

13

Ms. Kelli Collins.

14

to this table (indicating) .

Ms. Collins, if you would step up

KELLI COLLINS

15

16

MS. COLLINS:

17

really hurt myself on.

This looks like something I could

18

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

19

MS. COLLINS:

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

It's all right.

Take your time.

And you were so graceful.
Ms. Collins, would you please

21

state your name for the record and tell us whom you

22

represent, if any particular organization?

23

If

MS. COLLINS:

Yes.

My name is Kelli Collins, and

24

I'm the regional vice-president of operations for

25

Surgical Care Affiliates, and that's who I'm
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1

2

representing today.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And please also identify

3

the specific proposed rule or rules you will be

4

addressing in your remarks.

5

MS. COLLINS:

I'm going to look at my attorney and

6

let him give me those numbers.

7

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

to hear from you.

10

MS. COLLINS:

04 NCAC lOJ .0103.

Okay.

Thank you.

All right.

We'll be happy

SCA is proud to operate

11

seven ambulatory facilities - or ASCs in North

12

Carolina.

13

will be submitted for the record.

14

Commission's proposed temporary rule for the following

15

reasons:

16

does not meet North Carolina statutory requirements.

17

The reduction in rates to two hundred percent of

18

Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful to the

19

workers' compensation system.

20

authority for adopting a temporary rule.

21

Carolina - North Carolina law requires that fee

22

schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to

23

ensure that injured workers are provided the standard

24

of services and care intended by the Workers' Comp Act

25

and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for

SCA's full response to the temporary rule
SCA opposes the

The temporary rule is not cost effective and

There is no statutory
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1

providing these services.

The Commission's proposed

2

temporary rule does not meet these requirements since

3

the proposed fee schedule does not include all

4

procedures that can be performed safely in an

5

ambulatory surgery center.

6

that uses only Medicare as its foundation,

7

proposed rule does not include a wide variety of

8

procedures that can be performed safely and cost

9

effectively on the working age population.

By crafting a fee schedule
the

Even with

10

the allowance for usual and customary payment for

11

surgical procedures that are not included in the

12

Medicare ASC fee schedule, there will remain a great

13

uncertainty and likelihood that there will be numerous

14

disputes that will need to be resolved by the

15

Industrial Commission and/or the Courts.

16

uncertainty of whether and in what amount ASCs will be

17

reimbursed for surgical procedures as not covered by

18

Medicare will create access issues and will increase

19

costs since these procedures will be done in higher

20

cost hospital inpatient settings.

21

proposed temporary rule does not separate

22

reimbursement for implants.

23

reimburse for implants results in even less

24

reimbursement to ambulatory surgery centers and

25

reduces the incentive to provide services involving

Additionally, the

The failure to separately

GRAHAM ERLACHER &ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD- SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103

336/768-1152

This

51

9

Full Commission Public Hearing, November 18,2016

1

high cost implants.

In contrast, hospitals will be

2

able to recover higher implant costs by shifting

3

patients to higher cost implant inpatient settings for

4

those surgical procedures.

5

to two hundred percent of ASC Medicare would also have

6

a greater negative effect on workers' access to

7

surgical care.

8

Carolinians depend on the community-based surgical

9

care that ASCs provide this represents a real threat

Reducing the fee schedule

Given how many injured North

10

to patients in our state.

Currently, injured workers

11

are forced to receive treatment in more expensive

12

inpatient settings where scheduling services often

13

takes longer and can result in delays in care.

14

the Commission admits this since it has said that this

15

reimbursement disparity would - and I quote,

16

" ...potentially diminish the pool of doctors available

17

to treat injured employees and reduce the quality and

18

timeliness of care."

19

concede - and again, I quote, "That impact will likely

20

be most severely realized on our state's more rural

21

areas where the quality and availability of effective

22

treatment is already a great concern."

23

that the only way to ensure injured workers access to

24

high-quality, effective care is to create a parity

25

between the ASC and the hospital outpatient fee

Even

The Commission went on to
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1

schedules.

Lastly, the Commission's notice of its

2

intent to adopt a temporary rule - the Commission

3

states that the reason is the recent Court Order

4

entered by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul

5

Ridgeway.

6

provide a basis for adopting a temporary rule and

7

bypassing the requirements for permanent rulemaking.

8

North Carolina General Statute allows an agency to

9

adopt a temporary rule only under very limited

However, Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not

10

circumstances.

A court can only be the basis for

11

temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the

12

immediate adoption of a rule.

13

Judge Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption

14

of a temporary rule.

15

invalid ASC schedule, Judge Ridgeway's Decision

16

clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013

17

continues to be effective.

18

Commission initiate rulemaking with the proposed fee

19

schedule recommendation in SCA's September proposal,

20

which is consistent with North Carolina statutory

21

requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be

22

performed in ASCs and results in substantial savings

23

to the workers' compensation system in North Carolina.

24

We believe that any proposed action taken should give

25

North Carolina's injured workers access to

There is nothing in

Instead, in setting aside the

SCA recommends that the
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1

high-quality, community-based care that they need and

2

deserve.

3
4

Thank you again for the opportunity.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Thank you, Ms. Collins.

Commissioners, do you have questions for Ms. Collins?

5

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

No.

6

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Thank you so much.

7

MS. COLLINS:

8
9

10

Thank you.

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
Mr. Andy Ellen.

The next speaker in order will be

Mr. Ellen, if you would step forward.
ANDY ELLEN

11

12

Okay.

MR. ELLEN:

Thank you, Chairman Allen, and members
I'm Andy Ellen.

I'm

13

of the Industrial Commission.

14

president and general counsel of the North Carolina

15

Retail Merchants Association, and I'm also the

16

spokesman today for a number of groups, and I think

17

John McMillan appeared for our group last time, but

18

was unavailable to be here, and so I'm John's

19

substitute -not nearly as good as John, but John's

20

substitute today, and I'm here on behalf of the

21

following groups, and I can provide this list as well:

22

Capital Associated Industries, the North Carolina

23

Association of County Commissioners, the North

24

Carolina Association of Self-Insurers, the North

25

Carolina Automobile Dealers Association, the North
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1

Carolina Chamber of Commerce, the North Carolina Farm

2

Bureau and their affiliated companies, the North

3

Carolina Forestry Association, the North Carolina Home

4

Builders Association, the North Carolina League of

5

Municipalities, the North Carolina Manufacturers

6

Alliance, the North Carolina Retail Merchants

7

Association, the American Insurance Association and

8

Property and Casualty Insurers of America Association,

9

Builders Mutual Insurance Company, Dealers Choice

10

Mutual Insurance Company, First Benefits Insurance

11

Mutual, Forestry Mutual, the Employers Coalition and

12

WCI, Incorporated.

13

you.

14

think you very adequately described, this process that

15

is before you was the - was the subject of a much

16

negotiated agreement between a number of parties that

17

lasted over three years, and I unfortunately was the

18

one that tried to sort of herd the cats on that, and

19

this is the project that will not end, and I

20

appreciate you taking swift action after Judge

21

Ridgeway's Decision to try and address this issue.

22

are very much - and I - in referencing the Rule 04

23

NCAC lOJ .0103, specifically Subsection (g), that you

24

have gone in and adopted a fee schedule of two hundred

25

percent of Medicare - and frankly,

First, I would like to say thank

John McMillan appeared before you, and as I

that was what we
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1

all thought we were doing for all providers at the

2

time we came to that agreement between the hospitals,

3

the physicians, people that we thought had the

4

apparent and actual authority to represent the

5

Orthopedic Association, including the ambulatory

6

surgical centers, as well as the business community

7

and all of the insurance community.

8

three-year process and numerous studies, we thought we

9

were taking care of all the providers and everybody

10

was adequately represented at the table, and so the

11

two hundred percent that you have put in, which was

12

phased in over a three - over a three-step process

13

that you did- we thought that's what we had all done,

14

and we appreciate that you have gone back and trying

15

to rectify that and put clearly in the law what we all

16

thought was the case anyway, so thank you very much

17

for that.

18

statements about Ms. Collins' statement about being,

19

you know, not adequate reimbursement for ambulatory

20

surgical centers.

21

investigation, hired a consultant to do a study for

22

us, looked at WCRI data, and I think what we found

23

was, you know, in South Carolina the Medical Plus rate

24

was a hundred and forty percent; in

25

a hundred and fifty percent.

And through that

I do want to sort of make a couple of

You know, we did a very thorough

Tennessee~

it was

And if you also look at,
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1

you know, I think, the comments that we had back -

2

that John McMillan submitted, we stated that for some

3

procedures - for instance, ASC reimbursement prior to

4

the changes that you made.

5

was thirty-one percent higher than median and

6

forty-nine percent higher than the shoulder

7

arthroscopies procedure prior to what you did, higher

8

than the thirty-three state median.

9

done with the two hundred percent figure is got into

For a knee arthroscopy,

it

What you have

10

that margin of what is a reasonable fee, and again,

11

one that was phased in over three - over three steps

12

to better adequately allow - I

13

referred to at that time as a softer landing so that

14

they could prepare for it, so I appreciate that part

15

of it.

16

question about procedures that are not allowed to be

17

done in an - in an ambulatory surgical center, and I

18

think you tried to address that in here to allow them

19

to do that, and I think as a provider community - I

20

mean as an employer community, as an insurer

21

community, we very much support them having the

22

ability to do those procedures.

23

has not approved that, but you are trying to find a

24

methodology to get there, and I think that's the

25

benefit of everybody, if they have the ability to

I

think the hospitals

will say - and Ms. Collins referenced the

Medicare, you know,
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1

compete, but I do think there may be - and Ms. Collins

2

makes one part that I will agree with.

3

potentially with a usual and customary charge be

4

creating a little bit of uncertainty in that or some

5

more people coming before you to argue about what the

6

applicable rates are.

7

we would propose on that last section is tweak that a

8

little bit and let them perform those procedures, but

9

use the same type of methodology that they have for

You could

We would sort of - our - what

10

outpatient.

As I understand it, for outpatient

11

procedures, Medicare pays hospitals a slight higher

12

fee because they have bundled healthcare.

13

to serve everybody, and they allow them to make that

14

cost up.

15

customary, you're in a sense could be paying more to

16

an ambulatory surgical center for a procedure Medicare

17

does not let them provide, and so what we would

18

propose - and I don't know what the number is yet -

19

that you pay ambulatory surgical centers a percentage

20

of what you're paying hospitals for those items that

21

are - that hospitals are allowed to provide under

22

Medicare, but currently ambulatory surgical centers

23

are not allowed to provide.

24

what that figure is yet.

25

Care Affiliates - their September the 20th, 2016

They have

Under the current with the usual and

So I don't know if that -

I will point to Surgical
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1

investment report, which I'm glad to provide, where

2

they readily say that they provide forty-five percent

3

savings off of hospital outpatient procedures, and so

4

I think that's a place you could start, which is, you

5

know, fifty-five percent of what you're paying for the

6

hospital on those procedures that Medicare does not

7

cover in an ambulatory surgical center.

8

saying that's the right number, but certainly a number

9

that we could start and investigate real quickly along

I'm not

10

with some of the other participants in this

11

discussion, but I think that would solve a couple of

12

things.

13

have proposed and as we, again, very much thank you

14

for doing on the procedures that are covered by

15

Medicare ambulatory surgical centers are allowed to

16

do, and then for those procedures that Medicare does

17

not allow ambulatory surgical centers to perform, let

18

them perform them, come up with a specific rate so

19

that people aren't coming before you arguing that a

20

rate is not adequate.

21

the same methodology and do a percentage off of what

22

the hospitals are being paid for those very same

23

services, and I think that would benefit both

24

ambulatory surgical centers - I think it would also

25

benefit the provider community.

If you did the two hundred percent as you

And again,

I think you can use

It would benefit the
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1

workers as well and would provide adequate

2

reimbursement as evidenced by what some of the other

3

states pay, as you're charged with doing by the

4

General Assembly, and what Surgical Care Affiliates

5

have said in their very own documents is a savings off

6

of that.

7

allows for some negotiation between providers should

8

they wish to do that.

9

still preserved.

Lastly, I think, if possible, 97-26(c)

I - it was unclear if that's

We would like to have that ability

10

if a provider or self-insurer or insurer would like to

11

negotiate further with a provider, whether it be a

12

surgical care or - an ambulatory surgical center or

13

whoever it may be - that they can still have that

14

ability to negotiate more.

15

that was in here or not, but I would make that last

16

point so - and with, Mr. Chairman, I do not have any

17

other comments, and we will be submitting written

18

comments hopefully in the next week.

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We're not sure quite if

Okay.

All right.

20

do you have any questions for Mr. Ellen?

21

right.

22

Okay.

All

Thank you, Mr. Ellen.

MR. ELLEN:

23

Commissioners.

24

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

25

Commissioners,

Thank you, Mr. Chairman; thank you

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And the next speaker will
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1

be Mr. Ronnie Cook.
RONNIE COOK

2
3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Mr. Cook, would you please state

4

your name and tell whom you represent, if any

5

particular organization?

6

MR. COOK:

Yes.

Thank you.

My name is Ronnie

7

Cook, and I represent the North Carolina Hospital

8

Association, all the hospital and health systems in

9

North Carolina, as well as their affiliated employed

10

11

and physicians.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And please identify the

12

specific proposed rule that you wish to address in

13

your remarks.

14
15

16

17

18

MR. COOK:

Okay.

And I'm here to talk about 04

NCAC lOJ .0103, specifically Subsections (g) and (h).
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

All right.

We'll be happy

to hear from you, sir.
MR. COOK:

Okay.

On Subsection (g), which is the

19

maximum reimbursement rate for institutional services

20

provided by an ambulatory surgical center, it's two

21

hundred percent of the Medicare ASC facility specific

22

amount.

23

think it's an appropriate reimbursement amount.

24

consistent with the logic that was provided earlier in

25

Andy's comments as he related to the prior

We are in agreement with that amount.
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1

negotiation.

Obviously, hospitals get a mark-up - a

2

similar mark-up on Medicare rates.

3

moved from this section, from our percent of

4

charge-type reimbursement to this more fixed rate

5

related to Medicare - a mark-up on Medicare, that

6

resulted in significant savings related to the payers

7

and to the - and to the individuals involved.

8

Hospitals understood this, realized this and were in

9

acceptance of this, and we were thinking at that point

Obviously, when we

10

during that negotiation that this applied to all

11

providers.

12

to the fixed rate versus any sort of percent of charge

13

or any type of unbundling-type logic is you do get the

14

bundled services.

15

predictable amount of service.

16

that are billed as part of these codes that are billed

17

to Medicare are rolled up based on status indicators

18

and are paid accordingly, so it is a bundled payment,

19

so there is savings to the carriers, as well as

20

savings to the member, and it's very significant.

21

are in agreement with that.

22

inappropriate to pay ambulatory surgery centers at a

23

rate higher than you would pay a hospital because, in

24

theory, if you think about the industry standard,

25

there is truly a hierarchy of care, and that hierarchy

Also, another key point of this is going

You do get a fixed and a very
All of the services

we think that it would be
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1

of care goes anywhere from licensure all the way up

2

through the type of services rendered, the type of

3

costs, what they can do - the services that those

4

particular facilities can do.

5

services that can be provided in a physician office.

6

Then you go up from there to a freestanding ambulatory

7

surgery center, and they obviously can only provide

8

care for up to twenty-four hours.

9

hospital outpatient department, and they can provide

For example, you have

Then you go into a

10

care beyond that, but, ultimately, they need to - they

11

deal with higher regulations, higher costs, more

12

intense services, sicker patients in a lot of cases,

13

and therefore - and then you go from that to an

14

inpatient setting.

15

at an ambulatory surgery center, obviously, they can

16

provide care to a point, but if something goes bad in

17

that situation, they have to go to a hospital, and the

18

same thing at a hospital outpatient.

19

goes south in that particular procedure, then we have

20

the inpatient setting, so there is a hierarchy of care

21

in that and there are higher costs as you go through

22

that hierarchy, and therefore, it makes sense that -

23

and Medicare has recognized this,

24

makes sense, and other payers as well - managed care

25

payers, as well as Medicaid - so it makes sense that

And if you think about the concept

so it definitely
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1

there's a comparable relationship between payments, so

2

we believe that the two hundred percent of Medicare

3

for ASC is a valid and appropriate payment.

4

we move to Section (h) , now Section (h) tries to deal

5

with those services on a particular addendum in the

6

Medicare rule, which is Addendum EE, which is surgical

7

procedures excluded from payment in an ASC for

8

calendar year 2017, but it could be for any calendar

9

year because there will be services.

Okay.

As

These are codes

10

that Medicare has deemed that is inappropriate to be

11

performed in an ASC for various clinical reasons.

12

have analyzed those specific codes that would be

13

excluded, especially the ones that had an OPPS - or

14

hospital status indicator, which means they could be

15

done in a hospital outpatient setting.

16

hundred and - two thousand and ninety-six codes on

17

that list.

18

forty-seven are codes which have an outpatient status

19

indicator of C, which means they really should be

20

inpatient only, so these are codes that Medicare feels

21

should be only inpatient.

22

there's twenty-one codes where Medicare says that

23

there should be no additional payment, so these are

24

codes that they call package codes.

25

status indicator of N, and that means they should be

We

There's two

Of those, one thousand, seven hundred and

And then, in addition,
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1

packaged and paid as part of another service, you

2

know, so what we're talking about then is somewhere in

3

the neighborhood of two or three hundred codes that

4

clinically probably could be performed at an ASC, as

5

well as performed in an outpatient setting.

6

in agreement and see no reason that an ambulatory

7

surgery center would not be eligible to provide those

8

services as well as a hospital outpatient department,

9

which is consistent with Andy's comments.

And we're

We see no

10

reason that there should not be a difference in that.

11

However, going beyond that, now there could be, I

12

guess, in a few rare, rare cases the potential that

13

someone that's less than sixty-five years old with

14

physician advisement would be able to have some

15

services performed that would be on an inpatient only

16

list for Medicare, so the younger folks may be able to

17

tolerate such a procedure where some folks over

18

Medicare age would not.

19

certain statutes already that there is a UCR-type

20

reimbursement for that, but we think that would be

21

unusual in nature.

22

those cases.

23

since it is an exception-type basis, may be

24

appropriate, but when you get into Section (h) and we

25

talk about how to reimburse these other procedures, we

We do understand that under

There would not be that many of

And at that point, we think the UCR,
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do not think it's appropriate to have a UCR-type

2

reimbursement.

3

administratively cost process, and, in addition, it

4

potentially could undermine the fixed payment versus

5

the unbundled payment for charges.

6

result in payment being higher to the ambulatory

7

surgery center versus the hospital which i s - it's on

8

the hospital fee schedule, so they would be getting

9

two hundred percent of the Medicare fee schedule, so

We think it's a burdensome process, an

It also could

10

it's potential that those rates could be higher.

We

11

do not think that is appropriate because we do believe

12

that there is a true hierarchy of care and a hierarchy

13

of costs that should be recognized.

14

believe - again, as what Andy was talking about

15

earlier - that there should be a difference.

16

should be a difference, and it should relate to the

17

hospital outpatient fee schedule.

18

up some information today.

19

Andy quoted at that - the percentages that he got out

20

of the - out of the presentations that were made

21

earlier.

22

done in 2017.

23

neighborhood of sixty-seven percent.

24

MedPAC report.

25

but we believe there is a difference.

Therefore, we do

There

Again, I've looked

Obviously, we saw what

I've looked at some - an OIG report that was
It says that number might be in the
I've looked at a

They have differing numbers, and so -
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1

obviously, if you're getting two hundred percent of a

2

Medicare fee schedule for ASC and two- and there's a

3

slightly higher number for hospitals - two hundred

4

percent - we think that that relationship should be

5

maintained for those procedures that are not on the

6

ambulatory surgery fee schedule, but are on the

7

hospital outpatient fee schedule, so there is a

8

difference.

9

schedule, and they list a lot of procedure codes.

There's an ambulatory surgery fee

10

There are certain procedure codes that Medicare say

11

they don't think it's appropriate for the ambulatory

12

surgery center to do, but they have said that a

13

hospital outpatient can do those, so those procedure

14

codes- that difference - we're saying is appropriate

15

for the ambulatory surgery center to do those in this

16

setting, but we think that the relationship between

17

the payment should be consistent.

18

hundred percent of hospital outpatient now.

19

two hundred percent of ASC, so as we move away from

20

the fee schedules, that relationship should stay.

21

That difference, whatever it is, whatever it is,

22

should stay, should be consistent so the ambulatory

23

surgery centers would have an incentive.

24

would have an incentive theoretically to use

25

ambulatory surgery centers if they think it's

So we have a two
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1

appropriate.

The payers would have an incentive

2

because payment is fixed.

3

going to be.

4

obviously, on a percent of charge basis.

5

from our point of view that it makes common sense and

6

everybody wins.

7

particular setting.

8

we have thought about a process that if you wanted to,

9

instead of looking at outsider, independent numbers,

They understand what it's

It's a reduction from what it was,
So it looks

It's a win-win for everybody in that
Now one way you could do this -

10

you could run a relationship between the fee

11

schedules.

12

publishes their fee schedules, they do it by code - by

13

surgical procedure code, and there's a related

14

reimbursement.

15

whether it's paid for or not, and there's a

16

reimbursement code.

17

any modification in this area - that the only way we

18

would pay for a service is if it - if the payment code

19

is allowed under Medicare outpatient prospected

20

payments, so there would be caveat with that, but we

21

would compare those two codes for the same services

22

that are on both fee schedules.

23

fee schedule for Medicare and I have a code, I find

24

that corresponding code on the hospital outpatient.

25

If it's a match code and it's reimbursable under both,

Obviously, Medicare - when Medicare

There's a status indicator that tells

And we specifically think that

So, if I have an ASC
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1

then I compare the two fee schedules.

2

me a relationship.

3

matches.

4

do a relationship, and whatever that relationship is

5

in aggregate could be applied to these codes where

6

there is a difference, and that would maintain the

7

integrity of what we talked about earlier, that the

8

fee schedules are paid under the same basis.

9

available for any questions that you might have.

10
11

That would give

I do that for every code that

So I take the aggregate of all of that and

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Now I'm

Commissioners, do you have any

questions?

12

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

13

understand your last point.

14

a doctor who provides at an ASC the same service that

15

a doctor is providing - or could be - could provide on

16

an outpatient basis there is a reasonable basis for

17

the reimbursement to the ASC to be less than the

18

reimbursement to the outpatient facility.

19

than the relationship that you - the fact that the ASC

20

codes are being reimbursed at a lower rate, what is

21

the - your rationale for the reduction in the

22

reimbursement rate for the ASC service?

23

MR. COOK:

Yeah.

I'm trying to

So you're saying that if

And other

Well, it's not really a reduction.

24

What it is is keeping the - because what you have

25

proposed in (g) is two hundred percent of Medicare on
GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD· SUITE 22

WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103
336/76~1152

69

Full Commission Public Hearing. November 18, 2016

27

1

the ASC fee schedule.

What hospitals get reimbursed

2

now is two hundred percent of Medicare reimbursement

3

on the outpatient prospected payment fee schedule.

4

There is already an inherent difference, so if I'm

5

on - if I do a service and I'm on either one of those

6

fee schedules, there will be a difference in payment.

7

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

8

MR. COOK:

9

certain rate.

That's (unintelligible).

If you do it at an ASC, it will be a
If you do it at a hospital, it will be

10

a different rate.

It could be the same rate, but I

11

think the way Medicare set those up that it's designed

12

where the ASC would never get paid more than a

13

hospital, so there is a difference now when it's on a

14

fee schedule, so there's already that difference.

15

what we're -what we're, I guess, proposing is that

16

same logic, that same difference should apply to these

17

other services that theoretically Medicare says that

18

ASC shouldn't do.

19

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

20

MR. COOK:

Right.

So

And the---

And so we're saying that same

21

relationship.

So if you think it's appropriate that

22

the payments are where they need to be under what you

23

proposed, then what we're saying is you take that same

24

logic and you put it over here for this bundle of

25

codes and services right now that it says an ASC can't
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1

do.

2

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

3

MR. COOK:

4

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

Right.

Does that make sense?
Well, it - I understand

5

what you're saying, but the basis for the reduction

6

comes from how Medicare values the services within

7

their system of taking lots of factors into

8

consideration.

9

percent.

10

The two hundred percent is two hundred

The difference comes from Medicare - the
I t ' s - so---

Medicare variable, it would appear.

11

MR. COOK:

Well---

12

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

---Medicare says ASCs

13

shouldn't be providing - say, it's a surgery - this

14

type of surgery.

15

is - ASCs are saying we can - we should and we can.

16

You're agreeing that ASC can---

It sounds like what you're saying

17

MR. COOK:

Uh-huh.

18

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

---and it's the same thing

19

that would happen at an outpatient facility, but you

20

want to maintain the Medicare lower rate or variable

21

or multiplier, however you do it.

22

maintain Medicare's rationale---

23

MR. COOK:

24

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

25

You want to

Uh-huh.
---even though it's a

service that Medicare doesn't recognize as being
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1

performed - capable - or should - Medicare is saying

2

that this is a service that we are not going to

3

reimburse if it's performed at an ASC.

4

MR. COOK:

Is---?

Yeah, because if you think about it,

5

there's a list of those services on the hospital fee

6

schedule that Medicare says a hospital shouldn't do as

7

an outpatient.

8

of services that they set.

9

for example, every year, Medicare looks at the

It's the same logic.

There's a list

If Medicare - any time -

10

clinical validity of providing services in different

11

settings---

12

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

13

MR. COOK:

Uh-huh.

---and invariably, every year, they add

14

additional services to the ambulatory surgery fee

15

schedule because physicians in the surgery centers are

16

getting better at being able to do those services in

17

that setting and they feel like it's appropriate to do

18

it, even though there's only a twenty-four hour

19

service capability available at ASC, so every time

20

Medicare adds.

21

in the final rule that just came out.

22

add those services, they use that same logic.

They added six more services this year

23

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

24

MR. COOK:

25

Well, when they

Uh-huh.

It's on the fee schedule now, and it's

basically on the same logic, so we're saying that if
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1

Medicare had these services that we're saying it's

2

okay for an ASC to do, even though it's not on their

3

fee schedule - then if Medicare did that, they would

4

use the same logic.

5

under their fee schedule at the same approach, so

6

we're saying that that's what we should do, and the

7

reason - there is a difference in the hierarchy.

8

pay - obviously, they pay hospital inpatient more than

9

they pay hospital outpatient.

They would put it under their -

They

They pay hospital

10

outpatient more than they pay ambulatory surgery

11

centers, and they pay surgery centers far more than

12

they pay physicians, even though in some cases they

13

may be doing similar services, and they do that

14

because there is a far different cost associated with

15

doing that.

16

and more regulatory burdens.

17

emergency care, safety - their safety-net hospitals,

18

their disaster hospitals.

19

are sicker when they get there because there is a

20

hierarchy of where those services should be performed,

21

and that's why there's a difference in payment because

22

of that, because it actually costs far more.

23

when a surgery center - if I - again, like I said

24

before, if I have surgery in a surgery center and

25

something goes bad, they have to send me to the

Obviously, hospitals have more demands
They need - they provide

Their patients generally
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1

hospital, and that's a more costly environment, but

2

they have to do that.

3

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

4

MR. COOK:

Okay.

Obviously, when they do it over there,

5

there's no intent for that, and, historically, there's

6

a good percentage that you would have that service

7

done there and done well there, and that's probably

8

the appropriate setting.

9

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

Is what you are proposing

10

currently happening between the outpatient and the

11

hospital?

12

ought to be provided at a hospital, but it is provided

13

in the outpatient setting, is that - well, how is it

14

billed?

15

hospital?

16

For example, if Medicare says this service

Is it billed outpatient, or is it billed

It's billed hospital outpatient, and it

MR. COOK:

17

goes against the hospital outpatient fee schedule, and

18

we get two hundred percent of that.

19

procedure - a surgical procedure code that's on our

20

fee schedule, then we would bill it hospital

21

outpatient, and it would be paid at the - at two

22

hundred percent.

23

there was a decision made that it should be done

24

inpatient, then that's paid at a DRG.

25

different payment methodology.

So, if there is a

Now, you know if for some reason

That's a total

That's totally
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1

different if someone would say it had to be done

2

inpatient, but if it's billed that way, it would bill

3

hospital outpatient.

4

whatever that particular mark-up percentage is for the

5

time period that we're in, against the Medicare fee

6

schedule, and that's what will happen with the ASC.

7

If an ASC does the - a procedure, whatever it may be,

8

if it's on their fee schedule, they will get two

9

hundred percent of that, but then there's going to be

We would get the mark-up,

10

some codes that aren't on their fee schedule, and so

11

one could argue don't let them do that at all.

12

know, you could---

13

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

14

MR. COOK:

You

I understand.

---argue that because you don't let

15

hospitals do that necessarily.

16

but we don't think that's totally appropriate for

17

these type of patients that are younger in age.

18

think that it would - you know, that there - a lot of

19

advancements have been made and what can be done

20

outpatient, and we're okay to allow that to be done,

21

if you will, or propose that that be done on an

22

outpatient setting.

23

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

24

MR. COOK:

25

You could argue that,

Okay.

Let me---

We just think there needs to be a

relationship in payment, that there--GRAHAM ERlACHER &ASSOCIATES
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COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

Let me understand.

If

2

Medicare says a particular procedure should be done

3

inpatient and they don't have an outpatient code for

4

it, but that procedure is provided outpatient, it is

5

billed outpatient - the Medicare schedule for

6

outpatient for that instead of inpatient.

7

your understanding?

8

MR. COOK:

9

10
11
12
13

Is that

I'm not sure I - are you saying if

it's -you're saying if a hospital does an inpatient
procedure on an outpatient basis?
COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

Right.

Is it billed

inpatient or outpatient?
MR. COOK:

I guess if all the parties, including

14

the physician, were in agreement that it should be

15

done outpatient, even if it's not on that schedule,

16

then I assume under current regulation it would - it

17

would go to UCR, if I understood right - correctly.

18

We would bill it - if everybody says it should be

19

outpatient, we would bill it outpatient if that's what

20

the agreement was with all the parties, and I'm

21

assuming then that the current regulation, which is a

22

UCR payment, would come into play.

23

have to do that - and you can't do the relationship

24

between the same logic that we're proposing for

25

outpatient.

And the reason you

The outpatient is you can't do the same
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concept that I agreed to on outpatient to inpatient

2

because they're paid totally different under Medicare.

3

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

4

MR. COOK:

5

They're - there's a DRG payment which

is far different than---

6

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

7

MR. COOK:

8
9

I understand.

I understand.

---an APC-type payment, so there's no

relationship that you can--COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

10

MR. COOK:

11

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

12

MR. COOK:

13

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

14

MR. COOK:

I understand.

---develop.
Okay.

Thank you.

It's somewhat complex because you--Yeah.

---have to understand billing.

You

15

have to understand care and the way reimbursement is

16

designed and developed.

17

should be a constant relationship.

18

pay them two hundred percent of the ambulatory fee

19

schedule here on services that are on the fee

20

schedule, then that same logic should occur for those

21

services that aren't on the fee schedule that are

22

still done as an outpatient and payable.

23

24
25

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We're just saying that there

Other questions from the

Commission?
MR. COOK:

If it's okay to

Very good.
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2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

Mr. Cook, I have a

question.

3

MR. COOK:

Certainly.

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I understand the logic of what

5

you're saying and that relationship.

6

understand,

7

you're asking the Commission to do in the alternative

8

to what's been proposed regarding these EE codes.

9

do we get there if we were to adopt whatever it is

10

11

Help me to

though, the practical aspect of what

How

you're proposing?
MR. COOK:

So the logic could be - basically, it

12

would say something that for those codes on that

13

Addendum EE that are not inpatient only-type codes and

14

they are payable under the hospital outpatient OPPS -

15

so, in other words, we have payable codes under

16

outpatient PPS.

17

then the Commission is proposing to pay X percent of

18

the hospital outpatient prospected payment fee

19

schedule or X percent of two hundred percent of, so

20

what you would do is you would take the outpatient

21

prospected payment fee schedule.

22

same code over there on that particular schedule, and

23

let's say it's $100, and let's say the percentage

24

relationship- if the OIG schedule is right and it's

25

about sixty-five percent, which seems to be consistent

If those two codes - when they match,

You will find the
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1

with some of the numbers floating around, then you -

2

if it's a thousand bucks, you pay six hundred and

3

fifty bucks.

4

would know exactly what to do.

5

exactly what to expect on payment when they did it.

6

Everybody would know.

7

negotiation, no what does UCR mean, any - it would be

8

a - it would be a slam dunk.

9

10

It will be an automatic.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

The payers

The ASCs would know

There would be no UCR

All right.

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

And whatever that

11

percentage turned out to be, you would propose that

12

that be applied in the aggregate to any---?

13

MR. COOK:

Yeah, for all the codes---

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:
15

16

MR. COOK:

---on the two.

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

MR. COOK:
just makes---

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

MR. COOK:

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

24
25

Right.

You could do it code by code, but that

20

23

I mean - I mean you

could do it.

17

19

Okay.

---it far more complex.

advocating that.
MR. COOK:

I just wanted to make---

No, no, no, I'm not

No.
Yeah, yeah- I mean but it's just

trying to keep it simple, I guess, is what we're
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1

trying to---

2

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

3

MR. COOK:

Right.

You could do code by code, but that

4

would - that would be difficult for the payers, I

5

think.

6

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

7

MR. COOK:

And the Commission.

This you would put in regulation that

8

it's sixty-five percent.

As long as it's payable on

9

the OPPS schedule, then you're going to pay sixty-five

10

percent, whatever the number is.

11

that number potentially could change every year, and

12

you could either lock it in stone and say it's

13

sixty-five percent, whatever it is now it's going to

14

be that way, you know, or you could say you're going

15

to update it annually.

16

if you want to complex - make it a little bit complex.

17
18

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

That would be another option

Okay.

Any other questions?

Hearing none---

19

MR. COOK:

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

21

MR. COOK:

22

(SPEAKER DISMISSED)

23

Now you can - I mean

Okay.
---thank you, Mr. Cook.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

If any of the speakers today

24

prepared a summary of your remarks, please provide

25

them to the court reporter at this time.
GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
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1

for your inputs, and we'll consider all your comments.

2

I want to thank each of you for participating in this

3

public hearing.

4

be held open through the close of business on November

5

29, 2016, so if you have further comments, please send

6

them to Ms. Bourdon as directed in the hearing notice

7

on the Commission website and the Office of

8

Administrative Hearings' website.

9

comments and the comments made at the hearing today

The period for written comments will

The written

10

will be made part of the public record of these

11

proceedings.

12

transcript of this proceeding the materials submitted

13

by Ms. Bourdon as Exhibits 1, 2 and 3.

We would like to include in the

14

(Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 are admitted

15

into the record.)

16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And I'm not aware of any

17

materials that have been submitted to the court

18

reporter.

19

before the public hearing?

20

adjourned.

21

Are there any further matters to come

Thank you.

If not, the hearing is

And we will go off the record.

(WHEREUPON, THE HEARING WAS ADJOURNED.)

22

RECORDED BY MACHINE

23

TRANSCRIBED BY:

24
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25
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

2

COUNTY OF GUILFORD

3

C E R T I F I C A T E

4

I, Kelly K. Patterson, Notary Public, in and for the

5

State of North Carolina, County of Guilford, do hereby

6

certify that the foregoing thirty-eight (38) pages prepared

7

under my supervision are a true and accurate transcription

8

of the testimony of this trial which was recorded by Graham

9

Erlacher & Associates.

10

I further certify that I have no financial interest in

11

the outcome of this action.

12

attorney or counsel for any of the parties.
WITNESS my Hand and Seal on this 21st day of November

13

14

15

Nor am I a relative, employee,

2016.

My commission expires on December 3, 2018.

16
17
18

19
20
21

~K~~
~NOTARY
PUBLIC

22
23
24
25
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PROPOSED TEMPORARY RULES

Note from the Codijier: The OAH website includes notices and the te."<:l ofproposed temporary rules as required by G.S. 150B21.1 {al). Prlor to the agency adopting the temporary rule, the agency must hold a public hearing no less than five days after the
rule and notice have been published and must accept comments for at least I 5 business days.
For questions, you may contact the Office ofAdministrative llearinKs at 919. 431.3000 or email oah.postmaster@)oah.nc.KOV.
TITLE 04- DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Rulemaking Agency: North Carolina lndustdcd Commission
Codifier of Rules received for publication the following notice and proposed temporary mle(s) on: October 18, 2016
Rule Citations: 04 NCAC JOJ.OIOJ

Public Hearing:
Date: November 18, 2016
Time: 1:00 p.m.
Location: Room 2149, Utilities Commission Hearing Room, 2nd Floor, Dobbs Building, 430 North Salisbwy Street, Raleigh, NC 27603
Reason: A recent court order, Surgical Care Affiliates, LLCv. North Carolina Industrial Commission, No. 16·CVS·0060 (Wake County
Superior Court).

The effects of the August 9, 2016 decision in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission, No. 16.CVS.0060
(Wake County Superior Court) necessitate the expedited implementation of this temporary rule. This recent court decision invalidated
the Industrial Commission's medicalfee schedule provisions for ambulatory surgery centers which had taken effect April 1, 2015, based
on the court's interpretation ofSession Law 2013·410, Section 33(a). and the application of its fiscal note exemption language. Due to
the court decision, the medical fee schedule, as applied only to ambulatory surgery cenlers, reverts back to the pre·April 1, 2015
provisions which providedfor a maximum reimbursement rate of 67.15% of billed charges, resulting in an unforeseen retroactive and
prospective multi·million dollar increase in costs to the workers' compensation system Although the August 9, 2016 decision has been
stayed by the Superior Co11rl during the appeal to the North Carolina Court of Appeals, it is the Industrial Commission's .statutory
obligation to adopt a rule as quickly as possible to restore balance to the workers' compensation system pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat.§
97·26 in the event the decision is upheld on appeal. By putting a tempormy rille in place as soon as possible, the period oftime subject
to a potential retroactive invalidation of/he ambulatory surgery center fee schedule provisions will be limited to April!, 2015 to
December 31, 2016, providing certainty regarding medical costs for 2017 and beyond
Comment Procedures: Comments/rom the public shall be directed to: Kendallt\-f. Bourdon, 4333 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC
27699·4333, phone (919) 807·2644, email kenda/l.bourdon@ic.nc.gov. The comment period begins October 19, 2016 and ends
November 29, 2016.
CHAPTER 10- INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
SUBCHAPTER IOJ- FEES FOR MEDICAL COMPENSATION
SECTION 0100- FEES FOR MEDICAL COMPENSATION
FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES
04 NCAC !OJ .0103
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services shall be based on
the current federal fiscal year's facility~specific Medicare rate established for each institutional facility by the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Setvices ("CMS"). "Facility·specific" rate means the all·inclusive amount eligible for payment by Medicare for a claim,
excluding pass·through payments. An institutional facilitv may only be reimbursed for hospital outpatient institutional services pursuant
to this Pitragraph and Paragraphs (c). (d). and lO of this Rule if it qualifies for payment by CMS as an outpatient hospital.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
Beginning April I, 2015, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January J, 2016, 180 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility~specific amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:
rr
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015,220 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·specific amount.
- - L _ _ __
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) ofthis Rule, maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided by
critical access hospitals ("CAH"), as certified by CMS, arc based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates and outpatient claims payment
amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAl-Is is as follows:
(I)
Beginning April 1. 2015, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.

...J.J_j
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(2)
(3)

Beginning January I, 2016, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
Beginning January 1, 2017, 170 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.

(I) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:
(I)
Beginning Aprill, 2015,230 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(2)
Beginning January l, 2016, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.

(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Rule, the maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided by
ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the Medicare ASC reimbursement amount determined by applying the most
recently adopted and effective Medicare Payment System Policies for Services Furnished in Ambulatory Surgical Centers and Outpatient
Prospective Payment System reimbursement fonnula and factors as published annually in the Federal Register ("the Medicare ASC
facility-specific amount"). Reimbursement shall be based on the fully implemented payment amount in Addendum AA, Final AA (final
ASC Covered Surgical Procedures for CY ~.2Qlll and Addendum BB, Final BB (Final ASC Covered Ancillary Services Integral
to Covered Surgical Procedures for~ 2017) as published in the Federal Register, or their successors. The maximum reimbursement
rate for institutional seryjces provided by ambulatory surgical centers is 200 percent of the Medicore ASC facility-specific amount.
(h) Th~ seheel~;~l~ efmaHimum reimbursement mtes fer institutilmal seFviees pre\ hied by am\:l~;~lnlel')' surgieal eenters is as fellews:
(I)
Beghming April 1. 2015. 220 pereent ef.#te.MeEiieare ;\SC feeility speeifie nme~;~nt.
(2)
Beginning Janunl')' l, 2916,210 pereent eftfle Metlieare ASC fe:eilitj Sj')eeifie ame~;~l'll.
(3)
Beginning JMI:!Bf!l' I, 2017,209 pereent efth~ Medieare ASC faeility speeifie atHetmh
lh) Notwithstanding Paragraph (g) of this Rule if surgical procedures listed in Addendum EE (Surgical Procedures Excluded from
Payment in ASCs for CY 2017> to the most recently adopted and eiTective Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and Ambulatory
Surgical Center Payment Systems as published in the Federal Register, or jts successors are provided at ASCs, they shall be reimbursed
with the maximum amount being the usual. customary. and reasonable charge for the service or treatment rendered
(i) If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier payment, the sum of the facility~spooific reimbursement amount and
the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages set out in Paragraphs (b}, (e), (e), (f), and (!t)(g)
of this Rule.
0) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee schedules in Rule
.0102 ofthis Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping C'DRG~') payment pursuant to
the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no more than the billed charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment shall be determined
using Medicare's payment methodology for those specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient institutional acute care percentages
set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
AuthorilyG.S. 97-25; 97-26; 97-80(a); S.L. 20/3-410.
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STATE QF NORTH CAROLINA

lN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE

COURT OIVISION
1016 A:!S -? Pii 2, Sf SUPERIOR
I6-CVS-00600

COUNTY OF WAKE

SURGICAL CARE AFFILIATE~~

itc:·: 'IS· s. ~: ..
r,

·~-----2)

Petitioner,

v.
NORTII CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DECISION

_____________________ )
Respondent.

This matter came before the undersigned Superior Court Judge of Wake County upon a
Petition for Judicial Review filed by Petitioner Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") pursuant
to Article 4 of the North Carolina Administrative Procedure Act {"APA"). Petitioner seeks
reversal of the December 14, 2015 Declaratory Ruling entered by Respondent North Carolina
Industrial Commission

('~he

Commission") denying the declaratory relief sought in SCA's

October I, 2015 Request for Declaratory Ruling filed with the Commission.
·After review and consideration of the Official Record and the filings and arguments of
the parties, this Court has concluded that the Commission's Declaratory Ruling should be
reversed.

THE PARTIES
SCA manages seven ambulatory surgical centers in North Carolina and has an ownership
interest in each of these centers through wholly owned subsidiary corporations (hereinafter "SCA
Ambulatory Surgical Centers"). (Record page 8, hereinafter "R p _"). The SCA Ambulatory
Surgical Centers are located throughout North Carolina and include Blue Ridge Day Surgery
Center at 2308 Westfield Court in Raleigh, Wake County, North Carolina. (R p 8).

EXHIBIT
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The Commission is an agency of the State of North Carolina created by the (Jenera!
Assembly and has the responsibility for administering ·the North Carolina Workers'
Compensation Act ("the Act"). N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-77. Among its responsibilities, the
Commission adopts rules setting forth a schedule of maximum fees for medical compensation to
be paid to injured employees who are covered by the Act. 'N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26(a). As a State
·agency, the Commission is subject to the rule-making requirements of Article 2A of the APA.
N.C. Gen. Stat.§§ l50B-2(la), lSOB-18.
SCA'S REQUEST AND
THE COMMISSION'S DECLARATORY RULING

On October 1, 2015, SCA filed with the Commission a Request for Declaratory Ruling.
(R p 8-25). In SCA's Request, SCA sought a ruling from the Commission declaring invalid
those parts of the Commission's rules with an effective date of April!, 2015 that changed the
· workers' compensation maximum fee schedule for services provided by ambulatory surgical
centers.

(R pp 8-25).

In its Request for Declaratory Ruling, SCA contended that the

Commission failed to adopt a new fee schedule for ambulatory surgical centers in substantial
compliance with the rule-making requirements of Article 2A of the APA because the
Commission had failed to prepare or obtain the fiscal note and certifications from the Office of
State Budget and Management required under N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 150B-21.2(a) and 150B21.4(bl). (R pp 9-10).

On October 30, 2015, the Commission granted SCA's request for a

declaratory ruling and indicated that a ruling on the merits would be issued within 45 days.
(Rp 6).
On December 14, 2015, the Commission issued its Declaratory Ruling, The Ruling
concluded that the Commission had followed the law in adopting a new maximum fee schedule

2
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for ambulatory surgical ·centers. and declined to declare those parts of its rules invalid as
requested by SCA in its Request for Declaratory Ruling. (R pp 2-5).
On January 13, 2016, SCA filed a Petition for Judicial Review pursuant to Article 4 of
the APA seeking reversal of the Conunission's Declaratory Ruling and a decision invalidating
'those parts of the Conunission's rules that changed the ambulatory surgical centedee schedule.

THE MOTION TO INTERVENE AS AMICI CURIAE
Ten days prior to the week of the hearing on SCA's Petition for Judicial Review,
Greensboro Orthopedics, P.A., OrthoCarolina, P.A., Raleigh Orthopaedic Clinic, P.A., Surgicai
Center of Greensboro, LLC, Southeastern Orthopaedic Specialists, P.A., Orthopaedic & Hand
Specialists, P.A., Cary Orthopaedic and.Sports Medicine Specialists, P.A., and Stephen D. Lucey
(collectively "the Movants'' or "Intervenors") filed a Motion to Intervene as Amici Curiae.
Along with the Motion, Movants filed a Brief. Attached to Movants' Brief is an Affidavit of
Conor Brockett, Associate General Counsel for the North Carolina Medical Society. In response
to the Motion to Intervene, Respondent filed an objection to Movants' Motion to Intervene as
Amici Curiae and a Motion to Strike the Affidavit of Conor Brockett and the attachment to that

Affidavit, as well as all references to the Affidavit and exhibit within the body ofMovants' brief.
In reaching the decision on the relief requested in SCA'sPetition for Judicial Review; the
undersi~ed

has disregarded and not considered the Affidavit of Conor Brockett and attached

exhibit and has disregarded any references to the Affidavit and exhibit in Movants' Brief.
Respondent's Motion to Strike has been granted. The Affidavit of Conor Brockett and exhibit
are not part of the record in this case.
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In its discretioq, this Court has allowed Movants' Motion to Intervene in this judicial

review proceeding for the limited purpose of filing the Amici Curiae Brief without the Affidavit
of Conor Brockett and exhibit.
STANDARD OF REVIEW
Article 4 of the APA governs judicial review of a declaratory ruling. N.C. Gen. Stat. §§
150B-43 et seq. The Commission's issuance of a Declaratory Ruling upholding the validity of
rule provisions challenged by SCA is a decision that is subject to judicial review under Article 4
of the APA. See N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 150B-4(a1)(2).
_ In its Petition for Judicial Review, SCA contends that the Conunission's Declaratory
Ruling is in excess of its statutory authority, made upon unlawful procedure, and affected by
other error of law. Because of these errors asserted by the SCA, this Court has applied the de

novo standard of review to review the Conunission's decision as required under N.C. Gen. Stat.
§ 150B-51(c).

ANALYSIS
The Commission, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26, is required to adopt by rule

a

schedule of maximum fees for medical compensation. The fees adopted by the Commission in its
schedule must be adequate to ensure that (i) injured workers are provided the standard of
services and care intended by North Carolina Workers' Compensation Act, (ii) providers are
reimbursed reasonable fees for providing services, and (iii) medical ·costs are adequately
contained. N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 97-26(a).
Prior to the promulgation of the rules at issue hi. this case, the Commission, in accordance
with the statutory mandate set out in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26, adopted through rule-making
procedures its "Fees for Medical Compensation" published at 04 NCAC !OJ .0101. This rule
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consisted of a "Medical Fee Schedule" and a "Hospital Fee Schedule" (the "Prior Rule"). The
"Medical Fee Schedule" of the Prior Rule set maximum amounts that could be paid for "medical,
surgical, nursing, dental and rehabilitative services, and medicines, sick travel and other
treatment, including medical and surgical supplies, and original artificial members."

The

"Hospital Fee Schedule" of the Prior Rule set maximum amounts that could be paid for
"inpatient hospital fees," "outpatient hospital fees," and "ambulatory surgery fees."
On August 23, 2013, Session Law 2013-410 was enacted into Jaw. Section 33.(a) of
Session Law 20 13·41 0 provided the followjng:
SECTION 33.(a) Industrial Commission Hospital Fee Schedule:

(l)

Medicare methodology for physician and hospital fee schedules. - With
respect to the schedule of maximum fees for physician and hospital
compensation adopted by the Industrial Commission pursuant to G.S. 97-26,
those fee ·schedules shall be based on the applicable Medicare payment
methodologies, with such adjustments and exception~ as are necessary and
appropriate to ensure that (i) injured workers are provided the standard of
services and care intended by Chapter· 97 of the General Statutes, (fi)
providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services, and
· (iii) medical costs· are adequately contained ..•.

(3)

Expedite rule-making process for fee sch~dule. - The Industrial Commission
is exempt from the certification requirements ofG.S. 150B-19.l(h) and the
fiscal note requirement of G.S. ISOB-21.4. in developing the fee schedules
required pursuant to this section.

Notably, in Session Law 2013-410, Section 33.(a), the General Assembly provided for an
expedited rule-maldng process for the new fee schedules which bypassed the certification and
fiscai note requirements that would otherwise be required prior to adoption of a fee schedule.
Although the certification requirements of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 150B-19.I(h) became moot when
those requirements were repealed hy Session Law 2014-112, Section 6(a), there are certification
requirements in preparing the fiscal note described inN.C. Gen. Stat. § 150B·21.4(bl).
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In response to this Session Law, the Commission undertook a process to modify its fee
schedules and ultimately amended 04 NCAC !OJ .0101 and adopted two rules: (1) a rule setting
fees for "Professional Services," 04 NCAC 10J.0102, which sets fees for physicians and health
care providers; and (2) the rule at issue in this matter, 04 NCAC IOJ.0103, entitled "Fees for
Institutional Services." In adopting the "Fees for Institutional Services" rule, the Commission
did not prepare or obtain a fiscal note, relying upon the exemption language set forth in Session
Law 2013-410, Section 33.(a)(3). The fee schedule set forth in the new "Fees for Institutional
Services" rule includes separate subsections setting forth maximum fees for "hospital inpatient
institutional services," "hospitar outpatient institutional services," "critical access hospital"
il_lpatient and outpatient services, and "institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical
centers."

Petitioner, an owner and operator of ambulatory surgical centers, seeks declaratory relief
from this Court on the grounds that the Commission exceeded the statutory aut!10rity of Session
Law 2013-410, Section 33.(a) by adopting a fee sch.cdule pertaining to ambulatory surgical
centers without complying with the fiscal note requirements of N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 150B-21.2(a)
and 150B-21.4. SpecificaUy, Petitioner, joined by Intervenors for the purposes of this Petition,
contends that the General Assembly, in Session Law 2013-410, Section 33.(a), mandated only
that new schedules of maximum fees for physicians and hospitals be adopted under an
expedited rule.-making process, so as to ensure that the maximum fees of physicians and
hospitals be based on the applicable Medicare payment methodologies.
Petitioners and Intervenors contend that they, as ambulatory surgical centers, are
legally distinct from hospitals and that because the General Assembly mandated new fee
schedules for physicians and hospitals, and not ambulatory surgical centers, the Commission did
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not have statutory authority to. adopt new fee schedules relating to ambulatory surgical centers
. under the expedited rule-making process.
North Carolina law defines a "hospital" as:
any facility which has an organized medical staff and which is
designed, used and operated to provide health care, diagnostic and
therapeutic services, and continuous nursing care primarily to
inpatients where stich care and services are rendered of the
supervision and direction of physicians licensed under Chapter 90
of the General Statutes, Article 1, to two or more persons over a
period in excess of24 hours.
N.C. Gen. Stat.§ !31E-76(3).
North Carolina law defines an "ambulatory surgical faciliiy" as:
a facility designed for the provision of a specialty ambulatory
surgical program or a multispecialty ambulatory surgical program.
An ambulatory surgical facility serves patients who require local,
regional or general anesthesia and a period of post-operative
observation. An ambulatory surgical facility may only admit
patients for aperiod ofless than 24 hours ....

·N.C. Gen. Stat. § 131E-146(1); see also N.C. Gen. Stat. § 131E-176(1b) and (13) (setting forth
separate definitions for hospitals and ambulatory surgical facilities). No further definition of the
tenns "hospital" or "ambulatory surgical facility" is contained in the statutes pertaining to the
authority of the Commission to adopt fee schedules.
The Court finds and concludes that hospitals are separate and legally distinct entities
from ambulatory surgical ·centers. The Court further finds and concludes that the plain
language of the General Assembly, in enacting Session Law 2013-410, Section 33.(a), authorized
the Commission to use an expedited rule-making process only in adopting new maximum fees
for physicians and hospitals and. that the General Assembly did not authorize the Commission to
use an expedited rule-making process in adopting new maximum fees for ambulatory surgical
centers.
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As the North Carolina Supreme Court has stated on numerous occasions, when the
language of a statute is clear and unambiguous, courts must give the statute its plain and definite
meaning. State v. Dellinger, 343 N.C. 93, 95, 468 S.E.2d 218, 220 (1996); Lemons v. Old

Hickory Council, Boy Scouts ofAmerica, 322 N.C. 271,276, 367 S.E.2d 655, 658 (1988) ..
The Commission contends that because the term "Hospital Fee Schedule" is used in the
heading of Section 33.(a) of Session Law 2013-410, this indicates that ambulatory surgical
centers were included in the General Assembly's mandate to change the maximum fee schedules
using an expedited rule-making process. .The Commission contends that under the prior fee
schedules, ambulatory surgical centers were included as one subsection of "Hospiial Fee
Schedule." However, North Carolina law is clear that captions of a statute cannot control when
the text is clear. Appeal of Forsythe County, 285 N.C. 64, 71, 203 S.E.2d 51, 55 (1974).
Respondent's argument also is contradicted by the fact that the physician fee schedule is
included within the fee schedules that the General Assembly mandated be changed and
physicians were not included as a subsection of"Hospital Fee Schedule" under the Prior Rule.
Unless otherwise exempted, the fiscal note requirements are part of the mandatory
procedure of administrative rule-making. N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 150B-21.2. Under N.C. Gen. Stat.§
150B-18, a rule is not valid unless it is adopted insubstantial compliance with Article 2A of the
APA. The failure of the Commission to comply with the fiscal note requirements in adopting a
new fee schedule for. ambulatory surgical centers cannot, in this instance, be viewed as
substantial compliance with the rnle-making·requirements of Article 2A of the APA.
Because the Commission was required to comply with the fiscal note requirements in
adopting a new fee schedule for ambulatory surgical centers and failed to do so, the Commission
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exceeded its statutory authority and employed an unlawful procedure. N.C. Gen. Stat. § 1501351(c).
Therefore, this Court finds and concludes that the Petitioner is entitled to the declaratory
ruling that the Commission's attempted adoption of a new fee schedule for ambulatory surgical
center services, but limited solely to those services, as set forth in 04 NCAC !OJ. 0103(g) and (h)
(also referenced in 04 NCAC !OJ. 0103(i)), and the amendment of the Prior Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.OIOI(d)(3), (5), and (6), to the extent that the amendment removed the· old fee schedule for
ambulatory surgical centers, are invalid and of no effect.
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the relief sought
by SCA in its Request for Declaratory Ruling and Petition for Judicial Review is GRANTED
and the Declaratory Ruling entered by the Commission is REVERSED.
The Commission's attempted adoption of a new fee schedule for ambulatory surgical
center services, but liinited solely to those services, as set forth in 0.4 NCAC !OJ. 0103(g) and (h)
(also referenced in 04 NCAC !OJ. 0103(i)), and the amendment ofthe Prior Rule, specifically 04
NCAC IOJ .O!Ol(d)(3), (5), and (6), to the extent that the amendment removed the old fee
schedule for ambulatory surgical centers, are invalid and of no effect.
This the~ day of ,\..,....k'2016.
1

.

.

((.

~r-----1~

The Honorable Paul C. Ridg~way
Superior Court Judge
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Bernadine S. Ballance, Commissioner
Linda Cheatham, Commissioner
Bill Daughtridge, Jr., Commissioner

Pat McCrory, Governor
Charlton L. Allen, Chainnan

Christopher C. Lontit, CommiSsioner
Tammy R. Nance, Commissioner

North Carolina

Industrial Commission
, September 2, 2016

NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT MEETING
The North Carolina Industrial Commission will hold a non-mandatory public comment meeting at I :00
p.m. on October 3, 2016, in Room 3099, Third Floor, Dobbs Building, 430 North Salisbury Street, Raleigh, NC
27603, to take public comment on and consider rulemaking options to address the effects of the August 9, 2016
court decision invalidating the April!, 2015 medical fee schedule provisions for ambulatory surgery centers.
Please click here to read the August 9, 2016 court decision.
To obtain baseline infonnation for comparison and useful benchmarks, the Commission has requested
from the North Carolina Rate Bureau (NCRB) and the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI)
cost analyses for the application of the following hypothetical fee schedule rates to charges for institutional
services provided by ambulatory surgery centers in workers' compensation cases:
•

Maximum reimbursement rate of200 percent of the Medicare payment amount for institutional
services provided by ambulatory surgery centers.
• Maximum reimbursement rate of 200 percent of the Medicare payment amount for institutional
services provided by outpatient hospitals.
• MaJ,;imum reimbursement rate of !50 percent ofthe Medicare payment amount for institutional
services provided by ambulatory surgery centers.
• Mal!'imum reimbursement rate of 100 percent of the Medicare payment amount for institutional
services provided by outpatient hospitals.
The cost analyses will apply the above hypothetical fee schedule rates to the 2016 Medicare payment
amounts allowed for institutional services provided by ambulatory surgery centers and the 2016 Medicare
payment amounts allowed for hospital outpatient institutional services, respectively. The payment amounts will
be determined by using the final rule for the Medicare hospital outpatient prospective payment system and the
Medicare ambulatory surgical center payment system for CY 2016, as published in the Federal Register. The
period of medical cost data used in the analyses will be from dates of services January I to December 31, 2015,
and the source of the medical cost data is based on NCCJ's Medical Data Call for North Carolina for Service
Year 2015.
NCCI and NCRB estimate that they can provide the cost analyses by September I 9, 2016. Upon receipt,
the Commission will publish the analyses on its website at www.ic.nc.gov/abtrules.html for use by the public in
formulating any comments or proposals prior to or following the public comment meeting.
1 of2
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Public Comment Deadlines related to the October 3. 2016 public comment meeting:
I. Any proposals to amend the North Carolina workers' compensation medical fee schedule (Rules 04
NCAC !OJ .0101, .01 02, and .0103) with an earliest effective date on or about January I, 2017, to
address the effects ofthe August 9, 2016 court decision must be presented to the Commission no
later than September 26.2016. The proposals will be published on the Commission's website within
two business days of the deadline at www.ic.nc.gov/abtrules.html.

Such proposals shall be in writing, filed with the JC Rulemaking Coordinator Kendall Bourdon at
kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov, and shall include at a minimum:
a. The person or entity making the proposal with contact information;
b. The text of a proposed rule(s) or rule amendment(s), to include any proposed maximum
allowable amounts for specific DRG, CPT, or revenue codes;
c. A detailed explanation of the proposal which shows how the proposed rule(s) or
amendment(s) achieves the statutory requirements of ensuring the following:
i. injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the
Workers' Compensation Act,
ii. providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services, and
m. medical costs in workers' compensation claims are adequately contained.
The explanation should include an analysis of the impact of the proposal on the proponent
and the workers' compensation system. The analysis should make use of the baseline
comparisons and benchmarks to be provided by NCCJ and NCRB, as well as any other welldocumented data and information proponent wishes to present to the Commission in support
of its proposal; and
d. Any other written information or data and supporting documentation the proponent wishes
the Commission to consider.
2. Any person wishing to address oral comments to the Commission at the public comment meeting on
October 3, 2016, shall sign up to do so by 5:00p.m. on September 30,2016, by contacting !C
Rulemaking Coordinator Kendall Bourdon at (919) 807-2644 or kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov. Oral
comments addressed to the Commission shall be limited to I0 minutes per speaker.
3. Any person or entity wishing to present written comments and other documentation to the
Commission in response to a proposal submitted pursuant to I. above shall file the comments and
corresponding documentation with !C Rulemaking Coordinator Kendall Bourdon at
kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov no later than October 10,2016. These responses will be published on
the Commission's website within two business days of the deadline at www.ic.nc.gov/abtrules.html.
For additional information or for questions, you may contact Rulemaking Coordinator Kendall Bourdon
at (919) 807-2644 or kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov or Executive Secretary Meredith Henderson at (919)
807-2575 or meredith.henderson@ic.nc.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF WAKE

IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE
SUPERIOR COURT DIVISION
16
00600

cvs

SURGICAL CARE AFFILIATES, LLC,

)

Petitioner

)
)

v.

)

ORDER ALLOWING STAY

)
)
)

NORTH CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION,

Respondent

)

THIS MATTER comes before the undersigned upon Respondent's Motion to Stay the
Final Judgment of the Superior Court pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § l50B-52 and Rule 62 of the
North Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure.

On August 9, 2016, the Superior Court, by and

through the undersigned, issued its final judgment in the above-captioned matter, wherein the
Court reversed the Respondent's Declaratory Ruling and granted the relief requested by the
Petitioner.

Respondent seeks, through its motion, to preserve the status quo of the subject

matter while pursuing an appeal of the Court's final judgment. The Court has considered the
record proper and the arguments of counsel.
For good cause shown, and in the discretion of the Court, the Court finds and concludes
that the Motion to Stay should be allowed. Therefore, it is ORDERED that the application and
effect of the Court's Final Judgment entered on August 9, 2016 in this matter is STAYED until
such time that the Court of Appeals of North Carolina can rule on the matter or until this order is
modified by a court of competent jurisdiction.
So ORDERED, this the 2"d day of September, 2016.
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I

ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017

f

!

I
!

I

!

NCCI estimates that the fee schedule alternatives for Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC)
services would result In an overall Impact between -0.4% (-$8.0M 1) and +1.1% (+$21.0M)
on North Carolina workers compensation system costs, if adopted.
The following table summarizes the alternatives and includes the estimated impacts.
(A)

(B)

(C)

Impact on ASC
Services

ASC
Share of
Medical
Costs

Impact On
Medical
Costs

Lower

Upper

(SY 2015)

IAl x (B)
Lower Upper

ASC Payment Rate

-17.0%

-12.9%

-0.8%

-0.6%

200% of Medicare

-9.4%

-4.0%

-0.5%

-0.2%

I

I

Maximum

Reimbursement
forASC

150% of Medicare

ASC Pavment Rate
235% of Medicare
ASC Pavment Rate

-4.1%

+3.7%

Prospective
Pay~(nt S~stem

-12.2%

-Q.O%

150% of.Medicare

+2.8%
+25.2%

-0.2%

+0.2%

-0.6%

+17.7%

+44.9%

100% of Medicare

Outpatient

(D)

(E)

Medical Costs
as % of Overall
Workers
Compensation
Benefit Costs In
North Carolina
(Elf. 1/1/2017)

Total Impact on
Overall Workers
Compensation

System Costs In
North Carolina
(C) x (D)
Lower
Upper
-0.4%

-0.3%

(-$8.0M)
,_-0.2o/~\
-$4.0M

(-$6.0M)

-0.1%

,_-0.1o/~\
-$1.9M
+0.1%

(-$1.9Ml

(+$1.9Ml

-0.3%

-0.3%
(-$6.0M)

(-$1.9M)

+0.1%

+0.8%

flO.Oo/~l
$0.0M

(+$8.0Ml

+1.2%

+2.2%

+0.6%

+1.1%

4.8%

48.3%

-0.1%

OPPS
OPPS

200% of Medicare

OPPS

+0.4%

(+$11 .OM) (+$21.0Ml

Summarv of Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Changes
The North Carolina Industrial Commission requested that NCCI estimate the impact on workers
compensation system costs for the following fee schedule alternatives for institutional services
provided by ASCs, proposed to be effective January 1, 2017:
o
o

1

Maximum reimbursement rate of 150% of the 2016 Medicare ASC facility specific
amount
Maximum reimbursement rate of 200% of the 2016 Medicare ASC facility specific
amount

Overall system costs are based on NAIC Annual Statement data. The estimated dollar impact is the percentage

Impacts displayed multiplied by 2014 written premium of $1,888M from NAIC Annual Statement data for North
Carolina. This figure includes self-insurance but does not include. the policyholder retained portion of deductible
policies, or adjustments for subsequent changes in premium levels. The use of premium as the basis for the dollar
impact assumes that expenses and other premium adjustments will be affected proportionally to the change in benefit
costs. The potential range of dollar Impacts on overall system costs, excluding self~insurance, is estimated to be
between $-6M and $+16M. The data on self-insurance is approximated using the National Academy of Social
Insurance's August 2015 publication Workers' Compensation: Benefits, Coverages, and Costs, 2013."

Page1 of6
9/19/2016
©Copyright 2016 National Council on Compensation Insurance, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

97

16

ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017

o Maximum reimbursement rate of 235% of the 2016 Medicare ASC facility specific
amount
o Maximum reimbursement rate of 100% of the 2016 Medicare Outpatient facility
specific amount
o Maximum reimbursement rate of 150% of the 2016 Medicare Outpatient facility
specific amount
o Maximum reimbursement rate of 200% of the 2016 Medicare Outpatient facility
specific amount.
Actuarial Analysis of Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Changes
NCCI's methodology to evaluate the impact of medical fee schedule changes includes three
major steps:

I

I

I
~

ir

I

1. Calculate the percentage change in maximum reimbursements
a. Compare the prior and proposed maximum reimbursements by procedure code
and determine the percentage change by procedure code.
b. Calculate the weighted-average percentage change in maximum
reimbursements for the fee schedule using observed payments by procedure
code as weights.
2. Estimate the price level change as a result of the proposed fee schedule
a. NCOI research by Frank Schmid and Nathan Lord (2013), "The Impact of
Physician Fee Schedule Changes in Workers Compensation: Evidence from 31
States", suggests that a portion of a change in maximum reimbursements is
realized on payments impacted by the change.
i. In response to a fee schedule decrease, NCCI's research indicates that
payments decline by approximately 50% of the fee schedule change.
ii. In response to a fee schedule increase, NCCI's research indicates that
payments increase by approximately 80% of the fee schedule change
and the magnitude of the response depends on the relative difference
between actual payments and fee schedule maximums (i.e. the price
departure).
The formula used to determine the percent realized for fee schedule
increases is 80% x (1.10 + 1.20 x (price departure)).
3. Estimate the share of costs that are subject to the fee schedule
a. The share Is based on a combination of fields, such as procedure code, provider
type, and place of service, as reported on the NCCI Medical Data Call, to
categorize payments that are subject to the fee schedule.
In this analysis, NCCI relies primarily on two data sources:
•

Detailed medical data underlying the calculations in this analysis are based on NCCI's
Medical Data Call for North Carolina for Service Year 2015.

Page 2 of6
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017

•

The share of benefit costs attributed to medical benefits is based on NCCI's Financial
Call data for North Carolina from the latest two policy years projected to the effective
date of the benefit changes.

Ambulatorv Surgical Center Fee Schedule
In North Carolina, payments for ASC services represent 4.8% of total medical payments. NCCI
calculated the percentage change in maximums and the percentage change in reimbursements
for ASC services to estimate upper and lower bound impacts due to the proposed fee schedule
changes. The estimated upper and lower bounds are calculated as follows:
Estimated Upper Bound Impact
To calculate the percentage change In maximums for ASC services, NCCI calculates the
percentage change in maximum allowable reimbursement (MAR) for each procedure code listed
on the fee schedule. The overall change In maximums for ASC services Is a weighted average
of the percentage change in MAR (proposed MAR I prior MAR) by procedure code weighted by
the observed payments by procedure code as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North
Carolina for Service Year 2015. The prior and proposed maximums are calculated as follows:
Prior MAR
Prior MAR = [Multiplier x 2015 Medicare ASC Payment Rate- Multiple Procedure
Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 220%
Proposed MAR- ASC-Based Alternatives
Proposed MAR = [Multiplier x 2016 Medicare ASC Payment Rate- Multiple Procedure
Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier = 150%, 200%, or 235% in three distinct scenarios
Proposed MAR- Hospital Outpatient-Based Alternatives
Proposed MAR= [Multiplier x 2016 Medicare OPPS Payment Rate- Multiple Procedure
Discounts (if applicable)]
Where Multiplier= 100%, 150% or 200% in three distinct scenarios
The overall weighted-average percentage change in maximums for each scenario for ASC
services is then multiplied by the price realization factor'. The estimated impact on ASC costs is
2
The price realization factor from a fee schedule Increase Is estimated according to the formula 80% x (1.10 + 1.20 x
(price departure)). Due to the volatility observed In the price departure for ASC services, a reliable price departure
could not be determined ln North Carolina. In such a situation, the price realization factor for a fee schedule Increase
is assumed to be 80%. The price realization factor for a fee schedule decrease is expected to be 50%.
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBUlATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017

then multiplied by the percentage of medical costs attributed to ASC payments (4.8%) to arrive
at the estimated impact on medical costs. The estimated impact on medical costs is then
multiplied by the North Carolina percentage of benefit costs attributed to medical benefits
(48.3%) to arrive at the estimated impact on overall workers compensation costs in North
Carolina. The estimated impact on ASC services for each upper bound scenario is shown in the
chart below.
Medicare
Payment
Schedule
ASC
Outpatient

Medicare
Multiplier
150%
200%
235%
100%
150%
200%

Percentage
Change in
MAR
-25.8%
-8.0%
+4.6%
-11.9%
+22.1%
+56.1%

Price
Realization
Factor
50%
50%
80%
50%
80%
80%

Impact on
ASC Service
-12.9%
-4.0%
+3.7%
-6.0%
+17.7%
+44.9%

Estimated Lower Bound Impact
To calculate the percentage change in reimbursements for ASC services, NCCI calculates the
percentage change in reimbursements for each procedure code listed on the fee schedule. The
overall change in reimbursements for ASC services is a weighted average of the percentage
change in reimbursements by procedure code weighted by the observed payments by
procedure code as reported on NCCI's Medical Data Call, for North Carolina for Service Year
2015. The prior and proposed reimbursements are calculated as follows:
Prior Reimbursement
Prior Reimbursement = Current Payments x Trend Factor
This calculation presumes that no Medicare-based fee schedule is currently in effect.
The current payments by procedure code are obtained from NCCI's Medical Data Call
for North Carolina for Service Year 2015. These payments are adjusted to reflect
changes from past price levels to the price levels projected to be in effect on the
effective date ofthe proposed fee schedule (January 1, 2017). The trend factor is based
on the most recent available U.S hospital outpatient component of the medical consumer
price index (MCPI) as shown below:

Page 4 of6
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ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO THE NORTH CAROLINA
AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017

A trend factor of 1.067 is applied to ASC payments for Service Year 2015 to determine
the projected payments at the January 1, 2017 price level. The trend factor is calculated
in two steps:
1. Estimate the yearly Hospital Outpatient MCPI, for services years 2015 and
beyond, as the arithmetic three-year average of the observed Hospital
Outpatient MCPI for 2013-2015. This average is equal to 4.4%
(=[4.8% + 4.5% + 3.9%]/3).
2. Raise the value above to the number of years elapsed from the midpoint of
Service Year 2015 to the proposed effective date of the fee schedule, which
is 1.5 years.
Therefore, the trend factor from July 1, 2015 to January 1, 2017 is estimated as 1.067 =
1.0441·5•
Proposed Reimbursement- ASC-Based Alternatives
Proposed Reimbursement= [Multiplier x 2016 MedicareASC Payment Rate- Multiple
Procedure Discounts (if applicable)] x (1+ Price Departure)
Where Multiplier = 150%, 200%, or 235% in three distinct scenarios.
Price Departure is estimated to be -10%.
To estimate the proposed reimbursement effective January 1, 2017, NCCI compares trended
payments to discounted fee schedule maximums. In general, NCCI observes that average
prices paid are below fee schedule maximums. Based on a combination of actuarial judgment
and observations of price departure In states that already have a fee schedule, a price
departure of ·1 0% was selected.
Packaged services are those services for which payment is packaged into payment for the
associated primary service; therefore, there is no separate APC payment. Packaged services
that are currently reimbursed separately are assumed to be included in the reimbursement for
the primary service under the proposed fee schedule. Therefore, there is no separate proposed
cost associated with packaged services. Payments for packaged services make up 6.3% of
ASC costs subject to the fee schedule.
Proposed Reimbursement- Hospital Outpatient-Based Alternatives
· Proposed Reimbursement= [Multiplier x 2016 Medicare OPPS Payment Rate- Multiple
Procedure Discounts (if applicable)] x (1+ Price Departure)
Where Multiplier= 100%, 150% or 200% in three distinct scenarios.
Price Departure is estimated to be-10%.
The estimated impacts for the lower bound scenarios are calculated in an analogous manner to
the estimated impacts for the upper bound scenarios. The estimated impact for each lower
bound scenario is shown in the chart below.
Page 5 of6
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Medicare
Payment
Schedule
ASC

Outpatient

Medicare
Multiplier
150%
200%
235%
100%
150%
200%

Percentage
Change In
Reimbursement
-33.9%
-18.8%
-8.2%
-24.4%
+3.5%
+31.5%

Price Realization
Factor
50%
50%
50%
50%
80%
80%
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Impact on
ASC
Service
-17.0%
-9.4%
-4.1%
-12.2%
+2.8%
+25.2%
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1

Full Commission Public Hearing, October 3, 2016

P R 0 C E E D I N G S

1

2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

1;e are on the record.

I'm

3

Charlton Allen.

I serve as Chairman of the North

4

Carolina Industrial Commission.

5

fellow Commissioners.

6

Commissioner Linda Cheatham, and then commissioner

7

Bill Daughtridge.

8

Commissioner Ballance - Bernadine Ballance/

9

Commissioner Christopher Loutit and Commissioner Tammy

With me today are my

I'll start on my right -

And then on my left will be

10

Nance.

And we want to thank each of you for being

11

here today.

12

issues that have arisen with our Fee Schedule, and we

13

want to thank all the interested parties who have

14

submitted proposals and for your presentations to come

15

today.

16

additions or corrections to this, feel free to let me

17

know - that the first speaker this afternoon will be

18

Kelli Collins, who is the vice-president of operations

19

for surgical Care Affiliates, and also with

20

Ms. Collins will be Renee Montgomery, who's a lawyer

21

with Parker Poe, and Stacey Smith with Liberty

22

Partners Group, and it's my understanding that

23

Ms. Montgomery and Ms. Smith will be available to

24

answer any questions or supplement that comment

25

period.

This is a public hearing regarding some

It's my understanding- and if there are any

The second speaker will be John McMillan of
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1

Manning Fulton, and he is representing other

2

stakeholders who have expressed, you know, a proposal

3

to the Commission.

4

the Hospital Association will be speaking as well.

s

a reminder, any person or entity wishing to present

6

written comments or other documentation to the

7

Commission in response to a proposal or discussion

B

here today should file the comments and corresponding

9

documentation with the Industrial Commission

And finally, Linwood Jones with
As

10

Rulemaking Coordinator Kendall Bourdon.

Ms. Bourdon

11

is at - sitting over at the table to my right.

12

comments and documentation should be submitted no

13

later than october 10'h, 2016, and these responses will

14

be published on the Commission's website within two

15

business days of that deadline.

16

comments, I will ask you to stay for the entirety of

17

the meeting today.

18

Commissioners have any questions that arise after a

19

follow-up speaker, that, you know, there's an

20

opportunity to have those questions answered by the

21

appropriate party.

22

the meeting, the purpose of this meeting is to take

23

public comment on and consider rulemaking options to

24

address the effects of the August g'h, 2016 court

25

Decision by Judge Ridgeway invalidating the April 1,

These

If you are making

This is to help facilitate, if the

As we articulated in the notice of
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1

2015 Medical Fee Schedule provisions for ambulatory

2

surgery centers.

3

Care Affiliates filed a Petition for Declaratory

4

Ruling regarding the Commission's enacted Medical Fee

5

Schedule last fall.

6

Declaratory Ruling denying the requested relief.

7

filed a Petition for Judicial Review in Wake County

8

Superior Court.

9

Commission's Medical Fee Schedule to be invalid as

By way of a brief history, Surgical

The Commission issued its
SCA

Judge Paul Ridgeway ruled the

10

applied to ambulatory surgery centers based on a

11

rulemaking procedural issue going back to the language

12

of the General Assembly Session Law instructing this

13

transition to a Medicare-based Fee Schedule.

14

Judge granted the Commission's Motion for Stay of the

15

Decision pending the outcome of this litigation on

16

appeal.

17

the same page moving forward.

18

not here to discuss the validity of the current rule

19

or any of the currently pending litigation.

20

be improper and inappropriate to discuss the merits of

21

that litigation in today's setting and would defeat

22

the purpose for which we are all gathered here today,

23

so let's be clear.

24

make proposals, presentations and give oral comments

25

and responses on what to do in light of the ruling.

The

I say all this to ensure that we are all on
First of all, we are

It would

We are here to allow the public to
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1

Although the lower court ruling has been stayed, based

2

on the contingency that Judge Ridgeway's Decision

3

could be upheld on appeal, it is the Commission's

4

responsibility to determine what to do in that

5

potential eventuality.

6

assumption that you all received the analysis provided

7

by NCCI.

a

that analysis.

9

in advance of this public comment meeting, we

We are operating under the

I would like to provide a few comments on
As we contemplated eliciting proposals

10

contacted NCCI to ask if they would be willing and

11

able to price out the various proposals that we would

12

receive.

13

range of price proposals because that would provide a

14

better set of benchmarks in evaluating proposals

15

received.

16

in these numbers.

17

analyses to be more than a set of benchmarks, fully

18

aware of all the complications and factors behind

19

these numbers.

20

set that we have to work with as 2015 was a

21

transitional year in that the Medicare-based Fee

22

Schedule went into effect on April 1"', 2015, and, of

23

course, 2016 isn't complete, so there is no complete

24

set of data on the Medicare-based Fee Schedule by

25

which to analyze and compare.

They suggested that instead they provide a

We understand that there is a lot of noise
The Commission is not taking these

At this point, this is the best data

In addressing the
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5

1

baseline use in the analysis and consultation with the

2

actuaries and data analysis experts, the two hundred

3

and ten percent of the Medicare ASC Fee Schedule - or

4

fee rate was selected to be the baseline for this

5

analysis,

6

Decision is to invalidate the Commission's Fee

7

Schedule as applied to ambulatory surgery centers,

s

meaning that the maximum reimbursement rate for ASCs

9

revert back to the percentage of charges model, a

Because of the effect of Judge Ridgeway's

10

percentage of charges analysis was not requested from

11

NCCI because it is not a stable model or benchmark in

12

that it is not an easily controllable metric because

13

charges can fluctuate.

14

perspective, our approach to the Medical Fee Schedule

15

is as it should be that it requires us to balance

16

three factors:

17

injured workers; two, adopting a reasonable

18

reimbursement rate and, three, medical cost

19

containment.

20

rulemaking know that it goes much more smoothly if all

21

stakeholders are in some sort of an agreement or can

22

come to an agreement.

23

there are many competing interests involved, and the

24

Commission hopes that this public comment meeting will

25

allow those interests to be aired in the hopes that

From the Commission's

Number one, appropriate care for

Those of you who have experience within

The Commission recognizes that
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1

the stakeholders can better understand each other's

2

positions and potentially establish some lines of

3

communication that will result in a reasonable

4

compromise.

5

in the order that people signed up to speak, and I

6

just went over that list.

7

to ten minutes.

8

time spent answering questions from the Commissioners.

9

To help facilitate that time period, to my right,

We will take presentations and comments

Presentations are limited

That does not necessarily include

10

Executive Secretary Meredith Henderson will be

11

tracking that time.

12

two-minute mark, she will raise her hand with two, and

13

then likewise one minute, and then she will alert you

14

when your time is up, and then we will ask you to

15

immediately conclude your remarks.

16

will now yield the floor to Ms. Kelli Collins with

17

Surgical Care Affiliates for time not to exceed ten

18

minutes---

19

When each speaker is at the

KELLI COLLINS

20

MS. COLLINS:

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

22

MS. COLLINS:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

MS. COLLINS:

25

With that said, I

Thank you.
---and then questions to follow.

Good afternoon.
Good afternoon.

Thank you for allowing me the

opportunity to speak with you today.
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1

Collins, and I'm here on behalf of surgical Care

2

Affiliates, which is proud to operate seven ambulatory

3

surgery centers - or ASCs - in North Carolina.

4

question before this panel today is two important

s

parts:

6

the opportunity to address both of those.

7

respect to process, three years ago, the Commission

8

tasked a stakeholders group with developing a Fee

9

Schedule for ambulatory surgery centers among others,

Process and patients.

The

And I'd like to take
With

10

but did not invite the ambulatory surgery centers to

11

participate.

12

basis since the underlying 2013 legislation did not

13

direct that the ASC Fee Schedule had to be changed.

14

The fact was even underscored by the North Carolina

15

Hospital Association which wrote in a memo 1 \\The

16

legislation did not specify that am surge rates would

17

be changed,"

18

file a Request for Declaratory Ruling asking that

19

Commission invalidate its new ASC Fee Schedule.

20

Commission refused to do so.

21

Heath, SCA then filed a Petition for Rulemaking with

22

the commission, but the Commission denied SCA's

23

Petition.

24

Court Judge Paul Ridgeway ruled this August that the

25

new SCA Fee Schedule is invalid and that the prior Fee

This flawed process was itself without

As a result, SCA had no option but to

The

As suggested by Chairman

SCA appealed, and Wake County Superior
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1

Schedule should remain in place.

Since then, the

2

Commission has filed an appeal to reverse Judge

3

Ridgeway's Decision and is proceeding as if the Judge

4

ruling has never been issued.

5

regrettable process, SCA has tried in every way to

6

achieve resolution.

7

amendment to address procedures that are not currently

8

covered in the invalid Fee Schedule and to ensure that

9

reimbursement allows for site of service decisions to

Throughout this

Even now, we are seeking an

10

be based solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes

11

and scheduling efficiencies, all for the sole benefit

12

of the injured worker.

And that brings me to the

second and most important aspect of this issue:
Patients.

The Commission's invalidated Fee Schedule

15

creates a significant reimbursement disparity between

16

ASCs and hospital outpatient departments for the same

17

services.

18

depend on a community-based surgical care that ASCs

19

provide, that represents a real threat to patients in

20

our state.

21

receive treatment in a more expensive inpatient

22

setting where scheduling services also takes longer

23

and results in delays of care.

24

admits this since it has said the reimbursement

25

disparity would, and I quote, " ...potentially diminish

Given how many injured North Carolinians

currently, injured workers are forced to

Even the Commission
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1

the pool of doctors available to treat injured

2

employees and reduce the quality and timeliness of

3

care.''

4

quote, "That impact will most likely severely be

5

realized in our state's more rural areas where the

6

quality and availability of effective treatment is

7

already a greater concern."

B

way to ensure injured workers across - access to high

9

quality care and effective care is to create parity

The Commission went on to concede, and again I

SCA agrees that the only

10

between the ambulatory surgery and hospital outpatient

11

Fee schedules.

12

amendment we have proposed, which includes the

13

following:

14

established a Medicare rate, the schedule of maximum

15

reimbursement rates for services provided by ASCs

16

would be the same as the maximum reimbursement rates

17

for hospital outpatient institutional services and,

1B

two, for those procedures for which CMS has not

19

established has not established a Medicare rate for

20

hospital outpatient institutional services, the

21

maximum allowable amounts for services provided by

22

ASCs would be fifty percent of bill charges up to a

23

cap of $30,000.

24

limited to a zero percent increase for these

25

procedures for the first three years or a revenue

We therefore urge you to adopt the

For those procedures for which CMS has

Charge master increases would be
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1

neutral adjustment would be applied as a percentage of

2

a charge paid,

3

partially invalid rule an fees for institutional

4

services would be amended to set forth this Fee

5

Schedule for ASCs.

6

confusion that currently exists, lower the cost for

7

surgical treatment and increase access to timely

s

community-based care.

9

analysis has determined that this approach will

In its proposal, SCA has shown how the

The amendment would eliminate the

Moreover, an independent

10

generate overall savings to the workers' comp system

11

in 2017 of 8.8 million dollars.

12

believe the proposed action should be taken both to

13

correct serious procedural flaws and, even more

14

important, to give North Carolinians - injured workers

15

access to the high quality community-based care they

16

want and deserve.

17

opportunity.

18

any questions you may have.

19

Montgomery, our legal counsel, and Stacey Smith with

20

Liberty Partners, both of whom are also available to

21

answer questions.

22

introduce the administrative members of the SCA team

23

that are in attendance:

24

(phonetic), Debbie Murphy, Tom Lowey (phonetic), Cathy

25

Stout and/or - and Corey Hess and Colleen Lochamy.

In closing, we

Thank you again for the

I would be more than happy to address
I also have with me Renee

And I did want to take a moment to

Jenny Graham, Cathy Libel
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1

And I want to thank the rest of the team for

2

attending.

3

4

And again, thank you for your time today.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
minutes.

And you stayed under ten

Thanks.

5

MS. COLLINS:

6

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

7

MS. COLLINS:

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

MS. COLLINS:

10

Good.

Yay.
I have a few questions---

Okay.
---if that's all right.

That's- of course.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We understand that there is

11

noise, as I mentioned- the NCCI analysis- and it's

12

just one way of looking at things.

13

explain your statement that the NCCI analysis

14

overstate the costs and understates potential savings

15

of a change to the ambulatory surgical care Fee

16

Schedule?

17

18
19

20
21

MS. MONTGOMERY:

Can you please

That was actually - if I may, I'm

Renee Montgomery.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Ms. Montgomery, if you could step

up to the microphone and make sure--MS. MONTGOMERY:

I can do that.

The - Chairman

22

Allen and Commissioners, again, I'm Renee Montgomery,

23

representing SCA, and I was involved in the Judicial

24

Review matter on behalf of SCA.

25

to do with the fact that the National Council on

The - that point has
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1

Compensation Insurance - the cost analysis it did - it

2

assumed that an invalid Fee Schedule was a valid Fee

3

Schedule, and so they used the invalid Fee Schedule as

4

the baseline, and that is the concern.

5

invalid Fee Schedule as the baseline, it overstated

6

the costs involved and the potential savings.

7

overstated costs, so it actually is just not a valid

a

comparison.

9

appear that it will be much more costly than it really

By using the

It

To use that as the baseline makes it

10

will.

As we said in our proposal, and I think

11

Ms. Collins eluded to, SCA has done an analysis that

12

shows that the savings with what it is proposing is in

13

excess of eight million dollars, so that's---

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I don't want to interrupt---

15

MS. MONTGOMERY:

Okay.

16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

---but if this is a good point,

17

have y'all provided that independent analysis?

18

MS. MONTGOMERY:

We have.

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

20

MS. MONTGOMERY:

I believe it was set forth in the

21

We have.

proposal itself.

22

MS. COLLINS:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

24

MS. MONTGOMERY:

And that is what we think that

25

It was.

Yes.

the Commission should take into account in determining
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1

the rule,

And I might also while I'm - while I'm up

2

here, we also had a concern, which was also stated in

3

the proposal, regarding the timing of what was asked

4

of the proponents.

5

there was proposals to be submitted, the proponents

6

were to assume an effective date of January 2017, and

7

we don't think that's a realistic assumption for a new

8

Fee Schedule.

9

permanent rulemaking, that will take significantly

It was - the proponents were - if

Because of the requirements of

10

longer than the two and a half - three months, and I

11

don't think reading the requirements for a temporary

12

rule - that it would meet the - any of the criteria

13

that would need to be met before a temporary rule

l4

could be put in place, so that's a second concern we

15

have about the cost analysis that was done, as well as

16

the directions given to the interested parties.

17

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

I also wanted to

18

ask - it's my understanding - and perhaps y'all can

19

correct me if my understanding is incorrect - that

20

the - for the states that utilize a Medicare-based Fee

21

schedule for workers' compensation, for ambulatory

22

surgical centers, the nationwide average rate is 146.7

23

percent, which is substantially lower than the rule

24

that was adopted by this Commission.

25

explanation for why the rule that was adopted by North
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1

Carolina that has been argued to be inequitable is

2

substantially higher than the nationwide average?

3

MS. MONTGOMERY:

4

MS. SMITH:

5

MS. MONTGOMERY:

Okay.

Stacey---

You want me---?

Oh.

Ms. Smith could respond to that.

6

She works with a lot of other states and is very

7

familiar with workers' compensation schedules.

B

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Sure.

9

MS. SMITH:

Thank you, Chairman Allen.

Hi.

10

Stacey Smith with Liberty Partners.

I work with SCA.

11

I appreciate the opportunity.

12

made both in - well, along the way as far as what the

13

averages are on a state-by-state basis.

14

looking at that analysis is just a piece of taking a

15

very small segment of Fee Schedules that exist.

16

think that analysis is based on NCCI data and not all

17

states are NCCI states, so you're getting a snapshot

18

of those.

19

Fee Schedule were connecticut and Alaska.

20

went to a percent of Medicare, and they had parity

21

between outpatient and ASC, so they are both paid - I

22

believe it's two hundred and ten percent of Medicare

23

HOPD - ASCs and HOPDs.

24

They went through quite a process in rulemaking.

25

did not have a Fee Schedule, and so they just issued a

I -and that point was

I think

I

The two most recent states that went to a
Connecticut

Alaska did the same thing.
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1

rule where HOPDs and ASCs are paid at the same rate,

2

which is around - they have a - they do something very

3

specific in Alaska, so they use the Medicare as kind

4

of a baseline, and then they add an Alaska-specific

5

regional code to that, and it's a little bit over two

6

hundred and- it's around two hundred and thirty

7

percent of Medicare, so it varies from state to state.

s

And I said - and I would also say that if the analysis

9

will be done - if that analysis is what's going to

10

hold on part of ASCs, I would like to maybe know what

11

the national average is for HOPDs and if the current

12

HOPD Schedule is higher.

13

I think there's also a lot of dynamics as far as each

14

state is very different on workforce issues, as you

15

well know.

16

economy.

11

will be different.

lB

injuries, your whole classification of the industries,

19

so it's very hard to look at a state-by-state basis

20

when you look at what the rate is.

21

So I think it's - you know,

I mean North Carolina has a thriving
Some states may not be as strong.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Rates

workforce issues are different,

And I understand that, but I was

22

just intrigued and - you know, for instance, South

23

carolina, one of our neighboring states, utilizes a

24

Medicare ASC payment rate of a hundred and forty

25

percent.
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1

MS. SMITH:

Yeah, yeah.

And South Carolina went

2

through some real challenges with their Fee Schedule.

3

When they went through changes and reforms, because of

4

the rates that they set and how low the rate was, ASCs

5

exited the market, and then the hospital outpatient

6

departments exited the market as well, and they had to

7

come back into session and fix their Fee Schedule to

8

make some modifications, and that was specific to some

9

other issues, but there are some very unintended

10

consequences when you don't look at the real needs of

11

an injured worker and what can happen.

12

some very specific - Texas is another example where

13

they put in some pretty significant cuts and had to

14

come back and readjust that Schedule because they saw

15

providers moving out of the market, and it ends up

16

costing employers more at the end because they're

17

going to kick it on the indemnity side if they don't-

18

if they don't get their workers back fast enough.

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

So there are

And can you explain the

20

statement that was made that aligning the ASC

21

reimbursement schedule with outpatient allows for site

22

of service to be based purely on clinical judgment,

23

quality outcomes and scheduling efficiencies?

24

MS. SMITH:

Yes.

25

MS. COLLINS:

Yeah, I can actually take that.
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1

believe that if there's parity across the Fee

2

Schedule, then the physicians can decide where the

3

patient should be cared for, and, you know, obviously,

4

in an ambulatory surgery environment, we think that's

5

a faster access, you know, higher clinical quality

6

situation than we can create in other places.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

7

Okay.

And do you have any, you

8

know, backup documentation that can be submitted on

9

that?

10

MS. COLLINS:

I don't.

I mean I know that in the

11

document it said that the Fee Schedule changes were

12

limiting access and - by making it more difficult for

13

folks to come to the ambulatory surgery center

14

environment, and if we change that and we have parity

1s

in the Fee Schedule, obviously, that would open up

16

access to those operating rooms.

17

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And can you explain why

18

the importance is placed on being paid the same as a

19

hospital outpatient facility?

20

MS. COLLINS:

I think we should be paid the same

21

thing for the same services provided and, again, don't

22

want to not be able to provide the care and the access

23

for the injured workers.

24

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

25

Okay.

Is that disparity that's

based upon the Medicare Fee -well, Medicare's rubric
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1

that has a different rate for hospital outpatient

2

versus ASCs?

3
4

5

MS, COLLINS:

18

I'm not sure I understand what

you're asking.
MS. SMITH:

I think I understand what you're

6

saying.

7

if you go to an ASC versus HOPD and how the Medicare

8

Fee Schedule is a different Fee Schedule.

9

10

I think what you're saying is the disparity

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
MS. SMITH:

Right.

I think what - the states that you are

11

seeing that - you know, Medicare gives you all good

12

baseline because it's kind of a standard measure,

13

right, so every year, you know, you have a certain

14

amount of codes that are covered at a certain rate

15

coming out of CMS, but I think what's important when

16

you- when you look at a Medicare Fee Schedule is it's

17

not intended to be a Fee Schedule for injured workers.

18

A Medicare Fee Schedule is for patients over the age

19

of sixty-five, and they have very different needs, but

20

it does - it can and does create - could create a

21

baseline of measure, but an injured worker is very

22

different than, you know, a sixty-seven-year-old, you

23

know, woman who hurts her knee or needs a procedure

24

done in an ASC.

25

and I understand what the approach is to the point -

So while it is in - a good baseline -
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1

to your question, is why parity - why is parity

2

important.

3

its statement of law in regards to the case that "If

4

you don't have parity" -and I'm just using the

s

Commission's words - \\you will have behavioral

6

patterns take place."

7

shifting patients into a lower side of service because

B

that's for- beneficial to them.

9

know, then the higher side of service have access

And I think the Commission said it best in

You will have employers

You may have, you

10

issues or there may be a diminishing - you're going to

11

set up tremendous behavioral issues unless there's

12

parity, and which that was confirmed by the

13

Commission.

14

You want an injured worker to be able to go where they

15

feel that they want to go and not having those

16

decisions being made based on the finances of the

17

system.

lB

you?

19

And you want site of service neutrality.

Does that help answer that a little bit for

Is that---?
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I think so.

Okay.

I also wanted

20

to ask about one of the aspects of the proposal that

21

was made, was that, you know, fifty percent of bill

22

charges up to a cap of $30,000 for, as I understand

23

it, the codes that there is not a Medicare

24

reimbursement rate for.

25

MS. COLLINS:

So, again, just asking for parity.
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1

And the way that we interpreted the change that

2

happened on April 15th was that there are certain CPT

3

codes or procedures that are assigned to CMS as

4

considered approved for an ambulatory surgery

5

environment and certain ones that are not.

6

NCIC adopted the new Fee Schedule and followed

7

Medicare standards, we removed about thirty-seven

a

procedures from our eligible list that we had been

9

able to do prior in our environment, and those are

10
11

So when

some pretty high acuity cases.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Were there any efforts to try to

12

resolve that with the carriers - the insurance

13

carriers or through UCR?

14

MS. COLLINS:

15

also in our proposal.

16

Through our conversations, and then

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

17

resolution with those.

18

MS. COLLINS:

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

But I take it there was no

There was not.
Okay.

Do you have any idea of

20

what the percentage of the ASC market SCA represents

21

in North Carolina?

22

MS. COLLINS:

I know that - I think they're on

23

record about a hundred and twenty ambulatory surgery

24

centers in this state.

25

One of our facilities is single specialty, and about

I - we are seven of those.
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1

fifty percent of the others are single specialty,

2

either GI or I, so pretty significant portion---

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

4

MS. COLLINS:

5
6

Okay.

---of the multispecialty market, I

should say.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And, also, I noted in the

1

proposal and in prior documentation that there was the

8

assertion the ASCs provide better quality outcomes and

9

improved return-to-work metrics.

10
11

12
13

Do you have any

information to substantiate that?
MS. COLLINS:

Well, I do, and would be happy to

provide that for you.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

Very good.

Could you

14

describe to us how and why the discrepancy in payments

15

impact the doctors providing care?

16

MS. COLLINS:

I think the doctors are concerned

17

with the cost to their patients and the cost to the

18

employers, and they're going to choose to take these -

19

or would like to have the ability to choose to take

20

these patients to a lower cost environment.

21

we can't do things, they're not on the

22

Medicare-approved list, obviously, that pushes those

23

to a higher cost environment, and if we're not paid in

24

a way that allows us to have a margin on our business

25

or to afford to do the volume, then those things are
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1

going to be pushed into the hospital.

2

physicians are making - being forced frankly to make

3

those decisions based on finances rather than the best

4

environment of care.

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

So the

Help me to understand how

6

if we were to adopt a proposal that has parity between

7

the hospital outpatient rate and the ASC rate that

a

that would create a lower cost environment in the ASC.
MS. COLLINS:

9

MS. SMITH:

10

Do you want to help me with this?
So I think - I think the proposal from

11

SCA presents the parity issue between ASCs and HOPDs.

12

I think that you get into cost savings by providing

13

access to care.

14

injured workers, you will see, you know, lower return

15

to work and - longer return-to-work statistics, and

16

what you may be saving on the medical benefit side

17

you're going to -you're going to end up seeing on the

lB

cash benefit side.

19

going back to work as soon as possible and having

20

greater indemnity benefits paid to them.

21

the SCA proposal of a lower cost site really goes to

22

these codes that were - these procedures that were

23

being done in ASCs prior to the implementation of the

24

April

25

that those codes are being done in a much higher cost

If you limit access to care to

You're not going to have workers

1•' Fee Schedule.

I think for

And what's happening now is
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1

setting of a hospital inpatient.

2

get the real savings and a lower cost environment, is

3

allowing these procedures to go back into an ASC

4

setting, putting a cap on what can be spent, keeping

5

the control of the costs with reviews and getting them

6

back into the setting where you can save money through

7

those.

8

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

MS. COLLINS:

10
11
12

So that's where you

Okay.

Our return-to-work data will help

you -help shed light on that as well.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

And who provided the

analysis of that return-to-work data?
MS. COLLINS:

We have - we do - we measure

14

clinical metrics, and we work with our physicians'

15

offices to determine all - several (unintelligible)

16

measures.

17

lB

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
document?

19

MS. COLLINS:

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

21

It is.
Okay.

Also, is it truly the case

that ASCs won't do these type surgeries anymore?

22

MS. COLLINS:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

MS. COLLINS:

25

So it's an internally-developed

The thirty-two on the---?
Right.

Yeah, we can't.

I mean we are not -

we're not being reimbursed in a way that allows us to
GRAHAM £RLACHER &ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD -SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103

336/768-1152

127

46

24

Full Commission Public Hearing, October 3. 2016

1

even cover the cost of implants for those---

2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

3

MS. COLLINS:

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

s

MS. COLLINS:
doctors.

10

And, if so, how does that

It doesn't diminish the pool of

It diminishes the access.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

8

9

---procedures.

diminish the pool of doctors available?

6
7

Okay.

Okay.

Okay.

So, in effect, this

is really an issue about inpatient versus ASC under
Medicare.
Part of the issue is that.

11

MS. COLLINS:

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

Yes.

Were ASCs really getting

13

paid the same under the bill charges model as the

14

outpatient facilities?

15

MS. COLLINS:

16

the same either.

17

MS. SMITH:

I don't believe that Schedule was
No.
Well, no, the procedure - it was - let

18

me - since those bill charges.

19

a hundred percent of bill charges in - around 2008.

20

You all made some reforms in 2009, I believe, and---

21
22

MS. COLLINS:

I mean ASCs were paid

And it went to sixty-seven percent

of bill charges.
MS. SMITH:

23

Yeah.

Wait.

24

then.

25

seventy-nine percent.

It was seventy-nine percent

And then ASC and HOPD were at - both at
And then a couple of months
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1

later, there was the fifteen percent reduction to 67,

2

I think,

.15 of---

3

MS. COLLINS:

4

MS. SMITH:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

6

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

7

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

8

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9
10
11

15.
---bill charges.
Okay.
Even after---

Commissioner--Even after sixty-seven

percent of bill charges, were not outpatient hospital
bill charges higher than ASC?
MS. COLLINS:

The Fee Schedule for hospitals

12

typically is higher than it is for ambulatory surgery

13

centers, so, yes, because of that.

14

15

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

today- you'll be getting less than the hospitals?

16

MS. COLLINS:

17

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

That's correct.
The Fee Schedule that you

are proposing - you would be getting the same thing?

19

MS. COLLINS:

20

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

21

So the Fee Schedule

Correct.
And how much of an

increase would that be?

22

MS. COLLINS:

23

MS. SMITH:

Do you know?

Do you have that math?

It's a forty percent - it's a forty

24

percent reduction actually off of the bill charges

25

number.
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1

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

2

MS. COLLINS:

3

MS. SMITH:

4

MS. COLLINS:

5

MS. SMITH:

But---

From where we were in April--Yeah.
---of 2015.
From the valid Fee Schedule in effect

6

right now, which is 67.15 percent of bill charges, to

7

the SCA proposal is a forty percent reduction in

a

medical costs.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9

I'm sorry.

Let's back us up two years.

I still missed

10

it.

11

is in place.

12

receiving for - on the whole, on the average for---

How much were hospital outpatient

13

MS. SMITH:

14

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

15
16

Sixty-seven percent

I don't - I don't think-----same service as - at an

ASC?
MS. SMITH:

Yeah.

I don't think- we can- we can

11

look up that data, but I don't think we can provide

18

that answer to you right now.

19

a relative basis of what was happening in the ASC

20

space.

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

All we can do is quote

My sense is that back then

22

the fees going to hospitals were a good deal higher

23

than ASCs which in fact recognized the lower cost

24

structure and that that's what you're talking about

25

eliminating.

Correct?
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MS. COLLINS:

1

well, what we're - I would - my

2

impression is that the hospitals were reimbursed

3

higher than us at that time.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

4

5

MS. COLLINS:

7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

B

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

MS. COLLINS:

Yes.

That's mine as

Yes.
Thank you.

All right.

Thank you.

10

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

11

MS. COLLINS:

12

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Thank you.

Thank you all very much.
Next, I'll recognize and yield

the floor to John McMillan.
JOHN MCMILLAN

14

15

Right.

well.

6

13

Yes.

MR. MCMILLAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of

16

the commission.

I'm John McMillan.

17

afternoon on behalf of employers, employer

18

associations and insurance carriers, those who pay the

19

workers' compensation benefits to injured workers and

20

their healthcare providers.

21

entities appears on page five of the written comments

22

submitted to the commission on September 26'h.

23

medical costs for the North carolina workers'

24

compensation system have been an issue for decades,

25

and there have been numerous attempts to bring them in

The list of these
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1

line with ather states, states with which North

2

Carolina competes for economic development.

3

in 2012, the employer and insurer communities began

4

meeting with representatives of the providers in a

5

negotiation process that lasted almost three years.

6

we agreed to and jointly paid for a consultant who

7

assisted with providing relevant information to all of

8

the parties.

9

with both sides and with Chairman Heath to help

Beginning

We engaged a prominent mediator who met

10

develop Fee Schedules that, one, ensured that worker -

11

injured workers are provided the services and standard

12

of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act;

13

two, providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for

14

providing these services and, three, medical costs in

15

workers' compensation claims are adequately contained.

16

Agreements were reached on the revised Fee Schedules.

17

It was a negotiation process in which there was give

18

and take on all sides with the objective being to meet

19

the statutory standards.

20

promulgated by the Commission and published in the

21

North Carolina Register.

22

noticed, a hearing was held, and the rules with the

23

new Fee Schedules were adopted.

24

North Carolina Fee Schedule, ambulatory surgery

25

centers' reimbursement for workers, compensation

Proposed rules were

A public comment period was

Under the previous
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1

injuries was thirty-one percent higher for knee

2

arthroscopy and forty-nine percent higher for shoulder

3

arthroscopy than the thirty-three state median

4

reported by the workers' Compensation Research

5

Institute.

6

mediated settlement in an effort to avoid litigation

7

on these issues.

a

one group - surgical Care Affiliates, LLC.

9

that they did not participate in the Fee Schedule

Employers and insurers agreed to the

That has been successful except for
They claim

10

discussions or rulemaking process; our position is set

11

out in our written comments, is that they did through

12

their representatives at the Medical Society, but that

13

is a discussion for another day.

14

proposed rule for ambulatory surgery centers, we would

15

ask that you consider adopting the Schedule previously

16

adopted through the rulemaking process or, in the

17

alternative, adopt a phased-in Fee Schedule that would

18

provide for reimbursement rates of a hundred and fifty

19

percent of the Medicare ASC facility specific amount

20

when fully implemented.

21

in line with our neighboring states of South Carolina,

22

which is one hundred and forty percent, and Tennessee,

23

which is a hundred and fifty percent; closer to the

24

median of the states that use Medicare reimbursement

2s

methodology.

As you consider the

That would put North Carolina

For our complete statement, please refer
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1

to our written comments previously submitted.

2

I'll be glad to attempt to respond to any questions

3

you might have.

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And

I have often heard that the Fee

5

Schedule as it was adopted- and I think it's an apt

6

analogy- it's like a finely-woven rug and that once

7

you pull one thread out, the rest of it can become

s

unwoven.

9

Is that a fair assessment?

MR. MCMILLAN:

I think it is.

I don't want to

10

spend a lot of time on who was representing who at

11

these - at this long, drawn-out, three-year process.

12

Linwood Jones is going to speak for the Hospital

13

Association, and the hospitals own ambulatory surgery

14

centers, so they were participating.

15

participating through their representatives in the

16

Hospital Association.

17

actively participating, was a principal participant in

1a

all of the discussions.

19

the mediation, an agreement was reached, and it was a

20

landmark agreement, and we came to a resolution based

21

on Medicare Fee Schedule which is in place in most

22

other states and works.

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

ASCs were

The Medical Society was

And hiring the consultant in

And what is the position, if

24

there is a unified position, amongst your groups that

25

you represent on the adoption of a rule provision that
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1

would account for procedures that could be done at

2

ASCs that are not paid for by Medicare?

3

MR. MCMILLAN:

I've asked that question.

My

4

understanding is two things:

5

can adopt a Fee for any such procedures that fall into

6

that category, but, second, that virtually all

7

procedures are included in the Medicare Fee Schedule.

8

Where we get into issues is some of these procedures

9

are bundled, and they include all aspects of the

10

procedure, and sometimes some pieces of that are

11

pulled out.

12

as such, and it's - in the Medicare Fee Schedule, it's

13

woven into the - into the overall price.

14

pull it out, then they create an issue.

15

One is the Commission

I don't think that's a separate procedure

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

When they

And have any of the proposing

16

entities worked out contractual arrangements with ASCs

17

outside the Fee Schedule that you are aware of?

18

MR. MCMILLAN:

19

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I don't know.
Okay.

Given that we are supposed

20

to balance the three factors that I talked about

21

earlier and the two hundred percent Medicare ASC rate

22

was acceptable for cost containment purposes in 2014,

23

2015, what is the impetus now to move it further at

24

this time?

25

MR. MCMILLAN:

Well, the two hundred percent was a
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1

negotiated settlement with the give and take, and the

2

one hundred and fifty is more aligned with what the

3

average is.

4

average is slightly under a hundred and fifty

5

percent - one forty-six - one forty-seven, and our

6

neighboring states of South Carolina and Virginia are

7

one forty and one fifty percent - south Carolina and

a

Tennessee.

9

speak, and the General Assembly in Virginia instructed

10

the Commission to adopt a Fee Schedule, and they're in

11

the process of doing that, so they - I think they have

12

a meeting within the next two weeks to discuss the

13

Virginia's Fee Schedule.

14

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I think you correctly stated that the

Virginia is undergoing rulemaking as we

Okay.

Are you aware of any

15

states that have switched to a Medicare - percentage

16

of a Medicare-based Fee Schedule that have later gone

17

back and revised the Fee Schedule rate?

lB

19

MR. MCMILLAN:

I'm sure there may be some, but I

don't- I don't know that.

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

21

MR. MCMILLAN:

Okay.
I will point out that Surgical Care

22

Affiliates does business in many, many states that are

23

under the thirty-three state average, and there's a

24

list of those in our written comments, but there are a

25

lot of states in which they have facilities that
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1

2

3

operate.

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
has---?

I'm sorry.

4

MR. MCMILLAN:

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Are you aware of any state that
Were you about to say something?
No.

No.

Okay.

Are you aware of any state

6

that has subsequently adjusted the rate significantly

7

downward as---

8

MR. MCMILLAN:

9

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

10

MR. MCMILLAN:

11

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

12

MR. MCMILLAN:

13

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

I'm not.
---one of y'all's proposals--I am not,
---suggested?
I am not.
Okay.

Do you think that our

14

workers 1 compensation system in North Carolina is

15

structurally similar to that of the other states, such

16

as South Carolina and Tennessee or Virginia?

17

MR. MCMILLAN:

Every state is a little bit

18

different, but when you say substantially similar, I

19

would say that they are substantially similar.

20

21

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:
questions?

Y'all have any further

Okay.

22

MR. MCMILLAN:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

Okay.

you, Mr. McMillan.

Thank you very much.
All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Linwood Jones.

25
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1
2

LINWOOD JONES
MR. JONES:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and

3

Commissioners.

I'm Linwood Jones, general counsel

4

with the North Carolina Hospital Association.

5

Commissioner Ballance, I know you're getting tired of

6

seeing me here.

7

over here talking about Fee Schedules for hospitals.

8

I did - we did file a comment letter last week, and

9

it's - the proposal - at least part of the proposal

It's like fifteen years I've been

10

was the same as Mr. McMillan had stated.

Let's, you

11

know, adopt the rule we had in place that was

12

negotiated before, which would have hospitals and am

13

surges at two hundred percent of Medicare beginning in

14

January of next year.

15

I'll get to the hundred and fifty percent issue in a

16

minute.

17

being our proposal, there are actually some areas we

18

agree with some points SCA has made, but, overall,

19

those don't change our opinion about what we've

20

already negotiated and agreed to and what we think is

21

right here.

22

being tied to the Medicare Fee Schedule for the very

23

reason they've stated.

24

Medicaid - Medicare patients, not for a workers' comp

25

population that's typically younger and has different

That is still our proposal.

There are some areas where we - despite that

First of all, we don't like Medicare -

It was developed for elderly
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needs.

So that's- it's- you know, we debated a long

2

time, as John talked about.

3

the Hospital Association to agree to a - to get to the

4

Medicare Fee schedule system to tie our rates to

5

because it presents several - a number of problems for

6

us; the biggest of which I think - and this is what

7

drove the rates more than anything else - is looking

a

at what the rates were in other states.

9

agree or disagree on a settlement with the payers

It took a long time for

If we had to

10

based on how much financial impact this had on

11

hospitals, we never would have come to an agreement.

12

It was huge.

13

dollar hit just in the first year, so it was a

14

substantial reduction moving from the sixty-seven

15

percent of charges in the· implant carve-out to the-

16

what was two hundred and twenty percent of Medicare

17

and what could be two hundred by next year.

18

point on that:

19

and am surges may do the same; physicians, too -

20

they're looking at what the other commercial payers

21

are paying and what is BlueCross paying me, what is

22

united paying me for this business.

23

benchmarks for what they consider to be an appropriate

24

payment.

25

than what hospitals are typically paid on Medicare

It was a fifty - sixty - seventy million

Another

Most what hospitals are looking at -

Those are their

Medicare at two hundred percent is lower
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outpatient, but, again, if that were the only factor

2

driving this, then we wouldn't have been able to agree

3

to it, but we obviously had to look at the plain

4

numbers of what other states were looking at as far as

5

percentages, and you just don't see many percentages

6

above two hundred percent in the other states that we

7

looked at.

8

about using Medicare, but we've sort of agreed to it

9

because it's a transparent system, and, frankly, we

So there is some - there is an issue there

10

couldn't find another system to tie it to.

We looked

11

at the State Health Plan.

12

hospitals for workers' comp to their commercial plans,

13

but none of that's transparent to payers; Medicare is.

14

All their rules are published.

15

published.

16

payer, and so a lot of that played a big part in

17

driving what we eventually agreed to and recommended

18

to the Commission.

19

more about comments and questions I've heard as we've

20

been sitting here.

21

we had in - that the Hospital Association had in 2012

22

or 2013 saying am surge is not in the legislation.

23

That's- I probably wrote that.

I don't remember

24

that, but that's probably true.

At the time we were

25

dealing with this in the legislature, the focus just

We looked at tying

The rates are

You know what you're dealing with as a

A few other notes - and these are

There was some reference to a memo
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1

at that time was physicians and hospitals, with the

2

understanding that the Commission had the authority to

3

deal with everybody else without us having to put it

4

in legislation, so that's part of the thinking behind

5

why that wasn't in the legislation.

6

where we are - we're still looking at it - and we put

7

this in our comment letter - is we're still unclear on

s

NCCI's analysis, and that's mostly because we don't

9

know what documentation they used, what factors they

Another point

10

looked at.

We've had a consultant that does workers'

11

comp Fee Schedules in other states, including Georgia

12

and some of the other southern states, take a look at

13

this.

14

saying we don't know some of their assumptions yet,

15

and we'll try and dig into that a little more this

16

week and follow-up with you all by written comment on

17

that.

1B

forty-six percent national average, a hundred and

19

fifty percent.

20

during the mediation and in the year or two leading up

21

to mediation that while some reports, including WCRI,

22

may show that as the average, you - so I think the ASC

23

said you can't really compare a state to state.

24

of these states carve out implants and treat those

25

differently, and that makes a huge difference

We're not saying it's not valid.

We're just

There was some comment about a hundred and

We had a long discussion about that
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1

comparing one state to another.

We heard the same

2

thing in South Carolina that the ASCs did after they

3

passed a rate that low at a hundred and forty percent.

4

I wasn't aware of what happened to the ASCs, but we

5

knew the hospitals were exiting the market, didn't

6

want to take the business anymore, and that did go

7

through litigation there, too, I think, and may have

8

been resolved by adding implants back into the hundred

9

and forty percent.

I forgot how it was resolved, but

10

there was an issue with going to a rate that low.

11

There was some discussion about ASC rates versus

12

hospital outpatient rates, and, Commissioner Cheatham,

13

I think you kind of seized on the difference there.

14

lot of that- it's all driven by Medicare, and the

15

reason there's a difference in Medicare is because of

16

the costs.

17

costs.

18

too.

19

we're bringing in the costs of the ED, operating the

20

facility twenty-four/seven.

21

overhead costs that go into everybody's rates whether

22

it's a workers' comp payer or Bluecross making the

23

payment.

24

there are other reasons for that other than just the

25

overhead.

A

The hospitals are going to have higher

That was true when we were billing charges,
We're always going to have higher costs because

There are a lot of

so Medicare has that difference there, but

We had our consultant- and we'll follow-up
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1

in more detail on this.

We had our consultant look at

2

over three thousand procedures that are done by ASCs

3

and hospitals, and out of those - well, let me back up

4

a minute.

s

in coming up with what they call a weight, and that

6

weight goes into setting these rates.

7

hospitals, am surges and probably any other facility

s

that's on some kind of Medicare Fee Schedule,

9

had our consultant look at the weights.

Medicare determines - looks at these costs

They set it for

So we

There were

10

about three thousand of them, and two thousand, nine

11

hundred and fifty-two times the hospital outpatient

12

rate - or weight was higher than the ASC weight.

13

hundred and twenty-five times it was the other way

14

around.

15

procedures may look the same.

16

surgery here and a knee surgery there, but you may

17

have lab, imaging and other services that are working

18

their way into the hospital outpatient procedure that

19

aren't necessarily captured in the ASC procedure, so

20

there's some - there's some cost reason for the

21

difference there by Medicare.

22

thirty-two and I heard thirty-seven procedures not

23

covered by Medicare.

24

what that is.

25

things that Medicare considers you to already be paid

A

So I think what's driving that is that the
It may be a knee

The thirty - I heard

I'm not - I'm not sure exactly

If - it could be as John said.
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1

for on the overall procedure rate.

I don't know that.

2

I haven't- we haven't looked at what those are.

3

be interested in knowing more about that.

4

if it's a full procedure and Medicare is not covering

5

it, it needs to be paid for by workers' camp, but if

6

it's something that's gotten- if it's a procedure

7

that's been bundled up into a rate you're already

8

being paid, that's a different issue that would have

9

to be looked at, I think.

Certainly,

I'll stop there.

I've

10

tried to tackle the questions I heard, but I don't

11

know if you have more.

12

13
14

15
16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

We'd

Do you know what percentage of

ASCs are hospital-owned in North Carolina?
MR. JONES:

I don't, but we think they're around

half, maybe more.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And I - and I believe the other

17

Commissioners - heard - and, perhaps, we would learn

18

for the first time at a recent WCRI conference that

19

hospital-based ASCs are billing as outpatient

20

entities.

Is that correct?

21

MR. JONES:

That's correct.

22

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

23

MR. JONES:

Okay.

Well, most of them are.

Some of them

24

bill the exact same way an SCA facility would bill.

25

It depends on how they're structured and whether they
GRAHAM ERLACHER &ASSOCIAlES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD -SUITE 22
WINSTON-sALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103

336/768-1152

144

63

41

Full Commission Public Hearing, October 3, 2016

1

qualify under Medicare to do that.

2

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

3

MR. JONES:

4

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

So this is all driven by Medicare.
Right.

Is it equitable for a

5

hospital-owned ASC to be billing at an outpatient rate

6

when an ASC - or for the purpose of this question, an

7

SCA-owned ASC is billing at a reduced rate?

8

9

MR. JONES:

Well, we think so because the hospital

outpatient is capturing additional costs an ASC is not

10

going to have.

That's the overhead that's coming in

11

from running the ED and the other facilities.

12

also - there may also be - and I'm not familiar with

13

them all, but there are requirements a hospital

14

outpatient facility, even an ASC operating as an

15

outpatient facility, has to meet that an ASC doesn't

16

necessarily have to meet.

17

Congress has just changed the rule for off-campus

18

hospital outpatient departments to put them on the

19

same billing as an ASC, and that's because the

20

hospital off-campus department doesn't have these ED

21

costs and other things to work into their rate.

22

they're - Medicare is kind of going the other way.

23

They're bringing the off-campus hospital outpatient

24

rates down towards the ASC rate going forward.

25

They've grandfathered in the existing facilities.

There's

Now I having said that,
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1

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

I just - a quick

2

follow-up.

3

requirements of outpatients - outpatient departments

4

that differ from ASCs.

5

correctly?

6

7

You have.mentioned that there are certain

MR. JONES:

Did I understand that

I believe that's right.

Now I don't-

I don't - are you about to ask what they are or---?

8

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9

MR. JONES:

Okay.

I am.

Well, we'll have to follow-up,

10

and I think it's more being tied into the emergency

11

department, having call ensured around the clock,

12

certain clinical requirements of having your medical

13

records tied into the hospitals.

14

to drive costs, and some of the additional costs are

15

just being driven by the overhead from the ED and

16

other---

17

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

MR. JONES:

19

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

20

MR. JONES:

21

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

22

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Some of that's going

Okay.

---facilities moving into that rate.
That's enough.

Right.
I just needed an example.

The Fee Schedule in 2015 was a

23

substantial reduction for all medical facilities.

24

has that gone?

25

MR. JONES:

How

It didn't go well when I informed my
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1

members about it, but they've - as far as I know,

2

they've learned to live with it.

3

we were anticipating have not been as bad as we

4

expected because no one else - BlueCross, no one else

5

uses Medicare as their fee payment system, and so the

6

concerns were, were the payers ever going to be able

7

to tap into the Medicare system and figure out the

a

payments.

9

but I think most of the larger payers have it figured

10
11

The payment issues

And there have been some issues with it,

out.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Do you have any information

12

regarding how it has affected patient care in any way

13

or changed site of service selection?

14

MR. JONES:

We wouldn't know about any change

15

between hospital outpatient and am surge.

16

think it has created access problems, at least not

17

among our members that we know of.

18

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Yeah.

I don't

Are there any hospitals

19

that you're aware of that are refusing or choosing not

20

to take workers' compensation patients due to the

21

reduction in fees?

22

MR. JONES:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

25

Not that we've heard.
Okay.
And I presume all

hospitals are continuing to take Medicare patients?
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1

MR. JONES:

They all - out of all of them that I

2

know take Medicare.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

3

Just as they - I mean,

4

there's no denial of access to care there that you

5

know of?
MR. JONES:

6

Right.

It's- that's a much bigger

7

volume, and that's part of the reason they will

8

continue taking it at lower rates.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

9

10

MR. JONES:

11

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

All right.

Yeah.
Thank you, sir.

Thank you.
We would like to take about a

12

ten-minute recess, see if there are any follow-up

13

questions for the other participants.

14

the record, and everyone will stand at ease for about

15

ten minutes, so we'll get back on the record about two

16

ten.

17

So we'll go off

(OFF THE RECORD)
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

18

All right.

We're back on the

19

record.

Before we go into any additional questions,

20

it's my understanding no other persons have signed up

21

to speak.

22

here?

23

questions, and, first of all, this is directed at SCA.

24

The independent analysis - we do not seem to have

25

received that here at the Commission.

Is that consistent with everybody's views

All right.

There are a few additional
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1

forwarded to us?

It's

2

MS. SMITH:

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

4

MS. SMITH:

referenced~--

I---

Yeah.

Yes, please come.
Sorry.

I think what we

5

provided was the broad range numbers, so how the

6

analysis was conducted is we took the NCCI modeling,

7

you know, because they take the percentage of what

s

ASCs are within the Medical Fee Schedule, what the

9

savings or costs would be; then they apply the

10

discount based on the outliers, so fifty percent

11

discount on reduction, eighty percent increase based

12

on a Fee Schedule increase.

13

and gave you the high top line numbers, but we'll be

14

more than happy to provide the more granular data, and

15

I think that will help, and maybe even getting NCCI

16

involved and using some of the data from the ASC

17

community that they can provide to NCCI and using that

1B

data to provide - I think that may give you all a

19

better baseline.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

20

21

data.

Yes, if you would provide that

What's a reasonable timeframe for that---

22

MS. SMITH:

23

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

24

MS. SMITH:

25

We used that methodology

I'll have to check with-----to be produced?

I'll have to check with SCA and I

think some of the other providers, but we'll get back
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1
2
3

with you tomorrow on the timeline.
CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Very well.

If you could let

Kendall Bourdon know that information, please.

4

MS. SMITH:

Sure.

5

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Thank you.
Okay.

And, also, are y'all aware

6

of any circumstance where an SCA has stopped providing

7

care to injured workers in states that have a lower

s

than two hundred percent rate?

9

MS. SMITH:

Yeah, that's a great question as well,

10

Chairman Allen.

I think what we would like to be able

11

to provide - and I think some analysis that should be

12

conducted prior to moving into a new schedule is when

13

you look at these averages - what, the hundred and

14

thirty, the hundred and forty percent ASC - is what

15

happened in those states to patients getting care on

16

ASCs' markets.

17

some pretty significant cuts, both on the HOPD and ASC

18

Fee Schedule, ASC stopped seeing patients, so there

19

were some real negative consequences, and so I know

20

there are some deadlines coming up on the lO'h, but

21

maybe it's something we should do a deeper dive in to

22

see what happened and how injured workers• access to

23

care and ASCs were impacted when those rates went to a

24

certain level.

25

because we can talk about a hundred and thirty, a

For instance, in Texas, when Texas did

I think that's an important analysis
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1

hundred and fifty, a hundred and seventy; the real

2

question is when you move to that rate, what does it

3

do to access?

4

that is to go back in some of these states and look at

5

some historical context.

6

provided in Hawaii.

7

in their - when they went through these Fee Schedule

8

changes where you saw some real changes in the quality

9

of providers when the Fee Schedule was reduced.

And I think the only way you can do

There was some data that was

Texas referred- used this data

You

10

ended up - you may have some providers out there

11

providing the care, but they're not necessarily the

12

quality of care, and you're not getting the clinical

13

outcomes, but Hawaii did do some pretty extensive

14

research on that, and we'll be more than happy to

15

provide that to the Commission for you to look at.

16

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Yes, if you would, and also

17

provide the data from other states to the degree that

18

y'all have that.

19

MS. SMITH:

That would be very helpful.
Just a caveat on that.

It is very,

20

very difficult to get workers' comp data because the

21

carriers hold it and NCCI holds it, and so maybe the

22

Commission can help assist in that matter as far as

23

finding - getting us some access to the Medical Fee

24

Schedule component of the whole workers' comp spend

25

historically and what portion of that was ASCs.
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1

we can - it's just very, very difficult.

2

opaque data system - data set.

3

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Okay.

It's a very

I understand.

If you

4

could, walk us through the site of service selection

5

process and how parity between hospital outpatients'

6

and ASC rates is so important in that.

7

we're -we don't operate in the environment where

8

y'all are coming from, obviously, so it's hard for us

9

to understand.

10
11

So, you know,

We'd like to have y'all have the

opportunity to explain that.
MS. COLLINS:

Yeah.

I mean I think I understand

12

what you're saying, and it's a good question.

13

that where we're coming from is that, again, we think

14

that we should be paid in our environment the same as

15

the care that's provided in other environments.

16

as far as how that limits determination of where care

17

is administered, I think a physician is going to

18

choose to go to the most convenient place that he can

19

go, and I think, for example, if he has the ability to

20

come to an ambulatory surgery center, that ambulatory

21

surgery center is not reimbursed at a level that

22

allows the costs of that care to be covered, those

23

cases are going to go to the hospital.

24

to go to the hospital environment, and that's the part

25

that we could control if we were paid equitably.
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1

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And is there any documentation

2

showing the asserted delay in care that is alleged

3

because of the differential in rates?

4

5

MS. COLLINS:
specific---

6

MS. SMITH:

7

MS. COLLINS:

8

MS. SMITH:

9

I don't know that there's anything

to data sets.

Yeah.

So it---

---to North Carolina.
Yeah.

And we can - this all goes back

I think a broader question is that we -

10

the ability for this sector - or for providers to get

11

data to give you the answers that you're asking is so

12

limited because of who holds that data set, but we

13

can- we'll do our best to try to find you some

14

answers on - I know that SCA has some internal

15

return-to-work statistics, care statistics.

16

want to touch on one point that was brought up during

17

the earlier discussion, and that

18

about HOPDs, hospital outpatient, hospital-owned ASCs,

19

you know, SCA ASCs, other ASCs.

20

legal entity, and if a hospital owns an ASC, they own

21

a Medicare-certified ASC, and if they are billing at

22

HOPD rates, they are - they basically are committing

23

Medicare fraud.

24

Schedule rate.

25

center, and it can be - if they want to call it

1

S

I do just

just some questions

An ASC is a licensed

They have to bill at the ASC Fee
Now a hospital can have an outpatient

GRAHAM ERLACHER & ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD· SUITE 22
WINSTON.SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103

336/768-1152

153

72

so

Full Commission Public Heor1ng, October 3. 2016

if

1

ambulatory surgery center, that's fine, but it's -

2

it's not a licensed Medicare-certified ASC, it is an

3

HOPD and they're billing at the higher rate, so I

4

think it's real - and physicians cannot have ownership

s

in HOPDs.

6

so there's - they are very distinct legal entities,

7

and there's no squishiness on how you bill because it

8

is set up by - an ASC is a Medicare-certified facility

9

and the licensing is such, so I just wanted to provide

10

The hospitals can have ownership in ASCs,

that clarity.

11

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

12

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:
Sorry.

Okay.
I've got a couple of

13

questions.

14

that I believe maybe Ms. Smith made that - you know,

15

we talked about the different percentages as

16

multipliers and the real question being what does that

11

do to access.

18

do to revenues.

19

percent level, what multiplier of a Medicare rate

20

would it have taken to break even?
MS. SMITH:

21

I want to go back to a statement

I'm really interested in what does that
When you were at the sixty-seven

I don't think- I don't have that

22

historical data, and I think it varies from ASC to

23

ASC.

24

think - is - so your question is as far as what would

25

a - what would that revenue rate have been translated

I think it depends on the provider.
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1
2

3

to an ASC Schedule, right, and that's what you---?
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:
times---

4

MS. SMITH:

5

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

6

MS. SMITH:

7

Multiplier, right, right.

Right.

that data with me, but we can - but we--COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

9

MS. SMITH:

11
12
13

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

Yeah.

I'd be very excited.

That

would be great.
MS. COLLINS:

And please understand that our goal

is not to break even at that rate.
MS. SMITH:

15

MS. COLLINS:

16

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

18

Could you get it?

I think we can try.

14

17

---the Medicare rate.

And we don't - I don't have

a

10

Translated to a multiplier

Yeah.
That's not our goal, even remotely.
Right.

I understand that,

but I think that would be helpful and--MS. SMITH:

Well, I -what I can provide for you

19

is the analysis that we did based on going to a two

20

hundred - to going to a parity with the HOPD based on

21

bill charges to the two hundred percent of Medicare

22

HOPD starting in '17, and that would be a forty

23

percent reduction in savings to the workers• camp

24

system.

25

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

I'm probably less

GRAHAM ERLACHER &ASSOCIATES
3504 VEST MILL ROAD· SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH GAROUNA27103

336/76&1152

155

74

52

Full Commission Public Hearing, October 3, 2016

1
2

interested in that than my other question, but okay.
MS. SMITH:

But I think it's almost relatable, but

3

I think - so we can back out that data for you because

4

if we can - if. we can show savings based on a Medicare

5

Fee schedule from bill charges, then we can probably

6

provide what that rate may have been.

7

the codes have changed, the payment underlying

s

Medicare codes have changed from year to year because

9

of eMS's annual adjustments to the Fee Schedule every

10
11

12

calendar year.
COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

MS. SMITH:

14

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

16

17
18

Do you generally agree

that your overheads at ASCs are less to some---

13

15

Now, given that

Oh, I can't-----magnitude than hospital

outpatient?
MS. COLLINS:

I'm sorry.

I was talking to

(inaudible),
MS. SMITH:

Oh.

I - no, she asked if the overhead

19

is less in an ASC than a hospital.

20

that is a generally discussed - that is a general

21

assumption, yeah, but I---

22

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

23

MS. SMITH:

24

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

25

MS. SMITH:

I think- I think

Do you know---

---don't think that's-----how much less?

---relevant to the workers' comp
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1

system because I don't - I don't think the employer

2

should be subsidizing a - you know, should they be

3

subsidizing a hospital emergency room?

4

I think you have to look at it in the context of care

5

to workers, right, and getting injured workers back,

6

and there's always all these other issues of uninsured

7

patients and, you know, the overhead that hospitals do

a

have because they are, you know, Charity Care, and

9

they are those emergency room providers, but I think

So, you know,

10

in the context of a workers' comp system we have to

11

talk at - what is at heart is getting injured workers

12

back on the job as quickly as possible, which saves

13

employers money.

14

15

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

what the difference in overhead percentage might be?

16

MS. SMITH:

17

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

13

MS. SMITH:

19

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

20

So do you have any idea

I don't.
No?

No.
Have you had any access to

care issues for just Medicare patients at all?

21

MS. SMITH:

22

patient population.

Well, Medicare is a totally different

23

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

24

MS. SMITH:

25

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

I agree.

Right.
I've recently become well
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3504 VEST MILL ROAD· SUITE 22
WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 27103

336j7SS.1152

157

76

54

Full Commission Public Hearing, October 3, 2016

1
2

aware of that.
MS. SMITH:

Thank you.
I just - I - it's just a different - I

3

think it's a different patient population.

4

are - there are---

5

6
7

COMMISSIONER CHEATHAM:

There

But there are no access to

care issues for Medicare in the ASCs?

MS. SMITH:

I can't answer specifically to ASCs,

8

but I can answer on a more broadly point.

I think if

9

you just moved into Medicare, what you are - you will

10

find is that there are a lot of providers that don't

11

take Medicare, and it is a problem that policymakers

12

contemplate all the time, is - you know, with the

13

spend in the Medicare Program and making sure

14

reimbursement is sufficient in guaranteeing access and

15

what we have seen specifically in the Medicare

16

Program - and we can provide that data to you - is

17

providers leaving the Medicare system because it

18

doesn't reimburse high enough.

19

cardiology.

20

see it across the board in the provider spectrum that

21

they are withdrawing from the Medicare system because

22

it doesn't reimburse at a higher- a high enough level

23

to cover their costs, so we'll be more than happy to

24

provide that data - how many providers are leaving the

25

general Medicare system because of low reimbursement.

You see it in

You see it in general practitioners.
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1

And washington is actually taking this into

2

consideration.

3

alternative payment models and, you know, bundled

4

payments and -because they know- they're trying to

s

address this.

6

They're moving to all these

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

Are ambulatory surgical

7

centers more likely than, say, hospitals or hospital

8

outpatient facilities to be located in rural,

9

underserved areas?

10

MS, SMITH:

You can answer that?

11

MS. COLLINS:

No, not typically.

We're seeing

12

actually more and more of those models; obviously,

13

very restricted in a CON state, as you all know.

14

Typically, they're located within about a three-mile

15

radius of a hospital.

16

COMMISSIONER BALLANCE:

17

MS. COLLINS:

18

patients.

Thank you.

And we do take care of Medicare

I want to make sure you know that,

19

MS. SMITH:

Yeah, yeah, yeah.

20

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

And I have a follow-up to

21

Commissioner Ballance's question.

22

facilities that are in a rural or underserved area?

23

MS. COLLINS:

Does SCA have any

Well, I'm going to offend one of my

24

facilities that's represented here, but, yes, we do.

25

We have - in Wilson, North Carolina.
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1

CHAIRMAN ALLEN:

Wilson.

Okay.

No further

2

questions, so we will go off the record momentarily.

3

I want to thank everybody for being here today and the

4

comments that we've received and the material that has

s

been provided to date and will be provided after

6

today's date.

7

you know, the Commission will take it under

B

consideration, and, you know, if you're going to be

9

submitting any additional comments, as I stated

It has been especially helpful, and,

10

before, be sure to check in with Kendall Bourdon to do

11

that.

12

Kendall helps maintain.

13

sign-up for that as well to be apprised of any

14

rulemaking developments, you know, whether in regards

15

to this or any other things, including E-filing.

16

have some rules that are upcoming with that.

17

all that said, thank you all for being here and thanks

18

for coming.

19

Also, we have a rulemaking list serve that
I would suggest that you

we

So, with

We'll go off the record.

(WHEREUPON, THE HEARING WAS ADJOURNED.)

20
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7
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8
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9
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10
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PROPOSAL TO THE NORTH CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
TO AMEND PARTIALLY INVALID RULE 04 NCAC 10J .0103
September 26, 2016

To:

Kendall Bourdon
IC Rulemaking Coordinator
North Carolina Industrial Commission
Delivered via email to kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov

Pursuant to the North Carolina Industrial Commission's September 2, 2016
Notice of Public Comment Meeting, Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") respectfully
submits the following proposal, which addresses fees for institutional services in
Workers' Compensation cases. This proposed amendment addresses the maximum
allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASCs") in
Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
As an initial matter, the Commission's attempted adoption of a new fee schedule
for ambulatory surgical center services as set forth in 04 NCAC !OJ. Ol03(g) and (h)
(also referenced in 04 NCAC !OJ. 0103(i)), and the amendment of the Prior Rule,
specifically 04 NCAC !OJ :OJOI(d)(3), (5), and (6) has already been declared invalid and
rendered ineffective by the Wake County Superior Court's August 9, 2016 Order in
Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. N.C. Industrial Commission (16 CVS 00600). The
Commission has proceeded with its request for proposed amendments as if this judicial
decision was not made. Similarly, the cost analysis requested by the Commission
wrongly compares new ASC fee schedules to the ASC fee schedule that has been
declared invalid. As a result, NCCI improperly overstates the costs and understates the
potential savings of a change to the ASC fee schedule.
SCA manages seven ambulatory surgical centers in North Carolina and has an
ownership interest in each of these centers through wholly-owned subsidiary corporations
(hereinafter "SCA ambulatory surgical centers"). The SCA ambulatory surgical centers
are located throughout North Carolina and include Blue Ridge Day Surgery in Raleigh,
Charlotte Surgery Center, Fayetteville Ambulatory Surgical Center, Greensboro Specialty
Surgery Center, Surgical Center of Greensboro, The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas
in Southern Pines, and Eastern Regional Surgical Center in Wilson.

SCA'S REQUESTED AMENDMENT OF THE COMMISSION'S
PARTIALLY INVALIDATED RULE 04 NCAC 10J .0103
The Commission's partially invalidated Rule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103 addresses fees
for institutional services under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act and
includes a schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for some of the services provided
by ASCs. The schedule set forth in this regulation only addresses surgical procedures
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that are covered under the Medicare program and does not include surgical procedures
that can be and are performed in ASCs but are not covered under Medicare.
The amendment proposed by SCA addresses procedures that are not currently
covered in this regulation and changes the schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for
ASCs to align with the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. This
alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based
solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency-all for the sole
benefit of the injured worker.
For those services that are covered under Medicare, the invalid fee schedule
contains reimbursement that is inadequate and that would create a significant disparity
between ASCs and hospital outpatient departments for the same services. As previously
recognized by the Commission, the disparity in reimbursement could cause changes to
referral patterns and where services are utilized.
To effectuate these needed revisions to the invalid fee schedule under the
regulation, SCA proposes that 04 NCAC IOJ .0103 be amended so that subsections (g)
and (h) and relevant portions of subsection (i) of04 NCAC !OJ .0103 (effective April I,
20 15) are deleted as shown in the attachment and that the following proposed subsection
(g) is substituted to read as follows:
(g) For those procedures for which CMS has established a
Medicare rate, the schedule of maximum reimbursement
rates for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASC'1 should be the same as the schedule of maximum
reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional
services as set forth in sub-part (c) above. For those
procedures for which CMS has not established a Medicare
rate for hospital outpatient institutional services, the
maximum allowable amounts for services provided by
ASCs shall be 50% of billed charges up to a cap of
$30,000. Charge master increases will be limited to 0%
increase for these procedure codes for the first 3 years, or a
revenue neutral adjustment will be applied to the percent of
charge paid.
See Attachment (redline of revised 04 NCAC IOJ .0103).

SCA's proposed amendment to the regulation serves to align payments for
ambulatory surgical procedures with the Medicare fee schedule while at the same time
acknowledging that Medicare has not created an allowance for certain procedures that are
routinely and safely provided to non-Medicare patients in the ASC setting. As such, SCA
is proposing a rate for these services that is consistent with the resources and time
involved in providing such procedures. In order to limit the tmcertainty of the insurers'
exposure on reimbursement, charge master increases will be limited to 0% increase for
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these procedure codes for the first 3 years, or a revenue neutral adjustment will be applied
to the percent of charge paid.
The amendment of04 NCAC IOJ.OI03 is needed for two reasons:
First, the ASC Medicare fee schedule does not cover all procedures that were
being performed prior to the enactment of the invalid fee schedule on April I, 2015 and
that can be performed in ambulatory surgical centers. Currently, injured workers are
receiving these surgical services in the more expensive inpatient hospital setting.
Receiving these services in an inpatient hospital setting often takes longer to schedule
than scheduling the same procedure in an ambulatory surgical center, resulting in delays
to injured workers from receiving needed surgical services. The failure to address all
surgical procedures in the fee schedule has also resulted in confusion and a failure by
some carriers to provide any reimbursement to the SCA ambulatory surgical centers for
procedures it has traditionally provided to injured workers because they are not covered
under the ASC Medicare fee schedule.
Second, the reduction in rate for ambulatory surgical services in the invalid fee
schedule contained in the current version of 04 NCAC IOJ .0103 is insufficient to meet
the requirements set forth in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26(a). Ambulatory surgical centers are
currently not being reimbursed equitable fees, and injured workers are not being provided
services consistent with the timing or standard of care intended by the Workers'
Compensation Act. Further, because SCA and other free standing ambulatory surgical
centers were not involved in the process of developing new fee schedules that are set
forth in the regulation, the Commission did not have any information that would have
been useful in determining reimbursement for ambulatory surgical centers, which would
include the administrative burdens related to scheduling, approval, claims processing and
collections, the additional expenses related to caring for traumatic injuries in a timely
manner, and the financial risk related to delayed payment due to litigation that is carried
by a provider when caring for injured workers. Importantly, injured workers treated by
ambulatory surgical centers have significantly better quality outcomes and improved
return-to-work metrics. These benefits are not considered in the September 19, 2016 cost
analysis.
The amendment being proposed by SCA would have a positive effect on the
procedures of the Commission because it will eliminate the confusion that currently
exists whereby some insurance carriers have determined that some procedures currently
being performed at ambulatory surgical centers are not covered in the current invalid fee
schedule based on ASC Medicare rates.
Additionally, the proposed fee schedule for ambulatory surgical centers will have
the added positive effect of lowering the costs for some surgical procedures that are
currently provided in a hospital inpatient setting by ensuring that those procedures can be
reimbursed in ambulatory surgical centers at a lower cost. This proposed regulation has
also been drafted to allow the State, on an ongoing yearly basis, to manage only one fee
schedule across all outpatient surgical settings, including ASCs and hospital outpatient
departments.
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As noted by the Commission, discrepancies in payments between ambulatory
surgical centers and hospital outpatient departments would "potentially diminish the pool
of doctors available to treat injured employees, and reduce the quality and timeliness of
care. That impact will likely be most severely realized in our State's more rural areas,
where the quality and availability of effective treatment is already a greater concern."'
SCA agrees with the Commission that the only way to ensure injured workers access to
high-quality, effective care is to create parity between the ASC and hospital outpatient
fee schedules.
Lastly, there is precedence in North Carolina that ASCs and hospital outpatient
were reimbursed in a similar manner. As noted in the Commission's prior Rule,
compensation effective January I, 2013 for ambulatory surgical centers and hospital
outpatient departments was set at 79% of billed charges and, effective April I, 2013,
payments to "Hospital outpatient and ambulatory surgery ... shall be reduced by 15
percent."2
COST ANALYSIS OF SCA'S REQUESTED AMENDMENT OF THE
COMMISSION'S PARTIAL INVALIDATED RULE 04 NCAClOJ .0103

At the request of the Commission, the North Carolina Rate Bureau ("NCRB") and
the National Council of Compensation Insurance ("NCCI") provide a cost analysis for
hypothetical ASC fee schedules for workers compensation cases. As stated in the
Commission's Notice of Public Comment Meeting, the purpose of requesting the cost
analysis was "to take public comment on and consider rulemaking options to address the
effects of the August 9, 2016 court decision invalidating the April I, 2015 medical fee
schedule provisions for ambulatory surgical centers."
As noted in the August 9, 2016 court decision, the "Commission's attempted
adoption of a new fee schedule for ambulatory surgical center services, but limited solely
to those services, as set forth in 04 NCAC !OJ. 0103(g) and (h) (also referenced in 04
NCAC !OJ. OI03(i)), and the amendment of the Prior Rule, specifically 04 NCAC IOJ
.OIOI(d)(3), (5), and (6), to the extent that the amendment removed the old fee schedule
for ambulatory surgical centers, are invalid and of no effect."3
As detailed in the NCRB's and NCCJ's "ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVES TO
THE NORTH CAROLINA AMBULATORY SURGICAL CENTER FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY I, 2017," the estimated overall impact of
six different ASC fee schedule scenarios estimates the overall impact of the proposed fee

1

North Carolina Industrial Commission, Memorandum Of Law In Support of Motion To
Stay, August 17, 2016.
2
http://www.ic.nc.gov/ncic/pages/statute/rule407.htm.
3
http://www.ic.nc.gov/080916RidgewayDecision .pdf.
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schedule changes between -0.4% (-$8.0M) and +1.1% (+$21.0M). 4 However, SCA
objects to the findings in NCCI's analysis.
Specifically, NCCI improperly uses the invalid ASC fee schedule as the baseline
for calculating the cost or saving related to the proposed changes. The ASC fcc schedule
required by the August 9, 2016 court decision reimburses providers at 67.15% of billed
charges. The NCCI analysis uses the invalid ASC fee schedule reimbursement of210%
of Medicare ASC rates as the baseline for the proposed fee schedule changes. Therefore,
NCCI's analysis using the invalid fee schedule understates the total impact on the overall
workers compensation system when adopting a ASC fee schedule that reimburses ASC at
a lower rate than the current fee schedule reimbursement of 67.15%.
SCA conducted independent analysis using internal data and NCCI's
methodology to evaluate the impact of SCA's proposed fee schedule change from the
current ASC fee schedule reimbursement rate of 67.15% of billed charges to the 2017
Service Year reimbursement rate of 200% of HOPD Medicare. The analysis concluded
that the resulting overall savings in 2017 to the overall workers comp system would be
$8.8M (-0.5%). The NCCI report using the invalid fee schedule suggests an overall
workers comp system cost increase by $21M (1.1 %).
SCA also questions why the September 9, 2016 NCCI analysis uses written
premiums including the self-insurance market when the past two reports NCCI presented
analyzing fee schedule changes did not include the self-insurance market written
premium data. By including the self-insurance market written premiums, the dollar cost
associated with a fee schedule increase are overstated and dollar savings are understated
when there is a fee schedule reduction relative to analysis that did not include the selfinsurance market written premium data.'

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION
The Commission's Notice of Public Comment Meeting indicates that prorosals
should assume an effective date as early as January I, 2017, which is not feasible. The
process of promulgating a permanent rule takes significantly longer than three months.
See N.C. Gen. Stat. § ISOB-21.2. Before a rule becomes effective, the Commission is
required to prepare or obtain a fiscal note, publish the proposed rule and fiscal note,
accept public comments on the proposed rule and fiscal note for at least 60 days, and then
submit the proposed rule to the Rules Review Commission for its review and approval.
4

The NCIC requested four different scenarios. NCCI included two additional fee
schedule scenarios. No explanation was provided by the NCIC or NCCI on why
additional payment scenarios were included.
5
The September 19, 2016 NCCI study reports: "This figure includes self-insurance."
The NCCI March 29, 2016 and December 4, 2014 studies state: "This figure does not
include self-insurance."
6
The NCCI September 19, 2016 analysis also assumes the fee schedule to be effective
January I, 2017.

166

85

If the Commission is assuming that a proposed rule changing the fee schedule for
ASCs could be adopted as a temporary or emergency rule, the Commission is incorrect.
The criteria that set forth when a temporary or emergency rule can be adopted are not
applicable. See N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 21.1 and 2l.IA. There is no unforeseen threat to the
public health, safety, or welfare and the Superior Court Decision concluding that the fee
schedule used prior to April I, 2015 is the valid fee schedule for ASCs does not require
that the Commission engage in rulemaking to change the ASC fee schedule.

Respectfully submitted this 26th day of September 2016.

Kelli Collins, Vice President Operations
Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
3820 North Elm Street #I 02
Greensboro, NC 27455
(336) 854-1663 office
(336) 202-6681 mobile
(866) 367-3168 fax
kelli .collins@scasurgery .com
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I
i

RED LINE OF PARTIALLY INVALID RULE

I

II
I

II

04 NCAC IOJ .0103
FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional
services shall be based on the current federal fiscal year's facility~specific Medicare rate established for each
institutional facility by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS"). "Facility~specific" rate means the

all-inclusive amount eligible for payment by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(1)
(2)
(3)

Beginning Aprlll, 2015, 190 percent ofthe hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
Beginning January 1, 2016, 180 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
Beginning January 1, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(l)
Beginning April 1, 2015, 220 per~ent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January l, 2017,200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs {a) through (c) of this Rule, maximum allowable amounts for institutional
services provided by critical access hospitals ("CAH"), as certified by CMS, are based on the Medicare inpatient per
diem rates and outpatient claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
(I)
Beginning Apr ill, 2015,200 percent of the hospitars Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 190 percent of the hospitaPs Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 170 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
Beginning April I, 2015,230 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(1)
Beginning January 1. 2016,220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(2)
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 210 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(g) NetwithstBHEiing ParegpB:f!hs (a) tlueugh (f) ef this Rule, the mauimu111 allowable ameunts fer institutiaRal
serviees pre·1ideEI tly ambulate!')· SYfgieal eenters ("l.. 8C11 ) shall be based en !he Medicare ASC reimbmsement
amoont determined by applying the mast reeently adapted and effeetive Medieare Payment System Pelieies fer
Sei'Viees Fumished in Amlmlatery Surgieal Ceaters afUI Outpatient Prespeetive PaymeHt System reimlntrsemeHt
feffHula and faetBI•s as flltblished BHfnmlly in the Federal Register ("the Medieare l .. SC faeility speeifie ameunt 11 ).
Reimbursement shall be baseel ea the fally implemented pnyn1ent ameunt is AeldeHSum AA 1 Final ASC Ce, ered
Sttfgioal Preeedures fer CY 2915, and Addendum BB, 'Final ASC CenreEI Aneillary SeFviees l••tegral te Ce, ered
SuFgieal Preeedt~res fer 2Ql3, as fiUblished in the Federal Register, er their sueaessers.
(g) For those procedures for which CMS has established a Medicare rate, the schedule of maximum reimbmsement
rates for services provided by amb11latory surgical centers l"ASC") should be the snme as the schedule of mnximtm\
reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services as set forth in sub-part (c) above. For those
procedures for which CMS has not established a Medicare rate for hospital outpatient institutional services, the
maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ASCs shall be 50% of billed charges 11p to a cap of $30 1000.
Charge master increases will be limited to 0% increase for these procedure codes for the first 3 years, or a revenue
neutral adjustment will be applied to tf1e percent of charge paid.
(h) The seheelule ef tHffilimum reimb:nsemetlt fates fer institutienal seFYiees pFevieleel by ftll'l:bUiatery surgieal
eentefS is as fellews:
(I)
Begieaing Atnill, 2Q1S, 22Q pefeetlt afthe Meelieara ASG faeility speeifie am aunt.
(2)
Beghming January 1, 2016, 21Q pereent efthe Meelieare ,.o.,sc faeil-ity-speeifie ameunt.
(3)
BeglHBing Januru=y l, 2Ql7, 2QQ pereent efthe Meelieare ASG fueility speeifia aRJeunt.
(h) If the facility~specific Medicare payment includes an outlier payment, the sum of the facility-specific
reimbursement amount and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages
set out in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e), and (f), ftfld-W of this Rule.
(i) Charges for professional services provided at-an institutional tacility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee
schedules in Rule .0102 ofthis Section.
(j) If the billed charges are less than the maximqm allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG")
payment pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no
more than the billed charges.
(k) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the
payment shall be determined using Medicare1s payment methodology for those specialized facilities nmltiplied by
the inpatient institutional acute care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and {c) of this Rule.
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PROPOSED RULE
04 NCAC IOJ .0103
FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES
(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional
services shall be based on the current federal fiscal year's facility~specific Medicare rate established for each
institutional facility by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ("CMS"). "Facility-specific" rate means the
all-inclusive amount eligible for payment by Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments,

(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January t, 2016, 180 percent of the hospital's Medicare facilitywspecific amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility~specific amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:
(l)
Beginning April1,2015, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(2)
Beginning January I, 2016,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule, maximum allowable amounts for institutional
services provided by critical access hospitals ("CAHu), as certified by CMS, are based on the Medicare inpatient per
diem rates and outpatient claims payment amounts allowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015,200 percent ofthe hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3)
Beginning January I, 2017, 170 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as
follows:
(I)
Beginning April I, 2015,230 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(2)
Beginning January 1, 2016, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(3)
Beginning January 1, 2017, 210 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(g) For those procedures for which CMS has established a Medicare rate. the schedule of maximum reimbursement
rates for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") should be the same as the schedule of maximum
reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services as set forth in sub-part (c) above. For those
procedures for which CMS has not established a Medicare rate for hospital outpatient institutional services, the
maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ASCs shall be 50% of billed charges up to a cap of$30,000.
Charge master increases will be limited to 0% increase for these procedure codes for the first 3 years, or a revenue
neutral adjustment will be applied to the percent of charge paid. ·
(h) If the facility-specific Medicare payment includes an outlier payment. the sum of the facility-specific
reimbursement amount and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages
set out in Paragraphs (b), (c), (e), and (f) of this Rule.
(i) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shalJ be paid pursuant to the applicable fee
schedules in Rule .0102 of this Section.
(j) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping ("DRG")
payment pursuant to the fee Schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no
more than the billed charges.
(k) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the
payment shall be determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those specialized facilities multiplied by
the inpatient institutional acute care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
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September 26, 2016

The Honorable Charlton Allen
Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
4430 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4340
Dear Chairman Allen:
The undersigned entities respectfully submit the following proposal to amend the North Carolina
workers' compensation medical fee schedule (04 NCAC !OJ .0101, .0102 and .0103) with
respect to services provided by ambulatory surgery centers (ASCs). This proposal is intended to
address the effects of the August 9, 2016 orderissued by Wake County Superior Court Judge
Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, L.L. C. v. North Carolina Industrial Commission, in
the event that the order is upheld by the appellate process.
This proposal seeks to not only address the fee schedule for ASC services set forth in 04 NCAC
!OJ .0103(g), (b) and (i) and 04 NCAC !OJ .O!OI(d)(3), (5) and (6), as referenced in Judge
Ridgeway's order, but also to prevent similar efforts by other medical provider groups to nullify
the current fee schedule as it pertains to their services. Please note that the proposal amending 04
NCAC !OJ .0101 is exactly the same as the one published in the North Carolina Register on
November 17, 2014, while the proposal amending 04 NCAC I OJ .0103 recodifies the sections
previously adopted by the Commission but brought into question by Judge Ridgeway's order.
Based on the data provided below, we also encourage the Commission to consider reducing the
fee schedule for ASC services to 150% of Medicare, which would bring North Carolina's fee
schedule more in-line with other states that utilize a Medicare based reimbursement model.
BASIS FOR PROPOSAL
As stated above, the proposal recommended in this document would maintain the fee schedule
for hospitals, physicians, ASCs and all other health care providers that serve workers'
compensation patients as approved by the Commission on January 16,2015 and by the North
Carolina Rules Review Commission on February 19, 2015.
Following the 2011 passage oflegislation (HB 709) which addressed indemnity benefits, it
became necessary to address the issue of rising medical costs in the workers' compensation
system. Prior to the Commission's adoption of a fee schedule tied to Medicare's reimbursement
for workers' compensation services, the costs of medical procedures in North Carolina were far
higher than those in neighboring states and other states with which North Carolina competes for
economic development.
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Prior to the adoption of the current fee schedule, ASC reimbursement in North Carolina for
workers' compensation injuries was 31% higher for knee arthroscopy and 49% higher for
shoulder arthroscopy than the 33-state median, as reported by the Workers' Compensation
Research Institute {WCRJ) in Payments to Ambulatory Surgery Centers, 2"" Edition (May 2016).
It is worth noting that Surgical Care Affiliates operates ASCs in a number of the WCRJ study
states where ASC reimbursement is significantly less than the 33-state median, including
California, Colorado, Delaware, Michigan, Mississippi, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South
Carolina, and Texas. There are no access to care problems reported in those states. The current
fee schedule puts North Carolina ASC reimbursement closer to the 33-state median and should
not create any access to care problems for North Carolina injured workers.
Maintaining the same adopted multipliers to the Medicare ASC facility-specific reimbursement
amount allows North Carolina ASCs to effectively market their services as a value proposition
for payers compared to outpatient hospital reimbursement rates. As noted in SCA Investor
Presentation {September 20, 2016), ASCs provide approximately 45% savings compared to
hospital outpatient reimbursement. North Carolina businesses should not be deprived of this
value proposition touted by Surgical Care Affiliates.
While the undersigned entities have proposed that the Commission adopt the same fee schedule
for ASC facilities that was adopted by the Commission, we also encourage the Commission to
consider further reducing the fee schedule for ASCs in order to bring North Carolina more inline with other States that utilize a Medicare-based fee schedule for ASCs. The current ASC fee
schedule places North Carolina in the higher end of states that utilize Medicare's reimbursement
methodology. If the Commission wishes to consider amending the multiplier applicable to the
Medicare ASC facility-specific reimbursement methodology, we recommend that the multiplier
be reduced in order to bring North Carolina closer to the median for states that utilize Medicare's
reimbursement methodology. Neighboring states South Carolina {140%) and Tennessee (150%)
utilize significantly lower multipliers than North Carolina {currently 210%). Consequently, the
Commission should strongly consider adopting 150% as the multiplier to the Medicare ASC
facility-specific reimbursement amount. This amendment would put North Carolina closer to the
median of states that utilize Medicare reimbursement methodology, and make North Carolina
more competitive with neighboring states while saving North Carolina businesses $6-8 million
annually according to the NCCI, Ana{ysis ofAlternatives to the North Carolina Ambulatory
Surgical Center Fee Schedule Proposed to Be Effective January 1, 2017.

DETAILS OF THE NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING PROCESS
The Commission's adoption of a workers' compensation medical fee schedule was the
culmination of a lengthy negotiation process that began in 2012 and lasted more than two years.
On one side oftbis negotiation were representatives of the employer and insurer communities,
and on the other side were representatives of facilities and physicians. Both sides had a common
goal of ensuring that payment for medical services was fair and ensured access to care for injured
workers so they could be treated and successfully returned to employment.
This negotiation process included the selection of a consultant- the Foundation for
Unemployment Compensation and Workers' Compensation Study -jointly agreed to and paid
2
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for by all parties, including the American Insurance Association, Capital Associated Industries,
North Carolina Hospital Association, North Carolina Medical Society, North Carolina Chamber,
North Carolina Home Builders Association, North Carolina Retail Merchants Association and
the Property Casualty Insurers Association of America. After numerous informal negotiation
sessions, these parties jointly agreed to and paid for Andy Little, one of North Carolina's
foremost mediators, to conduct a formal two-day mediation. In addition to these parties,
representatives from the North Carolina Advocates for Justice and the North Carolina
Association of Defense Attorneys attended these mediations, as did Drew Heath, Chairman of
the North Carolina Industrial Commission. Again, the intent of the parties was to reach an
agreement on the facility and provider fee schedules that would avoid protracted litigation or
opposition from affected parties. While rates for services provided by hospitals and certain
physician groups such as mdiologists were reduced in attempt to bring North Carolina's medical
fee schedules in-line with median averages for other states, other physician groups such as
family physicians saw their rates increase to similarly adjust to median averages for other states.
Additionally, the rate reductions were stair-stepped over a fifteen month period to mitigate their
impact.
Contrary to the affidavit of Conor Brockett of the North Carolina Medical Society put forth by a
number of orthopedic groups in Surgical Care Ajjlliates, L.L. C. v. North Carolina Industrial
Commission, there was never an attempt to exclude certain types of providers, either Surgical
Care Affiliates or any other ASC or orthopedic group. We do acknowledge that, during the final
mediation with Andy Little, both sides were asked to limit the number of participants for the
sake of efficiency. All parties were instructed to meet with their respective interest groups and
arrive at the mediations with the authority to come to a resolution on the fee schedules.
Additionally, there was a general feeling by the parties during all of the negotiations that the
North Carolina Medical Society had apparent, if not actual authority, to represent the practice of
orthopedic medicine. This was evidenced by:
I} The statement on the North Carolina Medical Society's website that the Society's
Specialty Society and Meeting Services Department currently manages ten specialty
associations in North Carolina, one of which was the North Carolina Orthopedic Society.
(See Attachment A}
2} The North Carolina Orthopedic Society is housed inside the physical office of the North
Carolina Medical Society Headquarters located at 222 North Person Street, Raleigh, NC.
(See Attachment B)
3} The email address for Alan Skipper the Executive Director of the North Carolina
Orthopedic Society is ncoa@ncmedsoc.org. (See Attachment B)
4} The letter of support submitted by the North Carolina Medical Society dated January 16,
2015lists twelve entities that applaud the efforts of the Commission and encourages the
Commission to adopt the fee schedule as proposed. The North Carolina Orthopedic
Society is listed as one of the twelve signatory entities. (See Attachment C)
3
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5) The N01th Carolina Orthopedic Association Electronic Newsletter dated March 5, 2015
trumpets the fee schedule approved by the Commission stating ''The North Carolina
Orthopedic Association (NCOA) and the North Carolina Medical Society (NCMS) are
excited to report that the N.C. Industrial Commission has confirmed that North Carolina's
workers' compensation fee schedule has been updated for the first time in nearly 20
years." The newsletter also alludes to the involvement of the North Carolina Orthopedic
Association when it states "Tirls outcome is the result of many years of advocacy by the
NCMS on this issue along with many specialties' efforts and a lot of work by NCMS
Associate General Counsel Conor Brockett, who guided the successful strategy to
completion. Richard Bruch, MD, NCOA Executive Committee Member and Councilor to
the AAOS, was a member of the NCMS Task Force dedicated to this issue" and that
"The NCOA joined the NCMS in a comment letter last month supporting the proposed
rules." (See Attachment D)
Additionally, at the Public Hearing conducted by the North Carolina Industrial Commission on
December 17,2014 concerning Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Rule Changes, Mr. Brockett
made the following statements of support for the fee schedule as proposed:
I think the overall message that I want to communicate, and one I hope you 'II remember, Is that
the physician community is squarely behind this proposal and hopes that you will see It through
to adoption. (Transcript from North Carolina Industrial Commission concerning Proposed
Medical Fee Schedule Rule Changes, December 17,2014, Page 19)
What we have here, though, is a product ofcompromise- considerable compromise. The
proposed rule involves some pain. It involves some gain for all of the stakeholders who are
directly affected by this. It's up and down, so it's not really a perfect solution for anybody or for
everybody, but I think it's the result ofa healthy process so far, and ultimately, our view is it will
make the system stronger In the end and going forward So I'll just close by thanking each ofyou
for the opportunity to share the physician perspective today. We look forward to participating in
the process as It continues. Thank you. (Transcript from North Carolina Industrial Commission
concerning Proposed Medical Fee Schedule Rule Changes, December 17, 2014, Page 23).
CONCLUSION

The arguments by Surgical Care Affiliates requesting an increase in the ASC fee schedule ring
hollow. Surgical Care Affiliates failed to submit written comments to the Commission, failed to
appear before the Commission at its Public Hearing, failed to appear before the North Carolina
Rules Review Commission, and failed to submit ten (I 0) letters of objection with the North
Carolina Rules Review Commission that would have subjected the fee schedule to legislative
review. Surgical Care Affiliates' arguments that the fee schedule is inequitable are simply stale.
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Similarly, the argwnents by orthopedic medicine groups requesting an increase in the ASC fee
schedule should also be rejected, in light of the fact that the North Carolina Medical Society
negotiated on their behalf with apparent and actual authority, and also because the North
Carolina Orthopedic Association was a signatory on a Jetter submitted to the Commission in
support of the ASC fee schedule.
At a minimum, we recommend that the Commission readopt the ASC fee schedule as previously
(and unanimously) approved on January 15,2015 with the support of numerous interest groups.
In the alternative, the Commission should reduce reimbursement for ASC services to 150% of
Medicare to bring it in-line with other states that utilize a Medicare base reimbursement
methodology for ASC services.
Sincerely,
Capital Associated Industries, Inc.
North Carolina Association of County Commissioners
North Carolina Association of Self-Insurers
North Carolina Automobile Dealers Association, Inc.
North Carolina Chamber
North Carolina Farm Bureau and Affiliated Companies
North Carolina Forestry Association
North Carolina Home Builders Association
North Carolina Leagne ofMunicipalities
North Carolina Manufacturers Alliance
North Carolina Retail Merchants Association
American Insurance Association
Property and Casualty Insurers of America Association
Builders Mutual Insurance Company
Dealers Choice Mutual Insurance Company, Inc.
First Benefits Insurance Mutual, Inc.
Forestry Mutual
North Carolina Farm Bureau
The Employers Association, Inc.
Employers Coalition of North Carolina
WCI, Inc.
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SECTION .0100- FEES FOR MEDICAL COMPENSATION 04 NCAC lOJ .otOl
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Ea) The Cemmissien adapted and published a Medieal Fee Sehedule, puf9uant te the previsions
efG.S. 97 26Ea), settiag mBllimlllll amounts, exeept fer hospital fees pllFSuant te G.S. 97 26Ebj,
that may be paid fer medieal, surgieal, nursing, dental, and rehabilitative ser>~ees, fllld
medieines, siek I!'M·el, and ether treatment, i!leluding medieal and surgieal SI!Jlplies, efiginal
artifiOOII-members as may reasonably be neeessary at the end efthe healiag pefied ood the
replaeement efseell Bflilleial members villen reasenably neeessitated b~· erdinary use er medieal
eireumstanees. Pursuant to O.S. 97·26, the Commission adopts a Medical Fee Schedule
composed of maximum amounts, reimbursement rates. and payment guidelines. The amounts
and reimbursement rates prescribed in the applicable published Medical Fee Schedule shall
govern and apply according to G.S. 97·26(c). The Medical Fee Schedule is available on the
Commission's website at btto://www.ic.nc.gov/ncic/pageslfeesched.asp and in hardcopy at the
offices oftheComrnission as set forth in 04 NCAC lOA .0101.
Ebj The Commission's Medieal Fee Sel!edule eentaillS mllllimum allewed amounts fer medieal
serviees pre•..ided JlUf911ftlll te Chapter 97 ef the Geael'al8tatntes. The Medieal Fee Selledule
utili~es 1993 thfe11gh the preseftt, C11rrent Preeedural Te!miaelegy ECP13 eedes adapted by the
Amerieatt Medieal ,o\dlseeiatien, Ilealtheare Cemmen Preeedure Ceding Systems (HCPCS)
aedes, andjllrisdietien speeille aedes. A listing efthe maJ<imlllll allowable amelllll fer eash eede
is availehle en the Cemmissiea's wehsile at http://wvr.·o'.ie.oe.ge•h'neie/pageslfeesehed.IISjl ood in
hardeepy at the eftiees efthe Cemmissien as set fef!h in 04 ~ICAC HlA .OIQl..
Ee) The fellevJing methedelegy provides the basis fer the Cemmissieo's Medieal Fee 8shed11le:
(I) CPT eedes fur Qeneral Medieiae are based en 199S Nef!h Carolina Medieare Yalues
multiplied hy US, e*eept fer CPT eedes 99201 99205 and 99211 9921 S, villieh are
based en 1995 Medieare val11es 11111J.tiplied by 2.0S.
E2l CPT eedes fer Ph)'Sieal Medieine are based ea 1995 neflh Carelina Medieare values
mllltiplied lly 1.36.
(3) CPT eo des fer Radielegy are based ea 1995 Nef!h Carelina Medieare val11es
multijllied by 1.96.
(4) CPT eedes fer Surgery are based en199S Nef!h Cruelina Medieare •..alaes multiplied
by2.G6.
Ed) The Commission's Hospital Fee Selle<lllle, adopted p11rsaant te Q.S. 97 26Eb), prevides fur
payment as fellews! El)II!Jlatiellt hospital fees: Inpatient serviees are reimbarsed based ea a
Diagnestie Related Gre~~pings EDRG) melhedelegy. The Hospital Fee Sehedule atilizes the 2001
Diagfleslie Related Grel!pings adepted by the Slate Health Plan. Baell DRQ ameunt is based en
the ameunt that the State Health Plan had in effeet fer the same DRG en June 30, 2001.
DRG &mE!llnls are fuf!hel' subjeet te the fellewing payment band that establishes manilllllm and
minim11m paymeet amounts:
(A) The manimllm payment is I 00 Jlei'Senl efthe hospital's itemized eharges.
(B) Per hospitals ether than efi!ieal aesess hospitals, the minimum pa!llllent is 75 pereent
efthe hespital's itemized eherges. Effeeti·.. e Fshroary I, 2013, the minim\lm paymellt rate
is the ameunl pre'lided fer under Subparagraph ES) belew, s11bjee!le a<ljustment en April
1, 2013 as pre•Jided therein.
E(ry Fer eritieal aeeess hespitals, the miilimum payment is 77.97 persent efthe he spital's
itemized shurges. Bffeetive Fehroary 1, 2G13, the miaimum payment rate is the am aunt
6
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~re~ided fer unaer Sub~amgra~h (S) l!e!ew, subjeet te adjustment en A~ril 1, 2013 as
~w.•ided llterein,
(2) Outpatient hespital fees; Out~atient seFViees are reiml!ureed easea en the hespilal's aelual

el!arges as hilled en the UB 04 elaim ferm, subjeet te. the fell ewing !lereentage diseeunts:
(A) Jler hespitals ellter than sritieal aeeess hes~itals, the !la:rmeat shall be 79 pereeRI ef
the llespital'a hilled ellarges. l>lfeeli•ie Jlellmary I, 2013, the p~eat iellte ameunt pre'liaed fer
uaaer Subparagraph (ti) helew1 aubjeet te adjuslmeat ea April!, 2013 as pre>.~ded therein.
(B) Fer eritieal aeeessl!eepitals, the payment ollal! he 87pereent efthe lleepital's hilled
ellargoo. Fer ~urpeses efthe hespital fee sehedule, sritieal aeeess hespitals are these hesiJitals
designated as iiUell IJUreuant te federal law (42 GJlR 485.601 et Sell•)· l>lfeetive February 1, 2013,
the sritiea! aeeess he spital's ~ayment is the ameuat ~revidea rer under Suhparagraph ($) belew,
subjeet te aajuslmeat enAjlrill, 2Ql3 as pre¥iaea therein.
. ·· . · .
·- .·
. : ·
(J) ~~~'l!lio/~!ifflef.Y f.ee.~i ~-l'iii!~FY-~ii8r,Y,'~~~!~~~ri1~!iii iii~ ~~~~~ .~.l}fJ lle~~ ~{
llill_lljl.,\'l!~es,.~~~:t~.f~ffl!l!'YJ, 2R!~ 1 $.~.11fflh.!!l.~\~!?' -~eFY-~"'!!-f-~~f'l:i.~~~--!!1'~. . .... •.. . . ·
re@ll~~d.ftl.~~.~~!ll.itPI'II;1~~,HQomEier Subpamgraph (ti) beleVlJ subjeet te adjuslmeat en
Apfill, 2013 oo pie;'ided therein,
(4) Other rates: If a pre•1ider has agreed under eentraet with the insurer er managed eare
erganii!e!ien te aeeept a diffilrent ameuat er reimllllreeraent metlled_elere·, that ameuat er .
metlledelegy establishes the applieable fee,
. . · . . · · , . · · . ·· , · · . · . · · · .
(ti) ~.~~~-!~~:~~~~--~~~-:fiii~.~~~~~-~.:llim~.i1.i~ ~\!i~r:~f.ll~,;;~:~-~•~~~-~i.~~\\\ii~-~~),

2QJ,,a,, .!!w\\li.~.ll!lll-~li~\\li.~.tia;r.m.~~.!Jl.~,~~~. ~~spi~ il)l,d l!!~.flar'!l~lllf!l8~ !lmll)l!a,le,f'J
surg$fY_,~f/ffl~f-~l..~.e..~.e.l,~l~~.Jl~~m~\.ffil.\'9-.i~~.ffi!~!f\l.r.,t,l!e~e.fll\!!l!li.e~.~.~f~~}.9.•.~w@,

_

.Etfll~ti:l,l'.bJ!I'i\.h ~.~.!~. tll~.~~.l'f!\~ ~ll<llt1!~.~~.·~~!;1~.~-~-f?~~~(.(fJ1,!~f!}l~.'!!.~!Jl\l!il!Jll)!!ld.

am,~!!l~!~!?'-~~~:.Th~~~e~.~.ffiw\,!lll.~fl\l.~~.~~~~-~)~1!_.~-~-~~ee~~fl~.J!i!rH~ •.'(l,l),H~!lllital
iapl\ll~it'Jih~~j!)i~p~ylllffi\.f.~l~,i;rle~~.t,~...~.f~.~!\le,~~~-llMil,~ll~~.~.~yJQflefe~!t\• ..... ,
(6) Elfeeli'te i.pl'ill 1 2013 1 impiWita shall he IJaia itt ne greater lhBil iaviltee .eeet plus 28 pereent.

(e)(!U Insurers and managed care organizations, or administrators on their behalf, may review
and reimburse charges for all medical compensation, including medical, hospital, and dental fees,
without submitting the charges to the Conunission for review and approval.
W(2} A provider of medical compensation shall submit its statement bill for services within 75
days of the rendition ofthe service, or if treatment is longer, within 30 days after the end of the
month during which multiple treatments were provided. However, in cases where liability is
initially denied but subsequently admitted or detennined by the Conunission, the time for
submission of medical bills shall run from the time the health care provider received notice of the
admission or detennination of liability. Within 30 days of receipt of the slatemeat, bill. the
employer, carrier, or managed care organization, or administrator on its behalf, shall payer
submit the slotemeat te the Cellilllisoien fer approval the bill or send the provider written
objections to the statement. bill. If an employer, carrier, administrator, or managed care
organization disputes a portion of the provider's bill, the employer, canier, administrator, or
managed care organization, shall pay the w1contested portion of the bill and shall resolve
disputes regarding the balance of the charges through its contractual arrangement or through the
Commission. (g){!!) Pursuant to G.S. 97-IS(i), when the 10 percent addition to the bill is
uncontested, payment shall be made to the provider without notifying or seeking approval from
the Commission. When the 10 percent addition to the bill is contested, any party may request a
hearing by the Conunission pursuant to G.S. 97- 83 and G.S. 97-84.
'
'
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WW.When the responsible party seeks an audit of hospital charges, and has paid the hospital
charges in full, the payee hospital, upon request, shall provide reasonable access and copies of
appropriate records, without charge or fee, to the person(s) chosen by the payor to review and
audit the records. (ij(f} The responsible employer, carrier, managed care organization, or
administrator shall pay the slatemeals bills of medical compensation providers to whom the
employee has been referred by the treating physician authorized by the insurance carrier for the
compensable injury or body part, unless the physician has been requested to obtain authorization
for referrals or tests; provided that compliance with the request shall not unreasonably delay the
treatment or service to be rendered to the employee. (ff-.(g} Employees are entitled to
reimbursement for sick travel when the travel is medically necessary and the mileage is 20 or
more miles, round trip, at the business standard mileage rate set by the Internal Revenue Service
per mile of travel and the actual cost of tolls paid. Employees are entitled to lodging and meal
expenses, at a rate to be established for state employees by the North Carolina Director of
Budget, when it is medically necesasry that the employee stay overnight at a location away from
the employee's usual place of residence. Employees are entitled to reimbursement for the costs of
parking or a vehicle for hire, when the costs are medically necessary, at the actual costs of the
expenses.
(IE) fu} Any employer, carrier or administrator denying a claim in which medical care has
previously been authorized is responsible for all costs incurred prior to the date notice of denial
is provided to each health care provider to whom authorization has been previously given .
•0103 FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES

(a) Except where otherwise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and
outpatient institutional services shall be based on the current federal fiscal years facility-specific
Medicsre rate established for each institutional facility by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS). Facility-specific rate means the all-inclusive amount eligible for payment by
Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments.
(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional
services is as follows:

(I) Beginning April!, 2015, 190 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific amount.

(2) Beginning January I, 2016, 180 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific

amount.
(3) Beginning January l, 2017, 160 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific

amount.
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional
services is as follows: ·
(1) Beginning April I, 2015,220 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific amount

8
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(2) Beginning January 1, 2016, 210 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific
amount.

(3) Beginning January I, 2017, 200 percent of the hospitals Medicare facility-specific
amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule, maximum altowablc
amounts for institutional services provided by critical access hospitals (CAH), as certified by CMS,
are based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates and outpatient claims payment amounts allowed
by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services
provided by CAHs is as follows:
(I) Beginning April!, 2015, 200 percent of the hospitals Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(2) Beginning January I, 2016, 190 percent of the hospitals Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(3) Beginning January 1, 2017, 170 percent ofthehospitals Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services
provided by CAHs is as follows:

(I) Beginning April!, 2015, 230 percent of the hospitals Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(2) Beginning January I, 2016,220 percent of the hospitals Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
(3) Beginning January I, 2017, 210 percent of the hospitals Medicare CAH claims payment
amount.
·
·
'
'
,
,
·
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G) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shall be paid
pursuant to the applicable fee schedules in Rule .0102 of this Section.
(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic
Related Grouping (DRG) payment pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule, the insurer
or managed care organization shall pay no more than the billed charges.

(I) ·For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective
Payment System, the payment shall be determined using Medicare's payment methodology for
those specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient institutional acute care percentages set out
in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
· ·
·· ·
·
·
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Organizations Affiliated with the NCMS
:Ms Foundation
:MS Alliance

:Ms Sections
>unty Medical Societies
.>ecialty Societie>

The North Carolina Medical Society's Specialty Society and Meeting
Services Department currently manages ten specialty associations in
North Carolina. They are:
1. Carolinas Chapter of the American Association of Clinical
Endocrinologists
2. NC Chapter. American College of Physicians
3. North Carolina Dermatology Association
4. North Carolina Neurological Society
5. North Carolim~ Obstetrical and Gynecological Society
...J-- 5. North Carolina Orthopaedic Association
"f' 7. North Carolina Society of Otolaryngology and Head & Neck
Surgery
8. North Carolina Society of Eye Physicians and Surgeons
9. North Carolina Society of Pathologists
10. North Carolina Spine Society
2/4
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North Carolina Orthopaedic Association
Back to All Specialty Society Listings
The mission of the NC Orthopaedic Asociation (NCOA) is to advance the science and practice of
orthopaedic surgery through education and advocacy on behalf of patients and practitioners,
with emphasis on overall quality orthopaedic health care for the state of North Carolina.
For more information on the NCOA, visit www.ncorthopaedics.org.

2016 NCOAAnnual Meeting
http:/Jwww.ncmetJsoc.orWBbcut·ncmslpartner-orgarizationslspeetalty-socleUes/north-carollna-ulhopodic-assoclallofll
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• Dates: October 7-9, 2016
• Location: The Pinehurst Resort, Village of Pinehurst, NC
• Accommodations: Call the Pinehurst Resort at 800-4874653 to reserve a room now!
• Add this event to your calendar.
• Sponsorship & Exhibiting Opportunities: Download the
Exhibitor Prospectus.
For more information on this event, please contact Nancy Lowe,
nlowe@ncmedsoc.org, (919) 833-3836 ext. 111.

leadership
President: Matthew D. Olin, MD- Greensboro, NC
President Elect: Peter G. Mangone, MD- Asheville, NC
Vice President: Richard C. "Chad" Mather, Ill, MD- Durham, NC
Secretary-Treasurer: Shawn B. Hocker, MD- Wilmington, NC
Recording Secretary: jessica A. Woodcock, MD- New Bern, NC
Historian: Charles H. Classen, Jr., MD- Kinston, NC
Immediate Past President: julian M. "Ma.ck" Aldridge, Ill, MD- Durham, NC
Councilor to AAOS: Frank V. Aluisio, MD- Greensboro, NC
Councilor to AAOS: Richard Bruch, MD- Durham, NC
Councilor to AAOS: Edward G. Lilly, Ill, MD - Hendersonville, NC
Executive Director: W. Alan Skipper, CAE -Raleigh. NC

join Today!
Become a part of the NCOA!
• Return your completed Membership Application form along with payment to NCOA; or
• join online at www.ncmedsoc org/jojn. ·
For membership questions, please contact NCOA member services at (800) 722-1350 or
ncortho@ncmedsoc.org.

Support NCOA PAC
http:/lwww..ncrtledsoc.orWabout-ncms/parlner--organiza!Ions/sp(ICJalty-socletles/north-carolin<r«thopcdc-~!3oc::latic:o'

215

182

101
912S'2016

N~Xth Carolina OrthopaedJc Association 1Norlb

Ca-olina MOO:cal Society

NCOA PAC. the non-partisan political committee of the North Carolina Orthopaedic Association
(NCOA), relies on voluntary contributions from members like you to back candidates for public
office who support the NCOA position on issues affecting orthopaedic practice and patient care
in North Carolina. Donate online or download a form to support your PAC.

NCOANews
• luly 26. 2016
• Arp. 27.2016
• Mar. 4. 2016
• Nov. 20. 2015
• Aug. 20. 2015
• luly 20. 2015
•May21.2015
• Apr, 14. 2015
• Mar. 5. 2015
•(an. 12.2015
• Dec. 23. 2014
• Oct. 8. 2014

Contact Us
North Carolina Orthopaedic Association
PO Box 27167
222 North Person Street
Raleigh, NC 27611
Phone: (919) 833-3836
Fax: (919) 833-2023
Web: www.ncorthopaedics.org
-li_
Email: ncoa@ncmedsoc.org
Executive Director: W. Alan Skipper

1'-

AboutNCMS
• About NCMS
• Board of Directors
o Contact the Board
• NCMS Staff
• NCMS Member Directory
• Accomplishments
• NCMS Committees
hltfJ1/www.ncmedsoc.orf/abod.-ncma/p«trt&r·orgarJ:za~onsJspecialty-societieslnocllrcarolina·orlhopEdlo-assocJatir.:d

315

183

102
North Ctvolina Orlhoj:oo:lic As.soclaUon 1NorlhCardina Medical Society

W2fV2016

• Location & Directions
• Partner Organizations

The North Carolina Medical Society

Physical Address:
222 N. Person Street
Raleigh NC 27601
Get Directions

Phone:
1.919.833.3836
1.800.722.1350 (NC only)
1.919.833.2023 FAX

Mailing Address:
PO Box 27167
Raleigh NC 27611

The NCMS is a
proud partner
with
Medical Mutual .

•

.-

'l Follow Us On Eacebook

• :1>

Follow Us On Twitter

• hl Subscribe to our Slog
http:llwww.ncmedsoc.orglabout-ncms/partner-orgarizaUoosJspeclalty-socleUesJrof:h.carollna-ortlx'opedic-associatioo'
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January 16, 2015

Ms. Meredith Henderson
Executive Secretary
North Carolina Industrial Commission
4333 Mall Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-4333
meredith.henderson@ic.nc.gov

Re: Comment In Support of Proposed Fee Schedule Rules, 04 NCAC 101 .0101, .0102, .0103
Dear Ms. Henderson,

The North Carolina Industrial Commission Is charged with adopting a schedule of medical fees for the
workers' compensation system. in doing so, the Commission is required by law to strike an Important
balance: the fee schedule must ensure that Injured workers can receive the care they need; medical
providers must be compensated at reasonable rates; and medical costs must remain adequately
contained. Ourcurrent fee schedule has grown stale since Its adoption In the mld-1990s, both In terms
of how it values medical services and In how the Commission maintains it. Simply put, the fee schedule
no longer strikes the necessary balance. The time is right to make considerable changes, and we applaud
·
the Commission for taking these Initial steps.
The undersigned medical associations- representing thousands of physicians across North Carolina who
regularly provide medical care to Injured workers- have reviewed the proposed revisions and wish to
express our collective support. We encourage the Commission to proceed with the adoption of these
rules.
We would like to highlight and briefly discuss multiple provisions contained in proposed Rule 04 NCAC
10J .0102- Fees for Professional Service (elf. July 1, 2015) ("Rule .0102").
•

Payment Rates. Paragraph (b) of Rule .0102 establishes basic payment rates for all categories of

professional services ranging from 140%-195% of Medicare. We understand that the
Commission assigned percentages to each category that, based on the available literature,
reflect the national median of payment rates for each category. We anticipate, therefore, that
this methodology will also result In North Carolina's professional rates moving to the national
median In the aggregate-a significant Improvement that will also more closely reflect today's
costs of providing medical care. According to the most recent WCRI analysis, North Carolina now
ranks 41" out of the 43 states that have adopted professional fee schedules. Better rates will
help to drive more physicians to participate in the workers' compensation system.
•

PAs, NPs, and other providers. Physicians have cited difficulties when Involving physician

assistants, nurse practitioners, and other members of their care teams in treating workers'
compensation patients. More specifically, medical practices encounter varying requirements
from the carrier community about when (If ever) one of these providers may treat patients and
be compensated. Paragraph (h) of Rule .0102 effectively clarifies that physicians may rely on
other providers so long as scope of practice laws are followed, and that the rates for services
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Fee Schedule Rule Comments
Physician Coalition
Page 2 of 2
provided by those Individuals are also subject to the Rule. This Is a welcomed provision that will
allow medical practices to care for their patients more efficiently without compromising quality.
•

OM€ Fee Schedule. We are pleased that the Commission proposes to create and maintain a
dedicated fee schedule for durable medical equipment (DME). While only a small number of
medical practices supply DME, those that do typically encounter major burdens with billing and
payment for these items. By adopting Medicare's list of ma~imum allowable amounts for DME,
we anticipate that the Commission will have no reason to require that providers substantiate
their requested payment amount for most Items with mailed/faxed paper invoices.

We believe the revised fee schedule rules strike the necessary balance, and will move our workers'
compensation system forward. North Carolina's physicians have appreciated the opportunity to
participate in the discussions and negotiations of the fee schedule that have spanned the last several
years, and we appreciate the opportunity to provide these comments to you today.
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact any of our organizations.

Sincerely,

North Carolina Medical Society
The NCMS Workers' Comp Fee Schedule Task Force
North Carolina Chapter, American College of Physicians
North Carolina College of Emergency Physicians
North Carolina Medical Group Management Association
North Carolina Neurological Society
North Carolina Orthopaedic Association
North Carolina Psychiatric Association
North Carolina Radiological Society
North Carolina Society of Anesthesiology
North Carolina Society of Otolaryngology and Head & Neck surgery
North Carolina Society of Pathologists
SouthEastern Atlantic College of Occupational & Environmental Medicine
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In this edition:
• URGENT: Take Action Now to Stop 3% Medicaid Cut
• Significantly Revised Workers' Comp Fee Schedule Achieves Final Approval--First
Update in 20 Years!
• Advocacy Update: Certificate of Need Reform Effort js Gaining Momentum
• The New BCBSNC "Estimate Health Care Costs" Website Provjdes Cost Estimates for
l/arious Procedqres. But How Accurate Is the Data?
• NCMS Responds To Proposed ACO Program Changes
• NC Doctors' Day 2015
• ZQ15 NCOA Annual Meeting. Oct. 9·11

Medicaid Cut: Take

Action

In 2013, the NC General Assembly included a 3% "withhold" for all Medicaid services with
the intention of using that money as the foundation of a shared-savings program. After
difficulty developing the program, the "withhold" was redrafted as a cut the following year
with an effective date of January 1, 2014. That cut has not been implemented due to delays
In NCTracks.
Doctors treating Medicaid patients now face a requirement to pay back 3% of everything
they have been paid by Medicaid for the last 14 months. Every day that passes increases
this financial and administrative burden. We know this money has already been spent on
staff salaries, office overhead, and other basic requirements of serving the Medicaid
population.
call or email your representative/senator and tell them bow much you will have to send
back to Medicaid, and what it will mean to you and your practice. Tell your legislator that
you cannot afford a massive recoupment at the same time as you are being asked to
transform the entire way we deliver health care to the Medicaid population.
Take Action Now==> and share this alert with your colleagues.
NOTE: Primary care physicians who received enhanced Medicaid payment rates in
accordance with the ACA will not be subject to the 3% reduction in 2014. However, those
https:Jfww.N2.ncmedscc.orgfema.llvlewOONebpago.espx?erlct=24S467&1rid=e010ba06-3t9e-4n4-B7e9-b82o8eeeOt68

1/4
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same PCPs will be subject to the reduced rates and a recoupment of payments made for
January and February 2015 dates of service.

Reprinted with permission from the North Carolina Medical Society.
Topol om•

Significantly Revised Workers' Comp Fee Schedule Achieves Final
Approval--First Update in 20 Years!
The North Carolina Orthopaedic Association (NCOA) and the North Carolina Medical Society
(NCMS) are excited to report that the N.C. Industrial Commission has confirmed that North
Carolina's workers' compensation fee schedule has been updated for the first time in nearly
20 years. The new rates will take on effect July 1, 2015. The N.C. Rules Review Commission
on Thursday, Feb. 19, 2015, approved administrative rules which provide the fee schedule
update. "The new fee schedule means huge progress for our state's injured workers, the
physicians who treat them, and our workers' compensation system as a whole," said NCMS
President Robert E. Schaaf, MD, FACR in a statement released by the NCMS on Feb. 23,
2015.
.
This outcome is the result of many years of advocacy by the NCMS on this issue along with
many specialties' efforts and a lot of work by NCMS Associate General Counsel Conor
Brockett, who guided the successful strategy to completion. Richard Bruch, MD, NCOA
Executive Committee Member and Councilor to the AAOS, was a member of the NCMS
Task Force dedicated to this issue. The update was required by legislation calling for the
Industrial Commission to link workers' compensation rates to Medicare rates and policies.
One of the forces that propelled this action Is the difficulty that workers currently
experience when seeking care resulting from on-the-job injuries. The proposed rules were
published in the North Carolina Register In November 2014 and a public hearing was held in
December. The NCDA joined the NCMS in a comment letter last month supporting the
proposed rules.
"The new Industrial Commission Medical Fee Schedule incorporates long needed revisions
that will protect injured workers' access to healthcare while significantly reducing the
overall cost of the workers' compensation system by establishing fair and reasonable fees
for medical treatment," said Chairman Andrew T. Heath, in a press release.

Advocacy Update: Certificate of Need Reform Effort is Gaining
Momentum
A casualty of the recent winter weather, the Orthopaedic White Coat Wednesday, originally
scheduled for Feb. 25, was expected to draw a dozen physicians to Raleigh. The event,
however, was cancelled due to the inclement weather and hazardous road conditions.
Please watch for a new date to be announced soon.
NCOA lobbyist Connie Wilson reports that CON bills may be Introduced In both chambers as
early as this week. The political-legislative climate for CON reform in the NC General
htlps:Jtwww2.ncmedsoo.org'em<ilvllMionwebpage.aspx?~ld=246487&lrld=e01~3f9e.4n4-B7eg..b82&6eoo0166
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September 26, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Kendall Bourdon, Rulemaking Coordinator
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
RE: Fees for Institutional Services (04 NCAC lOJ .0103) (eff. Apr. 1, 2015)
Dear Chairman Allen and Coordinator Bourdon,
Please accept this correspondence on behalf of the National Association of Mutual Insurance
Companies {NAMIC) 1 to communicate our strong support of the North Carolina Industrial
Commission's (NCIC) passage of04 NCAC !OJ .0103 (eff. April!, 2015) (rule) and communicate
our strong opposition to Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC's (SCA) position in Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC v. NC Industrial Commission based on the foregoing:
The rule was properly adopted following approximately three years of negotiations and
hearings in accordance with the North Carolina Administrative Procedures Act;
Rulemaking negotiations included a jointly funded consultant, a formal mediation, and
years of rulemaking hearings involving government, business, insurance, community,
and professional/expert feedback;
The rule was produced by way of thoughtful dialogue, investigation, and objective
quantitative analysis that allowed North Carolina to bring some of its medical expenses,
including those impacting ambulatory surgery centers, in line with those of surrounding
states. States that have adopted of Medicare-based fee schedules for workers'
1 1 NAMIC is the largest property/casualty insurance trade association in the United States, with more than 1,400
member companies representing 39 percent of the total U.S. market. NAMIC supports a diverse spectrum of
regional and local mutual insurance companies as well as many of the largest insurers in the world. NAM[C member
companies in the United States and Canada serve more than 170 million policyholders and write more than $230
billion in annual premiums. Our members account for 54 percent of homeowners, 43 percent of automobile, and 32
percent of the business insurance markets in the United States. Through our advocacy programs we promote public
policy solutions that benefit NAMIC member companies and the policyholders they serve and foster greater
understanding and recognition of the unique alignment of interests between management and policyholders of
mutual companies.
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compensation include Connecticut, Delaware, Georgia, Kansas, Mississippi, North
Dakota, Ohio, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and West Virginia;
All North Carolina stakeholders, including SCA, were provided ample opportunity to
participate in the administrative rule-making process;
Pursuant to NCCI' s Analysis of Alternatives to the North Carolina Ambulatory
Surgical Center Fee Schedule Proposed to be Effective January 1, 2017, in relation to
the fee schedule reflected in the rule, the fee schedule clearly reflects the maximum
Ambulatory Surgical Center allowable fees proposed in the current rule remain well
above the amount permitted for reimbursement by Medicare beneficiaries;
•

Any retroactive amendment sought by SCA would result in irreparable harm to
businesses in North Carolina that purchase workers' compensation insurance as
required by North Carolina law;
Any amendment to the rule would adversely affect medical costs incurred by the State
of North Carolina, local governments, school boards, and insurers, amongst others.

Thank you greatly for your time and consideration related to the above.
Regards,

Liz L. Reynolds, CPCU, API, !OM
Director- State Affairs
Southeast Region
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NCHA
PO Box4449
Cary, NC 27519-4449

919/677-2400
919/677-4200 lax
www.ncho.org

North Coro/iun Jluspitnl Association

September 26,2016
The Honorable Charlton Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Conunission
430 N Salisbury St.
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
The North Carolina Hospital Association (NCHA) recommends to the Commission, as it considers a new
rule for ambulatory surgical facilities, that the ambulatory surgical fee schedule should follow the
language, percentages and schedule previously adopted by the Commission in Rule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103
(see attached). For 2017 and beyond, that rule had provided for 200% of the applicable Medicare rate for
ambulatory surgical centers, with the applicable am-surg fee schedule determined pursuant to subsection
(g).

As the Conunission is aware, the language of this Rule and the fee schedule amounts were developed over
a nearly 3-year period after studies of fee schedules in other states; impact analyses by providers,

employers and insurers; and consideration of related issues. The impact of moving to 200% of Medicare
was a substantial reduction for hospitals and ambulatoty surgery facilities, thus leading to the phase-in of
the reductions over the 2015 to 2017 period.
NCHA does not support a lower percentage than 200% for hospital outpatient and ambulatory surgery
centers. Medicare's outpatient payments are low in comparison to costs, thus requiring a 2x multiplier to
provide adequate reimbursement. Even at 200%, the workers' compensation fee schedule rates are lower
than what commercial managed care plans pay hospitals for the same services. The rates were set at that
level in order to balance adequate reimbursement with the Commission's duty to control medical costs.
Rates lower than 200% will likely create an access problem, as facilities providing services to workers'
compensation patients ca!U1ot sustain lower levels of payment and would need to consider discontinuing
providing costlier services or procedures to injured workers. Ensuring an adequate rate is therefore critical
in enabling the Commission to meet the third prong of its duty in developing a fee schedule: ensuring that
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers' Compensation
Act.
NCHA and others have previously provided the Commission with data and studies used in the
development of the fee schedule that was recommended to and adopted by the Commission in 2014.
Those studies included the following:
(I) NORTH CAROLINA WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE: A WHITE PAPER
REVIEWING MEDICAL COSTS AND MEDICAL FEE REGULATIONS, prepared for the
National Foundation for Unemployment Compensation and Workers' Compensation; prepared by
PhilipS. Borba, Ph.D. and Robert K. Briscoe, WCP, Milliman, Inc.; May 23,2013.
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(2) CompScope Medical Benchmarks, 15th Edition, for North Carolina, published by the Workers'
Compensation Research Institute, August 2014.
(3) North Carolina Hospital Association/Opium Group Health survey data, June 2013 and July
2014.

(4) Review of states' fee schedule structures, nationally and regionally.
We have reviewed the NCCIINCRB data, and it is unclear on a number ofits assumptions and
methodologies, which can significantly impact its findings. NCHA is continuing to review the data with
our consultant.
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Linwood Jones
General Counsel
North Carolina Hospital Association
cc. Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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04 NCAC !OJ .0103 FEES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES
(a.) Except where otheiVIise provided, maximum allowable amounts for inpatient and outpatient institutional services shall be
based on the current federal fiscal year's facility~specific Medicare rate established for each institutional facility by the Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (11 CMS 1'). "Facility-specific,. rate means the aiHnclusive amount eligible for payment by
Medicare for a claim, excluding pass-through payments.

(b) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient institutional services is as follows:

I.

(I) Beginning April 1, 2015, 190 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.

2. (2) Beginning January 1, 2016, I80 percent of the hospital's Medicare faoility-speciflc amount.
3. (3) Beginning January 1, 2017, 160 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount
(c) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for hospital outpatient institutional services is as follows:

!.

(1) Beginning April I, 2015, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility·speciflo amount.

2. (2) Beginning January 1, 2016, 210 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
3. (3) Beginning January I, 2017,200 percent of the hospital's Medicare facility-specific amount.
(d) Notwithstanding the Paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Rule, maximum altowable amounts for institutional services
provided by critical access hospitals f'CAH 11), as certified by CMS 1 are based on the Medicare inpatient per diem rates and
outpatient claims payment amounts altowed by CMS for each CAH facility.
(e) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for inpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:

I. (1) Beginning April!, 2015, 200 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
2. (2) Beginning January 1, 2016,190 percent ofthe hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
3. (3) Beginning January 1, 20 I7, I70 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH per diem amount.
(f) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for outpatient institutional services provided by CAHs is as follows:

I. (1) Beginning April!, 2015, 230 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
2. (2) Beginning January I, 2016, 220 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
3. (3) Beginning January 1, 2017,210 percent of the hospital's Medicare CAH claims payment amount.
(g) Notwithstanding Paragraphs (a) through (t) of this Rule, the maximum allowable amounts for institutional services
provided by ambulatory surgical centers ("ASC") shall be based on the Medicare ASC reimbursement amount determined by
applying the most recently adopted and effective Medicare Payment System Policies for Services Furnished in Ambulatory
Surgical Centers and Outpatient Prospective Payment System reimbursement formula and factors as published annually in the
Federal Register ("the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount'). Reimbursement shall be based on tha fully implemented
payment amount In Addendum AA, Final ASC Covered Surgical Procedures for CY 201 5, and Addendum BB, Final ASC
Covered Ancillary Services Integral to Covered Surgical Procedures for 2015, as published In the Federal Register, or their
successors.
(h) The schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for institutional services provided by ambulatory surgical centers is as
follows:

I. (I) Beginning April I, 2015, 220 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount.
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2. (2) Beginning January I, 2016,210 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount.
3. (3) Beginning January I, 2017, 200 percent of the Medicare ASC facility·specific amount.
(I) If the facility-specific Medicare payment Includes an outlier payment, the sum of the facility-specific reimbursement
amount and the applicable outlier payment amount shall be multiplied by the applicable percentages set out In Paragraphs (b),
(c), (e), (f), and (h) of this Rule.
(j) Charges for professional services provided at an institutional facility shall be paid pursuant to the applicable fee schedules in
Rule .0 I02 of this Section.

(k) If the billed charges are less than the maximum allowable amount for a Diagnostic Related Grouping (11 DR0 1') payment
pursuant to the fee schedule provisions of this Rule. the insurer or managed care organization shall pay no more than the billed
charges.
(I) For specialty facilities paid outside Medicare's inpatient and outpatient Prospective Payment System, the payment shall be
determined using Medicare's payment methodology for those specialized facilities multiplied by the inpatient institutional acute
care percentages set out in Paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Rule.
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October 3, 2016
.Charlton l. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to presehtcomments in response to possible rulemaklng options
for the maximum allowable amounts for serVIces pmvlded by ~mbulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act.•. Pleas.e accept this letter In support o(the prqposal sti!JmiJt~dby surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("sCA") on September 26, 2016to amend the previously,declared Invalid Rule04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carollna.'sWorkers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).. · ·
Triangle OrthopaedlcsSurgery Center {TOSC) Is an accredited, two Operating Room, single
specialty, orthopaedic ASc located at 7921 ACC Blvd. In Raleigh. TOSC was awarded one of
three demonstration project CONs to. develop a physician owned ASC as outlined In the State
Health Coordinating Council's 2010 State Medical Facilliles Plan. Since opening in 2013,
Triangle Orthopaedics Surgery Center has served over 7tlbQ.palients. It Is the mission of TOSC
and Its physician owners to provide access to safe, high quplityoutpatient surgical care in a cost
effettlve manner, allowing physicians and patients active. Involvement In directing the care that
Is delivered to all members of our community.
In Aprll2015, the industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs, However, lr1 promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs,the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the .Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee sched.ule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In res~bnse to the Court's order Invalidating the April '1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAClOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.
Triangle Orthopaedics Surgery Center Is Ill full support of seA's proposal to align
relmbursemellf rate.s for AScs With the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient
departments. We fully agree that alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site-ofservice deciSions to be based solely on clinical jUdgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling
efficiency.
7921 ACC Boulevard • Raleigh, NC 27617 • (919) 596-8524 • (919) 596-6640 fax
www.triangleorthOsurgetycentCr.com

196

115

A\1r~~~~fjr9~1frdics
1iiallgle Orl~opaMk Am(/IIM, P./1. 1flili<l/' Qtgalli'lflion

propo~oltocover pr0~ed:ur;s

In addition, we fully support SCA's
that were being conducted in
ASCs prior to the enactment of the lnval.ld fee schedule on A'Rrill, 2()15. Excluding the
procedures that were prevl~uslyp~r(or!lled at ASC$ \VIHresu.lt In .an access problem for Injured
workers; which would violate thestatuloryre~ulremepts of.~.n~urlng Injured workers are
provided the services and standard ofcare required by theWorkers' Compensation Act.
Finally, we strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina.Hospjtal ASs(/datlon. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule forASCs,whlch would limit injured workers'
·access to timely care.
·
'
,'

'

.

'

'<-___ ,_-,'<:~:"

'

-

Thank you for your consideration. If you hav~ any qu~stlons; please feel free to cOhtact me at
(919)596-8524.

'

'

Sincerely,

~~
Christine Washlck RN, CASC
Administrator
Triangle Orthopaedics Surgery Center, llC
cc:

KendaiiBo.urdon
Meredith Henderson

;, .

7921 ACC Boulevard • Raleigh, NC 27617 • (919} 5%·8524 • (919} 596-6640 fox
.,
www.trla:rtgleortho8urgetyceilter:c-91ri
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NCHA
PO Box 4449
Cory, NC 27519-4449

919/677-2400

919/677-4200 fox
www.ncho.org

North Caro/in" 1/osptta/ Association

October 10,2016
The Honorable Charlton Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N Salisbury St.
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity for NCHA to comment on the arn-surg fee schedule at the October
3rd public hearing. We are providing the following information to supplement and further elaborate on a
few issues that were discussed at the hearing.
NCHA recommends that the Commission adopt the same rule that it had adopted earlier for
payment of ambulatory surgery rates. NCHA does not support a rate lower than 200% of Medicare for
hospital outpatient or am surg rates for reasons noted at the hearing and in our previous comment letter.
Hospital outpatient rates versus am--surg rates
There was quite a bit of discussion at the hearing on the difference between hospital outpatient rates
and am-surg rates. Under the Medicare fee schedules, hospital outpatient mtes are on average higher than
those for arn-surg centers. NCHA does not support tying am-surg rates to the hospital outpatient fee
schedule for several reasons:
• If Medicare is going to be used as the basis for the fee schedule, then Medicare's fee schedules
(with the 2x multiplier for workers' compensation) need to be adhered to, without changing the
payment differentials between various providers. The Medicare fee schedules have been
actuarially developed by CMS, and as discussed below, there are reasons for the differences in
reimbursement levels between hospital outpatient and arn-surg facilities under those fee schedules.
• Hospital outpatient services are costlier than arn-surg services for severn! reasons. Hospitals incur
substantial costs relating to keeping an emergency room open 24/7 and maintaining service lines
that are needed by the community but unprofitable. ASCs are also typically able to schedule
surgery during normal business hours, whereas hospitals have less predictive scheduling, which
results in higher costs. Hospitals also provide charity care to the indigent and are reimbursed
below cost for serving Medicaid recipients.
• In addition, as noted in the attached memorandum from Opturn, Medicare uses relative weights as
one of the factors in determining payment rates for hospital outpatient facilities and ASCs.
Relative weights establish how costly any one service is in relation to any other service. Opturn
examined the relative weights of3,077 procedures performed by hospital outpatient departments
and ASCs. Of those, the hospital outpatient relative weights were higher than ASC relative

198

117

North Carolina Industrial Commission
October 10, 2016

Page 2

weights 2,952 times. The ASC relative weights were higher only 125 times. The relative weight is
higher for hospital outpatient because the hospital payment generally includes additional bundled
services- such as clinic, emergency department, radiology, MRis, CTs,laboratory and other
services- that are often not performed in an ASC-setting. As noted by Optum, adopting the
hospital outpatient relative weights for ASCs would mean payingASCs for services they often do
not- and cannot - perform.
• Hospital outpatient departments must meet the provider-based requirements under federal
regulations (42 CFR § 413.65(d) and Transmittal A-03-030). Those requirements include the
following:
o The outpatient department operates under the same license as the hospital.
o The outpatient department has integrated clinical services with the hospital. This includes
requirements that the hospital maintain the same monitoring and oversight of the outpatient
facility as it does for any other hospital department. The hospital medical staff committees
are responsible for overseeing medical activities and quality assurance at the outpatient
departmeni.
o The hospital and outpatient department have a unified retrieval system for medical records,
o Patients of the outpatient department have full access to all services of the hospital.
o The hospital and its outpatient department are fully financially integrated.
o The hospital outpatient department must comply with hospital rules such as anti-dumping,
nondiscrimination, and health and safety rules.
o Additional rules apply when the outpatient department is located off the hospital campus.

NCCI Analysis
NCHA asked Optum to review NCCI's analysis. Optum's comments and questions on the analysis are
included in the attached memo. Optum noted that without more explan?tion of the analysis, "it is difficult
to determine whether the models reflect what may happen should any of the various methodologies or
percentages be adopted. Generally, models staying within ASC-PPS system are most likely to have some
reliability, but cross-system comparisons of ASC-PPS and OPPS need an explanation of discounts and
bundles to determine reliability."
Thank you for the opportunity to comment. Please feel free to contact us if you have additional questions.

Linwood Jones
General Counsel

199

118

lP~

kQ OPTUMinsighf'

9200 Worthington Rd
Sulte300

Westerville. OH 43082
www.optum,eom

Oct. 6, 2016
To:

Linwood Jones

From: Eric Anderson
Managing Consultant
Reimbursement Analytlcs
Re:

Discussion of NCIC-requested analysis and SCA Response

At the request of the North Carolina Hospital Association, Optum was asked to perform
a technical review of a workers' compensation Ambulatory Surgical Center (ASC) analysis
provided to the North Carolina Industrial Commission as well as a response from Surgical Care
Associates (SGA).
As background, Optum has provided assistance to more than a dozen states in
developing and implementing facility (hospital and ASC) workers' compensation payment
methodologies.
Discussion of analysis for Industrial Commission
Modeling changes In reimbursement methodologies can be extremely difficult,
particularly forfaclllty outpatient payments. While Medicare's hospital outpatient prospective
payment system (OPPS) and the ambulatory surgery center system (ASC-PPS) are similar, they
also differ in significant ways. How those differences are accounted for In the modeling process
can make a considerable difference In the results.
The only completely accurate method Is to have claim-level detail (all items on the
claim), with a sufficient number of claims, and to process those claims through commercially
available pricing software with different payment models selected. It appears this option was
unavailable. Lacking that, an analyst Is confronted with making assumptions In reconciling
disparities between OPPS and ASC-PPS.
The reimbursement models provided to NCIC have insufficient documentation how
differences between OPPS and ASC-PPS were accounted for. These unanswered questions
preclude definitive conclusions on the reliability of cross-system comparisons between ASC-PPS
and OPPS.
The following bold-face Items are from the analysis with an examination of how
different assumptions may produce differing results.
Page 2: Calculate the weighted-average percentage change in maximum
reimbursements far the fee schedule using observed payments by procedure code
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The documentation does not detail how many clafms, services, or provrders were
present in the data.Aiso missing Is explanation of what detail level was used.lf a low claim
volume is used, there Is an Increased likelihood of variability between the model and the
eventual real-world implementation. If summarized volumes instead of actual claims were
analyzed, then certain steps are required to account for the impact of discounts and bundles.
The lack of volume information and use of summarized Information does not negate the
analysis, but low and/or summarized volumes potentially diminish reliability. .

Page 2: ... "The Impact of Physician Fee Schedule Changes In Workers Compensation:
Evidence from 31 States'~ suggests that a portion of a change in maximum reimbursements Is
realized on payments Impacted by the change.
The physician study cited concludes when a decrease In maximum reimbursement for
physician services occurs, only SO% of the decline Is realized. Conversely, when an Increase In
maximum reimbursement for physician services occurs, only 80% ofthe Increase Is realized. This
physician study becomes the basis for implementing a "price realization facto~' which adjusts
the Impact of any reimbursement methodology changes. Declines are reduced by half; increases
are set at 80%.
The referenced study specifically did not consider hospital or ambulatory surgical center
transactions. On Page 5, the study noted: "The data <et excludes transactions associated with

medical services provided by hospitals and ambulatory surgical centers, but includes transactions
related to services delivered by physicians (the provider type) at these places af service.
OPPS and ASC-PPS are :till!L!v fee schedules. Unlike physicians, hospitals and ASCs
generally have less flexibility In charging different prices to different payers as physicians might.
Because of payer networks and other factors, the full impact of any methodology
change Is unlikely to occur. However, applying estimates from physician study to a facility
methodology merits further explanation as to Its appropriateness.
Using a physician price realization factor may understate the lower boundary by as
much as 50% (the reduction may be more than expected) and also underestimate the upper
boundary by 20% (the increase may be more than expected).

Page 3 "Prior MAR"
There are several questions relating to the MAR calculations.
1. The Prior MAR calculation uses the 2015 ASC·PPS schedule while the proposed
MAR calculations use the :<016 ASC-PPS schedule. Although Medicare makes
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adjustments to achieve the same results year-over-year, workers'
compensation utilization differs from Medicare's. As the result, weight changes
for workers' compensation services might not be neutral and could represent
an Increase or decrease. This can be tested using North Carolina workers'
compensation volumes to determine whether Medicare weight changes Impact
reimbursement. The documentation does not explain whether this was done. If
It was not done, some reimbursement Impact may be driven by changes In
Medicare's weighting, not changes In reimbursement methodology or
percentages.
2. The Proposed MAR- ASC-Based Alternatives does not state whether wage
Indexes were considered when modeling payments. Because they are not
mentioned, presumably they were not. However, If wage Indexes were
considered they may have created another Inadvertent Issue. Core Based
Statistical Areas (CBSAs) were revamped as the result of the 2010 census. These
resulted In changes to CBSA compositions. That, In turn, brought about wage
index changes with most occurring between 2014·16. If wage Indexing was
done, then payment changes as any CBSA changes ought to be been noted In
the modeling.
3. The Proposed MAR- Hospital-Based Alternatives lacks a pertinent discussion.
While ASC-PPS and OPPS are similar, they differ In discounting and bundling.
Because hospitals provide a broader range of services than ASCs, hospital
bundles are often larger and more comprehensive. There Is no discussion how
the disparities between the two systems were reconciled. Areasonable
presumption might be that the analysis used the multiple procedure discount
flag from ASC-PPS, but strictly speaking that Is not following OPPS payment
rules. Without clarity on discounting and bundling, the analysis of MARHospital-Based Alternatives should be regarded with some skepticism.
Summary
The modeling produced one seemingly unlikely result. One model estimated what
happens If payments Increased from 220% of ASC·PPS (using 2015 weights) to 235% of ASC-PPS
(using 2016 weights). The lower boundary calculation projected overall ASC payments might
drop 4.1% or a $1.9 million.
An Increase in payment results In less expenditure seems an unlikely result. Although
there are ways this might be achieved, an explanation as to how the model creates this
counterintuitive result would be helpful. Without further explanation, it Is difficult to determine
whether the models reflect what may happen should any of the various methodologies or
percentages be adopted. Generally, models staying within ASC·PPS system are most likely to
have some reliability, but cross-system comparisons of ASC-PPS and OPPS need an explanation
of discounts and bundles to determine reliability.
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Discussion of Surgical Care Associates response
Surgical care Associates LLC (SCA) offered a response to the payment modeling
presented to the Industrial Commission. While the SCA response covers details beyond a
technical analysis, the hospital association asked that Optum review the technical components
of SCA's response. The bold-face text Is from the SCA response.

Page 2: For those services that are covered under Medicare, the Invalid fee schedule
contains reimbursement that Is Inadequate and that would create a significant disparity
between ASCs and hospital outpatient departments for the same services.
The disparity Is created by the adoption of a Medicare-based system.

Page 2: (g) For those procedures for which CMS has established a Medicare rate, the
schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for services provided by ambulatory surgical
centers ("ASC") should be the same as the schedule of maximum reimbursement rates for
hospital outpatient Institutional services as set forth In sub-port (c) above,
This sentence and further discussion equates payments for services In hospital
outpatient departments (HOPD) with services provided in ambulatory surgical centers.
There are two components to Medicare's payment policy:

o Arelative weight which establishes how costly any one service Is In relation to
any other service.
o

A conversion factor which accounts for differences among hospitals and among

ASCs. For outpatient, the only adjustment to the conversion factor Is the wage
Index that adjusts for geographical salary differences.
SCA's suggestion does not say but presumably wishes adoption of both the hospital
relative weights as well as hospital conversion factors. Of these two, relative weights present a
more complex Issue. Medicare's comprehensive and consolidated bundling payment
methodology Is different between ASCs and hospital outpatient.
In general, what may appear to be equivalent services may not be because Medicare's
bundling system includes services beyond just the HCPCS code itself. In other words, while the
HCPCS codes for ASCs and hospitals may be the sa me, the payment often Includes a different
range of services bundled In the payment.
The chart below illustrates. It shows the difference In relative weights for some common
workers' compensation procedures performed in hospital outpatient departments and ASCs.
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The OPPS {hospital outpatient) relative weight is higher than the ASC-PPS weight
because the hospital payment usually includes additional bundled services- typically clinic,
emergency department, radiology, MR!s, CTs, laboratory and other services- that are often not
performed In an ASC-settlng.
In the April 2016 Medicare update, OPPS relative weights are higher than ASC relative
weights 2,952 times. Conversely, ASC relative weights were higher 125 times.
Because of their nature, ASCs do not perform many of the services included In hospital
outpatient bundles. Adopting the OPPS relative weights for ASCs would mean paying ASCs for
services they often do not- and cannot- perform.

Page 3: The amendment being proposed by SCA would have a positive effect on the
procedures of the Commission because It will eliminate the confusion that currently exists
whereby some Insurance carriers have determined that some procedures currently being
performed at ambulatory surgical centers are not covered In the current Invalid fee schedule
hosed on ASC Medicare rates.
While the proposed change may or may not eliminate some confusion that currently
exists, It would create another type of confusion In determining how to apply a different set of
bundling rules- notably the comprehensive status indicator, Jl-that apply in OPPS but is not
present In ASC-PPS.
Medicare's Jl status Indicator In hospital outpatient has no comparable methodology in
ASC-PPS. In general, if a code with a Jl status indicator appears on a claim, that Is paid and

204

123

i.>~

-~ OPTUMinsight"

9200 Worthington Rd
Sulte300

Westerville, OH 43082

www.optum.com

nothing else. There are complex rules relating to payment when two or more HCPCS codes with
Jl status Indicators appear on a claim. Medicare Is greatly expanding HCPCS codes covered by
the J1 status Indicator. For 2017, more than 2,500, mostly surgical, HCPCS codes will have a Jl

status Indicator.
Beyond the bundling Issue, there are also differences In how OPPS and ASC-PPS handle
wage Index adjustments and which wage indexes would apply. Additional rules would need to
be developed to handle these disparities.

Page 4: As noted by the Commission, discrepancies In payments between ambulatory
surgical centers and ho•pltal outpatient departments would "potentially diminish the pool of
doctors available to treat Injured employees, and reduce the quality and timeliness of core.
Presumably the quoted material accurately reflects the commission's statement.
That notwithstanding, It begs the question of how a discrepancy In facility payment
affects the pool of doctors. For most hospitals and some ASCs, workers' compensation Is a
relatively small portion of their patient volume.
Hospitals make decisions based on their overall patient volume as do some, perhaps
most, ASCs. Clearly, a discrepancy In physician payment could Impact the availability of
physicians, but the contention on facility payments Is less clear.

Page 5: Specifically, NCCI/mpraperly uses the Invalid ASC fee schedule as the baseline
for calculating the cost or saving related to the proposed changes. The ASC fee schedule
required by the August 9, 2016 court decision reimburses prov/der5 at 67,15% of billed
charges. The NCCI analysis uses the Invalid ASC fee schedule reimbursement of 210% of
Medicare ASC rates as the baseline for the proposed fee schedule changes. Therefore, NCCI's
analysis using the Invalid fee schedule understates the total Impact on the overall workers
compensation system when adopting a ASC fee schedule that reimburses ASC at a lower rate
than the current fee schedule reimbursement of 67.15%.
Our analysis generally agrees with this point. It was unclear from the documentation
whether there was an adjustment for the time period. Our reading of the methodology was that
220% of Medicare was used as the basis for the previous MAR calculation.

Page 5: SCA conducted Independent analysis using Internal data and NCCI's
methodology to evaluate the Impact of SCA's proposed fee schedule change from the current
ASCfee schedule reimbursement rate of 67.15% of billed charges to the 2017 Service Year
reimbursement rate of 200% of HOPD Medicare. The analysis concluded that the resulting
overall savings In 2017 to the overall workers comp system would be $8.8M (-0.5%).
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The description of the SCA analysis does not state whether it used the hospital
conversion factor, whether It made wage Index adjustments, whether it used the hospital
relative weights or how It handled hospital bundled payments. As with the analysis fort he
Industrial Commission discussed earlier, without this information it is difficult to determine
whether SCA's analysis reliably models the Impact to changes in payments.
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Renee J. Montgomery

Parker Poe

Partner
Telephone; 919.890,4162
Direct Fax: 919.835.4554
reneemontgomory@parkerpoe.com

Atlanta, OA
Charleston, SC
Charlotte, NC
Columbia, SC
GreenvUia, SC
Raleigh, NO
Spartanburg, sc

October 10, 2016
Via Hand Delivery
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
Rincon Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Re:
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
On behalf of Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA'), we are submitting SCA's comments
in response to proposals submitted to the North Carolina Industrial Commission addressing fees
for ambulatory surgical center services in workers' compensation cases. We also are
submitting a number of letters supporting the proposal that was submitted by SCA and opposing
the three other proposals that were submitted to the Industrial Commission.
Thank you for the opportunity to provide th~[#>IT!lii'ie)1

RJM:rms
cc: Kendall Bourdon (via e-mail)
Meredith Henderson (via e-mail)

Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LlP Attorneys and Counselors at Law PNC Plaza 301 Fayetteville Streel Suite 1400 Raleigh, NC 27601 PO Box 389 Raleigh, NC 27602-0389
1919.828.0564 f 919.834.4564 www.parkerpoe.com
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SURGICAL CARE AFFILIATES' COMMENTS
IN RESPONSE TO PROPOSALS SUBMITTED
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
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October 10, 2016

To:

Kendall Bourdon
IC Rulemaking Coordinator
North Carolina Industrial Commission
Delivered via email to kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov

Pursuant to the North Carolina Industrial Commission's ("Commission") September 2,
2016 Notice of Public Comment Meeting, Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") respectfully
submits the following comments in response to the proposals submitted to the Commission
addressing fees for ambulatory surgical center services in workers' compensation cases.
SCA manages seven ambulatory surgical centers in North Carolina and has an ownership
interest in each of these centers through wholly-owned subsidiary corporations (hereinafter "SCA
ambulatory surgical centers"). The SCA ambulatory surgical centers are located throughout North
Carolina and include Blue Ridge Day Surgery in Raleigh, Charlotte Surgery Center, Fayetteville
Ambulatory Surgical Center, Greensboro Specialty Surgery Center, Surgical Center of
Greensboro, The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas in Southern Pines, and Eastern Regional
Surgical Center in Wilson.
SCA and the ASCs in North Carolina that support SCA's proposal submitted to the
Industrial Commission on September 26, 2016 represent the majority of ASCs in North Carolina
that provide surgical services to injured workers covered by the Workers' Compensation Act.
THE OTHER THREE PROPOSALS ARE NOT COST EFFECTIVE AND DO NOT
MEET NORTH CAROLINA STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the Workers'
Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable.fees for providing these services.
The other three proposals do not meet these requirements.
The other three proposals do not address all procedures that can be performed in
ambulatory surgery centers. By· crafting a fee schedule that uses ~mly Medicare as its foundation,
the other proposals do not recognize that a wide variety of procedures can be performed safely and
cost-effectively on the working-age population. The workers' compensation population is
typically younger and healthier than the Medicare population, meaning that there are additional
procedures that can be performed safely and effectively with a shorter stay. As noted by NCCI
"WC claimants have very different demographics, medical conditions, and priorities than retirees.
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It would be a mistake to blindly rely on Medicare rates as perfect measures of resources appropriate

to treat work-related injuries."'
Additionally, for Medicare patients nationwide, covered surgical procedures include
"surgical procedures .. , for which standard medical practice dictates that the beneficiary would
not typically be expected to require active medical monitoring and care at midnight following tho
procedure."2 For non-Medicare patients in North Carolina, ASCs are permitted to keep patients
for up to 24 hours. 3 This means a non-Medicare patient can stay in the facility overnight, provided
they are released within the specified time frame.' The ability to keep workers' compensation and
commercial patients in the facility overnight broadens the Jist of procedures that can be perfonned
safely and effectively in the ASC setting.
The failure to include all procedures that can be safely performed on an outpatient basis
results in a significant cost to the system, Particularly impactful in the context of workers'
compensation injuries are a number of spine codes, many of which are not covered under the
Medicare ASC fee schedule but are commonly performed in 1he ASC setting on working age
patients. Total joint replacements (knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the
inpatient setting and these cases are routinely performed on patients - especially young and
otherwise healthy patients like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
When confronted with an injured worker who needs a procedure not paid for under
Medicare's HOPD payment methodology, a hospital can choose to perform the case in its inpatient
setting. The result is a much higher cost to the system of an inpatient stay and procedure. Allowing
an ASC to perform cases not on the Medicare ASC list provides an alternative setting for these
procedures, and allows the injured worker's doctor to make the decision for his or her patient about.
the best site of service for these procedures.
The impact o\ not having a fee schedule that includes all procedures can be shown by the
drop in Workers' Compensation cases performed in ASCs since April of2015 when the invalid

fee schedule began being used .. SCA's Workers' Compensation cases declined by 4.2% between
April!, 2015-March 31, 2016. An NCCI analysis of volume recently obtained by SCA shows a
decline in volume of Workers' Compensation cases by all North Carolina ASCs in 2015 of 8.2%.'
SCA's proposed amendment to the regulation serves to align payments for ambulatory
·surgical procedures with the Medicare fee schedule while at ·the same time acknowledging that
Medicare has not created an allowance for certain procedures that are routinely and safely provided
to non-Medicare patients in the ASC setting. As such, SCA is proposing a rate for these services
that is consistent with the resources and time involved in providing such procedures. In order to
limit the uncertainty of the state's exposure on reimbursement, charge master increases will be
limited to 0% increase for these procedure codes for the first 3 years, or a revenue neutral
adjustment will be applied to the percent of charge paid.
1

NCCI, Effectiveness of Workers Compensation Fee Schedules- A Closer Look, February I 1,
2009
2
42 C.P.R. §416.166 (b).
3
G.S. §131E-!76 {l){b).
4
Federal regulations allow for stays up to 24 in ASCs. See 42 C.P.R. §416.2.
5
NCCI data includes one quarter of payment not under the invalid fee schedule.
2
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Additionally, tl1e unintended consequences of the cost to the system tl1at would be caused
by accepting the other three proposals were not considered in the NCCI analysis. Patients are
commonly seen much more quickly in the ASC setting than they can be accommodated in the
hospital. None of the costs of this system that result from an injured worker having a delay ill
access to services were included in the NCCI analysis. Additionally, the costs of having services
performed in the more expensive inpatient environment as a result of procedures not contemplated
in the outpatient methodology viere also collsidered ill NCCI's analysis.
Also, as SCA set forth in its proposal, .the cost analysis requested by the Commission
wrongly compares new ASC fee schedules to the ASC fee schedule that has been declared invalid.
THE OTHER THREE PROPOSALS ARE OUT OF STEP WITH
TRENDS IN MEDICARE REIMBURSEMENT

The other three proposals fail to recognize recent federal Medicare payment policy reforms.
In 2015, Congress passed the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015 (Pub. L. 114-74). The legislation
contained a provision that changed the reimbursement methodology for new off-campus hospital
outpatient departments. Specifically, Section 603 "would codify the Centers for Medicare &
· Medicaid Services (CMS) definition of provider-based (PBD) off-campus· hospital outpatient
departments (HOPDs) as those locations that are not on the main campus of a hospital and are
located more 250 yards from the main campus. The section defines a "new" PBD HOPD as an
entity that executed a CMS provider agreement [after the date of enactment]. Any PBD HOPD
executing a provider agreement after the date of enactment would not be eligible for
reimbursements from CMS' Outpatient Prospective Payment System (PPS). New PBD HOPDs,
as defined by this section, would be eligible for reimbursements from either the Ambulatory
Surgical Center (ASC PPS) or the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule (PFS)."6 Congress has
recognized that ASCs and HOPDs should have parity in their reimbursement by Medicare.
The workers' compensation system should not be responsible for hospital overhead. It has
been argued that hospitals have an infrastructure and overhead that necessitates payment for
workers compensation cases at higher rates than ASCs. Payment should be equivalent between
the two settings for equivalent procedures. When an injured worker requiring surgery visits an
ASC, he or she receives the same care as he or she would in a hospital environment.. For these
cases, the direct costs are equivalent- implant and supply costs, nursing staff, anesthesia costs,
etc. Payment for surgery for the same patient, receiving the same treatment- in many oases even
performed by the same surgeon- should not be differentiated based on factors and costs unrelated
to the workers' compensation system and should be the same regardless of location.
Other states are recognizing the importance of addressing the two sites using the same
methodology in setting their medical fee schedules. Alaska and Connecticut, two of the most
recent states that enacted legislation related to workers' compensation medical fee schedule
reforms specific to ambulatory surgical centers, used the hospital outpatient fee schedule. In 2014,
the Medical Services Review Committee in Alaska was directed to create a medical fee schedule
6

U.S. House Committee on Ways and Means, Bipartisan Budget Act of2015 Section-by-Section
Summary, http://docs.house.gov/meetings!RU!RUOO/CPRT-114·RUOO-DOO l.pdf
3
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based on Medicare-based conversion factors. The new schedule became effective December 1,
·2015. The Medical Services Review Committee determined that hospital outpatient department
and ambulatory surgical centers should be reimbursed as a percent of the Medicare hospital
outpatient fee schedule.' Similarly, effective April I, 2015, the Connecticut Workers'
Compensation Commission established a medical fee schedule for ASCs based on the Medicare
hospital outpatient fee schedule. 8
SCA's PROPOSAL WILL SAVE THE SYSTEM MONEY
The analysis done by SCA shows that there will be significant savings in adopting the
proposal that SCA has submitted. In crafting this analysis, SCA reviewed historical case volume
performed at our seven facilities. Cost comparisons were conducted on payments for these
procedures under the former methodology of 67.15% of billed charges for procedure codes versus
the same procedures paid at the 2017 Service Year reimbursement rate of 200% of hospital
outpatient deparbnent Medicare rates. SCA estimated a 40% reduction in payments. Using
NCCI's methodology to estimate the impact of the fee schedule reforms, the analysis concluded
that the resulting overall savings in 2017 to the overall workers' compensation system would be
$8.8M (-0.5%).
As noted by the Comrnlssion, discrepancies in payments between ASCs and HOPDs would
"potentially diminish the pool of doctors available to treat injured employees, and reduce the
quality and timeliness of care. That impact will likely be most severely realized in our State's
more rural areas, where the quality and avallability of effective treatment is already a greater
concern."9 SCA agrees with the Comrnlssion that the only way to ensure injured workers access
. to high-quality, effective care is to create parity between the ASC and hospital outpatient medical
fee schedules.
THE REDUCTION IN RATES TO 150% OF THE MEDICARE ASC FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED WOULD BE VERY HARMFUL TO THE SYSTEM
Reducing the fee schedule to ISO% of ASC Medicare as suggested by one proponent would
. have an even greater negative affect on workers access to surgical care. As noted by NCCI: "The
Medicare fee schedule is very useful as a starting point for the design ofWC medical fee schedules,
but bas notable shortcornlngs for WC, including too little emphasis on return to function and too
little sensitivity to cost differences among states."'" WCRl noted that "if workers' compensation
·fee schedule rates are higher than Medicare, this does not necessarily mean that the workers'
compensation rates are high enough to avoid access-to-care issues for injured workers. The latter
limitation arises because providers' decisions about which patients to see are influence.d in part by
reimbursement rates from alternative payors.
1

HB316, Chapter63 SLA 14.
CTPublicAct 14-167.
9
North Carolina Industrial Commission, Memorandum of Law In Support of Motion To Stay,
August 17,2016,
10
NCCI, Effectiveness of Workers Compensation Fee Schedules- A Closer Look, February 11,
2009.
8
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If workers' compensation pays higher than Medicare but lower than commercial insurers,
there still might be legitimate concerns about access."
In Texas, following drastic outs in the fee schedule, the number of physicians willing to
treat all work-related injuries dramatically declined from 2002 to 2004. Specifically, "(t]hree
quarters (77.%) of orthopedic surgeons in Texas now limit workers compensation cases,
dramatically up from (29%) two years ago. Similar declines in access have occurred for general
surgeons and other surgical specialists."
Hawaii experienced similar access issues when its workers' compensation fee schedule
reimbursements were inadequate. As noted in a comprehensive review conducted by the state:
While the impact of the change in the medical fee schedule may not have reached
overwhelming proportions, it appears to have affected the treatment of injuries in
workers' compensation cases. Health care providers are struggling with a duty to
heal, while juggling fiscal responsibilities that will afford them to stay in business
to continue to practice medicine. This trend ofturning away workers' compensation
patients should be given attention before it becomes critical. The medical fee
schedule definitely appears to have bad a negative impact on an injured employee's
access to specialty care and diminished access to more experienced health care
providers. 1
Workers' compensation medical cost variation is not solely driven by the medical fcc
schedule. As noted by the National Academy of Social Insurance, "the tremendous interstate
variation in the share of total benefits going to medical care reflects between-state differences in:
average weekly wages; the nature and severity of work-related injuries; the quantity and prices of
medical services provided to injured workers; and the dollar value of cash benefits (driven by
factors such as benefit replacement rates, maximum and minimwn weekly benefits, the waiting
period, and duration of TID benefits).lf, therefore, changes to the workers' compensation law in
a given state reduce the dollar value of cash benefits, but medical benefits are stable, the share of
benefits accounted for by medical care increases." 14 Additional factors such as strong employment
growth also increase medical benefits since more empleyed workers will be covered under workers
compensation.
A significant reduction in ASC rates will benefit the carriers at the expense of providers
and employers. Well before the workers compensation fee schedule reforms enacted in 2013, the
workers' compensation carriers realized a sharp increase in profits. As reported by the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners, underwriting profits and profits on insurance
transactions have increased sharply since 2005.

11

WCRI, Designing Workers' Compensation Medical Fee Schedules, June 2012.
Texas Medical Association, Workers' Compensation Special Report- 2004 Survey of Texas
Physicians."
1
13
The Medical Fee Schedule Under the Workers' Compensation Law, Legislative Reference
Bureau State Capitol, Honolulu, Hawaii
14
National Academy of Social Insurance, Workers' Compensation: Benefits, Coverage, and·
Costs, 2014
5
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CONCLUSION
For the reasons set forth above, the Commission should adopt SCA's proposed fee schedule
and reject the fee schedules proposed by the other three proponents. SCA's proposed fee schedule
is consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be
performed in ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in
North Carolina.
Respectfully submitted this lOth day of October 2016.

Kelli Collins, Vice President Operations
Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
3820 North Elm Street #102
Greensboro, NC 27455
(336) 854-1663 office
(336) 202-6681 mobile
. (866) 367-3168 fax
kelli.collins@scasurgery.com
6
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CHARLOTTE SURGERY CENTER
an affiliate of SCA

October 6, 2016

Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to possible rulemaking options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") in Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter in support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
Charlotte Surgery Center is a multi-specialty ambulatory surgery center affiliated with Surgical
Care Affiliates. We have been serving Mecklenburg County cost effectively for over 30 years,
and have performed 7,000 Worker's Camp cases since 2009.
We are currently working with self-insured employers to move Worker's Camp cases from the
higher cost hospital setting to Charlotte Surgery Center, particularly from surrounding markets
where there is not an ASC option. The savings opportunity versus inpatient hospital rates is
significant. Should the cuts to Worker's Camp rates drive ASC's to exit the market, as has
happened in other states, leaving only the inpatient hospitals to serve the Worker's Comp
patients, a significant financial burden would be placed on both the insurers and the selfinsured employers they represent.
In April2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order invalidating the April1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0101, .0102, and .0103.
Charlotte Surgery Center is in full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for
ASCs with the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree
2825 Randolph Road 1CharloUe. NC 282111704.377.16471 Fax 704.358.82671 www.charlottesurgerycenter.com
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that alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based
solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency. We also believe that
the 40% cost savings of $8.8 million, versus the currently valid fee schedule of 67% of billed
charges, accomplishes the cost saving goals of the Commission while protecting the
aforementioned clinical goals.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted in
ASCs prior to the enactment of the invalid fee schedule on Aprill, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs will result in an access problem for injured
workers, which would violate the statutory requirements of ensuring injured workers are
provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act.
Finally, we strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit injured workers'
access to timely care.
Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at
704-617-7324.

Thomas J. Lally
C.E.O.

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

Page 2 of 2
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
··· ······Thank· you for-the·opportunlty to·present comments·ln response to posslble·rulemaklng options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter In support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
,0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCs prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
an access problem for Injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.

We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted· by Insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory requirement that Ascs receive
reasonable fees.
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It Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee ·
schedule on April 1, 2015, By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
.· ... standard of..servlces and care .Jntended by the .Workers~.compensatlon.Act.and that· providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services, The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

$ I&"A ..) \ZA >-1 f.!, <>
?.t.e.S tl>oe,J-r / t..oo)

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

C.D t-1'YA$S
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FAYETTEVI.LLE.AMBULATO'RY SURGERY .CENTER

October 101 2016
th~rlt.on·L..Ail~.il.:Ch~lrm~n·

N9tth t.~toll!i~ ln~~~lrt~.l¢qihl)i,lsMoJi
430.N .s.~ll~bUri Street
.~~.leigh,

NC2760q.

l'ieatth~lrman AlJernmd.C611lmissioners:
.Th~nk youfor·t~e·oppc;>r!urilty to. prll!(!ni ciimll)~nts In hisPPnsr(tg posslble.riil~in~~lng o~tl~(l~
for the milxliriuin ~llilWiiole iimdiint$: for services .provlqed W ~Qibillat<>ry .surgiiial'cent~rs

.l':ASG~'')lij W6t~e.rs' GoihP.~ns~tl.9[l Ci~se~ •und~r NorlJi C~t~ihia;s Woik¢rs; Cdmpeni~tlon
.1\.ct: Pl~i(s~ atpep( this letter lh sUpport ofthe. prbposal·stibmitted by surgical Care Affiiiates,

LLC e$GA'')'oh September' 26,,1016 to amend the previously declared lnvall(fRule 04 NCAC lOJ
.OlOS·speclflc·ld the>fee· .schedule under North CarollM:s.Workers' Compensation .Aci 'for
services :provided by ambulatory. $ur.glc:alcenters~(AS¢s),
·

!nAprll20~5,th~Jndustrl.al Commlssi(JO'~stablllh~d ~ew Wor~e((Cqh)pensa.tiofl fee·s~h~~ules.
for ho$pltals, phY$1c:lans,.a.nJl ASCs, ftoweVei;dri ptQI\l~lgatJng r~gqla\lpj'lsto ¢stalll)sh a newJee
sch~ctWe'foiAScs; tiJe lhdt@f~IConi!1ll~~kin faM~ to.follo\Vihe requlri!d process set'forih in
thi!Ad.mlnmratlve Prqc,edur~ Act Consequently;- the lee schedulewa~ruled Invalid on .August
(201~ by :Wake .Counw.s~peiior court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
·

.In response to :th-e court's order lnv~ilda\lng the. April 'X. 2015 fee sched;Jie Ji;>.fAS<Js, \lie,
comirilsslonhasr~qu~sted proposa.ls to. ame.nd. J\~le 04 NcAc 1QJ;Q10~', .. 0:J:Q~;.~n~ >()103,

W!l ar~ l.h full support. o.f'SCA'§ prqposaLto ~fig~ re)nib4rsemei1f rates for A5Cs With the
.tell'l)bur~errfent ratiis''sil\ f(jj,!Jrisplt~f6~tpatle.r!t departments:· w~fully agtee . tharaltgnment of
r~ln\butse.ment ··sched~les" alloWs' lot site,df,service decisions to be., based sol~ I\' ~n .din leal
'jtid&merit,.trUality
·
'
. . .
. qut~o)iies) aiid-S'cheduflngeffid~n~y.
. .

.

'

Jn acldltlon1 we (ully support SCA's proposal (o. cover p.toc~dures tbatwer~ ljelhg co~M~~~~ Iii
A$.Cs prior to \he enactment orihe invalid, lee sch'ed\il~ o~ Jl;pril 1, 201.5. Exclw:ttng !IJ.e
·procedures thaf were·preVIou&ly'.pedorniatl 'at ASCs has res~lted aM'WIII t(lhtlnue fo t¢iult Jil
p~ ~t~~~~ prab!elfl f9r lhJu.;¢~ Wcirl!~t$; Whtch vlrll~ti!S the ;tat~t'~iy [~q~lr'!'llien~ di e~~uiti)~.
Injured workers are provided the servlt.eS'anil standard dfcare. required by !he Woikersi
compensotion:Act.
'
.·

We . strohflly cippci~e t~~ .thre~. f?rorJ<:>.s~l.s so.~[)11t\ed by Jnsurarice carriers; thtrci,partv
:a'dm!lih\rators, and, thti North· caroitna 'Htis~ltal Assodatloh. The three proposals all .
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recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
It Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that ·
have been historically performed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
·
Lastly, the analysts conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, under·
estimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
.Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

&~k··. ~
Debbie Long,
Business Office Manager

cc:

kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

\::)
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O~tober ~b.

2\)16

Charlton L Alle.n, ChaJrn)~o
North Carolln~ lhdu~trlal Cammlssl<;>n
4~.0 N. Sa!i~l:iury Str~et
~alelgh, NC27603

De~r Chalrma.rt Alien

al'td CQmrnlssloners:

Thank youforthe opportunity to present comriients lh response to possible rule'makln{optlons
for the maximum alloWabie amounts for services proVIded by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers; COn'fpensatloh· cases under Ndrth Carolina's Workers! Compensation
·Act; Please accept:thls l.etter·ln· support.oi.the p.ropos.al submitted py Surgfc~l (;are Afllll~tes,
LLC ("S<j:A'') on September 26, 2016 to ameQdthe prev]qus!y decl~redliwallq B!ll~ .04 NCAC JQJ
.0103 specJfl¢ to tbe fee sche.c!tile under No.rth ~ar911na;s Wor~ers' ComPensation A.ct for
servlcesprov!~eq liY ~mbulatory surgical· centers lASCs)~
In Aprll·2015, the h\dustrlaJ CQmmission estal:llished new Workers' Compensation fee sch~idules
for hospitals, physlcf~n$; and Asc~. Howeve~; 1~ promtifgatlog regulationnoestabllsha newfee
schedule .for ASCs, the< lndustrlai.commisslon tilled to folloW the reqUired'.·process,siltforth In
the Adrnlhlstratlv~· Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was·ruied Invalld.on AugUst
9, 2016.byWake County Superior court Jud~e Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the :court'.s· order lnvall,datlng t.he. April ~' 2015 fee schedu!.e fqr Ascs, ihe
Commission hasr~quesied Pf9POs;!Jsto amend Hule 04NCAC 1QJ.0101,.01<J2, and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for .ASCs with the
refmburs.ement ratenei tor hospital outpatient departm¢nts. We fuJI~ agree.thM alignment of
rehnourselll~nt s~h.edulas iiiJows for slie-cif-service .decisions to b~ ba.sed si:Mly on clinical
Judgment, .quality outGomes; and scheduling· efficiency.
1!1 addltlqn, we fully·support,<$CA's· proposaJ·to cover. procedures thatwere befn(:'C<.>ndOcted In
ASCs prl<>r tQ the ehactnienf of the. InValid f~e sch~q~le on Aprl! 1, 2015 .. .Exclu(ilng the
ptbc!!dute$ ~hat were ptevlo.usly performed ~t..tiS¢s, ~.a.$ re>Uited ana V~i!) ~ontl~ue to. result In
ah atees~· problem for li'l]l!r¢4 w<?rkers, whiqh violates the st~tut.ory r~ql!Jrement of ensurl.ng
InJured worke.rs are p,ro~li:f.ed \he ·serVIces and stand~rd of' care. r~qulr~<! by the Workers'
!Oompensatioi\ Act;
·
··
·
··
·
We· Wongly opposl> :th.~ thre!l proposals' su!>mitte~ by Jnsur~nc~ carriers,. :thlrd•party
admlnfstrators;. aod ·the North Carollri~ Hospital Association. The .three proposals all
recommend a sJ~nlflcantiy reducedofee schediM for ASCs, ·whith woiild it mit hijured'.Workers'
access to tlmel,y care arid also fall to meet the statut<lr'f requirement that ASCs ·receive
reasonable·fees;
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Itis also very significant that the other three proposals do not addrespli pro,cedyr~s that. were
be)ng conducted in ambulatory surgery ce6.ters prior to the en.~ctment of the. Invalid fee
schedule on ApriL 1, 2Dl9. By limiting 'Injured \1,19.rkers a(:Cess to care for ali procedures that
haV.e l;>een hlstorl9aliy pe.rf.onned In fhe Asc setting, workers will l)e forced to receive care ln
the higher-cost lniiatlent hospftal se\thjg,
The .other three proposals are not cost effective and so do. not meet statutory requfrem.entof
the No)'th Carolina Workers Compensation Ac;. North Carolina lawrequlree that(ee sc.hedules
adopted by the. Commission be adeqQate. to ensure. that lnj~red worker, ;.re prov(<led. the
standard of services and care fnt<mded by the: Workers' compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for pro~ldlpg these services, The. t~ree other proposakdo not
·meet thgse iequlrements.
· ·
Lastly, the analysis conducted by .NCCI does ~at-take Into consideration the shift of Injure~
workers from the A~C setting. to the more-costlY. .hospltallnp~tlent settlng,.ther.efore, under.estlmatlng the c_ost to the-I'Jor~ers' >ompepsation syste111.
Thank youJor your ~onslde.iatlon.
Sincerely;
•.

fll

.

. ··~

{~~)~~·

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
IVi,eredlth Henderson
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to possible ulemaklng options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulat
surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' ompensatlon Act.
Please accept this letter In support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Co pensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).

rv

In Aprll2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compen atlon fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs.f:lowever, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative Proc•dure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was rul d Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee· sch dule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .oio1, .01 2, and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with ·the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments.· We fully agr e that alignment of .
reimbursement schedules allows for slte·of·service decisions to be bas d solely· on clinical
Judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted in
ASCs prior to the ena~ment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2p1s. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs.hanesolted and will ontlnue to result In
an access problem for Injured workers, whlch.vlolates the statutory requ remant of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care requlr d by the· Workers'
Compensation Act.

+--------
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We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by Insurance arrlers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The hree proposais all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would II It Injured workers'.
access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory requlremen that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
It Is also very significant t~at the other three proposals do not address all
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactme
schedule on Aprll1, 2015. By limiting Injured workers access to care fo
have been historically performed In the ASC setting, workers will be fore
the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.

rocedures that were
of the Invalid fee
all procedures that
d to receive care In

The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet stat tory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requl s that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured work rs are provided the
standard of services and care Intended by the Workers' Compensation t and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees ·for·providing these ·services. The three 'o her proposals do not
meet these requirements.
'
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into conslderatlo the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital Inpatient sett ng, therefore, underestimating the cost to'the Workers' compensation system: . : .
. ··:.

Thank you for your consideration.

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L Allen, Chat
North Carollna lndust
430 N. Salisbury Stree
Raleigh, NC 27603

mmlsslon

mmlssloners:

Dear Chairman Allen

tty to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
Thank you for the opp
le amounts for services proVIded by ambulatory surgical centers
for the maximum all
ensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
I"ASCs"lln Workers'
Please accept this let l support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
{"SCA") on Septembe 2 , 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
.0103 specific to the
services provided by a u tory surgical centers {ASCs).
In Aprl12015, the lndu
for hospitals, physlcla ,
sdhedule for ASCs, th
the Administrative Pr
9, 2016 by Wake Coun

Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
d ASCs. However, In promulgating regul~tlons to establish a new fee
strlal Commission failed to follow the required procoss set forth In
reAct. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
erlor Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
t order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
roposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.

In response tci the C
Commission has requ
We are In full suppo
reimbursement rates t
reimbursement sched I
judgment, quality out

SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
hospital outp~tlent departments. We fully agree that alignment of
allt>WS for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
, and scheduling efficiency.

SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted in
In addition, we fully s
nt
of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015, Excluding the
ASCs prior to the en
procedures that were r , ously performed at ASCs has resulted and wlll continue to result In
ed workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
an access problem fo
I ed the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Injured workers are
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose I
administrators, and
recommend a slgniflc t
access to timely care a
reasonable fees.

1709 Medical

r

three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, thlrd·party
orth Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
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It Is also very slgnlflca
being conducted In
schedule on April 1,
have been historlcall
the higher-cost lnpatl

t the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prio~ to the 'enactment of the Invalid fee
By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers wlll be forced to receive care In
spital setting.

The other three prop
the North Carolina W
adopted by the Com I 5
standard of services
are reimbursed reaso
meet these requlrem t ,

are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
n be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
re Intended by the workers' Compensation Act and that providers
fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not

Lastly, the analysis c
workers from the AS s
estimating the cost to

ted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
lng to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, underorkers' compensation system.

· Thank you for your co

ration.

Sincerely,

Robert Satterfield, Mr..-.lLlL...-Orthopaedic Surgeon

cc:

Kendall Bourd
Meredith Hen

1709 Med1cal

~ Drive • Wilson, NC 27893 • [2521.237.5649 • Fa; 1262)237.4977
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L Allen, Chai
North Carqllna indust
430 N. Salisbury Stree
Raleigh, NC 27603

· mmlsslon

mmlssloners:

Dear Chairman Alien

lty to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
Thank you for the op
le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
for the maximum all
ensatlon cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
("ASCs"} In Workers'
l support of the proposal submitted by surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
Please accept this le
("SCA") on Septembe 2 :, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the · schedule under North Carolina's workers' Compensation Act for
atory surgical centers (A$Cs).
services provided by a
In April 2015, the lndu
for hospitals, physlcla ,
schedule for ASCs, th
the Administrative Pr
9, 2016 by Wake coun

Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
d ASCs, However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
stria I Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
reAct. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
erlor Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.

In response to the C
order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requeti!E!<ItJroposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 10! .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are In full suppo
reimbursement rates t
reimbursement sched I
judgment, quality outc

SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
hospital outpatient departments. W~ fully agree that alignment of
allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
, and scheduling efficiency.

t SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
In addition, we fullv s
nt of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
ASCs prior to the en
procedures that were r . usly performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
ed workers, which violates the. statutory requirement of ensuring
an access problem fa
ed. the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Injured workers are
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose
administrators, and
recommend a slgnlflca t
access to timely care
reasonable fees.

1709 Medical

r

three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
orth Carolina Hospital Asspclatlon. The three proposals all
educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive

rive • Wilson, NC 27898 •12521237.5649 • Fax 12521237.4977
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It Is also very slgnlftca
being conducted In
schedule· on April 1, .
have been hlstorlcall
the higher-cost lnpatl

t the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
spital setting.

The other three prop
the North Carolina W
adopted by the Com I s
standard of services
are reimbursed reaso
meet these requlrem t ,

are not cost effective and so do no.t meet statutory requirement of
Compensation Act. North carolina law requires that fee schedules.
n be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
re Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not

Lastly, the analysis c
workers from the AS s
estimating the cost to

ted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
lng to the more..:ostly hospltallnpatlent setting, therefore, underorkers' compensation system.

Thank you for your co i ration.

cc:

Kendall Bourd
Meredith Hen

1709 Medical

k Drive • Wilson, NC: 27893 • 12521 237.5649 • Fax 12521 23 7. 4977
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Cha
North Carolina In dust a . mml:;slon
430 N. Salisbury Stre
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen

om missioners:

Thank you forthe op
for the maximum al
("ASCs") In Workers'
Please accept this le
("SCA") on septembe
.0103 specific to th f
services provided by

ltv to present comments In response to possible rulemaking options
le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
ensatlon cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
atory surgical centers (ASCs).

In Aprll2015, the lnd t 1 Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physlcla a d ASCs. However, In promvlgatlng reg~latlons to astabllsh a new fee
schedule for ASCs, th I strlal Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in
reAct. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
the Administrative Pr
perlor Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
9, 2016 by Wake cou
In response to the
Commission has requ

s order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for AScs, the
proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0101, .0102, and .0103.

We are In full supp
f
reimbursement rates
reimbursement sche I
judgment, quality out

SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
r hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
allows for slte·of-servlce decisions to be based solely on clinical
, and scheduling efficiency.

SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
In addition, we fully s
ASCs prior to the en c ent of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
ously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to res~lt In
procedures that were
red workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
an access prob Iem fo
ed the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
lnjurecf workers are
Compensation Act.

We strongly oppose
administrators, and
recommend a slgnlfl
access to timely car
reasonable fees.

1709 Medical

three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals a.ll
reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive

rive • Wilson, NC 27893
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It Is also very slgnlflc
being conducted In
s~hedule on April 1,
have been historical!
the higher-cost lnpatl n :

at the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prlor to the enactment of the Invalid fee
. By limiting injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
ospltal setting.

The other three prop s l are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina
s Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Co
on be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
standard of services
are Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reaso a fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requlrem
Lastly, the analysis c n cted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of InJured
workers from the AS
lng to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost toiiHhlworkers' compensation system.
Thank you for your c

ration.

Sincerely,

B. Todd Sm h, MD
Orthopaedic surgeon

cc:

Kendall Bourd
·Meredith Hen
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L, Allen, Chai
North Carolina lndust
430 N. Salisbury Stree
Raleigh, NC 27603

mmission

Dear Chairman Allen

mmissloners:

Thank you for the op
lty to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
for the maximum all
le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers'
ensatlon cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
Please accept this let
support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on Septembe 2 ·' 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 101
.0103 specific to the
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by a
; atory surgical centers (ASCs).
In Aprll2015, the lndu
Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicla
d ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, th
strlal Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative Pr e reAct. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
erlor Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
9, 2016 by Wake Coun
· In response to the C
Commission has reque

:I

order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
roposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.

We are In full suppo
SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates s t o hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement sched
• llows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, qualityoutc
, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully s
SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCs prior to the en
nt of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
' usly performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
procedures that were
an access problem for n ed workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are p
ed the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
I

We strongly oppose
administrators, and
recommend a signlflca
aceess to timely care
reasonable fees.

1709 Medical P

j

~

three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
orth Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
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It Is also ·very slgnlflca
being conducted In
schedule on April 1,
have been hlstorlcall
the higher-cost lnpatl
The other three prop
the North Carolina W
adopted by the Com
standard of services
are reimbursed reaso
meet these requlrem

~

t the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latoiy surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
spital setting.
ar() not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
Compensation Act. North carolina law requires that fee schedules
n be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
re Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not

q•

Lastly, the analysis c u ed by NCCI doe& not take Into consideration the shift of injured
workers from the AS s lng to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to h · orkers' compensation system.
ration.

Thank you for your co
Sincerely,

jw/ut
Lew Martin, MD
Orthopaedic Surgeon

cc:

Kendall Bourd
Meredith Hen

,,
1709 Medical

Drive • Wilson, NC 27883 • 12521 237,5649 • Fax 12521 237.4977
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Charlton L. Allen, Chal
North Carolina Indus!
430 N. Salisbury Stree
Raleigh, NC 27603

mmlsslon

Dear Chairman Allen

mmlssloners:

Thank you for the opp
·lty to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
for the maximum all
le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers'.
ensatlon cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
Please accept this le
I support of the proposal submitted by Surgical care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on Septembe 2 ~ 2016 to. amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the
· schedule ~nder North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by a 11 atory surgical centers (ASCs).

'

In Aprll2015, the lndu
Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physlcla , d ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, th
. strlal Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative P
reAct. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake Coun
erlor Court Judge P~ul Ridgeway.

order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
roposalsto amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.

In response to the C
Commission has reque

We are In full suppo
seA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates s t . hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement sched I
llows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, quality outc
, and scheduling efficiency.

SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
nt of the invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. El<cludlng the
usly performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result in
ed workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
ed the services and standard of care required by the Workers'

In addition, we fully s
ASCs prior to the en
procedures that were r
an access problem for
Injured workers are
Compensation Act.

We strongly oppose
three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and
orth Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a slgnlflca t . educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
access to timely care
reasonable fees.
'•

I

1709 Medical

ive • Wilson, NC 27893 • 1252J 237.5849 • Fax 1252! 237.4877
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It Is also very slgnlflca
being conducted In
schedule on April 1,
have been historical!
the hlgher·cost lnpatl

t the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
spital setting.

are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
The other three prop
Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
the North Carolina W
n be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
adopted by the Com
re Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
standard of services a
fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
are reimbursed reaso
I
meet these requlrem t 1
ted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of injured
Lastly, thll analysis c
workers from the AS s . log to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, under·
orkers' compensation system.
estimating the cost to
Thank you for your co

atfon.

Sincerely,

;1L

Adam Thorp, MD
Orthopaedic Surgeon

cc:

Kendall Bourd
Meredith Hend r

1709 Medioal

.k. Drive •

Wilson, NG 27893 • 12521 237.5649 • Fax !2521 237.4977
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Cha
North Carolina In dust a
430 N. Salisbury sue
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen

mrnlsslon

om missioners:

lty to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
Thank you for the op
for the maxtmum all ~ le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
. ensatlon cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
("ASCs") In Workers'
I support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
Please accept this le
("SCA") on Septembe
2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the f schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by a
atory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the lnd t
for hospitals, physlcla ,
schedule for ASCs, th
the Administrative P
9, 2016 by Wake Cou

Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
d ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
strlal Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
re Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
perlor Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.

In response to the C
Commission has requ t

order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
proposals to a.mend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.

SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
We are In full supp
reimbursement rates t r hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement sche I s allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
, and scheduling efficiency.
judgment, quality out
SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
In addition, we fully s
nt of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
ASCs prior to the en
procedures that were r ously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result in
an access problem fo I red workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
ed the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Injured workers are
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose t .
administrators, and
1
recommend a slgnlfl t
access to timely care a
reasonable fees.

1709 Medical P

three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, thlrd·party
North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
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It Is also very slgnlflc t
being conducted In
schedule on April 1,
have been hlstorlcall
the higher-cost inpatl n .

at the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
, By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
armed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
ospltal setting.

~

The other three prop s are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina W r s Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Co
on be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
standard of servlc~s
• are Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reaso a I fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requlrem
lastly, the analysis c
cted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from tlie AS
lng to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost t_,.IHIIIIlv,orkers' compensation system.
Thank you for your co s

ration.

Sincerely,

Zlzette Gabriel, MD
Anesthesiologist I Pal

cc:

Kendall Bourd
Meredith Hen

agement
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chal
North Carolina In dust
430 N. Salisbury Stree
Raleigh, NC 27603

mmlss/on

mmlssloners:

Dear Chairman Allen
Thank you for the op
for the maximum all
("ASCs") In Workers'
Please accept this le
("SCA") on Septembe
.0103 specific to the
services provided by a

ltv to present comments In response to possible rulemak/ng options
le amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
ensat/on cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act.
j support of the proposal submitted by Surgical care Affiliates, LLC
2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
atory surgical centers (ASCs).

In Apr/12015, the lndu
for hospitals, physlcla
schedule for ASCs, th I
the Administrative Pr
9, 2016 by Wake Coun ,

Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
d ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
stria I Commission falled to follow the required process set forth In
re Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
perlor court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
·

in response to the c u order Jnvalldatlng the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0101, .0102, and .0103.
Commission has requ
We are In full suppo
reimbursement rates
reimbursement sched I
judgment, quality outc

SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
r hospital outpatient departments, We fully agree that alignment of
allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
, and schedullng efficiency.

SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
In addition, we fully s
nt of the Invalid fee schedule on Aprll 1, 2015. Excluding the
ASCs prior to the en
procedures that were r ously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
· ed worl<ers, which violates the ~tatutory requirement of ensuring
.an access problem fo
:1 ed the serviCe$ and standard of care required by the Workers'
Injured workers are
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose
administrators, and
recommend a sign/flee t
acce~s to timely care
reasonable fees.

1708 Medical P

three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
orth Carolina Hospital Association. The three. proposals all
educed fee schedule for ASCs, which would llmlt Injured workers'
also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive

iva • Wilaon, NG 27883 • !2521 237.5848 • Fax [2521 237.4977
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It Is also very slgnlflc t
being conducted In
schedule on April 1,
have been hlstorlcall
the higher-cost lnpatl

at the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
latory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee
• By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
ormed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
ospital setting.

The other three prop s are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina W r ' s Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Co
on be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
are Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
standard of services
are reimbursed reaso a I fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not.
meet these requlrem
lastly, the analysis c
workers from the AS
estimating the cost to

ted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
lng to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, underorkers' compensation system.

Thankyouforyourco s

ration.

Sincerely,

~
Ann DuPree Orr, RN B
Administrator- Team

cc:

KendaiiBourd
Meredith Hen
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. ·~9J:th.;C~[911iJa .lndusmal <:omJnlsslon- ·
· .) •·... ·43qN: S~lisburystr~~Y·'' • •- .·• ·
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· · ·· · · oe~i c~airmaHAii~~:antJ,Co)llinisslon~is:
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·.·' :;ie, , Thar~~~uf:rth~~~~·ort~~hvt6Rres~n~c6n10)~~~~(i1r~;~q~s{topqisi~Je,~~~~m_aklngopt!bnt
. •. , . forthe maximum allowable.!llllounfs for services ·provlded.b.;tan'lbulatorysurglcahcenters-,
.. ··.,)c?,_("As¢sr))n~ork~rs'~Q~P~&iatlqn:A~se~ uric!FNorih .c~}rl}~~~swq}~e(~! Cpl)lpehsatlOn· .· •

•:

· ... . ..-:.· ,

·

&. ,;_.;'

I

••.•• '

.: ,, ..

·. •.?Act•'measeacceptt"lsfJliter,Jh s~prortpf t~_Eiprpppsal_sulfffilhed !:)ysurglcal C.~r~Afflilat~s; ' ·. , ~ , <"···-·c•
'. . ,i 'l~C (~'SCN') on Slmt~!il~§r211;;~916 to lin'le~d 1he pr~VIOus.iy qedaredlnv~lld RUI~04 ~CACiOJ' -•.:,•••.·-·······.i.-.··.·.·..: .. ·.•:.,·~k.:.;:.. ~.'
· •·. ;.0,19~ sp~jjfl~ fo ~IJ~:~e~ ~chedul~~oder N9rth car.olln~'s,workers'·co~Pensat(pn,A~lfQ( • ·.·_.·•.•.•· · .• _;i ., <· •· .
..· servlc~~·provl~~d ~y,ambulatory.surgl~al.centers (ASCs) .. ·
. ..
....'• ··. }\'-·.
-.:· __. J<::_.<:; .>~::<·-:_-~ (:-_?~_~,·:}~/·r,::~·=:r:--=_=-,_::~:-:·J.. ·=·:~. ;-_~·-<::\._.~:-:~::. ..:_ - _ _ -->·;.;_ ~-><
·=,- - .::.:,:-;, ~:_-:.:_-- --:.·;·- -_· _-<_ ::/ -- - -. ,.-~;;-... >;·; . _
.....• Blue gld$e SurgerY. c~n\ehiNii Af(lllafeof.sCA.We are lo~a.tedJn R~lelg~ NCianll provides • · ·<~> J;; -:-</\' .
·••, /' q\iality car~:tp ov'er §Kpatieiits per.\t~iir 6verthe ~ast 3fV~ars ~~rvi~g'th~tornmlinlty. . . ) / •.. ' .. •• ..

--,- .-

'::."·:::·?;:'·::_::(::::::-::-:~~::-::(/_:.;·:.:·_,::- <-·_: -':---::·.:·::\ ~t =-_-_::·\-(.·:· :.;\ :· -:· ..: ':::·- ·-, :'·_:':_'_--:~'/,·:,:.-:< /:'...:~,---··_:·f;·:,.-:_: ': ._... ·:::~-- :~---~>- ~-:-:~::- - :_:~ - '. ·:.; ·__ . _· ;-·~:·~:?::\: .·
• ; ( I~Ap[IIM15,ti:J~ ln,d~S)tl,aiCQ~ml~sl~n est~blls[1efnew~6rker!' Com~ensa~IO.I)Jee sc~ed,ules (:; ·
.....•..•.·.·•• f()t~O*ji)tals,:pnvsli:!~l\~!and AS9S. ttow((v.er,'fn piomul{iatlng regulatlo!lS to e~l,a,bllsh a ne\y, (ee .: ~·. schedufe fo.ri\Sts;th!'llndustil.al Comrnl$slonf~lled to follow the iequlred pro~esss~t forth ln ...· • !r
the AdMh'llstratlve ~rocedure 1\ct Cqnsequently, tl{e fee schedule wasruled liwalld oii August 1
'
9, 2016 by'wake
couoiySllpertorcourtJudge
Paul
Ridgeway
... · · · ·. · · ·
·.· · ·
. . -.
'.
.
.-'
....
'···
. ---~~( ~
...:.
. '
In .(e$ponse to the Couit's..order lny~!ld~ilng the A/uil}/~015 fee schepul!l for ~c~. the ·.. .. ,·i , . .' •·{:: ;
· c~~.llilssio)l'p~s requeste~ P[9J>o~~lsto:~IYleh~,Rule Q4 N~¢10! .0101; .oiO~. and ,RW3" .. ·. ·
i
;·';.'·
~
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.
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I
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< :• . . ·. ·

: : _ )_ ·/ _,- _, _.;: : :.· ';_ --.>~-,-·::~::·.:.:_,------~::,:.:->·, ,": _- -<- :-:'__:-::_-:;':Xi .:::,i::?; · . .- ~
· ·••· : Blu~;..~l~~e;~~rgecy e~ni~rA7tn;(u1.1.~uP,~oit 9f·~C'fsrrop~s~)).0, ~~~~r\ r~lriJbil_"~e!))i~trate.~ frrn ;;••. ,· .{! •. · .. ·J.l
-_··.·J~;::~·(,:-,. ~,_-_:-':::_< ~>--:_-,_:~:. ·_ >.·:_: ><_,~_.:·_:.{;:;::·~-

:_::.}.::·~>::i_-~:,: ~->.>

· ':.fiSC~ Wlthtliere.lmb!irse.r\ientrat~s setfor hospltalgutpatletif~epattments;,\!!ei(ullyagree ..... p.;;• ••\o'\ · ·
.tn~i MiJ!nm'!1ni'9ir~Jin~~rs~fiieht ~c~e<Jl)lps ~llowWtl!r.slte-<\f'se..Vlce de~lslonSid&.e IJ~s~!l / ;• •· .· :" ••. ..· ·• ~;

.• ·.'·s~l;'~·:ftcll_o1capu~~:ent,q~~Wv~:~~~?~es,:fb4!4~-~a{i!~keffl~l~ncr; . •;\<·· <ii,J> :.· '•· •. ·.•·. . (<•··· ·· ..\';~r·/;f
.In .addition,. w.<i-fully $~ppott ·sc~'s.propos,a Itocov.~r. ptoced.\lr~~~h~twer~leJnil'conqu~teld jn ••·.· · ·.· . ;·.'ic•tik•i· . f
. .. . Ascd ptlorJo ~~~,~ri~'stment oi the !iival!d,f~e sched41e'an. Aprlli;2o1s, E~8uiling ihe · •. · ...••·· .• · C,_;.•.•·:·:··.·.·.·
• .•.'.·.·.•.' ;_

··.• .· . procedui~s~n~{)tlar~pre)llouslyperf'!r)11~d ~tASCsw!Ur'~su.[U6~ba~.ce>s ~r9!11em lor ln)Weq · . ••·· •. . . . •-~
..• wor,~ers; w~lc~ vi§illd ~lolatel \h~ ~~~~Q\PrYr.~quJr~m~nts !>f.eni~rlljg•lnJ~reawgrker's are . ••.~ •. ··•·•·•; .
··•··
. ·•prqvld ed the,s~rvlces anq stand•t,9W,94r~ req ulf,ed Wth~~Wor~erf,~o.rryp~~sa\I,Qri 1\~t: ·•
-,_· -:;_ : - :.--: - :<.'<: ·---> - ,-~--- :~:--- ·- ... -_---_/;./:·;:',_,·:~_ , :~::'_:··:_-,: ::,~::·_-- \--;;·- ----=-~;.v·<_ --_):<;;,\{;· -~ _, _-- ,_,.><, -~·
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· .· Flo:!.aUyJw¢slrongly oppose tHethree,proposaJs suql)'lltt.ed ~yl~sur~rce ~~rrleis,;tnlrq_:party.
· .·· ~dmi~l~trat~rs, ~nd t~e Ni'ltth ~~rollna Hospital Ass9clatlon, rlie thr.ee proposal~ al)'t .•· • .
IJc\im,i}lendaslgnlflc~niiy re4ucedf~e'scheduWtor.Ascs, w~[ch woulil,flmlt ltiJureQ ~orker{ ,·.•·•· ·
a~cess.io' tloie.i•uar~:-,:. . · . ·· . · · .\ · ·•· .· ·.· · ·.·
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Than.kyo~ for.your.conslder~tloh,lf You have any qhestlons, please feel free to contact me at
(il19),7SM311.
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North carolina ind~$t(Ialcommi~slori
·. 4aoN; s~Jisburvsir~~tf•.
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oea~cfniJrO\~rilinen\\nd Commissioners:
·•
•.
· •·.·..: .
\ ·• ':._.:.•:d->-~:-:<'.'j,:_=:;_.\': ..·=~,-;:·~:::'>:~ _ ;_/'._._.· ·.:_• • ·.. ' ·: ·. _ :'·"·:> _. : '..
, ·< .-··.•' . v:...: ..
; :::."·:.-,
..· ' . ·.·. Thank yo~'for the .o~po(tvnltvio wesentcomnientsln response \oposslbler~letroaklng optloris .
·· · .• .••tor:th~.l)laxlm~in ailo'wabie· ~mounts tor s~N,~es 'ilrcivJ~ed ~>vaml:1urattir'vs~rglcat~e~ters . . · ·
.·· ~;, ~("Asq~~l lir.w5?rket~'· C?mp,eh~~tlon,oases unde~:f'.lorth',Caroilna's Whrkers: corirti~n~ailon.

· ~·Act: :P)ease a~ce'pt thl~ letter: I~ su'pp'ort of the·protiosal submitted by Surgical Care ~ffillates, .· .•,.,,.,, :•."•''""•''!.'•
.... >,L~C{''SC:A"·) onS~p~eflill~[ ;tGh~b~il t~ a,men~ ih~'preyiously 9ecJ~r.e'd.j~vaJid·Rule 04NCAG lOi
· · , · ;0103 spetl{lcto the fee)chedule ~nder North . Carolinil'sWorkerS'Compensatlon.A<itfor : ·:•..<.<••;'?h:Z>'
:} ~~.i:viCes provr~~d.plfa.i\ib~rat~i\,is~riiitalc·ent~rs (Asts); . . : .f · · .· . · ...

~~J~~~~ge.~urger~~~~.t:ris~nA~JJiatrQ~•SC~. we'~i~>lo~ated

.. .·,

N~,a~d pr~vldes

ln.Balelih
.. •·
···.quality c~re~o ~vei 9~ p~tlents p~t,year iivelithepa.st3,1)ie~rssei'V!ng thf con'unu,riity, ·.·
·_.;·:_--:~_,,:-~-.---of'·?~:~·-:.-:\.:')~·~·:.:-· . ;::-::· .. _.-;_:·: .. __ -.. -: . -_~· ·-. .=-·- ,-::_;'_'·.<_;,-,.
;, ... :-:::-;,\'>· .. :;.-_ :_ .· . '
In Aprii201S, the Industrial Cof)lml$slon·establlshed new Workers'.Compensatlon fee schedules .·
· .'
. .for )l'CI~~f(aJs;physlclrlns, a~d ASCs, H~weVer; Jn P;,orilulgatlng regulptlops to .establls~ a new fee ;··.· . : . ',,.J.<i
.·•·· . sc~ei!.ijlefor A~cs,lh~!lndystriill Co.m(l\Js$1oh f~~~~~ t~fol19w tfie ieq~lied ~ro~~~~se(forth In> · >i •. .,;; • • .,
.. the Af!minlstnitiveNocedur~:Act. Conseqti'ehtly;th~.fee s.chedule was ruled ih\iaUdqn·,lllliius( +'/ • ;• • ::,::;
<

••

9/20~Sby
Wake;co~ntysuP,erlor
Court
Jlldg~Paul~l~geway:
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. . . - '
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Thank you fo:r. youi c(JQslcleratlo~: If you hav~' any qu~siibns, pie~~e feel free to contact me at

.(919)-781'43iL .
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·:~,:-:/---~-~;---.;,~:~;,~~~~~(f.. of

..

ha~e:any qJ~s~idns:
pleose ~~~(f;ee to ~6ntact me at
' . . .
.· . . .
... . .

·• you foryourc<l.nsidJratlon. •If you
(919)-781:4311. . . . .
. . . . .. ·.·· .•...
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Ch~rl\on L, Ail~~.~~l~l(!Jl~~

...,- .
.. ·..

..·

Northcarolinatnd~st(lal corr!111~slon ·

· >430 N'~ i)~llsbury sir~·~~
· Rahitgh;Ni: 4Z6o3·:'d<
- .;;--··

j, ,.·. .

'/;~-:_

/ ··

.--:::_;·.·.

Dear thatrrt, an All ~D;~nd Commission ersi ..·
'

·.· Th~nk ~o~ for,the (l~portunltyt~ present comments !n res~onse to po~sible ;_Gt~making options'
...·.for the maximum allowable arnountsfor serylces i:irovlded by ambulat\lrysurglcal centers ·
.. , ("ASCs'!)in Workers'~ompensatlon casesunder NtirthCaroilno'sWorkers' Compensation. ..
· · • :>, ·. ·•:
·...·.' •:Act •. Pl,eas~ ~ccepfthl~. letter)b supp~,rtofthe proposal,,s,ubmittedby Surglcai cawAffill~tes, ··. . ,• ' 'i' . '' •.
.· LLC{''SGA'') qn Sept.~i1Jber2~/2016 to arn'end the prel'iolisly declared Inv'alld Rule'04 NCf\ClOJ• , , · '. ~;:/
. • ~0103 sp~clflc..to.theJe~scl\eduleond~r·Nohh,tar6rJna:sworker{coiollens~tionActfor .. · <.•...:. <>; ''!''::~i ·
··· services provided b~'ambulatorysurglcalcenters.(ASCs); •. ·... ·.··•·· .. ·, . ·. '• . · • · . · .· ., . · . , . ; .

Bru¥·~1jgeitiri~r.~;J~ni~rlsa~Affll)at~o;SCA.:Y~e·a;el~,ca\ed lnRal~;ihN~,a~dp[i>vldes

', >·

:•

' . •••
• · · ' ·,.:,, ··
care
t'o
overs!<
p~ilents
pervear
overtlie
past
31.y~ars
ser\.ing
til~
tomrnun\ty.
.
. :--•,:· .. ·•··. ' '
.. quaiiiy
"' . - • .·
--. . --- • . '
·----- •. . •·
. . - - ..-.• · :-; :- ; . . -=· ,. ·: : •. -.. · '
._
_,
; ..
. In April 20is, .th el~dUstrlat•co~~ Iss ion est 0 blis~~d ·.new ~orkers'.c~riJ~~.nsatlon fee sch.edu las·•>' •·
· forh¢spltals,Rhyslciai\s,and A$Cs; HoWeVer, In promulg~ilng regUlations est~pUsh·a new fee .:· ·
schedqleJor.ASCs,tli~lndu.sfrla! Comml~sionfaHedtofoUowthe recjuired process set forth in.' ,J
. , .···
. the,Adnilni~ri•tiweio~edureAct;. Consequ~~tly,·t~~fee schedul$ wasr~led.inva.lid on.Ailgust:·• ..,.· .·, , ).•· :.
9,J0?~ by yvak~ Courity~\iperlo(court judge,P?ul Ridgewa~.
· ·
··
:•• ,
;(ij.tir . : :·

to

I.
I

!

· · .·In iesponse to the cowrt'sordet lhValidating theAprill, 2015Jee.scheciulefor ASCs,the .... •.·· ·
.. . c9ni)'ltssici6h~s·tequested·proposal; io.amen(Rule.04 NCAC·1dJ,01()1, .Q1.0?,and.. qio~.·· , :
:

:.-·--_"--.-·:>.·-'·

;_.:;:·:·

,' .·

.<-.····

..

·.. :

... ·...-,.-<,-._,· . .
.,

... , .

:

•

.-.·--

:-- . . . . --co,"•--.

-

:::: _;_~: :_-

.;;:. . ..

·.::-·.

. •Blue ~ldge surge'ri'ceriw ls,iirtull suppprt t>fsCA'$ pr~P9.sal to alignreln)bursemen\ r~tesfor.L ·· ·
.· ••• ASCs with therelmbtirsemehtrates se.tfor bosplfalou(patle~t.?epartrnents. yveful,lyagre~< .: ..
· ··· that aiJgnmentofret.tY.»qr5~irient~chedule~ allows forsJ.te;of:seri;!Ce decisions to ba·.b~sed\·•'
solely on dtnlcal Judgf)1e!1t; q\l'aii\Y outcomes; and scheduHng efl@ncy: · · ·· ·
> ·. ··· · ·
.· -- > _'- - ·.. ·.•.·:-

-

:-:-'

--_': ,-

'.·_-·-: --., ;-:_ ·.:..,,.-

.- ·-:.

-- .. ,_::_(;._ ,,_ ._._ ' '- ..• -.-. ,•

r-.

~:··.-

, ..-

. -·~

.•. in addition, wefully·suppor(SCA's propo~al to cover pro~~~~res,inafware be'lng conducted ln .. ·
ASCsprtoi tO: the ~na~trnenf ofthel~valldJee schedul~ on Apr IIi; 2015, ~~clu~Ingthe <; •• •.. ·
· ···•, ·i>rp~~duresih~twere prevlquslyperf0 rme~·aiA$Cs Will resUlt I~ ail atcessprobJem for inJured .
woik~rs, W~IChw9tifd vt61~te th~ ~~~.hi,tory rcqylrem.ellts ofens,uring injur~d.woike(s ar~
.·provliledt~e.servlces
and iiandard. ofc<tre
requlred.~ytbeWork~rs'
¢pmpensatioriAct,
•·· ·
.
-. .... _:,. :.-.
. ...
. . -. .

. .. ' .

>-~··.

. Fin ally;
Westrongly oppose
.the.•th reiiptojiOS~Is ·_submitted
·.
.. . - -:. -, .. _. -.: -· ·- :-=- .. - •.- .·. : ' , '· :. . -.. - :';·-:·-·o. by .Jnsuranc~·
---- - . , , - ..c~
;:_ .rrler~}ihi(d:party·.
-·-. -. , . : -_ - .
·: · ··admlnlstiators;
andt~eNorth~ariJiio~·f;lo~p!taiAss~clatlon;
·The
0 1s aiL
- . _____,;_---..,_:_,:. ·,1.,-,-.
. _,•-- -._;';'"·""
. ,:-'·-. - ':---=- :
-.' .. ·.•_ threepropo~
,,- .. ·.·::·.. -.._,:-:-•.
-.... ·'· ·. •...
_.
· · · recornrnend:a slgnlflcantlyreducedfee schedule for ASCsi whlchwouldHrnlt injured workers'
accesstotimelycare;'
'
. .. . . . .···.
·'
. ·. . . .
-·~=·,,·

0 .'' :·- • :·

·-~·_,-
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.. Than~·\'~u {6[\iollrcpnslderatlon. lfyou.haveany qucstlqnsipiease feelftee io.tOntact me at
(~19)-78~:4311. .

'

.

.

····· .·

!Jir:JU;i: · ·.,',0;;,

.

.

.
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; -; __- ..

·. ·.
.· .·Nbfth carolina industr!111 Commission • . ·
. 4SO N. Sa!!sbury St~~~t•.>/ ,' .
R~lelgh;:NCP693.i.,'i
. ..

-~

<_,;._':-:c<·:. ·, .;

-~--.:)';-.;,_.·;_

,·;• .

' .'.\ .··..

·. · '

·-- .
...

> · ., '

·;?: ..

.. '-: ;'•' . .'

. :B,e~~·(:g~if~anAue~'~Wc~'thlili~sloners:
•....•. "

. ''·~>.:;~,.,.
,, ,._ ..
__

• ;.· Ch~rjtpn\. AU~)l, Ch~ir,;;~n ..

-

-- ....

··• J . ·

·T}\a~kV~C'i~rth~ 6~~~~on@t9 ~~eient comments hi resp«nseto possible rul~~~k,~gqptlons • ·

. • .' )or the 'T'i~ltnu"l al!owabl~ a,!)19unisf(}r servk~s·p~ovlded by,amQul~torysy(glcai c~nteis .....

>, : ("ASCs'~) ,In Y"orkers' ~oll)Pens~tlon c~se• underNorth.car0 lin~'sWor~er~! Cotnpe.n~atlory ..·.
•) ,Act. Please ac~ept this letterln support pf the proposal subrnlfied by surgical Care Affiliates; . ·. •: ,. J :
·.. ·... ·'·•' \~c (~'SCA'') on Septembe(:i~i2.Ql6'foai)l'en~ the'pr~yio,usly d~~lared'lnyail~ Ru!e Oii:NCACl.OJ i'''.>t •?:Y••:)·'
·.0103 sp~dflcto ttie'ie~ scheduJe.undei. NohJ1Car~llna's'w6rkers!corripimsation Acffor ,'i '>' c,\J('i·Y· •·· ·

1~n~~:s '~rf~KL •. ··. :",,,iS , _.· -: ·. ·. .· ....·.•. · ,. ::'~.\~:,\~!~- . ·• •

;:se~~.;.~yrovlde~:~ti~fb.vt~~~~.~J~~~1~'.

·

. , ·. Blu(RI~ge $urgery~~i)ter·l§•~n.AffiJlillel'fs.cA:iN~-•refocatedl.Q,ll~lelg~:NC, arld prpvl<!es· ;.~('·'''' · ::;.. >·
' . •• quailtV:~are:to
qver~8
~atler)ts per year ovii(the Rastiliye~rs ser~lpgthe
COnill\~liit~:
•.. · . ....,.·:''-~':'_.·:
'· :-. . :::--. '·;
~
,_·,:-:''y. -.
. ,:.· "
v.

: lhAprlf2ois, the ,·~ciJ~trlal c6m~lssiones(ablished ri~IYWo~ker's' Coir)pensatlo.ifee s~tredulei .• \,

II
II II
I,

'.

.. _,:.:

... ,,, . ,; '
·. fbt ~<)spltals; phy~l¢.ians, Md 4scs,~owevef,jn ptom[dga~lng regulaU§nsto establish a riewf~e.f:·. ; .·.... , "·
. scne,dule f0riASCs,the IndUstrial Co,miJllsslon.falJ~d to foll()W tbe tequlred p~Ocess setf0rth lp ·:· , :c , •< , :•
.. 'the AdmlniSfrat)vePro'cedure Ac,t. <:;on,.sequ~ntiy;.the f~esch~duie wasruledlnyaihl.()n.Augpsf: •:;;•\i· it•• :•
··:9, ,2016 b~ \oVa~~ Cqun~v~.yperlotCo~h JuclgeP~~I ~~.d~~~ay. · . · • '
> . . . },';5'~~i';'

' ··

: l~·~e~ponsetq tbe Cq~t~'s orde(i~valldatjng the ,tlprJI ~. ~01Sfe~scti~dule f(}iA,SCs, jlJe :i;; .·.·... ·· • ·••;i:''·· · .· · .,,
C:oinill!sslon' has rec(u~S\~d•P,ropos~ls t<11lri'l~ncfRule o4 NCA¢ iOLoiol/.0102, and ;9103.'' ·.• >• 'c "· ·

· • s;~eRI~g~Surgeryc~~ter ls;rif~l! suppo~qfSCA'i·iiop~salto~hgn;~elmb~rsementrite;for?·~, ;; •.···.
' AS~•Wlth,ther~lmburs~ment rate.s set for hospital (iuipatlimt depadQ,ents.:We(ully agr,ee;·,,; .·. · , .
. tl]a(a)lgor\ient 9ftelmbl!rseiyleotsc~ed~les allows.fqr:slte"of-ser\lice decl;lons to be bas~d :: ,; . ·· >i,.•\i·

solel~[:r:~ltilca),Judgment, qxallt~'?~.t,c~IJl~S,~O.~ sc~ed~ll~g t~iclen:r•. ·. •.. ·. ,. . · ' ,, ; ·; '

I

;

:.·.>l

:;·······;.i:.·,.·,:.·.··':.•. •. :.·
•. .• .:.·...;

tin: ~d..~l,l]9n, weMiy'support.SCA'~.~r~JposaJ w~()y~rpr~cef;l,ure~th~F\'i~r~.,be(ng toiJ.quct~d In . •.·.··.
. ';
· •>Ascsprlof to the enactment ofttie 11\valid fee scneduJe oiiAprli 1, zo1s •• Exclualngthe ; ,. !. ·. •· . . ··''' ·•· ··• · ·
· ·. ·• ·i·~ro~~4lir~h'llat 06.~;;P'i~vlo~~~I'·P~rforffi~(l,~'fA5<:i.wili i~~~lfir<ah ~¢~e~; Jir91item(q~lnJUred ·.• ···.·. ~.'?X~~',, !

. ·' .•. j

·..·.•.• , ,·:~or~~.(~,.~~lcfj ~9AI.dvWia~~J~ed~at.~~6.rY:r~~~'Wtnel1tsbl,i[n~~rlllslp)IJI~«-~9fl\~~~ ~~e.t .. : .
'•

••·>Provld~~ ~~~.~~rYIF~S.•lJtihtan~ard,of.,car~requJt~d by:.th~ ..Wc>r~ers' <:ompensatlqnMt.

· ;,(

>!." r .

",., ..,,·. •

.· . . •. .~ ·:0~~~;;1~{$~:~t~qQ~I~·:;p~se t~e th;~e.~r~~o~'~~·.u;.~,~~d ~~i~sur~~i~ ~~(;t:r~, ~~~~~!~ariVl.••. :.·... ' •··.... · ',,·· :·.'

.. ,., .. , •· ~dmi~lstratots,•andtHe·Nqrth C:arP)Ina;f:l()sp)!al A$,5Qclallon.·,. The thf~e p(oposalsall.• ' · ./ ..·
·' orecorriinend.\1 slgnlflcai\tlyredu'cedfeeschedule fdrASCs, wHich wciu'tdllrnltln)uied Workers'

'accesstoilroeli:caik

·.. · ' .

: : ,. '

' .'

'

: '

.•.
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,"

...e..1_U E>j,~1Q_:~ E,2f$,.~•.ftG. 7;,8.·~·.;$;~;;~, 1~~, .. ·.••.

·Thank-you forybur ~onsld~iatl~~:

:ltii~u hA~:;~yque~iib{\s,plea~e'feei free to ~ontact~ei ··

1919)c781:4311.

· / Sincerely,

./''
_: ~

·

'

·.•·. /),.;.!-, ~~l/(/&v . .··.

cassa,ridra Clark

·

. -;:.,_,,,-_

·,_ ..

.·.'·

,;.

'.' .·

-• cc::

':-·:

•l<'~ridalliBourilon ·· · .
· · .. ivlerealiH .H~n~erson .·
~:/

. .'

.

., .. • ., ,. >

.~- ...

~

:... ·· ·: ~.-,•
. -~

,..

.:f - ". ·-~ '

·,

.-.

-=~
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. . -J0?:.:(.~(.t~7tU·~;iRJ···Dti. ~:·.·~$~U·R GiBx;~7~~~~,,~,··
:,r~:;,i:~tt::~?,n::f~~":' ·

>· •

.·<·.·; ..

· Nortli carolina
• ·
430 N, SallsbuiyStieet ·. :.:. ·• : .
· , 'Ra(elgh;~c.~?~o~X}··.·.;.::·, ·; . ·

.

· · · ·.·

·:·

,,.

. . ·.--, . . ; ' ,, ' ."lni:lu~lrlatCot;.llnlssion
'. ·. _ ,. .-_ -·-,: - .-·-. < < . - .-_
·-

..';-..:·.:--··;·:-._'"(;:·.:::::>·'i!:j:;

·'"'.::>-·--=·.. _:;····

•';"i'

-.

-

,"·

:oear .Chairman :AIIfin·-:and~cOnnYllsslon:efs·::.

:
. . ,..•

': ·.·,-.-; ·

!~~rik·i~Jlf;rt~~.b~P,~~~hltyto pr~~e~tco~~eritsl~:re~po,nseJo po~slbl~rul~il)ak,ln& ~ptlon~ •.

'"

· , ·for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
· • ·• ("ASCs") lnWorker{Compen'satlon case~ under NorthCaroflna'sWoikers' Compeiisatlan ·. · ·..·
/ .A~t. Please accepnhls letW In support oft he prop6saisubmit!ed by.slirglcaiCar~ 1\ffilhiles, ·
.. · l~C: (''SC:A'')on Sept~il)b~r2G;2o~i>to amend the'ptevi6uslyde,iared lnv~ild'Rule04:NCAC lOJ·

•service~
·no3 speclf!R
~9. th~.t~~fcha~~h'!:~n~e.r N~r\hCar(iJI~(s:~orkers; Co,tnpensat_lpn·A~ fo('
·.·
provld~~ ~v.,~mliv.l.a.tory~yrgl~al~eroters (ASCs);:; .· ·:. ·,..:· ·; )' • ··· .. ·
· · .·

,

. •.•••••

. :/,

· ·. ·..
i·

· ''\. .·. ·.•
, . ;/j(

< ;.;. · ' .· ..

· · .·.'.•.·'.i.·'·.•.·.·•.•. .•:.· .· .· .· .:•.· :.~•.· .•.i ·~.-.:.:.'..1,.'

<.

·.···r.· ·.:

:. .. . , :·

~~~efll~geiJ;ie~J.&~~ieit{~~ l\~l!l~ieiftcA.'0;:~:e::;J~atedio. Ral:t~6Nt; i~d~pr~vld&s .··· :,,>\ ,; ~~ ·1~'2!~:

.'· , '-.~ qtlailtyi:ar~ Jit6v~[9Kp~tliirits p~·6,ea/(tv~r:the past}l.Ye~rssei\'Jnfltilhomn'ninlty/ · · . · · ·
' ·,:-. \;>:/:.\i,=\:._~>-- ~~S-/: :~~:,?:\)';~, :>_:: ::-::<,·: ~-.-=-;:~--:·,.:·: :_·.-.. -,-~:___ -··':-·-__, .---__ :.:-_-<;};-- ~:/=>~-:;_ : _ -,:·:· _:-:·:_'-::-~_:.-: ,::_. ':\--:_-:;:::·_..-:" _ __.:?,--,._,
. .., In Aprll2015, thelnd~strlal, c~mmlssl.on;establlshed. new,,Workers'<;omp ensatlori fee schedules•• · .• . ·
··· forh9~P)~als,physlc1aijs,·a;id·J\$Cs 1 Howev~r;Jnpromutiath1!i regi.J!atlon'sto .eslabllsh.~·~e\Vf~.~···. · ...
· sch~dulirJcirASts;the lnt,lustrl;iftl>mrrilssiOnfa'Hed tofollo\\.theiequlred proces$ set fo(th Iii!..
·.. thel\ilnilnistratlve Pro~eiluie Act'. Consequently, the fee scliedui~Y/as ruled.inva.lld l\n flugusi
··. 9, io16 by Wake CC>u~trsuperior court JUclge Pa:ul~ldli~>:'·r· .:
. • •.:

tn'respo,nse,{•§t~e cqu~'s9r,r,l,er 1)\va!lda~ln,g;the:~prtf 1.101~ fe~~ched_u!efor~s:;~;th~ ... ,. ....... '" ''.it>•···•
.· · · ·;. c:omrntss16nch~.s request<!\! Ptl>iH>salsto ~i)lend Bole 04 NCAqbJ.OlOl, •0~02;and ·~ll03 .. ··. ·
I
.:.;··:.·--~}~--~--:·_:>' ~:<'. > ·: /-;~, ::·:~ ./·:.· -< .:"<'' . - _. :.:= --:. ,-'-\''_·--:;;_-\: ·:--,. =>.;.:- _,· . -_: .: .:· .. -·· >:. _';'.:-!- <--.:8-::-. :_ :·:·:::, -:-·;·' .
: Blu~ ~!dgeSurgery,ce)\WJs lnJullsuppb)'tofSCI'I'$ Proposal to align relrnbursel)lentriltes{o('.; ·. ·
j '.·.
ASCs with tile r<!lmbursetijentrates set for hospital outpatl~ntdepartmentsi WefuUy,agree ,,
.·. · thataJI!ttirnent cif.rklm~ur§~ment!iche~vJe~ al.l<>wsforslte.pl·seryli:~ decisions i<i~~ based~>
.. •. ·. solely on clinical judgrruint, quality outcome$,'~nd schedullng,efflcJencY, ·. ..·.. . ; ........ .
:_!

·. • • .. · · In

a~~itl2~; ~e(uiiv su~Pori:$GA}~:pr~posal to ~~Qaf'pi~ce~ci\~k(~~f·~~~e;beingco~~J&ted·ln. c.c·: o::F(

·...,A.scS'prlor,to'th~;enadin~nt'ofthe iil~alidf~esi:hedule onMIJi'f, 26ls. Excluding the\ ..· •.· .·
·. jjig~edu(~:S.th<~t;,..;~r~·l>r~vlp~st~peifqr~~#··a(As,cswili•r~s~lt.·(nan.access:P,roiilem•,(orthiuie.d·.·
.. . .........· \\<OfK~.rs~!o/hl.~h W?iil.~ vlbl<i~(l~~ ~,ta,tutorvr~·q~)(~rne~ts ofwtaOf.IQ~ I~Jilr~.a W,orkers. ~re:. •·•
•· .·... J>rQill~eil t~e ~~ry)c~s ~nd st:a,ngarq nf care,reqyMd hthe Wpt~.erstc~.m.~en~~!l.oiifl~ti:/.: ,
·- · · _-·· : :~~'- :;_;?::-_;:--,:~::>:-:::,.· · ~;_:;·---:" :·._ -·_. _ ·< .:_·-_;'._ . :-:_ ·-· __..-.>/:: >-_: ._.',:/:>. ;·::·.-·:<·.-)·. ~---_:·,~:?'-=:_~-_:·· . :=:-<' ·_--:::'> ;·~~: :r:_;_-_ '··:;: :··;·Y:><:)f>r_ :,._: ·
· .:. :· •· •.'•Fit\a,Jty;we:strongfy
tMt~ree
. :·~arrler$,
th!t<Fparty/:
<;\;; ·•
-. ,, .. --._. -·:: - .. oppos.e
.
' .
., ...prpposa!S
'.
. .•·. :: $Ubti\ltt.bd
. '-.'·'· . '-- by.J~s\Jranc~
. .
' .
. . "·
"·· ''' ,., .
· a<!rnlnl~tr~tors,.andit"e}lo(thC~roiiM Ho$pital,i\ss(i~latlori. The\hre~'ptoposali ML •> ·. \ .• ·:.· '',
.re'comm e~d a:~lsnitlp~ntly 'reduc~d f~e SC"edule i<>r ASC~;'whlch \Vouid;llrnlt InJured Workers';/ . . . •.
access ~0 !JtTHlly car~·: .
..
• . . ' ...
('
.; . .
,'

_,

.... ;,';·

""

-

-'

'

:

--

__:·

•'

-'
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, BLUE. RIDGE SURGERYcCENTER

-,·.·:. ~ :· ;. ~~ ~~,..........,--···-- -. ·-:- ·-..~:-· -~-··: ·::~--~--·· ~--;--'----'-"~::~·:·.' ~~., -- ···---~.-.-;:.--;;;{jiir;·;·;; ~;!-s:fJ\

·.•:

·,;

.. ·

T~ank you ior;~ur consideration: .If you have ~·~y q~es~ions; ~lease feel free to contact me at

' ' . (919}.781.~31!;.
·. •.:. ·'
.

Slncereiy, ,

' ·:>··
' . '
·.··.. -·

'.

, ; '.

...

• .:.X:eu:D g;p

.··:.- ...

.Kathy Lei91, J\d~lnlst(atqr .··
·-.:. ~ _·.·.

. . ~-

; :·.,-.

.cc: <;Kerld~!I.Bp~;d9n.· .., ... ·
· ..
> Meredith
Henderson
·'
. -·: .
: ..
:

: ~. ,_-~---:

;
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~-rt !_Jftt:~·1!i-) ')_f ~.J:\
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·. · C/1~rlto~\. Allen,.Ch~ir~an
' . . .·
, Naitncar911nalndustrlaLcon1mlssl~n . '
430 i'J. Sallsburv.Street
·· ...• · Ralelsn; N.c p6(l3. ·
-

--;---·

..

_·,

'•

.· .,

Dear Chairman Ali~~\ind Commissioners:

';

Thank.;ou f~r.the opportunity to present comments ·~~-response to possible rulemaklng options
.-,_,
· • for the maxln'lum allowabl~ am9unts for servlces·provlded by ambulatory surgical centers ·
.)•···(''ASCs")ln Worker~' C6mpen'saiion cases under North Carolina'sWorkerslcqi-npensatloh ', ·.• ··· ,. ·
.. ·. .• Act. Pl~ase ~ccept thlsl,etter'iMsupport o(\heproposal submltt'ed bySurglcaiCa(e A(iilla,tes, ....·
"·,··
··LLC.("$CA'') or\Sept¢0ib'er29/~01Gto amend the pr~viouslydedaredit\valld Rul<i 04NCAC.toi ·.
.0103 speCific to the f¢e schedule under North tarolina'sWorlieis' Compensation ACtfor • .. ' ..
· sentlc~:pro~ided byamb~iatorvsurglcal centers(ASCs).· _· . ·.·. .
· ·. _· ....·. . · . ·
/,\ ) ., .
-~;

· .·• • 'lllu~ Ridg;Sur~~~ _centefls· ah A(flltate _~fSCA.,We are.lqcated In Raieigh NCi ahd'proVJdes

:·

'-·····

· quality.Gafetopyer~~~atiel1tsperyaar6verthepast31ye~rs servlngth~cqmrn~nitv.. ·· · . ·;:

······In Aprll.iot5,the lnd~strlal ~o~rnlsSIOn~stablisbed'~e'JI'w{)rkers' Co~pensatloi\ fee sch~du.J~-~-······.·
·. . '
·. forhosplt~ls/physlclahs!andAS~S'.How~ver, lnpr<\Jiiulgailn'g iegul~tlonsto.ime!llishanewf.ee ,
·'
. schedufdo~AScs,the Industrial tormnlsslon fall~dtQfoilo'Ythe reqtilredproc~ss .set forth•.ln ·' }; .. i .·. · ·
the Adrhlnl~trative:hocedure'ACt;' Consequentiy, th~Jee schedule wasruledlrwaiido~:Alfgust ' ! •.. ·,····· •.•.
.••
. . . 9,2016
by
W~ke
Cqrinty
Superior
cour\JudgePaul
Ridgew~y.
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
";
·
·
,
•·
'
..
.-,. -·.· .
--

;_.·,

-

,_

-

-

•.

''•'

.. -In r~'spor\seto I he Court's order InValidating the ApriJ.1,2015Jee schec{uie .for AS¢s,
.• .· Cornmlsslon:has
to amend'RUie
.
.- reque~(edf!ropos~ls
.. --·.-: .. -- 04 NCAC 10),0101;
.. :o~02iand
.
-.

;-

-

,-

'

'

-

--

.,

'

--

-

-

-

-

,';

~I lie RldgeSu}geryCenterjs lnf(JU suppoitofsc~·~ pr~p~sal toallgn·r~I~J>u,rse~ent r~te~for: ;..

A.SC~ withth~i~lm~uisemertra!es set fprhospllaloulpathint departments,We:fuliy agre~·•.•
that align m~ntofreliiib~rseni~nt schedules allowsfor slte",of'seivlce ·decisions til be based-· ...

. ·. SOIJlly qri clfnli:al ]Udgn'le~t,quality outcomes, and s~hedullng efficiency;.

·· ..·

. •··

.,. ;In addltlono we.fully suppartSCAiS,PfOJ.lOsal tocov~rpf'oceduresthaiwenibkingc~nductedin•
·. As.c/prJorlothe enactm~ntofih~'.lnvaU<lfee'scheduleonApd/1, 20iS. Excludingtlie · .· ._ ,
. · ·. prqcedut~s thilt.Weie,llrev,lo~slyp~i'fgriti~d at A5Cs·wl1Lres~lt In an a,cessproblgp)JOr Injured.
· ·· .· -·workers:which.wiiuld
vioJatci the~staMoiv iequilein~nis ;f ~r1suitnii lnJured-woili~rs'are :.
.> _: ·-:: >>;' : . ,.; ·_·.: .- .; '; ,.· ' :.. -'· -,____- :·: ::·• -.'"'·. ,; ,- :: ·.- .. -, ·_ ":::· : _:_., ·'- ·:: ,.::· -' :· ·:,: :,:.' '- ._: .. -. -: ·- :,: -.- ';;·-r_;,,:_. '· ' :_.. -- ··- .
..··provided
the•servlt~s-and standard'of~are·(equlred.by'the;VV<irkers'-.co·tiipehsatlon.A~t:..··
: . ~_._ .:/-_,·_ . ---. ·. ·"="". ,... > ,::~·.-::. ,.:.. . :....-•.,-: ·.·, ·. ,_,_: .. .:--·. ·.::, :·..- ~ ·-"" _,:_: ,·<=(':..: ,;:-;, .: ~J.·).. ;.
....·._·::.<·..,··;r··. ~.-.<~ <"-:··.
~"-

--~' ~-

•>

~-

:=

.Fina1Jy,0~ str~ngl)' pppqse the three .-~-r~pbsalsst<~~Jtt~d lnsurant;e. carriers; th ird-parf~i •.
·· adhih)lstraiors; ilh~ \h(Noitli c~r~llna Hospital As;oci~tlon. Th'e ihree propo~als ~~~· · .· '' • ....
.re9oinii\end;a.,slghlflc~~tly reduced fee schedul~ fo~;Ascs,.whlch~ouldJimlt lnJur~d wOrkers'······
access:i:otl(nely we:.
.
..
'
' ..

by
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consldecatf~n\ lfyou h~ve~ny questions; please feel Ire~ .to i:(ifit~clme ~~ ;'.

. Thankyou ;;; your
. (919l;7s1;43~L /
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Thank y(>u (orvourco.nslderatlcin, If you
a~yqu~~trb'n~,·please
me
. . have
.
.
.
-.,.
. feel. free
.. to_. contact
.
. at
-

(il19)'7~1'4311 . .' . . . .
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·· Ch~rlton L All~ni:chalr(nan

_· ._•

.· _. iNorih~ar6iirta ~~~~stria! Cofn~l~slon
>''AMN;§allsbury ~treet ·.
· •-.• R~l~lgh, N.C ~7aci3 .
·

,._:

o.~:;cnaliman Allenaotlcommi~sJ~~.,s: · ;, :.·- .-· ·• · · -.-~:{f'•~; •. ·
-_, _, .. -.:·_ -··T::·. ·_,,:->::_-<-_
- ·---~-,'-·-_;~~:q>;r--_- -_
- - ... __. ____ : :.
· · · Tllank YQll for t~ei!!lil9f1unlty to pres~l"li comine.nts iii respo~se',tri phsslble r~le!Yla~ing options
, --- ... ;: ___,

for-the m~~lrnUIT) ~119\llaqle amo4nis foiservJCes provided by ambvlatory surgical centers
("ASCs'') In W9rkers(Cm:np~risat!on casris under North Caro_lina's Worke-rs' Compensation
Act. Plea~e actept~hls leltet In suppoi:t of the proposal subm_ltted by surgical t~reAl(l!lates,.
LLC ("SeA") o·n Sep~emb~r ~~1 2016 to ~mend the previously de_chired lnvalh;l Rule QJIN.CAclOJ ·
,0103 speclflc toJhe fee schedule unde(North Carollna:s Workers' compens~!iol)l\tt for · ·
servlcesprovlded iiv.~_mbule)ory surgical centers (A$Cs), > ·->''
·' ·
·
. _·_:_: _ _·-,-.~- .. _·.,">.:_~--:-\':. ·_ ··;:; .· ··-· __ -~:_,,J'-~- ;_ . _:_;;:->=,.·" ,·._,.·_ ..:··; ~'--:/F..::..,\'
·. ·. Cat'{Qqhopaedics i:~am of p~yslclans ~J<1,exp~rts in motion with combined experl~nce of225 ·
•years, o(f~r!ns bot~.slfrSka~~i\!Jij?f!;s~rgl~~l treatment Pf()t!lsolsfQr patient~ ~~!:VJ~gC;~iyi .· •· ·._ ·
·,Ralei~h, ()aroer,f:.1 orrls_vi)l~f.A'P,e:x,and surro,undlng arrasoqn~.)'rf,ang!e, .Cai)'Qi't]r~p~e~Jcfhas ' ._
·" •one. goal- restor~ good he~lthandino~III!Ytothose In nee~; ),;,,,,.. . , -·. :· , .· · ·. ·
•
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·.-:·~-::_; .-~-_.:.:!-:_~;-; . . -._._.:.- >_\ :.._:_~,:. ~ _:-~-~~·:_-_:_:-.-·:,:~:\·.·-.,.---;_;·:~\i::~ _·:.::<::·.-~_-: -":-. _-/--- ._-~_}·:·~_:r;>-~:;:::_,\--:-:' -~---. _-- . .- ;-./:~ -, :.. . , _._. hiA)irlf .{015,Jhe Industrial ci>mnilsslone.liabllshed new Worker{(;oiimensatlonfee sche~i:li~s··

. .•

\o

: ~ :fo[tlospl\~!s, ~hVS!~Ian~,:l),;_d M.c~;}l6we~er; lq prq!llUig~t(.;g re!!Ji~tlon~ ~stabll~,h ~- tie~fei!-,
sch~dule for ASCs, tlw hlc!~$\tlal c0mmlsslon fpiJed to.(ollowthq required process. set forth In. ·•
.
the Adni.lntstr~ttve·ProcedureAc('consequentiY, the fee schedule was ruledJiwalld imAugust
9, 2oiEi Wwake co~nty sujlerlor q>urt'J~Jge'Paul Rldgew~y. · , "· ,' > .
;> < >

.. _·.

i .,

:·_:_ . -_.-- ~- ---~~~~-~~-~-·j:~-i-<~i-~:;:;;;_~;;~:~'~ ,. ·--_-~:' __ - ._ .:'..· -_ :·.<\~--~--(~--,< :... '· _ --:_-_:_::}:.:·:·_::;;.·_:{~~~:>;-,:~;':·,:'

· ·- ·
.:;-> _·_.·

-_1~ re'~p(lns~t.oth.~p:>urt;sprderlnval!d.at!ngJh'e!iPrlt1,_20.~S feiischedvldor/\$Cs, the· · ·_ -·-·:· _ '• · ;,c,:;, :~ •
·•·. Coo:u1Jissl(ln'h~>'t~quested prpposals to.amen~ Rulli 04 NCAC 101 .Ql,Qi, ;Q19~;.and ;0103, :.._,:_,_,, :•;;}('Y•.i•,c·'. ;; ·.
.-- !: ~_? ·_)t-.-\~·-:·_-o: -r>_: ,;-\;.:<-~-;:.: <- ·:·: -_- -_L :;· :'(:::~.::-.-._;~: -_
·\:_:~·:~:-:;-.·=>>·: '.~ · : ...:.·:·:·: · . ·. <:~::· ·{~~~=;:--~ ·~;·~:·::<::- _:_ ·:~::.. ·.:' · .i.(Y .>,~:".~ :'::rr~~';_;ri,_-';. ··.
Cary_!,}~ho,paQo,icsls Iii full $up~oi1 ~fSCA'~);(CiW~~I:to all~~ relmburse~e_nt r~t~s for AS.Cs . y . • ;,:~,y-,.,: ..
. __ ;wltht~er!)lrnbu(se:mer~faless~,tforhos~l.tal~41l>iltl_ent depaJ1meht~.WeJu[ly:a~tee that :} · :• •<:'. : ,_ >
·· ·-: a}igi\n'Jioht:ofr~h\)p!Jis¢m~ntst~ed~!es.a!hiW,s.1or s}ti;.ofiserilce de~hlohs'to be ba~edsolei{cm .. ··; · '. ' : ·

,.·.

'ciliM~iJu!fl!)Y!~i'!!;qualltyout~oriies,and sc~~!Jullnii.efilc!encv.
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D.¢u&lrls L.

Ckll~lw'~

·Br/P!J T. S'III!P, M.lJ.~

- ..

J>¢}iglat J. J,{tJrtlllt J>f:.l>. ·

JJ1/I/o!lt. X. AlJd4~.fC11, ~/.[>._ .
R1ltrkt, ),(.D. .'

-. Sc<>II.S.' Soriitiii~~N.lX:,:: ·
Gn'ry_i SmQci }.(.D._-:~,
. ChrlJt~p/i-~ti~~, MD.:.
Nl~-¢/iP. BIJIIod, Mp.:·-~:

D•r~k _L.

P~_;i q, St~J;E_II. A!P-_\----

}.{_at~ 'A._

Cflnol'l, Af.D.
,Rtzy"rp~JJd M. Ct!~I'OJI. MD.

~-

srm.,r.'ei M.O!~IIIj_y.p. :. ;

M.D.

. N~l SI'IJII/1, M.[).

·Edpuimi ,.:Arltlou;. M.D.
- Dtmerri"M. &c.nom_tdet,l(_.O. ··

provided ;he s¢rvlces and standa;d of care requir~d by t~e Workers' Compe~s~tlon Aci.
Finally, we strongly oppasethe thre'e proposals submitted by lnsur;ince carrlers,third,par!y
administrators, ani! the North Carolina Hosplta!Assocl<itlo.n, Thethreewoposals all · .:. ·· •
recommena a slgnlflcantlyreducedfeeschedule for ASCs,whlch would limit Injured workers'
<\.'.': .
. ><: . ...••.... : •. ·· ·. •. ,...
access.totlmelycare.
;
·-:.··,

. ,._:·

Thank you [or your conslder~tlon .. If yo~ have any qu~stlor\s; please feel free to'contact me our .
office at (919) 467-4992.
· · ·
' ·.· ··· · ·· · · ··
>.· .· · ·. ·
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.Notth Carolina Industrial Commission
-~P ~. s~il~~urv$trq~f · ·
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. R~lers~d'{F216o3 ,
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·. ·•.· !. . .•.·. ·Yhrink.yquJqf,t~~ 9~1'Qrtu~ltv:Mt~sent c~~Z·~~;s ,:~ r~sP~~i;·~~ ~o~srb;; ;~,~~·~f~sAp~;~~~){ 'I:::c&&'{..;: :
· ·· •· f9r,the llia~lm~m-~llowai?\a,am¢u~ts for l(etvr.c·es p·rovlded l\v. ambul.atory,surglcal'centers.
·:''':':<.'i:'•;·•.. :: · '' '
)·:· : ·("ASCs") In W,orkers: Compens@ilon cases uri?Qr Nort~ Carpllna'~ worhrs: Compers~tlon
. ·' Y•: ·· · ,

·::''i't

·.Act. Please ~cce[lt this let,terln support ofth,e proposal.submJtte~ by,Surg!cal Care Affiliates,

' .·: ii<t~c ("Scii''I o.n§~p,~ember261 2o)~ !o, al))en~ t~.·i~revlo\isly~~cl;\re~ in~~ll(l Ru.re. 0:4NCilFlOJ .·

·.

.>/:. :, ..QlQ3 spe~lflct'ii,@ifee sche~~la;underNo~h_9Yollna's wo'rkers'Col'f\Jiens.at!oh .Actfoi, :.·, ·
·/;;,.: services)(oyldid ~Yainbu!•l~tv;sur~lcafcen*rs(ASCs). . ::":. . . . .. . . . .
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__;

. CaryorthJp~~dlcs t~~m of~~Y~Idlans are~~~~rts In motl6~·.wit~ combine~ experr~nce
y~ars,oMilhg bothsurgicalarid~o~s~rglc•l tre~tmentproto~~lsforpatlents~etV!~I!i:ari/, : .·, ·· · ·
ilal~r~h; i>arner, tylo[rrsvrile, Ap.ex and.sutroundrng are~~ of..the 1rr~n&r~. <_:a[y.p[thip~edics h~s'·.
·one goal.: restor~~:?,od h~alth and.l\ipblli\Ytothoseln need .. ·:'.'>
•,

dtt25 ·. ·

·;.}n}\p'rJI.20tS;)h~/~~tist(lal. Co!j>!)l!s.slon ~stablrsh~~ newwor~e~s· compensat.lo~fee sc~~.~ul~s'
. ...
.. ~;: .·. forh~sil!l~t·! ~hys!fl.an~,.~rct{\SCs, HRWO.VM~:!nJiiom.ulg~!l.~ilr<igulatloo.s.~!) esiabl!s.h B.·~~y;.fee .· .·.·.·. <.'··· .· ·.

. ·,i'•; • ·schedule for ASCsrthe ln~usvlaLComl)'llsslon fplJ~# tofoHoWthe reg~lre<l

process set forth1n , ·.;> . • < . · · ·· • ··
. . the' Adrnlnlstr'ative Proce(jureAc!:' Co(ls~quentiy:the feesche~ul~ was ruledinvalrd on(\ugust ·'. : ..•. ' ' •· '

• ;9; 2o~~\ii''Waketount~su~erifirto'~rtJOd~~l>~ul Rrds~w~y.
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·. -~~~~~~;i.~h:~~~~i~~i~d~~~~~:~~]t&~~~~~~~i;)~~tiff&1~;;~~,.1~~i:c:r.::··:
::r.~~~~f",;;;
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· wi.th'the rillrnbursemenHatlis set fo~$ospltai•!Jutpatlent <iei>ar:tmerits: We IuiJy agre'iithat . ' ·· '( .· .. · ·
~}ig~me;if!if rell\)p~ts~rn~nis~)\~~lli~s;illQWdot~JtE!-tof,seiYI~~.d~ct~lons t~b!fba'se~ sOlelY Q~

: .. ·. .

, .:. · · •· · •iJif~lc~,J~?s.~~:t·q{t!':tv oy~C.?;sif•nd ··~~~~W~,?~ ~rocr·;~·;;~,i:·?'-:·\ ·-:'! i:; ·. ·· ~ .',·'?' . • .
, . . ,:1:, / ..>!ol~~ddlt19.ti. 'I(~·N\Iv ·~~po(~ ~CA'sp.rqpo~a1~9 .'cpve[procef!~rM.t~a.t w.ereP ~lng coDdy~.!epin.
· ;;, •:•:· ,' .•f'MCsptrortothe,~n.~~tment ofth~ lnvaUd'fee scbe,duie.on'f;pr!I;I,.2,Q1$. E/<clqdlng\he •;{,: . .

.;...,, ;• i

'pro~e.dur~~ th~~ V{~r~~r~vloUsJY~~1or'nie~ .atASC~I'Irir,res~lihta~ ~¢c~~s proiile/il 14i'!h).uy~~.
·

· <.i;F, :wor~~rs,\Vhlch V{ou19 ~[olate the $tatuto(y requrr~!Ji~nts of ¢nsti.fh\g:rn)ured wor~.eis are,
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/}(JIIglas L. U(J/(tJum, M.D..

.priO!J"l: Stwo, M.b.

Sam~tt Mathur,

M.D.

· .=~: Scctl s. &lr;l141t, J./.D..

· -~Ug!ruJ. Mnrlln~ MD.-'..
O~L $~,'!~M.D.
· :w;IH/ind(.Am/ttlin~'M.TJ. . -. :-:tkfJiop/rUJJ,, M.o.

D~,,. t. Rlfnh;:u-o.- :-·- : :': ::---Ji,~Qt# t
MD.
-tfar!A. Q.nD11, M.o; -~ ;'.: . . .- ·: }~piii.G.-S/ngh; M.D.· ..
:A~;mo~dM.·<;f!1ro1t.j.ib; · <··:iNPf1$¥i't!; M._D._
· :-_ E{l"ua_trlF.ilrm~W;#.I>. . -. ~--.·~
:Jiin;elrl 1-!.'"EcC"(Jom~tJ,./).0,

B_liixt.

-.-·· .

. ·pr~vlded
th~;ervlces
of care required
by the
W~(kers' <;.;;,pensatlon
Act. ·.
.
..,,
..~nd ~~a~dard
-.·- ..
.
'.
.
,-

''•.

''
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'

~k'}irongly oppos.~;the

''

propo~alssubmltted byJnsurance.c~rilers:tblrdopa~y.

. ··Jinally,
three
·. ,, admJn.IS!rators, and the. North: Carolina Hospital Association. 'ihe three. proposals all ·;' •. .
·."i f~cor(ii11end a slgnlflc~~tly re<M:ed.f.ee schedule for ASCs, whlchwouldJimltlnjuredworkers'
<access to timely care;<·{'
'
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Than~ you for your consideration. If you have any questions, pleasel.eel free to canta(:l: 1ne our
office at (919)467·4992,
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" .beer Ci)alrman AU~ii and Commlss)oiiers: .
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.~.. ,;,.::.:rhankyoufoith<i.opp()rtimlty_!.O:presen(comrnents.lhi~sponsetonbsslble rule_m~kirig options· . c-.. ':.'.iicc••·.• ·
. f(>itha maxlmum~llowabie amounts for mv.rces p[ovid~d byambulat~ry surgical centers . .
' ("ASC~") In Work~rs 1 Cp(npens~\19~.~ses u~der·N.ort~·Carp,lln~:s 'Nq~kers' Compe~satlon.. .··.·•···
.·. ··• Act. ~_lease a~ceptthlslett~r,h\suppo-rt oftbpproposal sub1]1Jited,bySurglca! Care,Afll\l~tes;• ...
· ' L~C("ScA")onSeptem,ber ~6, 2019 to:~m,en~ th~ p;evlou~lydedare~ lnvaRd ~ule O!!.Nc:Ac 10!. . ··. _.,
·. •9103 sri~clflctot~~~ee sc!wlul~~·n~erNorthCaroUna'siNorkers' i;iH)'lpens~i!o~ticrfor ·
servlcesprovldedi;y·ambulat,Qry,surglcal aenteis(ASCs); : · ;\; ·· · · · · ···
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C~ry. Orth~p~~dks.team of~hVslcl~ns are expe~~ motr6n: wltb ~~~bfned exp~flence of22s..·.·. •.
Years, offeilng·both •. sursl.ca!_and: ncin,i~rglcal treatment proto~6lsfor p~tle!)ts s~r\iingCarw -.· •·.·.· ·.·
.. ' . Rai.e!ilh;i>~rner; Morrlsvlile,Apex anti~urroundlngareas o!th~1dangle, Cary \')rihopaedfesl-ia~
:one', goal.~-, nistore good.healthand
mobllltvtoihos~ I~ n~ed, 'i· .: .··
.. .
.
-:\ _( ,..
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. - ...- .:··'·'::·:···':"': ·.· .-_;;·::,.··~'..""_.: :-·.' .. ',_' ." :_.''•'_':;,<-··: . ." .· ._'·j"..,;-:•;_:-·-·
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; lnAprll2015, the fndus(rlal CommlsslpnestabHsJ>ed new Wi>.rkers' Compe~satlon fee .s.chedules
.. fqr'h()spl\als, PhYs!cl~ri~i~od ASCs;.Hoi\!~Yel, In piomulg~\)pg regulation__stpe~tobllsll ~newfee .
: -.. · ·sehedulefor ASCs';theiodus!rial col)'lmlsslonfailedto ,folloWthe requireoprocess set fortiJ io ·
•..the Admlnistr~ttve Procedure Act: Co~sequen\ly, th.aJee scheilul~ was' ruled iOV!)Ild bil }\~gust
· ~. 201.6 hy.Wa~etounty s<ipe[lor C90r! Jtl(jge_?.,ul Ridgeway. '.
~
._,_ ---- -~.-..:-·r.;.;.-_- ·-__ -.-:::_ ,,-_,_o.;·_.~- ,_
___ -:· ;_ . - ·-::;··_, _ -: .. --\: _,--'"· re~pons~to ihg·Cou rt's ord¢rlnvalldatlngJheAprii·1,.201S.. fee \~hl.d w!e fo~ A$Cs, the. ·
nas-r~quasted
ptoposals
to ~niehd ,.
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. ·,·,caty.Ort~opandl.cs 1~.1n full sJpporf.of~_¢!1'spro posal to ~Iii~ r~imb.ur,s~me,it rat.~s J.otASes
.·. ·-·:with 'the relmb.urs~roerit rates se! fothosp.lta1·9~tp~tle~t departrne~ts. Weful)yagtee ihai.
': allgnme~t of r~ll)1p~rsement_scl)e~uies allow~ for s)te.of,servlce d~cislonsto be-based solely 6n • · · . ; .·. ··
· ·clinical Juasm~:nt, ·quality OU\tofi!es, and schedulfng:efflclency. ·.-: ,
· ·'
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-·• .··.In ijddltloo, wefulfy ~~-Pport ~~s pr(>p/lsalto coit<irp(Oceduras t~afiyere being cciildyqe(flw
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.... ·..•. : ' · ··...·
... ' A~ J)rlo_rj¢ the ~~-~~il\)fnt of th~ 1~1/~lld fe~ ~chi!dul~ onl\prlll, 2Pl5; Excludlngth~.: . )
:,•:
., . procedures that Were prevlol!sl{~e[f<jfo\e~ a~-ASCSWHI riJsuJtln an aqeess p.rgblem t~.r JilJur,ed .· . · ··
· ;""olkers,whlch would:V!olat~ the ~atutqry requlrem~nts otensuiin~·!n)ured 'vorkersani: ·
u1oS.:t. ~~-Por~* $,jl1 ~.-iPo, p11rn NC f1J[i. _.~':_;~19) _~61~4,~2 :I i-Ax f9~~i ~--~-~96.~7 ' Jo,; LD~rwr'fou~~. S~!'·t ~ril;;-~~~~, Hd-;'IJ~·- ..1:·(r1_~.2~~.:1f1o·_l F,LT-tf_J9j.)1i.Joi;'; ·_.;
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~/Jglal L. dQI/IhPH, M.D.
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- ~flj~)!~cmtl4i.D.O. ·

"provided the.. -se_rVlc~s
and standard
of care requl;ed
by the Workers'
Compensation
Act,. . ·
.-,.
.-._
.. ·.. ·.
.
.
.· ·.,
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Finally, we stron(!fyop~ose the ih.ree proposalisubmltted by hisurarrco carriers, third-party
admlnlstr~tor_s! •nil th~ North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
.
recol)'lmend a slgnJflcantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would llmlt Injured workers'access to tlmeiy care. ;;; ,
· - . .,.
·
·
·
'· .
-.. ·:·.;.-:.
··':·
.. •· Thank you for your consideration,: If you have ~ny questions, please fe~i free to. c6ntact me our .
offtce at (919)467c4992.
··
·
· ·
·· ·
· ·
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iri(esponse to
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. f(,rt~e ma~\ln~m ~~1~\yabie •.inounJsfor servlcesprovld~d by ambolatbry surgical c.enters .
' •
(~ASCs'') In Workers' ~(ift!pensatlon case~ under Nor.tli'Carollna's. WC>r~ers' Compensation·
Ac.t;'.Piesse a~ceptt~ls l~tter hi ~upport ofthe.proposalsubmllte~b~ surgical CareAffll.l~tes,
· ·· .LLC ("SeA") on september 26, 2016,ict amend the previously decl.ared.lnvalld Rule o4 NCAC lbJ
;c)lo3 ~peciflctothafee sche!luie ~nder Nor'thcarolhia's V{ork~rs' compensallo~Actfor · · ·
' services provided byam.bulatory surgical centers (ASCs). . ';; , ·.
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-;. Caty OrthopaediCS tesm of physlcfan~~re expertsJii motion Wlth~omblned experience of'2?5,

•
. years, offering bP!h surgl~al a!1il11on:sqr~lcal treaw~nt protocols for patle~t,ls~rylng Caiy; •• . .
\Biilefah; G~roer1 l';lo!'l•v!lle;Apli_xana surroundlng~r~as.plth~Tilangle .. (:ary9;1hppa.edics has.'; · '·•
onei;,jal ..,,resti>r~ good health .an(l]liJbllltytothc;>se In n~ed, :..·
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·...•• ,~April iois, th~ ~~·d,ustrial dm011ssld~ establls,he~ new Workers' Cornp~rysatlori fee schedules .' .·•·
,..·.. ·for ~<ispjia!s; p~ysl~laps;'~ndMCs,However,.l~ P[Qrnulgatlng regul.atlons to)!Stabllsh ~.O~Y:'fe~ • . ·
···, ... ··· seheduleJcmASCs,thehfdustrlal Commlsslonfailed to foUowthe requlrec! ~rocess setforthfn. · · .
· ·. · the Administrative Prdc~dureAct Cp~s~q~e~tly, the fe.e sched~le was nile.il.lnval\d ,oh]luglist. •'
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· ·, wti!i the relinburse'm~n\r~tt\s set fqt hosP.ItaJot!tMtle~tdepartments. We fully agree that.· .· · ·
·. · • ·. aliiiliiiientof.r~imbursoirnent schedules allows for slte-of,servfce decisions to be ba~ed soleiy on ·
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l>ougjtll L. GOI/t~hon, M.V.

SomeerMot/Jur.MD,

BrianT. S%J!fl1, MD.

Scot/~ Sau/Jnle, M.D.

Dcilg/OIJ..Marlfn~

Go;y"t,. -~"'' },{.D;

M.D•

Wl/it~ K. AntlmtX. M.D. ·

<;hrillopM-.£/!i. M.D.

Dl!fd L. RtM:e, ;.io.
Mdt.l: A. Cio1M M.D.

Nlcq/e P. Bliflock. M.D.

. Ruy<nc;d U l:i>iwl! MD.
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Paul 0. Singh, M.D.

Nat~sha~L M-4

- ';u'JJI'Jr9Xkm(lur,).i.IJ.. ·. ·
. -~ :/J,f1ietr/ lkoJJOrriiJe;, D.O.

it.

provlded.the se,YIGe.'l and~t~nd~rdpf 'are require~ ~\'ihe Workers' Compensation Act.
.·,

..-·

Finaily,we stronglyopposethethree proposalssub.fliittedby inswancetairlets, third-party
· administrators, ariithe North carolina Hospital Association .. The. three proposal$ all
recommend a significantly reduc~dfee scned~lefor ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
a'cess tCI timely c~re.
. .
.
·.- .>:.·

. "

··Thank you foiyour~bnslderatlon. J(you have ~~Y questions, piease feelfree to contact me 9ur
- office at (919) 4!57<4992.
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... ' ·:·;rllaqk,you forth~ ORP!>rtUrjltv.to present comm,ent§ ln.response to pbsslble r~lerriak!'ng optlol),S :. ::: .• .. __ ' '; .
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'·ca~orthipaedl~s team of f)liysJ6!~~s~~ie'~xpertslo mo;lo~ilth.~omblned experience of 22$ .

.·. y~~:rs,;o!f~r.!nslloth surgical ~n!l ni!n,iur~ical treatl11entprot6~olifor patl~!)ts;s~ryJng cari;

'· . .
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: .·one;~p~l:"rll~tqr~,go9ilhealth Mdm()bli!Wto,tho~e In nee~.
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·. > WiJi~er~,\Vhlch·wp~ld~fol$~iiihil'..$!a\ut<i,iy (equlr~ments of ~nsurlii~J.riiureij YioiReif~re: ·. .
,, ..·
. ·-:·~ · . .::.:_··;:;:'::. ::::··. ~·- ',_:·-~:,·_(:c:;.:~.:\--: . .~ ) . );';:·_..~:·: ····?\~~:::N;:::~~::·;-:; ..... ··>;. ··)'--:~\<.)~·{ . :· ·~. :<.··...: _: :·: ;:·.~:;~.--~:<(:( .:·.r~:;:. :·:· ·,:~:::·.~\>:/·;:~. ·.· ··:/··._·::. ·,:, ~\:\ :~ \ . :.·: ....; ·
.:jli~&s. -G;d74r:ll1'4)1 sw; i.DD. Cil"' ~C-?m,. J .(?l9,ft4i;~.991.'i !'~ P{P.J.~t/,~~7 :1 -~~~~~ ~~·sll!rf ~~-~if!!(· 11.c:m.~. i_~-~~J~~~)a;~!~~:J.I'.Lf.;o/tPp1,1·.~'!.::
.'!i.l~.~~. ¢~~.~ ;~~-~~i !~~. ~p~·~c'l!H~ . .~ ,~,~~~·;·'~~.-.'. fA~fP!~.-~l2·~~~r~\looJ.v~~"~·'lf.;r~~~~~:·~·-~t··q%~~-~-c:.i~J1 9 _1.. ~f9J .w·~~~~A{~~~~:~~·:~~~~~~;.'.::.:·

. . ,· , .\' <·,;,; .· . ~~·c!~Itz1 n~ ~~ ()ilhcopa~d,c ~.ur~e'Y• ~port~ !;ft~jcJ~'l>;at\d;~mnts•r• . ·.·...··· · •. ;'/!:i':id' :/ ::·, .·
:'

.''

;'/:.·',.-:--··.

274

193
&mm Ma!hur, MD,
ScottS. $qni/Qfr, M,D~
Galj 4 &ipct,)iD. .

Do11glor L Golfthon, M.D.
Brla!J

r. $iurQ, M.D.

tffluiloi'/. MMffn~ M.D.
IYtPIP~ K.·AnJtnr~;~; M.D.
DJd L. ~1!1"'-e. M.D.
1JarkA. Cun.tJil, M.D.

Ch{lfropM?' L.fn.- M.D.
Nl,oi~,P. Bull«~ M.l).
Pa-.d a. Sing~ }.ll).
NMl Sh'anll, MD.

Rtrtmolld M. CArf'Q/1, M.D• .Edoldltd F. tlrllfollr, M.D.
Dfmrlrl M. Jk()!Jomnln; D.O.

pro~lded;he services ~rd s!~~da;d of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act.
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··· /·:fl~ally, we s~roli~ly.dppose lh~ (bree~rop~salss~bmitted by Insurance cairle;s,Jhlrd-party
,
; )dmlniStrators, and, the North Carolina Hospl)al Assocla!fcin. The three proposals all· ·. .. .
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· Thank you f 0 r your coristdeiatl9n. If you have aliy questions, pleaje feel free to ccintact me our
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.
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Finally, vi_e s\r)inglyop~~se th~ t~ree ~r~posal~ su~tnltted by Insurance carriers, third· party
·. , administrators, an.d the North Carolina Hospital Asiotlatlon ..The 'three proposals ail . . .
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provided theservlc~~ and.stahdard of care required bytheWorkers' Compensation Act.
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provided the servfces and stan<fard of care required by the Workers' compensation Act .
. Finally, we strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third,party
. administrators, and the North Carolina Hosplt0J.I\Ssoclatlon. The ihrae proposals all
• . i~commend asignificantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers' ·
.access to tlmelycarei · ·
·
· ·
· ·· ·
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·Fin~lly, We#rongjy oppose the three proposa)S ~~bmiUed by In Mance ,arrlers; third-party
oadmlnlstnitors,:and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three.P.roposals all . .
.. recoriimen(j a. slgnlflcantlyreduced fee schedule for ASCs, which V(ould llinlt lnjllred workers'·
access to till'\ Illy care. '
. . . . .

.

.

.

. .

Thank you your con~lderatJon. If you have any questions, please feel free to contal:t me our .
office at {919)467>4992.
·
·
· ·

for

Sincerely,
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportuqity to present comments in respon~e to possible rulemaking options
fqr the maximum allowable. amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this. letter In support of the proposal su.bmitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge P~ul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend ~ule 04 NCAC 10J .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
Judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCs prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result in
an access problem for Injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital ASsociation. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'

'

3B12 North Ehn str~et 1 Graonstuuo, NC 27455 I

U6.294.11)~3

'

I Fax 33"tU:94.8831 I www.gfoonsborospecla1ty,c:cun

'

288

207

GREENSBORO SPECIALTY SURGICAL CENTER

access to timely care and also fail to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
It is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed ln the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care in
the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these s.ervices. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take into consideration the shift of injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

~ i1'7W>p~Wftn,'1tnJ,"'
cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

3812. North Elm Street 1 Oroonsboro1 NC 27455 I 330.294.1833 I Fax 3!6.294,8931 1 www.grocnsborospoc.latty.com

289

208

~

c~~m
Triad· Foot
Center
HEALTH. p,
.t.

M'eotcAC
GROUP

artnenng 10r exceptional care.

\OU\1\\\IIIf;\1,/H'\I.LKL\\

\l.'llllllllll\l'l.lll'\1.11< ' "
\I \Tfl 1~.\\ K \I'\~ :t 1.\'1 It HI'\ I

(jJJhA.lll\ .-\ \t.\HIUJ/'\1
IUUUJlU{ ll'Cif\1.\\.IJI'\1,1,\lt.\~

October 10, 2016
Charlton l. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to possible
rulemaking options for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by
ambulatory surgical centers {"ASCs") in Workers' Compensation cases under North
Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act. Please accept this letter in support of the
proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, llC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016
to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103 specific to the fee
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services provided
by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation
fee scl1edules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating
regulations to establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission
failed to follow the required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake
County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
ORr!X"il!t)H(l tUTICI:'!'I

In response to the Court's order invalidating the Aprill, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs,
the Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102,
I!Janlwkl Pwk~\mna!C~:•ntt·r
2111-H: N<-1~" (;ar\!w1 Hn.1•l
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We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with
the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree
that alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to
be based solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
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In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being
conducted In ASCs prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1,
2015. Excluding the procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has
resulted and will continue to result In an access problem for Injured workers, which
violates the statutory requirement of ensuring Injured workers are provided the
services and standard of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third·
party administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three
proposals all recommend a slgnlftcantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which
would llmlt Injured workers' access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory
requirement that ASCs receive reasonable fees.
It Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all
procedures that were being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the
enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on Aprll1, 2015. By limiting Injured workers
access to care for all procedures that have been historically performed In the ASC
setting, workers will be forced to receive care In the higher-cost Inpatient hospital
setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory
requirement of the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law
requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that
Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care Intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for
providing these services. The three other proposals do not meet these
reqUirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of
Injured workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting,
therefore, under-estimating the c to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your

.

'"~'·' ."'"'

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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~ GREENSBORO
OPHTHALMOLOGY
ASSOCIATES l>A
October 10, 2015

Sara E. Stoneburner, M.D.
l. Frank Cashwell, Jr., M.D.
Edward M. H<:>llander, M.D.
Christine l. McCuen, M.D.
Michael C. Tanner, M.D.
Graham w. lyles, M.D.

Charlton L Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for tho opportunity to present comments In response to possible rulemaklng options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North c;arollna's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter In support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the prevlouslf declared lnvali·d Rule 04 NCAC 10.1
.0103 speclflc to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In Aprii201S, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCS, However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
·
In response to the court's order Invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 101 .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on dlnlcal
Judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCS.prlor to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule. on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
an access problem for Injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensur(ng
InJured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
. recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit Injured workers'
access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive

NORTH POINTE CORPORATE CENTEJ\ • 8 NORTH POINTE COURT • OlmONSBORO, N.C. 27408
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reasonable fees.
It Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prlor to the enactment of the Invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In
the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina Jaw requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to the workers' com pensa!lon system.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc: . Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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(latr R. Km-ma, M.D.
M.ltthfw A. \V...in~,,.,td, M.D.
Smn J\:lliyttl, M.D.
Knlo R. Ku:ma, M.D.
RoNrt l>.tn\llit, PA-C
f(;Jtlu:rlnc Hilliard, OT!Vt CHT
T!.!rrl Rnwl·md, OTRILC!f"f
G11rol l<inncman, 1rr, ATC
L~1111~ Inman, RN
$ul)ltty0f'fh:l Hand,

Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

Shouldtr & Upper Exnclulry

Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:

!.>.!t>up!'l(loual )njurfu

Fr&CillrC$

Mk:rn:lllf8Cif
El«ti\IJ~'ihtlng:

Ha11d &. Ann Rehabitlhlklll

Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to possible
rulemaking options for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by
ambulatory surgical centers {"ASCs") In Workers' COmpensation cases under North
Carolina's Workers' COmpensation Act. Please accept this letter In support of the
proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC {"SCA") on September 26, 2016 to
amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103 specific to the fee
schedule under North carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services provided by
ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
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In Aprll2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations
to establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow
the required process set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently,
the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order Invalidating the Aprlll, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs,
the Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .ot01, .0102,
and .0103.
We are In full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with
the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree
that alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site·of·servlce decisions to be
based solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling effldency.
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In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being
conducted in ASCs prior to the enactment of the invalid fee schedule on April 1,
2015. Excluding the procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted
and will continue to result In an access problem for Injured workers, which violates
the statutory requirement of ensuring injured workers are provided the services and
standard of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act.
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October 10, 2016
TO:

Page2

Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission

We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party administrators, and
the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all recommend a significantly reduced fee
schedule for ASCs, which would limit injured

I

workers• access to timely care and also fall to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive

I

reasonable fees.
it Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were being
conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1,
2015. By limiting InJured workers access to care for all procedures that have been historically performed
In the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In the higher-cost Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of the North
Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the
Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care
Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for
providing these services. The three other proposals do not meet these requirements.
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lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of injured workers from
the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, under-estimating the cost to the
workers' compensation system.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to possible rulemak/ng options
fort he maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") in Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter In support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA"j on September 26,2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are in full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates lor ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCs prior to the enactment of the invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result in
an access problem for injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided· the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule lor ASCs, which would limit injured workers'
access to timely care and also fail to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
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It is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed in the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care in
the higher-cost inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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James P. Aplington, M.D., F.AAO.S., F.A.C.S.
Ronald A. Gioffre, M.D., F.~.A.O.S., F.AC.S,
R. Andrew ColliM, M.D., F.A.A.O.S.
Jeffrey C. Beane, M.D., F.A.A.O.S.
Ktvin M. Supple, M.D., f.A.AO.S., CAQ.S.M.
Fr.v~k V. Afuls!o, M.D., f.A.A.O.S.
WiUiam M. Qamlg,lll, M.D., f.A.A.O.S., C.A.Q.s.H.
P~ul A Bednarz, M.D., f.AAO.S.
Steven R. Norris, M.D., f.A.A.O.S., C.A.Q.S.H.
Matthew 0. Olin, M.D., fAAO.S
Fted W. Ortmann, N,.M.O., f.A.A.O.S.
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October 10, 2016
Charlton L. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:

Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to possible rulemaking options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") In Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter In support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs}.
In April 2015, the industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 101 .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are in full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted In
ASCs prior to the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result In
an access problem for Injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Signature Place Ofrice: 3200 North line Avenue, Suite 200 • Greensborc, N.C. 27408·7602 • 336-545-5000 • fax 336·545-5020
Mailing Address: PO Box JBOOB • Greensboro, N.C. 27438·8008 :
Web Site: www.greensboroorthopaedlc.com
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injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by Insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit injured workers'
access to timely care and also fail to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
It is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting Injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed in the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care in
the higher-cost inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care Intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take Into consideration the shift of Injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient setting, therefore, underestimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your consideration.

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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October 10, 2016
Charlton l. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to possible rulemaklng options
for the maximum allowable amounts for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
("ASCs") in Workers' Compensation cases under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation
Act. Please accept this letter in support of the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on september 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 101
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation AC) for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in
the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August
9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
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In response to the Court's order invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for ASCs, the
Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are in full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs with the
reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully agree that alignment of
reimbursement schedules allows for s/te-of·service decisions to be based solely on clinical
judgment, quality outcomes, and scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SeA's proposal to cover procedures that were being conducted in
ASCs prior to the enact!Ylent of the invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. Excluding the
procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has resulted and will continue to result in
an access problem for Injured workers, which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
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We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-party
administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three proposals all
recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which would limit injured workers'
access to timely care and also fail to meet the statutory requirement that ASCs receive
reasonable fees.
It is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the enactment of the invalid fee
schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting injured workers access to care for all procedures that
have been historically performed in the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care in
the higher-cost inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory requirement of
the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North Carolina law requires that fee schedules
adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that Injured workers are provided the
standard of services and care intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers
are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take into consideration the shift of injured
workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital Inpatient setting, therefore, under-

estimating the cost to the workers' compensation system.
Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely, ,

Q~

Pet.!r G. Dalldorf, MD

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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Southeastern
Orthopaedic
Specialists

S

P.O. Box 14924
Greensboro, NC 27415
Guilford Orthopaedic and
Sports Medicine Center

October 10, 2016
Charlton l. Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

1915 Lendew Street
Guumsboro, NC 274tl8

Phone (336) 275-3325
FaK (336) 275-5346

Vincent E. Paul, MD
Frank J. Rowan, MD

Peter G. Dalldorf, MD
John l. Graves, MD
Mark L. Dumonskl, MD
Justin W. Chandler, MD
HaoWang,MD
Dominic W. McKinley, MD

Murphy- Wainer
Orthopedic Specialists
1130 N. Church Street
Grennsboro, NC 27.W1
Phone (336) 375-2300
Fax (336) 375-2314

Daniel F. Murphy, MD
Robert A. Wainer, MD
Joshua Landau, MD
Anna Voytek, MD
James S. Kramer, MD
T. Ryan Draper, DO

Piedmont Orthopedics
300 W. Norttlwood Street
Greensboro, NC 27401
Phon& (336) 275-0927

Fax

{336) 275-4834

Mark C. Yates, MD
Marcus V. Duda, MD
G. Scott Dean, MD
Christopher Y. Blackman, MD
James E. Nitka, MD
Fred K. Newton, MD
Michael J. Hilts, MD

The Sports Medicine and
Orthopaedics Center
201 E.. Wendover Avenue
Grermaboro, NC 27401
Phone (336) 275·6318
Fax
(336) 275-7240

John L. Rendall, MD
PeterW. Whitfield, MD
W. Dan Caffrey, MD
Stephen D. Lucey, MD
John 0. Hawltt, MD
Anna Voytek, MD
Shaili Dtweshwar, MD
Rf)becca S. Bassett, MD

Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to possible
rulemaking options forthe maximum allowable amounts for services provided by
ambulatory surgical centers ("ASCs") in Workers' Compensation cases under
North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act. Please accept this letter in
support ofthe proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, llC ("SCA") on
September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 101
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers'
Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers'
Compensation fee schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in
promulgating regulations to establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the industrial
Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in the Administrative
Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled invalid on August 9,
2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
In response to the Court's order invalidating the April 1, 2015 fee schedule for
ASCs, the Commission has requested proposals to amend Rule 04 NCAC 101
.0101, .0102, and .0103.
We are in full support of SCA's proposal to align reimbursement rates for ASCs
with the reimbursement rates set for hospital outpatient departments. We fully
agree that alignment of reimbursement schedules allows for site-of-service
decisions to be based solely on clinical judgment, quality outcomes, and
scheduling efficiency.
In addition, we fully support SCA's proposal to cover procedures that were being
conducted In ASCs prior to the enactment of the invalid fee schedule on Aprll1,
2015. Excluding the procedures that were previously performed at ASCs has
resulted and will continue to result in an access problem for injured workers,
which violates the statutory requirement of ensuring injured workers are
provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
We strongly oppose the three proposals submitted by insurance carriers, third-
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party administrators, and the North Carolina Hospital Association. The three
proposals all recommend a significantly reduced fee schedule for ASCs, which
would limit injured workers' access to timely care and also fail to meet the
statutory requirement that ASCs receive reasonable fees.
It Is also very significant that the other three proposals do not address all
procedures that were being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to
the enactment of the Invalid fee schedule on April 1, 2015. By limiting injured
workers access to care for all procedures that have been historically performed
in the ASC setting, workers will be forced to receive care In the higher-cost
Inpatient hospital setting.
The other three proposals are not cost effective and so do not meet statutory
requirement of the North Carolina Workers Compensation Act. North carolina
law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care
intended by the Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed
reasonable fees for providing these services. The three other proposals do not
meet these requirements.
Lastly, the analysis conducted by NCCI does not take into consideration the shift
of injured workers from the ASC setting to the more-costly hospital inpatient
setting, therefore, under-estimating the cost to the workers' compensation
system.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

n

Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
The Honorable Charlton Allen, Chairman
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N Salisbury St.
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen and Commissioners:
Pursuant to the North Carolina Industrial Commission's ("Commission") November 18,2015 Notice of
Public Comment Meeting, the North Carolina Hospital Association ("NCHA ') respectfully submits the
following information to supplement and further elaborate on the comments that we made during the
hearing:
The Industrial Commission has proposed a temporary rule entitled Rule 04 NCAC 101.0103 Fees for
Institutional Services that was submitted to the North Carolina Office of Administrative Hearings. The
temporary rule is pursuant toN. C. General Statute§ 150B-2l.l(a)(5). The effects of the August 9,
2016 decision in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission, No. 16-CVS0060 (Wake County) necessitate the expedited implementation of the temporary rule. Specifically,
NCHA will be commenting on Paragraphs g and has set forth in the proposed temporary rule and
offering a detailed reimbursement proposal to address the issues related to Paragraph h.

Fees for Institutional Services Provided Ambulatory Surgical Centers- Paragraph G
NCHA agrees that the maximum allowable amounts for institutional services provided by ambulatory
surgical centers ("ASCs") should be based on the Medicare ASC reimbursement amount determined by
applying the most recently adopted and effective Medicare Payment System Policies for Services
Furnished in Ambulatory Surgical Centers and Outpatient Prospective System reimbursement formula
and factors as published mmually in the Federal Register. We also support the Commission's decision
to adopt the same rule that it had adopted earlier for the payment of services rendered in an ASC.
Specifically, we support that the maximum reimbursement rate for institutional services provided by
ASCs should be 200 percent of the Medicare ASC facility-specific amount. This approach will provide
fair and reasonable reimbursement for services rendered by ASCs, is consistent with the reimbursement
approach used for hospital outpatient services, will protect employers and insurers from the risks
associated with a percentage of charge reimbursement methodology by moving to a prospective
payments system, and will result in substantial savings for employers and insurers when compared to the
previous reimbursement methodology.
As indicated in previous comment letters, NCHA does not support a rate lower than 200% of the
applicable Medicare fee schedule for outpatient services rendered by hospitals and free-standing
ambulatory surgery centers. Medicare payments for outpatient services are low when compared to the
costs of providing those services, thus, a 2x multiplier is needed to provide adequate reimbursement and
ensure appropriate access to care. Rates lower that 200% of the applicable Medicare fee schedule will
likely create access problems. It is imperative that the Commission provide adequate reimbursement
rates to providers to ensure that injured workers receive the services and standard of care required by the
Workers' Compensation Act.

PO Box 4449 Cary, NC 27519·44491 Phone: 919-677-2400 Fax: 919-677·42001 Web: www.nch

304

.lllllllilf(~Up

IJI

North Carolina Hospital Association
Serving North Carolina's Hospitals & Health Systems

During the November 18, 2016 public hearing, there were some comments questioning why Medicare
rates for outpatient services rendered in a hospital are higher than rates for services rendered by an
ambulatory surgery center. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has acknowledged
that hospitals have greater costs complying with a more comprehensive scope of licensing, accreditation
and other regulatory requirements than other providers and thus, when services are furnished in a
hospital setting, total Medicare payments (made to the hospital and the professional combined) typically
exceeds the Medicare payment made for the same service at other provider settings. CMS recognized
that hospitals incur higher overhead costs because they maintain the capability to furnish services 24
hours a day and 7 days per week, furnish services to higher acuity patients than those who receive
services in other provider settings, and have additional legal obligations such as complying with the
Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA). Other justifications supporting the
differences in payment are presented below:
Patients who are too sick for physician offices or too medically complex for ASCs are treated in
the hospital outpatient department (HOPD). Physicians refer more complex patients to HOPDs
for safety reasons, as hospitals are better equipped to handle complications and emergencies. As
such, compared to other provider settings, HOPDs treat patients who are suffering from more
severe chronic conditions and generally have higher prior utilization of hospitals and emergency
departments.
Unlike physician offices and ASCs, hospitals play a unique and critical role in the communities
they serve by providing a wide range of acute-care and diagnostic services, supporting public
health needs, and offering many other services that promote the health and well-being of the
community. By contrast, many physicians and ASCs serve a limited number of Medicaid and
charity care patients. In addition, hospitals provide emergency standby services such as:
24/7 Access to Care: Providing health care services, including specialized resources, 24
hours a day, seven days a week (24/7), 365 days a year.
The Safety Net: Caring for all patients who seek emergency care regardless of ability to
pay.
Disaster Readiness and Response: Ensuring that staff and facilities are prepared to care
for victims oflarge-scale accidents, natural disasters, epidemics and terrorist actions.
The added costs of operating hospital services are substantial. There are additional costs for
infrastructure, Joint Commission requirements, life-safety codes and other regulatory
requirements, not to mention the additional overhead cost of being prepared to meet the
community's needs on a 24/7 basis. While these expenses increase the cost in hospital settings,
they also ensure that safety and quality of the services delivered and 24/7 access.
Fees for Institutional Services Provided Ambulatory Surgical Centers- Paragraph H
The language proposed by the Industrial Commission as set forth in 04 NCAC 10J.0103.h is presented
below:
Paragraph h- Notwithstanding Paragraph (g) of this rule, if surgical procedures listed in
PO Box 4449 Cary, NC 27519-44491 Phone: 919-677-2400 Fax: 919-677-42001 Web: www.ncha.org
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Addendum EE (Surgical Procedures Excluded from Payment in ASCs for CY 2017) to the most
recently adopted and effective Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and Ambulatory
Surgical Center Payment Systems as published in the Federal Register, or its successors, are
provided at ASCs, they shall be reimbursed with the maximum amount being the usual,
customary, and reasonable charge for the service or treatment rendered.
NCHA does not support the provisions set forth in Paragraph h as presented which appear to allow
ASCs to perform other surgical procedures not included on the Covered List of ASC Surgical
Procedures for CY 2017 and receive usual, customary, and reasonable charges for these surgical
procedures. We do not believe that ASCs should be allowed to perfotm surgical procedures that are not
appropriate for hospital outpatient settings and receive reimbursement that could potentially be far
greater than the reimbursement amounts received by hospitals. In addition, we do not feel it is
appropriate that ASC reimbursement for these procedures would not include the bundling logic applied
to hospitals outpatient procedures through the Medicare APC fee schedule. We believe that there is a
true hierarchy related to the appropriate setting for most surgical procedures (e.g., physician office, ASC
with limited 24 hour capabilities, hospital outpatient with inpatient suppott, and hospital inpatient). We
are willing to support that ASCs can perform the same procedures as set forth on the Medicare Hospital
Outpatient Prospective Payment System (HOPPS) (HOPPS) list, although many of these procedures are
currently excluded from the Covered List of ASC Surgical Procedures, provided that these procedures
are I) clinically appropriate for the ASC setting, 2) are payable to an ASC only if payment is allowed
under Medicare's status indicators found for the same code in Addendum B of the HOPPS, and 3)
reimbursed at a bundled rate comparable to 200% of the ASC fee schedule.
During the November 18, 2016 public hearing, NCHA presented a detailed, common sense approach to
developing an appropriate fee schedule, which would be comparable to 200% of the Medicare ASC fee
schedule, for those procedures which are payable under the Medicare HOPPS fee schedule but are not
currently listed on the Covered List of ASC Surgical Procedures for CY 2017. We suggested that
Medicare rates for the covered list of ASC Surgical Procedures be compared to the Medicare rates for
the covered list of hospital outpatient surgical procedures to ascertain the percentage relationship
between the two fee schedules. This percentage comparison could be calculated on a code specific basis
or in aggregate. We recommend that the percentage comparison be calculated in aggregate in order to
simply the claim processing/payment process for payers. The resultant percentage (s) would then be
applied to 200% of the Medicare HOPPS fee schedule of each applicable surgical code not included on
the ASC Covered List to determine the maximum reimbursable ASC rate. This approach would result
in ASCs receiving a consistent reimbursement rate at approximately 200% of Medicare ASC fee
schedule and would protect payers from having to negotiate unbundled UCR amounts that could in
essence be higher than what they are paying hospitals for the same outpatient surgery.
NCHA asked Optum to prepare an assessment comparing the Medicare payments and relative weights
for hospitals and ASC from the 2017 final rule in an effort to calculate the aggregate percentage
recommended above. Optum excluded all the items that are bundled under the Medicare fee schedules
for hospitals and ASCs. In addition, Optum did not include the supplemental ASC services list which
primarily includes radiology codes. Opium's comparative assessment is attached as Exhibit I. Based on
Optum's assessment, NCHA recommends that the Commission use 55.42% in developing an
appropriate ASC fee schedule for those procedures that are payable under the HOPPS fee schedule but
are not currently included on the Covered List of ASC Surgical Procedures for CY 2017. NCHA
recommends that the resultant ASC fee schedule be developed as follows:
PO Box 4449 Cary, NC 27519-44491 Phone: 919-677-2400 Fax: 919-677-42001 Web: www.ncha.org
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(HOPPS Procedure Payment Rate times 55.42%) times 200% = ASC Payment Rate which
should be adjusted by the ASC's specific Medicare wage index
This same calculation can be achieved by multiplying the HOPPS Procedure Payment Rate by
II 0.84% and then adjusting the results by the ASC's specific Medicare wage index.
An example of this calculation is presented below:
HOPPS Procedure Payment Rate- $100
ASC Procedure Payment Rate- (($100 times 55.42%) times 200%) = $100.84 or 110.84% of
HOPPS Procedure Payment Rate
During the November 18,2016 public hearing, the Commissioners asked for suggested language that
could be used to reflect this recommended approach. NCHA recommends that the Commission adopt
the following language for paragraph h:
h) Notwithstanding Paragraph (g) of this Rule, if surgical procedures listed in Addendum EE
(Surgical Procedures Excluded from Payment in ASCs for CY 20 17) to the most recently
adopted and effective Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment and Ambulatory Surgical Center
Payment Systems as published in the Federal Register, or its successors, are provided at ASCs,
they shall be reimbursed with a maximum reimbursement rate of 110.84% of the Medicare
Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System for the procedure rendered adjusted by the
ASC's specific Medicare wage index provided that the procedure is clinically appropriate for the
ASC setting and payment is allowed under Medicare's status indicators found for the same code
in Addendum B of the Medicare Hospital Outpatient Prospective Payment System.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment. Please feel free to contact me if you have any additional
questions.
Sincerely,

Ronald G. Cook
Finance and Managed Care Consultant
North Carolina Hospital Association
(919) 677-4225
rcook@ncha.org
cc. Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
Linwood Jones

PO Box 4449 Cary, NC 27519-4449 IPhone: 919-677-2400 Fax: 919-677-42001 Web: www.ncha.org
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SURGICAL CARE AFFILIATES' COMMENTS
IN RESPONSE TO THE NORTH CAROLINA INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
NOTICE OF TEMPORARY RULEMAKING FOR WORKERS' COMPENSATION
MEDICAL FEE SCHEDULE 04 NCAC lOJ .0103

November 29, 2016

To:

North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

Via:

Kendall Bourdon
IC Rulemaking Coordinator
Delivered via email to kendall.bourdon@ic.nc.gov

Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Pursuant to the North Carolina Industrial Commission's ("Commission") October 18,
2016 Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers' Compensation Medical Fee Schedule
amending 04 NCAC !OJ .0103, Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") respectfully submits the
following comments in response to the proposed temporary rule published by the Commission
addressing fees for ambulatory surgical center ("ASC") services in workers' compensation cases.
SCA manages seven ASCs in North Carolina and has an ownership interest in each of
these centers through wholly-owned subsidiary corporations (hereinafter "SCA ambulatory
surgical centers"). The SCA ambulatory surgical centers are located throughout North Carolina
and include Blue Ridge Day Surgery in Raleigh, Charlotte Surgery Center, Fayetteville
Ambulatory Surgical Center, Greensboro Specialty Surgery Center, Surgical Center of
Greensboro, The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas in Southern Pines, and Eastern Regional
Surgical Center in Wilson.
SCA and the ASCs in North Carolina that support SCA's proposal submitted to the
Industrial Commission on September 26,2016 represent the majority of ASCs in North Carolina
that provide surgical services to injured workers covered by the Workers' Compensation Act.
SCA opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following reasons:
•

The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina
statutory requirements.

•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very
harmful to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.
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THE COMMISSION'S PROPOSED TEMPORARY RULE IS NOT COST EFFECTIVE
AND DOES NOT MEET NORTH CAROLINA STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate
to ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission also is required to ensure that medical costs are adequately
contained. N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26(a). The Commission's proposed temporary rule does not
meet these requirements.
The Proposed Fee Schedule Does Not Cover All ASC Procedures
The Commission's proposed temporary rule does not set a fee schedule for all procedures
that can be performed in ASCs. Instead, for those surgical procedures that are not included in
the Medicare ASC fee schedule, the proposed temporary rule states that those procedures are
required to be reimbursed "with the maximum amount being the usual, customary and reasonable
charge." Workers' Compensation Research Institute ("WCRI") recently reported that "[t]he
administration of the usual, customary, and reasonable charges as a basis for reimbursement rates
requires substantial resources on the part of the state agencies, both for development of a
sufficient and accurate database of changes or fees in the local communities and for timely
updates to the database to capture changes in the prevailing charges or reimbursements and in the
utilization of new procedures."' Relying upon a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR")
methodology will create great uncertainty and a likelihood that there will be numerous disputes
that will need to be resolved by the Commission and the courts.
At a public hearing held on November 18,2016, speakers representing the North
Carolina Hospital Association and a group of business and trade associations also commented
that the use ofUCR to determine the amount that will be paid to ASCs for surgical procedures
not covered by the Medicare ASC fee schedule was problematic. Reference was made to the
numerous disputes that would arise that would need to be resolved by the Industrial Commission
and the substantial resources that would be necessary.
This uncertainty of whether and in what amount ASCs will be reimbursed for surgical
procedures not covered by Medicare will create access issues and will result in payers (including
self-insured employers) having to pay for these procedures at a higher hospital inpatient charge.
By crafting a fee schedule that uses only the Medicare fee schedule as its foundation, the
proposed rule does not recognize that a wide variety of procedures can be performed safely and
cost-effectively on the working-age population. The workers' compensation population is
typically younger and healthier than the Medicare population, meaning that there are additional
procedures that can be performed safely and effectively with a shorter stay. As noted by the
National Council on Compensation Insurance ("NCCI"): "WC claimants have very different
demographics, medical conditions, and priorities than retirees. It would be a mistake to blindly

1

WCRI, Designing Workers' Compensation Medical Fee Schedules (20 16).
2
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rely on Medicare rates as perfect measures of resources appropriate to treat work-related
injuries."2
Additionally, for Medicare patients nationwide, covered surgical procedures include
"surgical procedures ... for which standard medical practice dictates that the beneficiary would
not typically be expected to require active medical monitoring and care at midnight following the
procedure." 3 For non-Medicare patients in North Carolina, ASCs are permitted to keep patients
for up to 24 hours 4 This means a non-Medicare patient can stay in the facility overnight,
provided they are released within the specified timeframe. 5 The ability to keep workers'
compensation and commercial patients in an ASC overnight broadens the list of procedures that
can be performed safely and effectively in the ASC setting.
The ASC fee schedule proposed by the Commission fails to take all of these factors into
consideration.
The Failure to Propose a Fee Schedule Covering All
Surgical Procedures Results in Greater Costs to the System
The failure to include all procedures that can be safely performed on an outpatient basis
results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly impactful in the context of workers'
compensation injuries are a number of spine codes, many of which are not covered under the
Medicare ASC fee schedule but are commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age
patients. Total joint replacements (knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the
inpatient setting and these cases are routinely performed on patients - especially young and
otherwise healthy patients like many injured workers - in the ASC setting.
To meet the goals of the Workers' Compensation Act, the Commission should be
proposing a fee schedule that promotes having these procedures performed in ASCs instead of in
a more costly inpatient setting. The proposed fee schedule will continue to encourage hospitals
to provide these surgical procedures in the highest cost setting.
When confronted with an injured worker who needs a procedure not paid for under
Medicare's HOPD payment methodology, a hospital can choose to perform the procedure in its
inpatient setting. The result is a much higher cost to the system for an inpatient stay and for the
procedure. Providing certainty in the reimbursement to ASCs for procedures like total joint
replacements that are not on the Medicare ASC list would allow the injured worker's doctor to
make the decision for the patient about the best site of service for these procedures.
Workers' compensation patients can be prioritized in an ASC setting and are often seen
more quickly than they are in a hospital setting. This, combined with the ASC industry's low
infection rates and high quality of care, allows for a rapid return to work, resulting in savings to
2

NCCI, Effectiveness of Workers Compensation Fee Schedules- A Closer Look (Feb. II, 2009).
42 C.F.R. § 416.166(b).
4
N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 131E-176(1b).
5
Federal regulations allow for stays up to 24 hours in ASCs. See 42 C.F.R. § 416.2.
3

3
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the system for short-term disability expenses beyond the savings proposed under the fee
schedule.
The impact of not having a fee schedule that includes all procedures can be shown by the
drop in workers' compensation cases performed in ASCs since April2015 when the invalid fee
schedule began being used. SCA's Workers' Compensation cases declined by 4.2% between
April!, 2015 and March 31,2016. An NCCI analysis of case volume recently obtained by SCA
shows a decline in volume of workers' compensation cases by all North Carolina ASCs in 2015
6
of8.2%.
The workers' compensation system benefits when ASCs are able to shift higher acuity
cases out of the inpatient environment into a lower cost, outpatient setting. Even though the
proposed rule allows for payment for codes that do not have a payment assigned within Medicare
fee schedule, without a predictable, reasonable rate for these procedures identified in advance of
the case, ASCs cannot determine if they are able to cover the costs of taking on the case and
open themselves up to tremendous risk for high cost procedures. The result will likely be that
ASCs will refuse to take most of the procedures that are not on the Medicare fee schedule.
Therefore, the same procedures will cost more for insurance carriers and self-insured employers.
SCA's Proposed Fee Schedule Meets the
Requirements of the Workers' Compensation Act
SCA's proposed ASC fee schedule submitted to the Commission on September 26,2016
would align payments for ambulatory surgical procedures with the Medicare HOPD fee schedule
while at the same time acknowledging that Medicare has not created an allowance for certain
procedures that are routinely and safely provided to non-Medicare patients in the ASC setting.
As such, SCA proposed a rate for these services that is consistent with the resources and time
involved in providing such procedures. In order to limit the uncertainty of the system's exposure
on reimbursement, charge master increases would be limited to 0% increase for these procedure
codes for the first 3 years, or a revenue neutral adjustment will be applied to the percent of
charge paid. SCA's proposal will provide the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act, will reimburse ASCs reasonable fees for providing services, and
will ensure that medical costs are adequately contained. See N.C. Gen. Stat. § 97-26(a).
In contrast to the fee schedule proposed by SCA, which covers all procedures that can be
safely performed in ASC, a representative of the North Carolina Hospital Association suggested
at the public hearing that those surgical procedures not covered under the Medicare ASC fee
schedule be reimbursed at some percentage of the hospital outpatient ("HOPD") Medicare fee
schedule. Although this methodology makes sense for those procedures that are on the HOPD
Medicare fee schedule and is actually consistent with SCA's prior proposal, the Hospital
Association's proposal would not address the procedures not on the Medicare HOPD fee
schedule. That is because certain procedures, such as total joint replacements, are increasingly
being done in ASCs but are not covered under the HOPD Medicare fee schedule.

6

NCCI data include three months of payment not under the invalid fee schedule.
4
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SCA's proposed fee schedule provides sufficient reimbursement so that ASCs can
recover the cost of the implants involved in some surgical procedures. The proposed temporary
rule does not adequately reimburse ASCs so that these costs can be recovered and also does not
separately reimburse for implants. Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013,
ASCs were being paid for implants at no greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The failure to
separately reimburse for implants results in even less reimbursement to ASCs and reduces the
incentive to provide services involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to
recover higher implant costs by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those
surgical procedures.
Payment for treating injured workers should be equivalent between the two outpatient
settings for equivalent procedures. When an injured worker requiring surgery visits an ASC, he
or she receives the same care as he or she would in a hospital environment. For these cases, the
direct costs are equivalent- implant and supply costs, nursing staff, anesthesia costs,
etc. Payment for surgery for the same patient, receiving the same treatment- in many cases
even performed by the same surgeon - should not be differentiated based on factors and costs
unrelated to the workers' compensation system and should be the same regardless oflocation.
Other states are recognizing the importance of addressing the two sites using the same
methodology in setting their medical fee schedules. Alaska and Connecticut, two of the most
recent states that enacted legislation related to workers' compensation medical fee schedule
reforms specific to ambulatory surgical centers, used the HOPD fee schedule. In 2014, the
Medical Services Review Committee in Alaska was directed to create a medical fee schedule
based on Medicare-based conversion factors. The new schedule became effective December I,
2015. The Medical Services Review Committee determined that HOPDs and ASCs should be
reimbursed as a percent ofthe Medicare HOPD fee schedule. 7 Similarly, effective April!, 2015,
the Connecticut Workers' Compensation Commission established a medical fee schedule for
ASCs based on the Medicare HOPD fee schedule. 8
As noted by the Commission, discrepancies in payments between ASCs and HOPDs
would "potentially diminish the pool of doctors available to treat injured employees, and reduce
the quality and timeliness of care." The Commission further warned: "That impact will likely
be most severely realized in our State's more rural areas, where the quality and availability of
effective treatment is already a greater concem." 9 SCA agrees with the Commission that the
only way to ensure injured workers access to high-quality, effective care is to create parity
between the ASC and HOPD medical fee schedules.

7

H.B. 316, Chapter 63 SLA 14 (Alaska 2014).
S.B. 61, Public Act No. 14-167 (Conn. 2014).
9
N.C. Indus Comm'n's Mem. of L. in Support of Mot. to Stay, Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v.
NC. Indus. Comm 'n, No. 16-CVS-0060 (Wake Cty. Super. Ct. Aug. 17, 2016).
8
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THE REDUCTION IN RATES TO 200% OF THE MEDICARE ASC FEE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED WOULD BE VERY HARMFUL TO THE SYSTEM
Reducing the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare would have an even greater
negative affect on workers' access to surgical care. As noted by NCCI: "The Medicare fee
schedule is very useful as a starting point for the design ofWC medical fee schedules, but has
notable shortcomings for WC, including too little emphasis on return to function and too little
sensitivity to cost differences among states." 10 WCRI noted that "[i]fworkers' compensation fee
schedule rates are higher than Medicare, this does not necessarily mean that the workers'
compensation rates are high enough to avoid access-to-care issues for injured workers. The latter
limitation arises because providers' decisions about which patients to see are influenced in part
by reimbursement rates from alternative payers. If workers' compensation pays higher than
Medicare but lower than commercial insurers, there still might be legitimate concerns about
accessl 1
Data collected by WCRI demonstrated that common outpatient surgeries done in North
Carolina ASCs was 45% lower than in most states. 12 Additionally, NC injured workers reported
that they had "big problems getting the primary provider that they wanted." 13 Significantly
reducing the payments to ASCs for treating injured workers could exacerbate injured workers'
access to surgical care in ASCs.
NC Had Lower % Of Common Outpatient
Surgeries Done In ASCs Than Many States

Problems Getting Desired Primary Provider:
NC In Higher Group Of Study States

In Texas, following drastic cuts in the fee schedule, the number of physicians willing to
treat all work-related injuries dramatically declined from 2002 to 2004. Specifically, "[t]hree
quarters (77%) of orthopedic surgeons in Texas now limit workers compensation cases,
dramatically up from (29%) two years ago. Similar declines in access have occurred for general
surgeons and other surgical specialists." 14
10

NCCI, Effectiveness of Workers Compensation Fee Schedules- A Closer Look( 2009).
"WCRI, Designing Workers' Compensation Medical Fee Schedules (June 2012).
12
WCRI, CompscoperM Medical Benchmarks for North Carolina, 17th ed. (Oct. 2016).
13 !d..
14
Texas Medical Association, Workers' Compensation Special Report - 2004 Survey of Texas
Physicians.

6

313

Hawaii experienced similar access issues when its workers' compensation fee schedule
reimbursements were inadequate. As noted in a comprehensive review conducted by the state:
While the impact of the change in the medical fee schedule may not have reached
overwhelming proportions, it appears to have affected the treatment of injuries in
workers' compensation cases. Health care providers are struggling with a duty to
heal, while juggling fiscal responsibilities that will afford them to stay in business
to continue to practice medicine. This trend of turning away workers'
compensation patients should be given attention before it becomes critical. The
medical fee schedule definitely appears to have had a negative impact on an
injured employee's access to specialty care and diminished access to more
experienced health care providers. 15
Workers' compensation medical cost variation is not solely driven by the medical fee
schedule. As noted by the National Academy of Social Insurance:
the tremendous interstate variation in the share of total benefits going to medical
care reflects between-state differences in: average weekly wages; the nature and
severity of work-related injuries; the quantity and prices of medical services
provided to injured workers; and the dollar value of cash benefits (driven by
factors such as benefit replacement rates, maximum and minimum weekly
benefits, the waiting period, and duration of TTD benefits). If, therefore, changes
to the workers' compensation law in a given state reduce the dollar value of cash
benefits, but medical benefits are stable, the share of benefits accounted for by
16
medical care increases.
Additional factors such as strong employment growth also increase medical benefits
since more employed workers will be covered under workers' compensation.

THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION DOES NOT HAVE STATUTORY AUTHORITY
TO ADOPT A TEMPORARY RULE
In the Commission's notice of its intent to adopt a temporary rule, the Commission states
that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission. However,
Judge Ridgeway's decision does not provide a basis for adopting a temporary rule and bypassing
the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act.

15

Hawaii Legislative Reference Bureau State Capitol, The Medical Fee Schedule Under the
Workers' Compensation Law.
16
National Academy of Social Insurance, Workers' Compensation: Benefits, Coverage, and
Costs (2014).
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N.C. Gen. Stat. § 150B-12.1 allows an agency to adopt a temporary rule only under very
limited circumstances. A court order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court
order requires the immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in
Judge Ridgeway's decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Instead, in setting
aside the invalid ASC fee schedule, Judge Ridgeway's decision clearly states that the fee
schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.

CONCLUSION
For the reasons set forth above, SCA opposes the proposed temporary rule. SCA
recommends that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee schedule
recommendation in SCA's September proposal, which is consistent with North Carolina
statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in ASCs, and results in
substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North Carolina.
Respectfully submitted this 29th day ofNovember 2016.

Kelli Collins, Vice President Operations
Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
3820 North Elm Street #102
Greensboro, NC 27455
(336) 854-1663 office
(336) 202-6681 mobile
(866) 367-3168 fax
kelli.collins@scasurgery.com
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
· industrial Commission's {Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaklng for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC lOJ .0103.
Matthews Surgery Center, LLC supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC {"SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC
lOJ .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Matthews Surgery Center, LLC opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the
following reasons:
• The temporary rule Is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There Is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care Intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the Implementation of the Invalid
fee schedule on April 1, 2015.
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for Injured workers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than Invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost Implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to Include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
lmpactful In the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed In the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only In the Inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many Injured workers -In the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and Increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason Is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway In Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth In the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. Acourt
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking If that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That Is simply not the case. There Is nothing In Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted In 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Matthews Surgery Center, LLC opposes the proposed
temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission Initiate permanent rulemaklng with
the proposed fee schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which Is
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consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed in ASCs, and results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation
system In North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.

13Q.."G~ Co\~ ~:ll
C'->t:O c:i1W b(l>.{bl}~INI\
cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 2.8, 2.016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
·Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission} Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter In
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Mallard Creek Surgery Center supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
llC ("SCA"} on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC
10J .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs}.
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, Iii promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Mallard Creek Surgery Center opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the
following reasons:
• The temporary rule Is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction In rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the invalid
fee schedule on Aprill, 2015.
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for Injured workers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating In
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective In 2013, Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than Invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for Implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
Involving high-cost Implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost Inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to Include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results In a significant cost to the system. Particularly
lmpactful In the context of workers' compensation Injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed In the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hlp, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only In the Inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many Injured workers -In the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and Increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason Is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the reqUirements for permanent rulemaklng set forth In the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. Acourt
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking If that court order requires the
Immediate adoption of a rule. That Is simply not the case. There Is nothing In Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted In 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Mallard Creek Surgery Center opposes the proposed
temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rule making with
the proposed fee schedule recommendation In SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is
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consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed In ASCs, and results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation
system In North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.

BQ.~ u~ Co~

cc:

'Nii)

Kendall Bo~rdon
C'(O ()Q;'(l~M.N2.0l.-\l'lfl
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolhia lndlistrlai.Cornrnlsslon
430.N. Salisbury Street

ltillelgh, NC 27603
P¢ar Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to.preselit comrn~nts ln r~sponse'to tlw North Carolina .Industrial
Cornrnlsslon's (Cqmmlsslon) NotiCe of Temporary Rulernaktng for Workers' Compensation
Medical Fee Scbed\ll.e 04 NcAC '.J,()J .0103. Please accept this. letter In opposition to the
commission's October 18, 2()1~ notice of proposed temporary ruleto.arnen.d 04 NCAC10J .0~03.
HollY, Springs Surgery center, tLCsupports, the proposalsubrnltted by Surgical Care Affiliates, Llt
("SCA11) on September 26; 2016 to amend the previously declared lilv~lid Rule 04 NCAC.10J,Q103
specific to the fee schedule under North carolina's. Wqr~ers! .Compensation Act for services
provided by ambulatory surgiCal eenW$ (ASCs).
in.April4015, the Industrial Commission established newWor~ers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physlclans,ai\d Ascs.However1 In promUlgating retl\lfatlons to establish a new fee
scheclule.forASCs, the industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth In the
Adrnlnlstratlve Procedure A.ct. consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9,
20;1.6 by W~ke County .S~perior eourtJudge PaUl Ridgeway:
Holly Springs Surgery Center, LLC opposes the Commlssloh's Proposed Temporary Rule. forthe
following reasons:
' The. temporary rule is not ~ost ef(ectlve and does. not meet Noith Caroilna statlltory
requirements.
• The.redoctlonln rat(ls to 20()% ofiV!edlcare A5Cfee schedule would be very harmful to
thlrwotkers' cornpensatlorl system.
• There IS oo statutqry authorityfor adopting a temporaryrule.
North Carolina .law requires th~t fe¢ schedl,lles agopt~d ~y the Commission be adequate to
ensure that Injured workers <.\te provided the st~nd~rd of services and care Intended by the.
Wqrk!lrs' Compensation Act and that provldernre reimbursed reasonable fees fOr providing
~~ese ~~;~rvtces. The Commission's proposed rule do~s not1l4dr~ss all proceduresthatwere being
comlucted in'am[!ulatory surgefY centers priorto the lrnplementafion oHhe Invalid fee schedule
on AprU 1, 2015.

600VIIIageWalk Drive, Holly Springs, j'JC 27540 P-919-762-3040
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee.s.chedule to 200% Of ASC Medlcqre Md excludes
procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has r~strlcted.andwlll continue to restrict
access for Injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating ln. North Carolina. Limiting
access toASCs violates the statutory requirement of'ensurln& injured workers are provided the
services and standard of care reqUired by the Workers' Compensation Att.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 20l3iimplants are reimbursed atno greater
tha,n invoice cost pl11s 28%. The proposed temporary rule ·does. not separately reimburse for
implants. The failure to separ~tely relmourse for Implants results In even lower reimbursement
to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services Involving high-cost Implants. In
contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs llY shifting patients to the higheHost
Inpatient setting for those surgical proGedutes,
The failure of the l\lledkare ASC fee schedule to lnciQde all proGedures that can b.e spfeJy
performed on an outpatient basis re~~Hts In a slgnlfJcantco~ttothe,system. Particularly lmpactful
In the context of workers1 compensation Jn)urles are a numbet of spine !Jtocedures, many of
wHich are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule bUt'are commonly performed In the,
ASC settlngon workh'lll-age patients. Total joint replacemehts.(knee, hlp, :and shoulder) also <!te
paid by Medicare only In the h\patlerit setting, and. these cases are routinely performed on
patients~ especially young and otherwise healthy patients like man\flnjtired workers -In the
ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, cu$tomary, and reasonab.le ("UCR") methodology for
addressing ttJ.ese types of procedures do.es not address the gap· that the Medicare ASC fee
sch!ldule creates. Ali of the sta.keholders who presented at the N0veml)er :1,8, 2016 public
liearlng ~greed that the UCR rMthodology woul~ '~reate more uncertainty to the system and
lncreas.e the. ournber offee disputes that would have to be resolved by the Commission.
Lastly, the Commission' has no basi~ for promulgatlnga temporary rule. TIH\ Commission states
that the reason .is the recent court order entered. by Wake Cbilhty SUperior Court Judge Paul
RidgeWay In Surglco/ Cote AJ/lilates1 LLC v. North Carolina lndllstiiol Commission. Judge
Ridgeway's DeciSion d.oes. hot reqUire the adoption of a t~mpor:ary rule and the bypass of the
requirements for permanent rulemaklng set forth In thi! Administrative ProcedurE! Mt. An
agency may adppt ;~ temporary nile only under very llrnlted circulilstatices. A.court order can
only be'th.e !lasls.fo(t!lrnPorary ru!emaklng lfthat court orcler requires the immediate adoption
of a rule, That is simply nQUhll ca.se. There Is 11ot~inglnJudge Ridgeway's Decision that requires
th~ adoptlpn ofa temporarv.rule. Judge Ridgeway's Decision clearly states that.the fee schedule
adopted ln2013.cotitJnu!)s !o be effective.
For .the re.asons set for~h ~~ova, Jtoliy Spring~ Surgery Cent~r, ~tc oppo~es the proposed
temj)Qr<ltY tllle. W~ recl'>mrne!l~ that tM commlsslon Initiate Perman1lnt rulemaklng wl.th'the
proposed fee schedolidecothmehda.tlon. I~ SCA's Sept¢mber 26, 'Z016 proposal, Which Is
collslstentWith North Caroll.na statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be
600 Village Walk Drive, Holly Springs, Nt 2.7540 p;gi9-762:3040
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performed In ASCs, and resul.ts In substantial savings to the workers' Compensation system in
North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.

Sinc~r,El~y, -~
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David Orskey
Admln.lstrator
cc:

U

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016!
;

North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury StrJet
Raleigh, NC 27603 '
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the ;opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Meqical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept tills letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC.10J ,0103.
Blue Ridge Surgery 'Center supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016. to. amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to th'e fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the: Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hos~itals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new f~e schedul.e f(lr ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure, Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled' invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
·
Blue Ridge surgery; Center Opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the
following reasons:
• The temporary rule Is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
• The reduction in rates to 100% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.
• There)s no statutory authority for.adopting a temporary rule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commissioh be adequate to
ensure thatinjurediw0rkers ,are provided the standard of .services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. Th~ Commls.sion's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted ln. ambul;ltory surgery centers prior to the Implementation ol the invalid
fee schedule on Ap~ill, 20l.S.

2308 Wosv•ll Court

I Raleigh, NC 27601 I m~.7S1.4$1l I Fax 919.781,062$ I www.scasur~erycom
; I

'

j

'

/

'

325

BLUE RIDGE SURGERY CENTER
~n

MfiliFJte- of sc:A,

The proposed temJorary rule reduces the fee schedule to .200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedure$ that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict ~ccess for injured workers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating in
North Carolina. LirPiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are: provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee ~chedule that became effective In 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than involc~ cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for impl~nts. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimburseme'nt to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-tost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the. Medicare ASC fee schedule to Include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an o~tpotient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, m<~ny qf which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly perform~d in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacem~nts
(knee, hip, and shoylder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young ahd otherwise healthy patients
like many Injured workers~ in the ASCsetting.
The propose.d rtJie's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these' types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creatqs.. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the lJCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increask the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
;
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul RidgewaY in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. Nort.h Carolina lnd1.1Striai Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requlrement,s for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very llrnited circumstances. A court
order can only be tthe basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoptlo~ of a rule.. That is simply not the case. There Is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decisioh that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
' that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be. effective.
Decision clearly stafes

nos. w~sv!ll Court I Ralolgl1, NC 27607 I

919 7814311

I
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For the reasons set forth above, Blue Ridge Surgery Center opposes the proposed temporary
rule. We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the
proposed fee schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is
consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed in A$Cs, and results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation
system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

230S Wcsv11t Court I Rak~1gh, ~JC 21607 I Q19.781.4:511 I FClX 919.781.0625
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603

Dear Chll.irman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Cro:olina
Industrial ColUlllission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC !OJ .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18,2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to amend
04NCAC !OJ .0103.
Surgery Partners, Inc., which operates Wilmington SurgCare ill Wilmington, North Carolina ··
and Orthopaedic Surgery Center of Asheville in Asheville, North Carolina, supports the
proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ("SCA'') on September 26, 2016 to
amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103 specific to the fee schedule
under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services provided by ASCs.

1n April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Surgery Partners, Inc. opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule fot the following
reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
.requirements.
• The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.
• There Is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers ro:e provided the standard of services and cro:e intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these serVices. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implemeotation of the invalid fee
schedule on April!, 2015.

01/03
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'The propose(! temporary rule reduces the fee schedule. lo)OO% of ASC Medicare and
tJ11'.Cludes procedur~s that are otherwise performed at ASCs. Thishas restricted and ~1
continue. to restrict access for i~ured workers to Jeceive .slll'gicalcare in ASCs operating Jn
North Carolina. Lim!ting access to AS.Cs violates thl.l statutory require!llent of ensuring
injured wor)l.ers are. provided the services and standard of care required l>)' the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Undet the ASC fee scheduletbat j}ej;ame effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost p1us28%. The proposed temporary rille does not separate!)'
reimburse for implants. The failure to separate!)' reimbUrse for implants results in even lower
reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services involving
high-cost implants. ~n contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher impl"..lt costs by shifting
patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.

fall~re of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all ~toc~duies that can be safely
P.erformed ort an outpatient basis results in a signi.ficanfcosqo the system. Particularly
iJ:n~~ti\11 in ))J.e context ofwod<ers' compensation injuries are anumber of spine procedures,
many pf y;hich ~ not covered· under .the Me9.lcare ASC fee. schedule but are. common!)'
perf9nn~ 4J. the ASP setting ol), working-age patients. Total J()intreplacements (knee, hip,
m\u ·~lmulll~I~ also arc pai\1 by Medicare only il), the. inpatient setting,. and. thl'~~ ca.•es are
,(()iltinely pel'formed on patients .•-: especially )'oung and otherwise· healthy patients .like many
injured WQXkets '""in the ASC setting. .
.
The

The Ptoposed rule's relianee on a usual, customary; and reasonable ("UCR") methodolo!l)' for
addressing th~~types Qf proc~dures goes not.address the. gap tbat the Metlicw·e ASCfee
.·schedule creates. All 11fthe stakeholders who presented lit the November 18,.2016 public
hearing agtee(l thAt t'he T!Cil inethpdologywould create ll)ore .uncertain!)' to the $Ystem and
· increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the Comm1ssion.

I

Lastly, the CoJIUiril;~iuu hl!ll JlO basis for promulgating atcmp()rOxy rulti.. The Commission
states that the reason is the.recent.court order entered. by Wake County Superior CourtJu~ge
Paul Ridgeway in SW'g/cu/ Cur~ AjJJllates, LLC v. North Carolina Jndu$trlal Commission.
·Jud~e Ridgey;ay' s Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the. bypass
of the reqQ!temilnts fQr pe:mtan~Hl rulewaking setfOlth in .the Admipistrntive Procedure Act.
An agencyll)ay adopta temporary rule only un\ler very limited circumstances. A court order
can only be the basidur ltmlJlonuy lulemakingifthat court oo-dCt requires the immediate
aOQption o(a XIJle. That is simply n()t (h~ c~~e, 'fhere is nothing in Judge Ridgeway's
Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary .rule. Judge ~dgewa)''s Decision clearly
states thatthe
fee .sc)l.edule adopted in·?.O.ll continuestobe eftective.
.
.
.
-

teas~~~. s~

S~u:gpzy

~c.· o~po~es t~~

·For·))J.e
f'oxth·above,.
•·!'artnern,T
proposed temporary. tu]e;
. VIe. recommend that the eommissioninitiate permanenttu!emaking with the proposed Jee
schedule recom!llendation in S(!A's Septembex ?.6, ?.Olli propnsalf which !s consistent y.oith
N()rth Carc:>lifill statutOry requirements, accoUI)tsJor all procedures that can· be performed·. in
ASCe, and results in substanti~l 6\\Vings to the. WoxJi,er$' r.()mpen~ation system in North

C!111llina. .

.
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Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

~~~~tfrr,r.nlfA~
Regional Vice President
Surgery Partners, Inc.
331 Springwater C)lase
Newnan, GA 30265
lsimmons@surgerypartners.com
cc:

Kendrul Bonr<!on
Meredith Henderson

SIMMONS
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina Industrial
Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers' Compensation
Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in opposition to the
Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to amend 04 NCAC lOJ .0103.
Compass Surgical Partners, LLC supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LlC
("SCA'') on September 26, 2016to amend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103
specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services
provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules
for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to establish a new fee
schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the required process set forth in the
Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9,
2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul Ridgeway.
Compass Surgical Partners, LLC opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the
following reasons:
• The temporary rule Is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
• The reduction In rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful to
the workers' compensation system.
• There Is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care Intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and th~t providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were being
conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the Implementation of the invalid fee schedule
on Aprlll, 2015.
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and excludes
procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will continue to restrict
access for Injured workers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating In North Carolina. Limiting
access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring Injured workers are provided the
services and standard of care required by the Workers' Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no greater
than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately reimburse for
implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even lower reimbursement
to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services Involving high-cost Implants. In
contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs by shifting patients to the higher-cost
Inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to Include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results In a significant cost to the system. Particularly impactful
in the context of workers' compensation Injuries are a number of spine procedures, many of
which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are commonly performed in the
ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements (knee, hlp, and shoulder) also are
paid by Medicare only In the inpatient setting, and these cases are routinely performed on
patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients like many Injured workers -In the
ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology for
addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC fee
schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016 public
hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the system and
Increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the Commission.
lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission states
that the reason Is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway In Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commisslan. Judge
Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass of the
requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. An
agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court order can
only be the basis for temporary ruleniaking if that court order requires the immediate adoption
of a rule. That Is simply not the case. There Is nothing In Judge Ridgeway's Decision that requires
the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's Decision clearly states that the fee schedule
adopted In 2013 continues to be effective.

www.compf!.ss~sp.com
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For the reasons set forth above, Compass Surgical Partners, LLCopposes the proposed temporary
rule. We recommend that the Commission Initiate permanent rule making with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation In SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with North
Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed In ASCs, and
results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.

DJ Hill
Co"Founder & Chief Executive Officer
cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

www.composs-sp,com
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Comrnlssloriers:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Cornmlsslon) Notice .of lemporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J ,0103. Please accept this letter In
· opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of' proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Capital City Surgery Center, LLC supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA'') on September 26, 2016 to. amend the previously declared Invalid Rlile 04 NCAC
10J .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial commls~lon failed to follow the
required process set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Capital City Surgery Center, lLC opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the
following .reasons:
• The temporary r(lie Is not cost effective and does not meet North. Carolina statutory
requirements.
•• The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedulewould be very harmful
to th$ workers' compensation system;
• There Is no statutory authority for adopting a temporaryiule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that Injured workers are provided the standard of services and care Intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable feesfor providing
23 Slll»ybrook Road
1\nleigh. NC 276i.O
C<ll)ita!dl yst H1\t'l y.tO! ll
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these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the Implementation of the Invalid
fee schedule on Apl'lll, 2015.
. ...
lhe proposed temporary rule reduces the· fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for lnjmed wor.kers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating In
North Carolina. llhllttrig access to ASCs violates ·the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.

.;,
-:--·-

Under the.ASC fee schedule that became·effectlve In 20131 Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than Invoice cost plus. 28%; The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for Implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results In even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
Involving high-cost Implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost Inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include allprocedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results In a significant costto the system. Particularly
lmpactful In the context of workers' compensation Injuries are a number of spine
pr0ced11res, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed In the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hlp, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only In th~ Inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients~ especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many Injured workers -In the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, custpmary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for acldresslng these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee .schedule ~reates. All of the stakeholders who pre.sented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology wotlld create more tlnC:ertalntY to the
system and ln.crease the .number of. fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.

.·

' ·

Lastly, the Commission has no baslrfor promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is .the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge i>aul Ridgeway In Surgical Core Affiliates, UC v. Nortll Carol/no Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision doesnotrequire.the adoption of a tempqra1y rule and the bypass
ofthe requirements (or permanent rulemaklng set forth In the Administrative Procedure
2} S1umybrook Road
1\oleigh. NC 27610
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Capital C1ty
Surgery Center
Act. An a8ency may adopt a temporary rule o·nly under very limited circumstances. A court
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that co~rt order requires the
Immediate adoption of a rule. That Is simply ·not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway'~ Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule~ Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Capital City Surgery Center, 'llC opposes the proposed
temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission Initiate permanent rulemaklng with
the proposed fee schedule recommendation In SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which Is
consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed In ASCs, and results. in substantial savings• to the Workers' Compensation
systell) In North Carolina.
Thankyoufor your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon

.

.

Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed .temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC lOJ .0103.
Fayetteville Ambulatory Surgery Center supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care
Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule
04 NCAC lOJ .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers'
Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
ln. April 2015, the Industrial Commission establ.ished new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid ori August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Fayetteville Ambulatory Surgery Center opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary
Rule for the following reasons:
• The temporary rule isnot cost effective and does.not .meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
o The reduction in rates to200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.
•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injUred workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior .to the implementation of the invalid
fee schedule on April1, 2015.
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The. proposed temporary .rule reduce..s the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
exCludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured wor~ers to r.ecelve surgical care in ASCs .operating in
North Carolina.. Umitingaccess to ASCs violates. the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provi~ed the services and stand.ard of care required by the Workers'
Compimsation Act. ·
Uhde.t the ASC fee.schedule tbat became .effective In 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than 11\Voi<:e cosf plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
Involving high•cost Implants. In contrast, hospitals are•able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting pathmts to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the IV)edlcarl! ASCJee•schedule to Include all procedures that can jje si)fely
P(lrfOYI))(ld oil an OlltpaJie[lt basis re$l)lts in a significant co?\ tpJhe systel)). Partlfularly
lrnpactful ln. the. co11text of workers' compensation Injuries· are a number of sPine
ptoce~ures; many of which are. nonoveted Onder the Medicate, ASC fee schedule but are
commohly performed iri the ASCsettirig on working-age patients. Total jolntreplacements
(knee, hlp, and shoulder) al.so are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young ~od otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
!he proposed rule's rel!arice on il usual, customary, .and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
foradtlresslng these tyjles of procedures qoes hot address the MP that the Medicare ASC
f~e schedule creates. Al.l bf the $takehqlders who presented at tl'ua November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed .that the UCR methodology would create mQre uncertainty to the
system and Increase the humber of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Cofflmisslon.
lastly, the Commission has. no basis. for promulgating a temporary rt~le. The Commission
states tllat t!'lereason .is tha recenfcourt,order entered by Wake County Sup~?rior court
Judge paul Ridgeway in Sqigical Ca.reAffi/iate$, LLC v•. North Corollnt:J.Jndustrfa/Commlsslon.
Jl!~ge Riilg!lway' s Dl!.tisi~l) dQeS not teq\11re lh!! adoption of~ t¢ro'pqtary nile and the bypass
of t~a requlfeJl1ents for perm~nent rylemaklhg sedorth in the Mminlstrative Procedure
Act. An a11en~y may ~dopt atemporarv rule only under very limited circumstances. Acourt
order can only be the· basis for temporary ruiemaklng if that court orderrequires the
immediate adoption o( a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
·Ridgeway's Decision th;it rllqulres the "adoption of a temp.orary rule, Judge Ridgeway's
DeCision claarly stateSthat the fee sc~edt.i.le ad. opted In 2013 cpritlnu.es to be effective.
For the reasons set forth aboVe, fayetteville Ambulatory Surgery Center ojlposes the
prC>J)Osed temporary r!)le: Wa recommeNd ,tliat the Commission initiate permanent
rulema~ing with the proposed fee sahed.ule re.commendation in SCP!s September .26, .2016
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proposal, which Is consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all
procedures that can be performed in ASCs, and results in substantial savings to .the Workers'
Compensation system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Teresa.L Craven, RN
Administrator
Fayetteville Ambulatory Surgery Center

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

.

.
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 101 .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 101 .0103.
The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care
Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule
04 NCAC 101 .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers'
Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary
Rule for the following reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the invalid
fee schedule on April1, 2015.
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas opposes the
proposed temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent
rulemaking with the proposed fee schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016
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proposal, which is consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all
procedures that can be performed in ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers'
Compensation system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Kathy Stout RN, Administrator
The Eye Surgery Center of the Carolinas

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North CaroHna Industrial Commission
43.0 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 276!l3
DearChairrnan Allen.& Commissioners:
Than.k you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
lndust~lal Commission's (Cpmmission) Notice of Temporary !lulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical fe.e Schedule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the commission's October 18, 2!l16 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Greensboro Specialty Surgical Celitersupports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care
Affiliates, LLC ("SCA") pn September 26, 2016 to amend the previously deClared invalid Rule
04 NCAC 10J .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers'
Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 201$, the lndl,lstrial Commissipl) established new. Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in Prom.ulgating regulations to
estabilsh a new. fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow. the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule w.as ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Greensboro Specialty Surgical Center opposes the Commissiop's Proposed Temporary Rule
fort he following reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements,
• The reduction In .rates to 200% of Medicate ASC fee s(hedule would be very harmful
to the workers' cornpensatioo system.
• There Is no statutpry authdrity for adoptihg a temporary .rule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be apequate to
ensure that injured work.ers are .rrovlded the standard of servlces and care intended by the
Workers' ~:;omrensaHon Act andthatprovldersarE! reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
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these services. The Comm,lssion's proposed rule does not. ~dcfress ~II procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the inv~lid
fee schedule on Aprill, 2015.
The proposed tempor~ry rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care In ASCs operating In
North Carolina. limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by tile Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cast plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The fililure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates ar\ unreasonable risk for providing services
Involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals <Jre able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patientsto the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASc fee schedule to include.. all procedures that can be safely
performed on ,an outpatient basis results in a .significant cost, to the system. Particularly
impactful in t~e context of workers' compensation injuries are " number of spine
procedures, many of Which are not covered undenhe Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hlp, .and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- espeCially young an~ otherWise healthy patients
like many Injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonablE! ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that. the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the. stakeholders who presented at the .November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and Increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rllle. The Commission
states that the reason Is. the re.cent court order entered by Wake Count'} Superior Court
)udge Paul RldgeW<!Y .In Stifgical Care 11/fi/late.s, LLC v. North Carolina lndustriol Commission.
Judge RidgewaY's t:>eclslon does notrequlre the adoption of a temporary rule and.the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth ln. the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may ado pta temporary r~le 6hlyunder very llm(tedcircum~tances. A court
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemakii')g if ,that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule; That is simply not the case, The.re is nothing in Judge
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Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 'ontinues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Greensboro Specialty Surgical Center opposes the proposed
temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with
the proposed fee schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is
consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed in ASCs, and results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation
system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

/I'\
' In~
~~
cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

.
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's. October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Surgical Center of Greensboro I Orthopaedic Surgical Center supports the proposal
submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC ('(SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the
previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North
Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical centers
(ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules .for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Surgical Center of Greensboro I Orthopaedic Surgical Center opposes the Commission's
Proposed Temporary Rule for the following reasons:
•

The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.

•

The reduction In rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the worker{ compensation system.

•

There Is no statutory·authorlty for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being ~onducted In ambulatory surgery centers prior to the Implementation of the invalid
fee schedule on Aprill, :2015.
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for Injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating In
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than Invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for Implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high·cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to Include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results In a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation injutles are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hlp, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers -In the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and lncre.ase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason Is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway In swgica/ Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. Acourt
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking If that court order requires the
Immediate adoption of a rule. That Is simply not the case. There Is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted In 2013 continues to be effective.
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For the reasons set forth above, Surgical Center of Greensboro I Orthopaedic Surgical Center
opposes the proposed temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission initiate
permanent rule making with the proposed fee schedule recommendation In SCA's September
26, 2016 proposal, which Is consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts
for all procedures that can be performed in ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the
Workers' Compensation system in North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Jennifer Graham
RNFA, CASC, CNOR [ Administrator
Surgical Center of Greensboro I Orthopaedic Surgical Center I
www.surgicalcenterofgreensboro.com
1211 Virginia Street I II 01 Carolina Street Greensboro NC 27401

cc:
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Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments In response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaklng for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter In
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Eastern Regional Surgical Center supports the proposal submitted by Surgical care Affiliates,
LLC ("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC
lOJ .0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provlded by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth In the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Eastern Regional Surgical Center opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for
the following reasons:
• The temporary rule Is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
• The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.
• There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.
North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the Implementation of the Invalid
fee schedule on April1, 2015.
1709 Medical Park Drive • Wilson. NC 27893 • !2521 237.5649 • Fax 12521237.4977
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The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to.restrlct access for Injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
Injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective In 2013, Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than Invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results In even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
Involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher Implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost Inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
lmpactful In the context of workers' compensation Injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed In the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hlp, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only In the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers -In the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason Is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking If that court order requires the
Immediate adoption of a rule. That Is simply not the case. There is nothing In Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Eastern Regional Surgical Center opposes the proposed
temporary rule. We recommend that the Commission Initiate permanent rulemaklng with
the proposed fee schedule recommendation In SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which Is
1709 Medical Park Drive • Wilson, NC 27893 • 12521237.5849 • Fax 12521237.4977
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consistent with North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can
be performed In ASCs, and results In substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation
system In North Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Ann DuPree Orr RN BSN CNOR
Administrator

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson

1709 Medical Park Orive • Wilson. NG 27893 • 12521237.5648 • Fa< 12521237.4977
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November 28, 2016

North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
·o.ear Chairman Allen·& Commissioners:
Thank· you for the opportunitY to present comments In response to the North Carolina Industrial
Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaklng for Workers' Compensation Medical Fee
Schedule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103. Please acceptthls le(t.er In opposition tot.ile Commission's 0ctoller18, 2016
notice of pr()posed temporary ruie to amend 04 NCAC 10!.0103.
The Charlotte Surgery CEirib!r supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Afflllates,llC ("SCA") on
September 26, 2016 to arnend the previously declared Invalid Rule 04 NcAC lOJ .0103 specific to tlie fee
schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for services provided by ambulatory surgical
centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission .established new Workers' Compensation fee schedules for
hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, In promulgating regulatlons.to establish a new fee schedule for
ASCs, the Industrial CommissiOn failed to follow the required procewset forth In the Administrative
Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County
Superior Co uri Judge Paul Ridgeway.
The Charlotte Surgery center opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rul.e for. the following
reasons:
•

Tile temporary rule .is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.

•

The reduction In rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful to
the workers' compensation system.

•

There i.s no statutor{ authority for adopting a temporary rule.

N.orth Caronna law requires that fee sc~edules adopted by the Commission be adequate to ensure that
Injured workers are provided the standard of.servlces and care Intended by the Workers' Compensation
Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing these.servlces. The Commission's
proposed rule does not address aU procedures that were. being conducted In ambulatory surgery centers
prior to the Implementation of the invalid fee schedule on April.1,2015.
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Th~

prol)Osed temporai'Y ruleredu~es the .fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medlc~re and excludes procedures
that are otherWise performed at 1\SCs. Th.ls.has restricted and will continue to restrict access for Injured
wor~ersto receive surgical ~re lni\SCs operating ln. North Carolina. limiting access to ASCs violates the
statutory niqulrement of ensuring lnMedwllrkers are provided the ser\il~es and standard of care required
by the Workers' Compensation Act
Under the A'>C fee schedule that. bec.am.e effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no greater than
lnVoltiHost plus 28%. Th<"fprol)Osed temporary rule do.es not separately reimburse for Implants. The
failure to separately reimburse for ill'lplailts results In even lowerrelnj~ursement to ASCs .and creates an
unreasonable rlskfor. providlllg.senllces lnvolitllig high-cost Implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to
recover hi11her 1mpiant Costs by shiftln~ patients to the. higher'Cost ln~tlerit setting for those surgical
procedures.
The failure ofthe Medicare ASC(ee s~he~~leJ9 lnclu<fe all pro.~edur¢s that can be safe.ly perfQrmed on
an,outpatlentbaslstesults in a significant (Qst)oWe syswn, parti~larly lmpaetful in th.e ~ntext .of
worke.rs' compensation Injuries are a nllmber.of spine procedures, ma'ny ofwhjchare not covered ~ncler
the Medicare Asc fee schedule but are commonly performed In the ASC settln!l' on working-age
patients. Total joint replacements (kMe, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only In the inpatient
setting, and these easEl• are ro~linely PJ!rtormed on Patients -especially young and otherwise healthy
pajlen~ like manv @uredworkers-ln t.heA.~Csettlng.
Thepr\lpo5lld rule's relia.nce on a usuai,.custom~ry1 .and· reasonable ('UCR")methodology for addressing
lhe¢>•JYP.es.of,pr()t.edures !foe.snotaddress the gap tryatthe. Medicare;ASCfee schedule .creates.. All,of
the sta.~eholders who. presented at the; l>)ovember 1~, 2016' public hearln$ agreed that the UCR
meihodology Would ci'eat!! mote uncef\alntyto the system and Increase the number offee disputes that
would have to be resolved by. the CO:mmiSslon;
lastly, the Commlsslohh.as no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. Th.e .Commlsslo.n states that the
reason lsthe recent court 9id~r et!Wed bVWakeco~~ty $~1lerlorCovf\~udge P~u) Ridgeway in Surgical
Care Affiliates, LW v. North Carolina lild(istrla( Commlsslori. ))JdgeRidgeway's pecislon does not require
the adop\lim of~ temporaiy rule and the bypass(JHhe requJrell1entS.fqrpeima 0ent rulemaklng set (orth
In the·AdminiS!ratJve Procedure Act. An agency may adopt a te111porary rule oni.Y unde.rvery limited
cirtu.mstances•. Acourt qrder.canonly bl! the basis fot)emporarv rui~fniklrig If that court order requires
t~e ImmediatE! a.dopt!on of a rule. ·That. ini111Piy not the case .. There Is nothlrtgln Judge Ridgeway's
Decision t!tafrequlrlls the.ad.9ptl<m ofatehJporaryrule. Judge Ridgeway'~ Decision clearly states that the
tee schedule ado}ltedhl2013'~ontlrill~to b.e elfecilve,
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Fort he reasons set forth above, The Charlotte Surgery Center opposes the proposed temporary rule. We
recommend .that the Commission Initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee schedule
recommendation In SCA's September 26,2016 proposal, which is consistent with North Carolina Statutory
requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed In ASCs, and results in substantial savings
tot he Workers' Compensation system in North Carolina;

Thank you for your conslcleration.
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Cary Orthopaedics supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled Invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Cary Orthopaedics opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following
reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the invalid
1120 S.E. Cary Parkway, Suite 100, Cary, NC 27518
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fee schedule on Aprill, 2015.
The proposed temporary rl)le reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers· are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
1120 S.E. Cary Parkwoy. Suite /00, Cary. NC 27518
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order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Cary Orthopaedics opposes the proposed temporary rule.
We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with
North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in
ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North
Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC lOJ .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Cary Orthopaedics supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Cary Orthopaedics opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following
reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

o

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the invalid
lllOS.E. Cary Parkway, Suite 100, Cary, NC 275/8
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fee schedule on April1, 2015.
The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results In a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states.that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care.Aftiiiates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
1120 S.E. Cary Parkway. Suite 100, Cary, NC 27518
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order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Cary Orthopaedics opposes the proposed temporary rule.
We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with
North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in
ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North
Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Cary Orthopaedics supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, llC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Cary Orthopaedics opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following
reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation of the invalid
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fee schedule on April1, 2015.
The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, Implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the context of workers' compensation Injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
J120 S.E. Cary Parkway, Suite 100, Cary, NC 27518
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order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Cary Orthopaedics opposes the proposed temporary rule.
We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with
North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in
ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North
Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

cc:

Kendall Bourdon
Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaking for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC lOJ .0103.
Cary Orthopaedics supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC lOJ
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
In April 2015, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Cary Orthopaedics opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following
reasons:
• The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
•

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

•

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adeqvate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation ofthe invalid

JJ20 s.E. Cary Parkway. SuitelOO, Cary, NC 27518
JJJOS.E. Cary Parkway, Suite 103, Cary, NC 27518

.

1 (919) 467·4992 I
1 (919) 297-0000 I

FAX (919} 481-9607 • 101 Lattner Court, Suite 200, Morrisville, NC 27560
FAX {919) 232-5328 • 1005 Vandora Springs Road, Garner, NC 27529

I
I

Specializing in Orthopaedic Surgery, Sports Medicine and Spine Care

(919} 238-2440
(919) 779-3861

I FAX (919}
I FAX (919)

232-5013
779-3234

364

CARY ORTHOPAEDICS

~~

&

spi~,~~!~~~lists

Douglas L. Gol/ehon, MD.

Brian T. Szura, MD.
Douglas J. Martini, M.D.
William K. Andersen, MD.
Derek L. Reinke, MD.
Mark A. Curzan, M.D.
Raymond M. Corro/1, M.D.
Edouard F Armour, M.D.
Demetri M. Economedes, D.O.

Sameer Mathur, M.D.
ScottS. Sanitate, MD.
Gary L. Smoot, MD.
Christopher Lin, MD.
Nicole P. Bullock, M.D.
Paul G. Singh, MD.
Noel Shanri, M.D.

fee schedule on April1, 2015.
The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results In even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactful in the ~ontext of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed In the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
Lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
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order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that coyrt order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Riogeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Cary Orthopaedics opposes the proposed temporary rule.
We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with
North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in
ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North
Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

Meredith Henderson
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November 28, 2016
North Carolina Industrial Commission
430 N. Salisbury Street
Raleigh, NC 27603
Dear Chairman Allen & Commissioners:
Thank you for the opportunity to present comments in response to the North Carolina
Industrial Commission's (Commission) Notice of Temporary Rulemaklng for Workers'
Compensation Medical Fee Schedule 04 NCAC 10J .0103. Please accept this letter in
opposition to the Commission's October 18, 2016 notice of proposed temporary rule to
amend 04 NCAC 10J .0103.
Cary Orthopaedics supports the proposal submitted by Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC
("SCA") on September 26, 2016 to amend the previously declared invalid Rule 04 NCAC 10J
.0103 specific to the fee schedule under North Carolina's Workers' Compensation Act for
services provided by ambulatory surgical centers (ASCs).
in April 201S, the Industrial Commission established new Workers' Compensation fee
schedules for hospitals, physicians, and ASCs. However, in promulgating regulations to
establish a new fee schedule for ASCs, the Industrial Commission failed to follow the
required process set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act. Consequently, the fee
schedule was ruled invalid on August 9, 2016 by Wake County Superior Court Judge Paul
Ridgeway.
Cary Orthopaedics opposes the Commission's Proposed Temporary Rule for the following
reasons:
o The temporary rule is not cost effective and does not meet North Carolina statutory
requirements.
o

The reduction in rates to 200% of Medicare ASC fee schedule would be very harmful
to the workers' compensation system.

o

There is no statutory authority for adopting a temporary rule.

North Carolina law requires that fee schedules adopted by the Commission be adequate to
ensure that injured workers are provided the standard of services and care intended by the
Workers' Compensation Act and that providers are reimbursed reasonable fees for providing
these services. The Commission's proposed rule does not address all procedures that were
being conducted in ambulatory surgery centers prior to the implementation ofthe invalid
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fee schedule on April1, 2015.
The proposed temporary rule reduces the fee schedule to 200% of ASC Medicare and
excludes procedures that are otherwise performed at ASCs. This has restricted and will
continue to restrict access for injured workers to receive surgical care in ASCs operating in
North Carolina. Limiting access to ASCs violates the statutory requirement of ensuring
injured workers are provided the services and standard of care required by the Workers'
Compensation Act.
Under the ASC fee schedule that became effective in 2013, implants are reimbursed at no
greater than invoice cost plus 28%. The proposed temporary rule does not separately
reimburse for implants. The failure to separately reimburse for implants results in even
lower reimbursement to ASCs and creates an unreasonable risk for providing services
involving high-cost implants. In contrast, hospitals are able to recover higher implant costs
by shifting patients to the higher-cost inpatient setting for those surgical procedures.
The failure of the Medicare ASC fee schedule to include all procedures that can be safely
performed on an outpatient basis results in a significant cost to the system. Particularly
impactfui in the context of workers' compensation injuries are a number of spine
procedures, many of which are not covered under the Medicare ASC fee schedule but are
commonly performed in the ASC setting on working-age patients. Total joint replacements
(knee, hip, and shoulder) also are paid by Medicare only in the inpatient setting, and these
cases are routinely performed on patients- especially young and otherwise healthy patients
like many injured workers- in the ASC setting.
The proposed rule's reliance on a usual, customary, and reasonable ("UCR") methodology
for addressing these types of procedures does not address the gap that the Medicare ASC
fee schedule creates. All of the stakeholders who presented at the November 18, 2016
public hearing agreed that. the UCR methodology would create more uncertainty to the
system and increase the number of fee disputes that would have to be resolved by the
Commission.
lastly, the Commission has no basis for promulgating a temporary rule. The Commission
states that the reason is the recent court order entered by Wake County Superior Court
Judge Paul Ridgeway in Surgical Care Affiliates, LLC v. North Carolina Industrial Commission.
Judge Ridgeway's Decision does not require the adoption of a temporary rule and the bypass
of the requirements for permanent rulemaking set forth in the Administrative Procedure
Act. An agency may adopt a temporary rule only under very limited circumstances. A court
1120 SE. Cary Parkway, Suite 100, Cary, NC 27518
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order can only be the basis for temporary rulemaking if that court order requires the
immediate adoption of a rule. That is simply not the case. There is nothing in Judge
Ridgeway's Decision that requires the adoption of a temporary rule. Judge Ridgeway's
Decision clearly states that the fee schedule adopted in 2013 continues to be effective.
For the reasons set forth above, Cary Orthopaedics opposes the proposed temporary rule.
We recommend that the Commission initiate permanent rulemaking with the proposed fee
schedule recommendation in SCA's September 26, 2016 proposal, which is consistent with
North Carolina statutory requirements, accounts for all procedures that can be performed in
ASCs, and results in substantial savings to the Workers' Compensation system in North
Carolina.
Thank you for your consideration.
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